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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report, including in the sections titled "RIB#ctors," "Management's Discussion and AnalysiBin&ncial Condition and Results of
Operations" and "Business," contains, in additiorhtstorical information, forward-looking statementWe may, in some cases, use words su
as "project,” "believe," "anticipate," "plan," "exgt," "estimate," "intend," "continue," "should,Wbuld," "could," "potentially," "will," "may"
or similar words and expressions that convey urdety of future events or outcomes to identify éhfesward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements in this Annual Report on ForrKlihay include, among other things, statements abou

. the progress of, timing of and amount of expensesaated with our research, development and cowialation activities;
. the success of our clinical studies for our produamdidates;
. our ability to obtain U.S. and foreign regulatorp@roval for our product candidates and the abibifyour product candidates to

meet existing or future regulatory standards;

. our expectations regarding federal, state and fgmaiegulatory requirements;

. the therapeutic benefits and effectiveness of mayxrt candidates;

. the safety profile and related adverse events opooaduct candidates;

. our ability to manufacture sufficient amounts of0B38, RAD1901 and RAD140 for commercialization &gt with target
characteristics;

. our plans with respect to collaborations and licesselated to the development, manufacture orafabeir product candidates;

. our expectations as to future financial performaregyense levels and liquidity sources;

. our ability to compete with other companies tha ar may be developing or selling products that@mpetitive with our

product candidates;

. anticipated trends and challenges in our potentiarkets;
. our ability to attract and motivate key personreaid
. other factors discussed elsewhere in this report.

The outcome of the events described in these fdreaking statements is subject to known and unknisks, uncertainties and other
important factors that could cause actual resuttsliffer materially from the results anticipated tyese forward-looking statements. These
important factors include our financial performanaoeir ability to attract and retain customers, algvelopment activities and those other
factors we discuss in Item 1A of this Annual ReporEForm 1K under the caption "Risk Factors." You should réaeke factors and the oth
cautionary statements made in this report as baimgjicable to all related forward-looking statemgmtherever they appear in this report.
These risk factors are not exhaustive and otheliges of this report may include additional factevhich could adversely impact our business
and financial performance.

You should read the following discussioroaf financial condition and results of operatiamsonjunction with our financial statements
and related notes set forth in this report.
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CURRENCY AND CONVERSIONS

In this report, references to "dollar" 8t ‘are to the legal currency of the United Sta#es] references to "euro” or "€" are to the single
currency introduced on January 1, 1999 at the efalte third stage of European Economic and Magétkion, pursuant to the Treaty
establishing the European Communities, as amengléteblreaty on European Union and the Treaty offemdam. Unless otherwise
indicated, the financial information in this repbes been expressed in U.S. dollars. Unless otkerstated, the U.S. dollar equivalent
information translating euros into U.S. dollars bagn made, for convenience purposes, on the diasie noon buying rate published by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve as oééer 31, 2012, which wad £0 = $1.3186. Such translations should not betcoad as
representation that the euro has been, could hesm dr could be converted into U.S. dollars ar#ite indicated, any particular rate or at all.

Trademarks appearing in this report areptioperty of their respective holders.

2
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ITEM 1.

BUSINESS.

PART |

Unless otherwise provided in this report, all refeces in this report to "we," "us," "our companiqur,” or the "Company" refer to
Radius Health, Inc. after giving effect to the Margnd the Sho-Form Merger (each as defined under "Corporate tnfation" below).

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focasedeveloping new therapeutics for the treatmemtstéoporosis and other womens' health
conditions. Our lead product candidate is BAO58p@el synthetic peptide analog of human parathyheitnone-related protein, or hPTHrP, a
naturally-occurring bone building hormone. We aggeloping BA058 as a potential best-in-diseasdrtreat for osteoporosis in both injection
(with BAO58-SC, a subcutaneous injection curreitlg Phase 3 clinical study) and transdermal (B#©58-TD, a short wear-time
transdermal patch currently in a Phase 2 clinitadyy methods of administration. Osteoporosisdésaase characterized by low bone mass at
structural deterioration of bone tissue, which ke to an increase in fractures. We believe tied3B stimulates the rapid formation of new,
high-quality bone in patients suffering from ostergsis and may restore bone mineral density, or BMEhese patients into the normal

reference range.

We currently have no product revenues atiéye that our existing resources will not be isight to fund our planned operations beyond
the end of May 2013. As a result, we need to olddufitional capital immediately in order to con&nio fund our operations. We are currently
pursuing a number of financing opportunities toradd our capital needs, including the completioa pfivate placement or public offering ¢
other strategic financing alternatives that coualdude, but are not limited to, partnering or otbeltaboration agreements. If we fail to obtain
additional capital immediately, we may be unabledmplete our planned preclinical and clinicalltriand obtain approval of any product
candidates from the FDA and other regulatory aitileer In addition, we could be forced to discontproduct development, reduce or foregc
sales and marketing efforts, forego attractive mess opportunities or discontinue our operationisedy

Our Product Candidates

BAOS8
Cstaoporosis
infection

BAOS8
Osieoporosis
Microneedie Falch

RAD1901

Vasomotor Symptoms
Oral

RAD140
Osteoporosis ( Frailty
Oral

Preclinical Phase 1
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We believe that BA058 has the followingettal advantages over other current standardref ca

. greater efficacy;

. faster benefit for building bone;
. shorter treatment duration;

. less hypercalcemia;

. no additional safety risks; and

. no refrigeration required in use.

In August 2009, we announced positive Pl2adata that showed BA058-SC produced faster apakgr BMD increases at the spine and
the hip with substantially less hypercalcemia tRarteo, the only approved anabolic agent for thatiment of osteoporosis in the United St
Specifically, our study demonstrated that totalreble hip BMD showed a more than five-fold behefiBA058 at a dose of 80ug over
Forteo after six months, and BAO58 at a dose ofg88preased mean lumbar spine BMD by 6.7% at sirthg) compared to 5.5% with Fort
and by 12.9% at 12 months, compared to 8.6% witteBoln April 2011, we began dosing patients pivatal, multinational Phase 3 clinical
study designed to show that BA058-SC prevents rexvebral fracture compared to placebo. We completedliment in this Phase 3 clinical
study in March 2013 and expect to report top-liBarionth fracture data during the fourth quarte?@f4.

We are also developing BA058-TD, a shoramtame, transdermal form of BA058 that is delivkresing a microneedle patch technology
from 3M Drug Delivery Systems, or 3M. We commened@hase 2 clinical study of BA058-TD in the thingager of 2012. We completed
enrollment in this study in January 2013 and expzeogport top-line data in the third quarter ofl30We believe BA0O58-TD may eliminate the
need for daily injections, lead to better treatmmamhpliance for patients and expand the existingkataWe reported the following top-line
results from a Phase 1b study in December 2011:

. rapid release of BA058 from the microneedle patch;

. peak transdermal drug levels consistent with BAG&S-

. faster time to peak concentration, and faster alatidon in plasma, compared to BA058-SC;

. increase in the bone-formation marker procollagge tLN-terminal propeptide, or PINP, in serum afearen days of exposure,

consistent with bone-building activity; and

. identification of optimal wear time of five mites or less, and effective sites of application.

We are also developing RAD1901, a seleasteogen receptor modulator, or SERM, for thetineat of vasomotor symptoms, commc
known as hot flashes, in women entering menopaumskRAD140, a selective androgen receptor modylatd8ARM, which is an orally-
active androgen agonist on muscle and bone andaseatial treatment for age-related muscle lasdlty, weight loss associated with cancer,
cachexia and osteoporosis.

Our Market

The National Osteoporosis Foundation, erNI®F, has estimated that 10 million people inUhé#ed States, comprising eight million
women and two million men, are already diagnoset wéteoporosis, and another 34 million have lowebmass placing them at increased
for osteoporosis. In addition, the NOF has estich#ttat osteoporosis is responsible for more thanrhilion fractures in the United States
resulting in an estimated $19 billion in costs aallyu The NOF expects that the number of fractuhes to osteoporosis will rise to three
million by 2025. Worldwide,
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osteoporosis affects an estimated 200 million woaeording to the International Osteoporosis Fotiodaor IOF. The IOF has estimated 1
1.6 million hip fractures occur worldwide each yeard by 2050 this number could reach between 4ll®mand 6.3 million. The IOF
estimates that in Europe alone, the annual cassteoporotic fractures could surpass €76 billior20§0.

There are two main types of osteoporosigslcurrently available in the United States, aggibrptive agents and anabolic agents.
According to industry sources, sales of these dimgise United States, the five major markets indpe and Japan exceeded $6 billion in 2(
Anti-resorptive agents act to prevent further bonelbgsshibiting the breakdown of bone, whereas analagents stimulate bone formation
build new, high-quality bone. We believe there large unmet need in the market for osteoporosatrmnent because existing therapies have
shortcomings in efficacy, tolerability and converge. For example, the current standard of carghoisphonates, an anti-resorptive agent, ha
been associated with infrequent but serious adwarsets, or SAES, such as osteonecrosis of thegjmial fibrillation and anomalous fractures,
especially of long bones, resulting from "frozembéd These atypical fractures have created inargasincern with physicians and patients.
Many physicians are seeking alternatives to cumetitresorptive therapies, which we believe wilisd greater demand for bone anabolic
agents in the future. We believe there is a sigaift opportunity for a new anabolic agent, sucBA&858, that will increase BMD to a greater
degree and at a faster rate than other approvess diou the treatment of osteoporosis with addechathges in convenience and safety.

Our Strategy

We plan to build a biopharmaceutical comypfaicused on developing new therapeutics for ostragis and other women's health
conditions by:

. completing the pivotal Phase 3 clinical studyB#f058-SC for the treatment of osteoporosis andntépg top-line 18-month
fracture data in the fourth quarter of 2014;

. pursuing the clinical development of BA058-TD a®kow-on product for the treatment of osteoporpsis

. seeking regulatory approval of BA058-SC and BA03B{dr the treatment of osteoporosis if the clinitrals for these product
candidates are successful, initially in the Unigtdtes and subsequently in Europe;

. potentially collaborating with third parties forehwvorldwide commercialization of BAO58 (except Japa

. pursuing the potential application of BA058 in thederate osteoporosis market, as well for thertreat of osteoarthritis;

. potentially collaborating with third parties fthre further development and commercialization ADR901 and RAD140 on a

worldwide basis; and

. building a strong management team and boardrettrs with significant pharmaceutical developtmeegulatory and
commercial experience.

Background on Osteoporosis

Osteoporosis is a disease characterizéovbipone mass and structural deterioration of seie, which can lead to an increase in
fractures. A bone density test is the only non-gnv@test that can diagnose osteoporosis beforekeeh bone occurs and is reported using t-
scores. The test uses a procedure called bonga®esiy, or DXA, which is performed in the radiologr nuclear medicine departments of
hospitals or clinics. A BMD t-score is the numbéstandard deviations above or below the mean Bbiafhealthy 30 year old adult of the
same sex and ethnicity as the patient. A
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t-score of -1.0 or above implies normal bone dgnshereas a t-score of -2.5 or below implies guiasis of osteoporosis.

Worldwide, osteoporosis affects an estith&@0 million women according to the IOF and israportant cause of morbidity and
mortality. Many individuals may have osteoporosis #o not know it. The Office of the Surgeon Gehefdhe United States has said that
based on survey results by The National HealthNutdtion Examination Survey, or NHANES, testingtla¢ hip showed that four times as
many men (four percent) and 2.5 times as many wg@g¥h) actually had osteoporosis than reportedttiegt had the disease. All bones
become more fragile and susceptible to fractutheaslisease progresses. People tend to be undweatbeir bones are getting weaker, and a
person with osteoporosis can fracture a bone froen @ minor fall.

Fractures due to osteoporosis are mody/likeoccur in the hip, spine and wrist. In 2008gre were an estimated 9 million new
osteoporotic fractures, of which 1.6 million wetdtee hip, 1.7 million were at the forearm and thilion were clinical vertebral fractures.
According to the IOF, hip fractures cause the mostbidity among types of osteoporotic fractures eawl lead to lasting immobility. The IOF
has estimated that by 2050 the number of hip frastaould reach between 4.5 million and 6.3 milfimm 1.6 million. According to the NOF:

. osteoporosis is responsible for an estimatedntiliion fractures in the United States every year;
. vertebral (spinal) fractures may result in sevegick pain, loss of height or spinal deformities;
. there were approximately 293,000 Americans agendisoaer admitted to hospitals in 2005 with a fraetof the femoral neck, a

common type of hip fracture that is associated w#teoporosis;

. a women's lifetime risk of a hip fracture is equaher combined risk of breast, uterine and ovacamcer;
. approximately 50% of women and 25% of men will hameosteoporotic fracture after the age of 50; and
. an average of 24% of hip fracture patients agedriiDover die in the year following their fractul&{20% excess mortality

risk), while an additional 20% of patients who wamebulatory before their hip fracture require ldegn care (with a 50%
chance of added permanent disability).

The debilitating effects of osteoporosisénaubstantial costs. Loss of mobility, admissmntrsing homes and dependence on caregivel
are all common consequences of osteoporosis. Skefisubsequent fractures increases by 86% faethdth a fracture. The NOF has
estimated that osteoporosis-related fracturesesmonsible for $19 billion in costs in the Unitedt8s annually.

The prevalence of osteoporosis is growimdy according to the NOF, is significantly undecagnized and unddreated in the populatio
While the aging of the population is a primary ériwf an increase in cases, osteoporosis is atseasing from the use of drugs that induce
bone loss, such as chronic use of glucocorticaidsnatase inhibitors that are increasingly usedfeast cancer and the hormone therapies
used for prostate cancer.

The range of treatment and prevention ogtior osteoporosis has expanded in recent yearsdnti-resorptive drugs that act to prevent
bone loss by blocking bone resorption, which isghacess by which bone is broken down in the badi/the resulting minerals, including
calcium, are released into the blood, to includphdsphonates, SERMs, calcitonins, and most regcen?010, a genetic-based therapy knowr
as receptor activator of nuclear factor kappa-Bry known as a RANKL inhibitor. Bisphosphonatesa the current standard of care, led
by Actonel, Boniva and Fosamax. Generic
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versions of Fosamax (alendronate) became availaltee United States in 2008 and have now gainedtehahare from branded oral
bisphosphonates.

The only anabolic drug approved in the EdiStates for osteoporosis is Forteo, which wasoapp by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, or FDA, in December 2002. In 201He medical journal, Osteoporosis Internationahlished results of a study indicating that
patients' preferences for osteoporosis medicatiomstrongly influenced by the mode of administratin particular, when given the choice of
subcutaneously injected Forteo versus other thesapatients preferred the alternative drugs oweieB, which requires once-daily, self-
administered injections and must be refrigeratedtforage between uses. We believe that this relssaggests that there is a substantial
opportunity to optimize patient outcomes and expdednarket by improved treatment compliance witloae anabolic drug that offers an
alternative to daily injection, is stable at rocemperature and requires a shorter treatment doratich as BA058-TD. Forteo had worldwide
sales of approximately $594.0 million in 2006 add?billion in 2012.

BA058
Overview

BAO58 is a novel synthetic peptide analbg®THrP that we are developing as a bone anabvelitment for osteoporosis. hPTHrP is
critical in the formation of the embryonic skeletaminvolved in the regulation of bone formatiardas able to rebuild bone with low
associated risk of inducing the presence of toomuoadcium in the blood, known as hypercalcemia agle effect. Human PTHrP (a protein of
139 to 173 amino acids) is different to hPTH (at@iroof 84 amino acids) in its structure and r&he2009, the medical journal, Nature
Chemical Biology, published the results of a stimtlicating that PTH (which primarily regulates dalo homeostasis and bone resorption)
PTHrP activate the same parathyroid hormone recept®THR1, but produce divergent effects in bduae to differences in downstream cell
signaling. We believe that BA0O58 is the most adeancPTHrP analog in clinical development for tleatment of osteoporosis. We acquired
and maintain exclusive worldwide rights, excludilapan, to certain patents, data and technicalnr#tion related to BA058 through a license
agreement with an affiliate of Ipsen Pharma SASpsen.

BAO5E-SC

In August 2009, we announced positive PlR2adata that showed BA058-SC produced faster agatgrr BMD increases at the spine and
the hip after six months and 12 months of treatrtiesnt Forteo, which was a comparator in our stiay. findings were that the highest dose
of BA058, which was 80 g, increased mean lumbaresBMD at six months and 12 months by 6.7% an@%2compared to the increases
seen with Forteo in the study of 5.5% and 8.6%peaesvely. BA058-SC also produced increases in nfearoral neck BMD at the hip at six
months and 12 months of 3.1% and 4.1% compareattteases for Forteo of 1.1% and 2.2%, respectiViétybelieve there to be a strong
correlation between an increased level of BMD amnedaction in the risk of fracture for patientshwisteoporosis. BA0O58 was generally safe
and well tolerated in this study, with adverse gseimilar between BA058, placebo and Forteo grolpaddition, the occurrence of
hypercalcemia as a side effect was half that segnPRerteo for the 80 pg dose of BA058. We expkat the Phase 2 data for BA058-SC wiill
be published by a third-party publication in 2013.

In March 2011, we entered into an agreematht Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII @/ or Nordic, to manage the Phase 3
study of BAO58-SC. The study is being conductetilrcountries at 28 centers operated by the Cemteélinical and Basic Research, or
CCBR, as well as other medical centers. CCBR éadihg global clinical research organization, oiGCRith extensive experience in global
osteoporosis registration studies. We expect tortépp-line data from the Phase 3 study of BA@B.n the fourth quarter of 2014. Before
submit a New Drug Application,
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or NDA, to the FDA for BAO58 as a treatment foramtorosis, we must complete several additionalesudhcluding, but not limited to, our
pivotal Phase 3 study based upon 18-month fractat® a thorough QT Phase 1 study, which is a sledigned to assess the potential
arrhythmia liability of a drug by measuring theesff on the start to finish time of the ventricutaain part of the cardiac contraction, also
known as the QT interval, a Phase 1 pharmacokiratieK, study in renal patients, a Phase 1 absdligiavailability PK study, a maximum
tolerated dose study, several drug interactioniss,i@ carcinogenicity study in rats, and boneitusiudies in rats and monkeys.

Our ongoing Phase 3 study, which commeimcégril 2011 and completed enroliment in March 30gith 2,460 subjects, was designed
to enroll 2,400 subjects which would be randomieqdally to receive daily doses of one of the follmyv 80 g of BA058, a matching placet
or the approved dose of 20 ug of Forteo for 18 imanthe study is designed to support, or not, eliebthat BA058 is superior to placebo for
prevention of vertebral fracture and Forteo foratiee BMD improvement at major skeletal sites arrdaftower occurrence of hypercalcemia.
We believe the study will also show that BMD gdlioisBA058 patients will occur earlier than for Feotpatients. The study will also include a
6-month extension period during which patients vélieive an approved alendronate therapy in ocdebtain 24month fracture data reques
by the FDA.

An interim safety analysis was performedhmsy independent Data Safety Monitoring Board, 8MB, as part of its routine oversight of
the Phase 3 study. During the fourth quarter o22@He DSMB reviewed accumulated safety data orertttan 75 percent of the planned 2,401
subjects and recommended that the trial continmeodiified. As part of this DSMB review, a blindedadysis was performed on safety reports
of clinical, non-vertebral fractures occurring retstudy. The blinded (BA058/Placebo) versus opball(Forteo) arm has shown a lower non-
vertebral fracture rate (1.2 percent in the blinB&d@58/Placebo arm versus 1.9 percent in the Faiay. There have been no SAEs to date
attributed to BA058-SC.

Based upon guidance we have received fhentDA earlier this year, we believe that a sudoéssingle pivotal placebo-controlled,
comparative Phase 3 fracture study will be sufficie support registration of BA058-SC for the treant of osteoporosis in the United States.
Phase 3 studies with similar size, design and entipas our Phase 3 fracture study have been muffito support registration with the
European Medicines Agency, or the EMA, for othendanabolic drugs used to treat women with ostemmin the European Union, or the
EU. In December 2012, we met with the Swedish Madiroducts Agency, or the MPA, to review the desigd the overall progress of the
Phase 3 study. The MPA confirmed that the progkased on the current single pivotal trial desigoyld support the submission and poter
approval of an MAA in the EU, pending the resultshe Phase 3.

Assuming we do not encounter any unforeskedays during the course of developing BA058-S€ ewpect to present the 18-month data
in the fourth quarter of 2014. We plan to file tiBA submission for BA058-SC in approximately midiZ0with the 18-month fracture data
and supplementally provide the 24-month fractuta,dahen available. We expect commercial laundoltow in the United States, if and
when the FDA approves the NDA for BA058-SC, anthim EU if and when the marketing authorization eyapion for BAO58SC is approvec
In the fourth quarter of 2014, we expect to begimf additional personnel in preparation for toa@nmercial launch.

BAO5E-TD

We successfully completed combined singlg-@hd seven-day repeat-dose Phase 1b clinicaéstafiBA058-TD in healthy subjects. We
commenced a Phase 2 clinical study in the thirdtquaf 2012. We completed enroliment in this stirdyanuary 2013 and expect tiipe date
to be available in the third quarter of 2013. Ohas$t 2 clinical study compares multiple daily dageBA058-TD to placebo and BA058-SC
using lumbar spine BMD at six months as the prinearglpoint. If BA058-SC

8
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is already approved by the FDA, we believe thatwikeonly need to conduct a single non-inferiorjase 3 clinical study comparing the
change in lumbar spine BMD at 12 months for pasieltsed with BAO58-TD to patients dosed with BA®8-to show that the effect of
BAO58-TD treatment is not worse than that of BAGS8- In 2014, we expect that the Phase 2 data f@5BATD will be published by a third-
party publication. In addition, we expect to comieour Phase 3 clinical study for BAO58-TD in 2014.

We believe that development costs for BATEBwiIll be lower than the injectable version as eugrently do not intend to conduct an
additional pivotal fracture study for this followrgroduct. As a result of the compressed pathviayriclinical trials of BA058-SC and
BAO058-TD are successful, we expect that marketpmaval of BA0O58-TD can occur soon after BA058-S@erefore, the FDA approval, and
the timing of any such approval, is dependent uperapproval of BA0O58-SC. As a result, BAO58-That likely to receive FDA approval, if
ever, until at least two years following approvhB&058-SC.

Clinical Development Program

We are developing BA058 for the preventibiiractures in postmenopausal women at risk afténe from severe osteoporosis.
Recognizing both the therapeutic potential of BA@b&is indication as well as the drawbacks inhene self-injection therapies in this
population, we are also developing BA058-TD fonsdermal administration of the product using a arieedle technology from 3M. We plan
to develop and register BA0O58-SC as our lead pripavith BAO58-TD as a follow-on product that proggigreater patient convenience. We
believe the ability of BAO58-TD to capitalize oretinore extensive fracture study data of BA058-SICallow the patch product to be
accelerated through later-phase development wittemutiring its own fracture study.

Ongoing BA058-SC Phase 3 Study

The Phase 3 study for BA058-SC (Study BA058)03) was submitted as a draft protocol to itigatonal new drug, or IND, 73,176 on
December 18, 2009, and was the subject of a TylRadBof Phase 2 Meeting conducted with the FDA awdey 21, 2010. The protocol was
subsequently revised and submitted to the FDA ozeBwber 17, 2010. In April 2011, we began dosingep# in this study. In March 2013,
the study completed enroliment with 2,460 patiett28 medical centers in 10 countries in the Un&&ates, Europe, Latin America and Asia.

On February 15, 2012, we received a |éttan the FDA stating that, after internal considiena, the agency believes that a minimum of
24-month fracture data are necessary for apprdvatw products for the treatment of postmenopaosigoporosis. Our ongoing BA058-SC
pivotal Phase 3 clinical study is designed to poedisacture data based on an 18-month primary endfte FDA's letter solicited a meeting
to review the status of our Phase 3 clinical stalg discuss options for fulfilling the FDA's nevguest for 24-month fracture data in the
context of the ongoing Phase 3 study. We subselgumet with the FDA on March 21, 2012 to discusss$ging the 24-month data request
while preserving the current 18-month primary endpd@ased upon our discussion with the FDA, wedwel that continued use of the 18-
month primary endpoint will be acceptable, provideat our NDA includes the 24-month fracture datewed from a 6-month extension of the
BAO058 80 g and placebo groups in our Phase 3 shatywill receive an approved alendronate (gereogamax®) therapy for osteoporosis
management. We intend to file the NDA with the 18nth fracture data and supplementally provide then®nth fracture data, when availal
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Study objectives-The primary objective of this study is to deterethe safety and efficacy of BA058-SC at a dosg0qgfig when
compared to a matching placebo for prevention aiebeal fracture in otherwise healthy ambulatorgtptenopausal women at risk of fracture
from severe osteoporosis. Patients, investigatwldradependent assessors will be blinded as taiexd for that outcome. The secondary
objectives of this study are to determine the yadet efficacy of BA058 at a dose of 80 png when jgared to placebo for prevention of non-
vertebral fractures and for change in vertical heigdditional key secondary efficacy outcomesiige BMD of spine, hip and femoral neck
and frequency of hypercalcemia when compared tteBor

Study population-The study will enroll otherwise healthy ambulatargmen who have been postmenopausal for at leasyéiars aged
50 to 85 (inclusive), meet the study entry criten have provided written informed consent. Theneo will have a BMD t-scors -2.5 and
>-5.0 at the lumbar spine or hip (femoral neckX¥A and radiological evidence of two or more mildane or more moderate lumbar or
thoracic vertebral fractures, or history of lowumnga forearm, humerus, sacral, pelvic, hip, femordibial fracture within the past five years.
Postmenopausal women older than 65 who meet theedhbacture criteria but have a t-score<eR.0 and >-5.0 may be enrolled. Women oldel
than 65 who do not meet the fracture criteria may be enrolled if their t-score $5-3.0 and >-5.0. Osteoporosis is defined as whestiarg's
t-score< -2.5, meaning that the patient has a BMD that s &nwd a half standard deviations below the mean Bi¥i@n ethnically matched
thirty year old man or woman, as applicable. Alli@ats are to be in good general health as detedriy medical history, physical examina
(including vital signs) and clinical laboratory tieg.

Study design

Inclusion Criteria

¥ Healthy postmenopausal
women, 50-85 years old
with severe osteoporosis
¥ BMD t-score = -2.5 and
> -5.0 at the lumbar spine
{L1-L4} or femoral neck
¥ Fracture criteria

Primary Endpoint

# Reduction in new
vertebral fractures in
BADSE-treated at EOT vs.
placebo

Secondary Endpoints

*# Changes in spine, total hip,
femoral neck and wrist
EMD in BADBB-treated
from baseline to EOT vs,
Forteo

# Difference in
hypercalcemia rates in

Exclusion Criteria

* History of more than 4
spine fractures
® Prior treatment with
hisphosphonates in the
past 5 years BADSE-treated at EOT vs,
¥ Chronic iliness or other Forteo
bona disaases * New non-vertebral
fractures in BAOSB-treated
at EOT vs. placebo
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The 2,460 eligible patients will be randeed equally to receive one of the following forrb8nths:

. BAO58 at a dose of 80 ug;
. a matching placebo; or

. Forteo at a dose of 20 ug.

Study drug is blinded to patients and madiersonnel until the randomization process isgleted. Treatment with BAO58 at a dose of
80 p g or placebo will remain blinded to all pasttroughout the study. Forteo comes as a propyiptafilled drug and device combination
that cannot be repackaged. Therefore, its ideasibpnot be blinded to treating physicians and ptgience use begins. Study medication will b
self-administered daily by subcutaneous injectmmaf maximum of 18 months. All enrolled patientd afso receive calcium and vitamin D
supplementation from the time of enroliment urité £nd of the treatment period. It will be recomdezhto patients that they also continue
these supplements through the one month followarog.

Primary efficacy endpointsThe primary efficacy endpoint will be the numbéBa&058-treated patients showing new vertebraltfrees
at end-of-treatment when compared to placebo dsatea by a blinded assessor according to a stdizeégrgraded scale of severity of the
vertebral deformity. The sample size per treatnaemt provides 90% power at a two-sided alpha toode@tsuperiority difference between
placebo patients and those who receive BA058 asa df 80 g on vertebral fracture incidence.

Secondary efficacy endpointsSecondary efficacy parameters will also includdudion in the incidence of non-vertebral fractu@ghe
wrist, hip and rib, for example, and reduction indarate and severe vertebral fractures. Other dacpefficacy endpoints will include
changes in BMD of the spine, hip, femoral neck amidt from baseline to end-of-treatment as asselsgdaXA.

Additional secondary endpoints will inclucleange in standing height and changes in serur tmomation markers across treatment, ¢
as P1NP, osteocalcin and bone-specific alkalinespiatase. The frequency of hypercalcemia acroasremt groups will also be assessed.

Each of the BA058 80 pg and placebo grawmmsir Phase 3 study will be eligible to continoean extension study and will receive an
approved alendronate (generic Fosamax®) therapgdimoporosis management. A key endpoint of thensian study will be the reduction in
new vertebral fractures at 24 months in BAO58-&dgiatients who are treated with alendronate agrideof treatment, versus placebo-treated
patients who are treated with alendronate at tkleoétreatment.
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Extension study desig

BAO58 Alendronate

80ug, QD

PO Endpoint

* Reduction in new vertebral
fractures in BAGSE-reated
followed by alendronate ot
EOT vs. placebo-ireated
followed by alendronate

Alendronate
PO

Placebo
QD

Safety outcomesSafety evaluations to be performed will includggibal examinations, vital signs, 12ad electrocardiograms, or EC
clinical laboratory tests and monitoring and redagcf adverse events. Specific safety assessméihtaclude post-dose (four hours)
determination of serum calcium, determination @atinine clearance, post-dose ECG assessments@tesdevisits and assessments of postur:
hypotension (60 minutes post-dose) at selectettalisits.

Bone biopsy of the iliac crest will be perhed in a subset of patients receiving BA058 dbse of 80 g and placebo (up to 100 patients
per group) for assessment of quantitative boneimistphometry which is the quantative study of therascopic organization and structure of
the bone tissue, and will be read blinded to treatrby an independent blinded assessor. Renay saifebe further evaluated in a subset of
100 patients in each treatment group by renal coetptomography, or CT, scan.

Overall study safety will be monitored byiadependent DSMB.
BAO5E-TD Phase 2 Study

In the third quarter of 2012, we commenadehase 2 randomized, placebo-controlled, pagitelp dose-finding clinical study of BA0O58-
TD. The study will evaluate the safety and efficatyhe daily BAO58-TD in women with osteoporosiglavill be similar in design to the
Phase 2 study for BA058-SC. The study will evaluhteeffects of three doses of BA0O58-TD, compaoepléacebo and BA058-SC at a dose of
80 g, on change in BMD and anabolic bone markers sixemonths of treatment. The study will be poweiedetect clinically meaningful
changes in BMD and biomarkers as efficacy measimelanuary 2013, we completed enroliment in thislgwith 250 patients.

Safety will be assessed as changes indnciel of adverse events, changes in laboratory gdeasnin particular serum calcium, change
from baseline in the patient's vital signs and jtalssxamination.

Study participation will be preceded by tad¢wo weeks of pretreatment with calcium andmitaD supplements and treatment
conclusion will be followed by a one month periddsafety observation.

We expect top-line data from this studypéoavailable in the third quarter of 2013.
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Completed BA058-SC Phase 2 Study

We conducted a randomized, placebo-coetiplparallel group dose-finding Phase 2 study (5B#A058-05-002) in the United States,
Argentina, India and the United Kingdom. The pugo$the study was to evaluate the safety andasf§iof daily injections of BA058-SC in
women with osteoporosis. Postmenopausal women katiiee ages of 55 and 85 (inclusive) who had a BMEobre< -2.5 at the lumbar spine
or hip (femoral neck) by DXA or a BMD t-scoge-2 and a prior low trauma fracture or an additiamsl factor were candidates for this study.
The study evaluated the effects of BA058-SC atipleldoses (placebo, 20g, 40u g and 8Qu g) on recovery of BMD, a marker of fracture
risk, and on biomarkers of anabolic and resorpdistivity in bone. The study also included a Fotteatment arm for reference. These efficacy
measures (BMD and bone biomarkers) were desigrestdtistical significance. After the initial 24 eles of treatment, eligible patients were
offered a second 24 weeks of their assigned tredtrBafety was assessed throughout the study aodiee on at both six months and
12 months. BA058-SC and placebo were self-admimadtasing a prefilled cartridge in a pen-injectevide. Forteo was self-administered as
the marketed product at the approved dose of 28anday by subcutaneous injection. Four weeks poistart of treatment, patients began
taking calcium and vitamin D supplements that cargd throughout the study.

A total of 270 patients (mean age: 65 yeansered the pretreatment period, 222 patients vardomized, and 221 patients received s
treatment and were analyzed in the intent-to-ti@alf] T, population with 55 continuing into an atidinal 24 weeks of treatment. A total of 155
patients were included in the efficacy populatipar(protocol) in the initial 24 weeks of treatment.

Initial 24 weeks of treatmenrtThe efficacy results of Study BA058-05-002 confdrthe preclinical and early clinical hypothesistth
BAO058-SC induces a dose-dependent increase in BiDOramarkers of bone remodeling measurable at thetd 2-week and 24-week
assessments.

In the ITT population, the mean percentng®ain total analyzable spine BMD at week 12 inseelwith dose as shown in Figure A bel
The mean gains in BMD (active treatment—placeboB&058-SC 40 pg and 80 pg groups were statisticadnificant (p = 0.0013 and p <
0.001, respectively). The difference was not diatily significant in the BA058 20 pg group andtmissed significance in the Forteo group
(p = 0.055).

At week 24, the mean percent change froselb® continued to increase and was statistisidigificantly proportional to dose (p < 0.0(
as shown in Figure A below. Again, the mean gaitoial analyzable spine BMD was statistically sfigaint for BA058-SC 40 ug (p < 0.001)
and 80 |g (p < 0.001) groups. The mean BMD gain at weekvad also statistically significant for the Forteowp (p < 0.001). The response
lumbar spine BMD to BA058-SC was dose dependeiattlae 80 pg BA058-SC dose produced a larger peagerincrease in BMD at the
lumbar spine than the approved 20 pg Forteo dose.
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Figure ~—Mean Standard Error of the Mean (SEM) Percent @edinom Baseline at weeks 12 and 24 in Total AadlgzSpine BMD (ITT
Population, N = 221
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An even greater proportional response inCBias elicited in the hip region. By week 24, mpancent changes in total analyzable hip
BMD were 0.4%, 1.4%, 2.0% and 2.6% for the plac&058 at a dose of 20 pug, BA058 at a dose of 40apd BA058 at a dose of 80 g
groups, respectively. Mean percent change in tliee&8¢0.5%) group was similar to placebo as shawFigure B below. The change in total
analyzable hip BMD showed a dose response to BARAG&nd a more than five-fold benefit of BAO58 alose of 80 g over Forteo. A simile
relative benefit of BA058 at a dose of 80 g overt®o was seen in all regions of the hip.
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Figure E—Mean (SEM) Percent Change from Baseline at wezlkend 24 in Total Analyzable Hip BMD (ITT PopulatidN=221)
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BA058-SC also induced a dose-dependentrrisgjor markers of bone anabolic activity, incghgiP1NP, bone specific alkaline
phosphatase, or BSAP, and osteocalcin. The respors®teo was generally somewhat greater forredbalic markers but also bone resorp
markers (C-telopeptides of type | collagen crogslior CTX, and N-telopeptides of type | collageosslinks, or NTX), consistent with
published data on later gradual loss of Forteo BiDefit.

BAO058-SC was well tolerated at all dosed safety events were consistent with usual meeieanhts in a study population of this age anc
gender. The safety profile was also similar to tiféorteo and there were no treatment-relatedfsignt (serious) adverse events. However,
adverse events were reported by 74% of patiertteeifirst six months of treatment, with a similacidence across all treatment groups. The
majority of on-treatment events were mildftexderate in severity and there were no deathsteghdBeven subjects discontinued due to ad
events: one in the BA058 20 g group, one in th@®B3\40 ug group, three in the BA058 80 g grouptamdin the Forteo group. Eight
patients (four percent) experienced at least oné &4d the incidence of such events was similarsadr@atment groups. Five SAEs, unrelatec
to treatment, were reported in three patients. Limtarance at the injection site was similar asrtseatment groups and fewer than 20% of
subjects reported any symptoms, such as redn#éiss imfection site across the many months of imjest

The level of calcium in the blood, knownsasum calcium levels, were monitored throughoetdtudy and clinically significant elevated
levels (greater than or equal to 10.5 milligramsgeiliter, or mg/dL) were observed in 40% of Bateo group while also observed in four
percent, 12%, 19% and 18% of the placebo, BAO5&S&dose of 20 ug, 40 pg and 80 ug groups, régplyctMost elevations were noted at
the four-hour post-injection time point.
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Blood pressure was assessed throughostuldg for postural change. Postural changes indopwessure (predetermined level of chang
systolic or diastolic from lying to standing) waeported in seven patients, including 0%, 5%, 2%,ahd 7% of patients in the placebo,
BAO058-SC 20 ug, 40 pg, 80 pg and Forteo grouppertively. Pre-dose postural changes in blood pressere similar across treatment
groups. There were no clinically meaningful difieces in ECG parameters between the placebo ang aeatment groups.

Sixteen patients had low titer antibodigaiast BA058 after six months of treatment. Of thdive were in the BA058 20 g group, Six
were in the BA058 40 ug group and five were inB#®58 80 g group. There were no associated safatyits or attenuation of treatment
efficacy. One antibody-positive patient in the BASC 40 g group was found to have evidence ofralihg activity at 24 weeks without
evidence of attenuation of drug efficacy, havir@}2£6 gain in total analyzable spine BMD at the wélassessment.

Extended 24 weeks of treatmesRatients who completed the initial 24 weeks ddtimeent and continued to meet eligibility criteriare
offered participation in the 24-week extension gtirdwhich they would continue their assigned tneett. On completion of the regulatory
process to approve the study extension, 69 patientained eligible and 55 participated, includirgg 10, 7, 11 and 14 patients in BA058-SC
20 g, 40u g, 80 u g, placebo and Forteo groups, respectively. Faghteatients completed the extended treatmenbgeri

BMD continued to increase during the extehé4 weeks of treatment, with the largest perceméases in total analyzable spine BMD,
femoral neck BMD and total analyzable hip BMD obserin the BA058-SC 80 pg group, as shown in Figuielow. By week 48, mean
percent changes in spine BMD were 0.7%, 5.1%, %86lt12.9% for the placebo, BA058 20 g, BA058 4@&pd BA058 80 g, groups,
respectively, while mean percent change from haseéti the Forteo group was 8.6%. At week 48, thamfemoral neck BMD in the BA058-
SC 80 ug group gained 4.1% compared to the metiredforteo group at 2.2%. The gain total analyzhldeBMD was 0.7%, 2.0%, 2.1% and
2.7% for the placebo, BA058 20 ug, BA058 40 ug BAG58 80 g groups, respectively, compared to f@%he Forteo group.

Figure C—Mean (SEM) Percent Change from Baseline at we2k&4land 48 in Total Analyzable Spine BMD (N=55)
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No treatment-related SAEs or deaths wgverted during this time period. Two patients digeured treatment, one for bilateral femoral
hernias (BA058-SC 80 ug) and one for moderate §y@¢BA058-SC 40 ug). Study-related adverse evarusroed in a similar proportion of
patients in each treatment group across the 52-wsieely period and the majority of events were roilénoderate in severity. The profile of
events was not different during the second six m®pf study treatment.

Local tolerance of study drug injectionssvedso similar during the second six months oftineat. There were no safety signals observec
in the evaluation of clinical laboratory parameters

Conclusions—This study demonstrated that treatment with BA@&3Binduces a substantial positive change in BMBoét spine and hip
in women with osteoporosis, with a particular adage over Forteo at the hip, and achieves thisftiesadely and with substantially less
hypercalcemia effect than Forteo.

BAO05&-SC Phase 1 Studies

First Phase 1 Study-The first Phase 1 clinical study was a single-dtisdy conducted as a randomized, double-blindgplacontrolled
parallel-group dose escalation study of BA058-S@ uial formulation administered as a single sutcebus dose to healthy male and female
subjects with a mean age of 61 years. The studyrestered single subcutaneous doses of 2, 5, 8,515, 20, 40, 60, 80 and 100 ug BA058-
SC or placebo. Sixteen subjects also received @ & BA058-SC by the intravenous, or 1V, route dfidug subcutaneously in separate study
periods. In total, 76 subjects received BA058 wRiereceived a placebo. No elevation in serum galavas observed at doses of 80 ug or
lower and no clinically relevant effects of BAOS& $n ECG or continuous monitoring through the use idolter monitor readings were
observed. In summary, this study demonstratedBA868-SC is 100% bioavailable, meaning it is abedrbompletely, when administered by
the subcutaneous route. BA0O58-SC did not induceifogicemia and was well tolerated at doses up fog88ubcutaneously.

Second Phase 1 StuehyThe second Phase 1 clinical study administeredI8ABC once daily for seven days. There were 39stud
subjects, all healthy postmenopausal women witavemage age of 60. Four doses of BA058-SC (5 u@,gR@0 ug or 80 ug) and a matching
placebo were studied, with seven or eight womeaivaty each dose for the seven days of the studp5B-SC was well tolerated at all doses
and there were no medically important adverse svéilt other adverse events were mild or modenafatensity and did not appear to be
related to the dose of study drug. No subjectsplrdmut or discontinued the study.

BAO058 was rapidly absorbed following inject and reached peak blood levels within one hdhe drug was rapidly cleared from the
circulation, resulting in half-life values rangifrgm 1.05 to 2.59 hours. Following BA058 adminitiva, serum parathyroid hormone
decreased, as would be expected, and serum 1,28rd)yvitamin D, an activated form of vitamin D,caeerum P1NP rose in a dose-related
manner. Both 1,28ihydroxyvitamin D and P1NP are expected and beiafeffects of the study drug and its class. Ageeted, serum calcit
showed a slight rise following BA058-SC adminiswat although it remained within the normal rangalatimes in all patients other than
isolated minor and transient elevations in twoenfen placebo and three of 32 study subjects.

Third Phase 1 StudyThe third Phase 1 clinical study was a multi-degely, with the same design as the second Phaseli, but using
a liquid prefilled multidose cartridge of BA0O58 aodnducted at doses of 80 g, 100 ug and 120 |AQ58 SC or placebo was administered
daily as a subcutaneous dose for seven days tthirgeistmenopausal women. Thirty healthy postmensglavomen with a mean age of
61 years were enrolled and 29 completed treatment.
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BA058-SC was well tolerated at doses ofaup00 g but not at 120 pug which met criteriatésmination of dose escalation. One patient
in the 120 |g group was intolerant of study drug and was disonaed. All adverse events observed were mild odenate in intensity. No stu
subject developed serum antibodies to BA058 follmithe seven days of exposure. BA0O58-SC pharmaetikinwere again characterized by
rapid absorption, reaching mean peak plasma coratiemt within approximately 0.5 hours; mean hai-Nalues ranged from 1.13 hours to
1.65 hours. Similar responses in serum PTH, 1,8getfoxyvitamin D and serum P1NP were observed. & higher doses of BA058-SC were
not associated with occurrence of hypercalcemigaummary, BA058-SC was well tolerated at up to f@Jonce daily for seven days.

BAOS5E-TD

First Phase 1 Study-The objectives of the BA058-TD Phase 1 study vierdetermine the safety, PK and time course o¥dgfi of
BAO58-TD in healthy postmenopausal women and topmoethe PK profiles of BAO58-TD delivered transdelly to BAO58SC administere
subcutaneously.

This study was a randomized, double-blpid¢cebo-controlled, ascending single-dose studyeandlled 38 healthy postmenopausal
women with a mean age of 57.6 years. Subjects wmahéup to three single dose exposures to BA0O58RI&;ebo Microneedle Patch or
BAO058-SC 80 p g over the course of three studyopleri

BA058-TD was characterized by a rapid apson and elimination. The ¢, or maximum plasma concentration of the drug, feadtt
life times were shorter than for BA058-SC admiraton.

BAO58-TD was well tolerated. Safety evamtse similar between BA058-TD and BAOSE:, with 99% of adverse events being mild ¢
of these, most were reactions at the applicatit $here was no clinically notable differenceahbdratory or cardiac safety parameters acros:
doses of BA058 or routes of administration.

In conclusion, the first Phase 1 study ADB8-TD demonstrated that BA058 can safely be éedid by this route of administration.

Second and Third Phase 1 Studie& second Phase 1 single-day and a third Phaseehsiay application study of BA058-TD have beer
completed in the United States and Canada usimgptimized Microneedle Patch system with top-lingutes announced in December 2011.
These studies were designed as safety, dose-raagthtime-course PK and pharmacodynamic studiess€bond and third Phase 1 studies
also investigated optimal dose, wear time and aafitin site for transdermal delivery of BA058 usargoptimized microneedle array. The
results obtained using BA0O58-TD were compared ¢séhof BA058-SC at a dose of 80 pug.

BAO058-TD was characterized by a rapid redeaf BA058 with a faster time to reach peak cotration as well as more rapid elimination
in plasma compared to BA058-SC. Peak transdernugl ldvels were consistent with BA058-SC. An optinvalr time of five minutes or less
was identified as well as effective sites of aptiian.

BAO058-TD showed an increase in the bonefdion marker PINP in serum after seven days ad®xe, consistent with bone-building
activity, and was shown to be safe and well tokstamn all doses studied.

Preclinical Pharmacology of BA058In pharmacology studies conducted with BA058,ftllewing has been shown:

. BAO058 is a potent selective agonist of the humaRRT receptor;

. In models of calcium mobilization, BAO58 has sigeaitly less calcium mobilizing activity at highg#oses than the native
hPTHrP(1-34), and less activity than hPTH(1-34);
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. BAO058-SC stimulates the formation of normal, wellianized bone and restores BMD in ovariectomize@\6X, osteopenic
rats and primates. Additionally, mechanical tesbhgones from OVX rats after treatment with BAOS8-revealed a significa
increase in femur and vertebral bone strength. BABE exhibited the majority of its effects throupk growth of trabecular
bone without compromising cortical bone. Similardsés in rats with BAO58-TD show comparable restoreof bone;

. BAO058-SC was well tolerated over a wide range afedoin two species, rats and primates, for upxtansinths and nine months,
respectively;
. Safety pharmacology studies demonstrated no réspirgjastroenterologic, hematologic, renal or @mtervous system effects

(tachycardia and hypotension were observed in 8algsving both intravenous and subcutaneous adimatisn, but such
effects were not observed in other species);

. The No Observed Adverse Effect Level was 15a28 25 pg/kg/day in rats in the 4-, 13- and 26-wstaklies, respectively, and
100, 50 and equal to or less than 10 pug/kg/dayankmys in the 4-, 13- and 39-week studies; and

. Repeat subcutaneous dose studies in both ratsyandolgus monkeys at doses up to 300 and 450 LoHkgrespectively,
revealed a relatively fast absorption (T from 0.083 to 1.0 hr); peak serum concentration/rgh Under the Curve, a measure

of drug exposure, increased as the dose increased.

These preclinical studies suggest that @egpto hPTH(1-34), BA058-SC can potentially beduserestore lost BMD with a reduced risk
of hypercalcemia.

Ongoing Preclinical Safety Studies for BA0O58

A two-year subcutaneous injection carcimogjéy study of BA058 in Fischer 344 albino ratxigrently ongoing and will assess the
carcinogenic potential of BA058. The study is bedogducted according to the provisions set fort@iridance ICH-S1A, ICH-S1B, and ICH-
S1C(R2), and the design was accepted by the FDRAubn15, 2009. This study will evaluate three BA@EfSe levels. The doses were selectec
based upon findings and tolerance in completed-teng rat toxicology studies and the anticipatddramce over a two-year dosing period.
Furthermore, the doses represent an exposure teuwtier maximum clinical doses. The study includeshort of rats being dosed with hPTH
(1-34), a daily subcutaneous injection of humarattgiroid hormone as a positive control, as it iscgrated that osteosarcomas would be
observed with this treatment, as previously puklisfor both rhPTH(1-34) and rhPTH(1-84) in simiayear rat carcinogenicity studies. The
positive control will also allow confirmation ofehsensitivity of the model. At an interim, preliraity analysis of histopathology on pre-
terminal rats only, we have observed osteosarcamasr carcinogenicity study in both the BA058 d&RITH(1-34) treated groups, which has
been reported to regulatory agencies. Our carcimogestudy is continuing as originally planned.eTimal results from the rat carcinogenicity
study may show that BA058 dosing results in moteasarcomas than PTH, at similar exposure multijplése human therapeutic dose, wt
may have a material adverse bearing on approvdR068. This study is being conducted in parallatvthe Phase 3 clinical study.

We also expect to conduct one preclinicailéoquality study in OVX rats for up to 12 monttisiaily BAO58 subcutaneous injection and a
second preclinical bone quality study in adult Ol¥nkeys for 16 months. The primary objective okthstudies is to demonstrate that long-
term treatment with BA058-SC will not lead to del@bus effects on bone quality by determining BA85%8fect on the mass, architecture and
strength of bones. These studies will be conduct@drallel with the Phase 3 clinical study andpath studies, BA058 will be compared to
placebo. The 12-month rat study is being performedVX skeletally mature Sprague-Dawley rats, aprapriate species for osteoporosis
studies as a result of the cancellous bone changkbone strength changes similarly noted in humartkis study, a 13-week bone depletion
period will occur after ovariectomy/sham surgerd amior to initiation of daily subcutaneous injectidosing with vehicle or three different
dose levels of BA058.
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The 16-month nonhuman primate study isdgerformed in OVX monkeys, a larger remodelingcggewhose bone depletion can be
induced by estrogen deficiency, as in human mersgpda this study, an approximate nine-month bamedion period will occur after
OVX/sham surgery and prior to initiation of dailylgutaneous injection dosing with vehicle or thalese levels of BA058. The specific
objectives and measured outcomes of both studéemanvestigate the potential safety and restoeifffigacy of BA0O58 on bone. Effects on
bone mass, both cortical bone and cancellous lvaifidhe assessed by BMD and peripheral quantitatiwaputed tomography. Effects on
cortical and cancellous bone strength will be deieed by biomechanical testing. The mechanisms liglwBAO058 affects bone will be
assessed by evaluation of biomarkers of bone temand histomorphometric indices of bone turnoR&.of BA0O58 and development of
antidrug antibodies will also be evaluated.

Manufacturing of BAO58

The active pharmaceutical ingredient, ot,APBA058 is manufactured on a contract basis¢byza Group Ltd., or Lonza, under current
good manufacturing practice, or cGMP, conditionsgis solid phase peptide synthesis assembly ppaasd purification by high pressure
liquid chromatography. BA058-SC is supplied agjaili in a multi-dose cartridge for use in a penvdey device. The multdose cartridges a
manufactured by Vetter. BA0O58-TD is manufacturedBbybased on their patented microneedle techndilegyiminister drugs through the
skin, as an alternative to subcutaneous injection.

Patents relating to BAO5:

Composition of matter of BA058 is claimedtihe United States (U.S. Patent No. 5,969,095y Australia, Canada, China, Hong
Kong, South Korea, New Zealand, Poland, Russiay&iare, Mexico, Hungary, and Taiwan. These cases &damormal patent expiration date
of 2016 absent the possibility of patent term esi@m The Phase 3 clinical dosage of BA058 by tlstaneous route for use in treating
osteoporosis is covered by Patent No. 7,803,77020%8 (statutory term extended with 175 daysatept term adjustment due to delays in
patent prosecution by the United States PatenTaademark Office, or USPTO) in the United Statdssémt any patent term extension under
the Hatch-Waxman Act). The intended therapeutimfdation for BA058-SC is covered by Patent No. 8,883 until 2027 (statutory term
extended with 36 days of patent term adjustmenttdaelays in patent prosecution by the USPTOhénUnited States (absent any patent terr
extension under the Hatch-Waxman Act). Relatedscgeanted in China, Australia, Singapore, and Wiaaand currently pending in Europe,
China, Australia, Canada, Japan, Brazil, Mexicag8pore, South Korea, India, Israel, New Zealarahwdy, Russia, and Hong Kong will
have a normal un-extended patent expiration dag®27. An international patent application and aesponding U.S. patent application were
filed in 2012 which cover various aspects of BA@d8microneedle application. Any claims that migggue from these applications will hav
normal expiration date no earlier than 2032.

Competition for BA058

The development and commercialization ¥ peoducts to treat osteoporosis and women's hisaltlyhly competitive, and there will be
considerable competition from major pharmaceutigiatechnology and specialty pharmaceutical comggariany of our competitors have
substantially more resources than we do, inclubiotly financial and technical. In addition, manyttiése companies have longer operating
histories and more experience than us in preclimicd clinical development, manufacturing, regutatand global commercialization. See,
"Risk Factors—If we cannot compete successfullynfiarket share against other drug companies, wenoiagchieve sufficient product
revenues and our business will suffer.”

Potential competitors with BA058 include lare not limited to, Amgen, UCB, Merck & Co., Natis, Lilly, Asahi Kasei and Zosano.
Lilly launched Forteo in December 2002 as the-iostarket
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anabolic or bone-building agent for the treatmdristeoporosis. In April 2012, UCB and Amgen stardePhase 3 clinical trial program for
their anti-sclerostin antibody for the treatmenbsfeoporosis. Zosano and Asahi Kasei are alsdaj@ng a transdermal form of rhPTH(1-34)
that would compete with BA0O58-TD. We have no pradwapproved for sale and therefore have no shaaayotherapeutic markets in which
we hope to introduce BAO58.

Non-head-to-head comparison of BA058-SC and Amgen atlierostin antibody Phase 2 study results

Our BA058-SC Phase 2 clinical study usdzstantially similar patient inclusion and excluswiteria as a study completed by Amgen of
the use of a human anti-sclerostin antibody, romasmb or AMG 785, for the treatment of osteoporosisomparison of the 6-month and 12-
month spine BMD results of the AMG 785 study at24@ mg once-monthly subcutaneous dosing regimeihyding both patients treated with
AMG 785 and a control group of patients treatechwibrteo, and our BA058-SC study at the 80 mcglaidgily subcutaneous dose are set
forth in the following table. While we believe themparison is useful in evaluating the resultswfhase 2 clinical study of BA058-SC, the
BA058-SC and AMG 785 studies were separate triatslacted at different sites, and we have not coedua head-to-head comparison of the
drugs in a single clinical trial. Results of anuadthead-to-head comparison study may differ sicguiltly from those set forth in the following
table. In addition, because the BA058-SC and AMG St8dies were separate studies and because tHe8B&0 Phase 2 clinical study
involved a lesser number of patients, differencesvben the results of the two studies may notdiesstally or clinically meaningful.

BAO58-SC Phase 2(1 AMG 785 Phase 2(2

Product BAO58 Fortec AMG 78t Fortec
Dose 80 mc¢ 20 mc 210 m¢ 20 mc
Dosing frequenc Daily Daily Monthly Daily
No. of Injections per dos 1 1 3 1
Type of Injection Sell Sell  Physicial Sell
Spine Mean Percent BMD Change from Baseline-

6 months +6.7% +5.5% +8.0% +4.7%
Spine Mean Percent BMD Change from Baseline-

12 months +12.9% +8.6% +11.3% +7.0%

Q) BA058-SC Study n=221 (6 months) and n=55 (Dbatins), 5 arms

(2) AMG 785 Study n=419 (12 months), 9 ar
RAD1901
Clinical Development Program

In June 2006, we exclusively licensed tlrelawide rights (except Japan) to RAD1901 from Eikaparticular, we have licensed US
Patent No. 7,612,114 (effective filing date Decenftie 2003, statutory term extended to August 8262with 967 days of patent term
adjustment due to delays by the USPTO). We areloevg RAD1901, a SERM, in an oral formulation asemtment for vasomotor
symptoms, commonly known as hot flashes.

Background on Vasomotor Sympton

Hot flashes and night sweats are commorpsyms during menopause, with up to 85% of womereggpcing them during the
menopause transition, for a median duration of f@ars. In 2010, approximately 11.5 million womerhe United States were in the 45- to
49-year age range to enter menopause. In additiost women receiving systemic therapy for breasteasuffer hot flashes,
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often with more severe or prolonged symptoms tham@n experiencing menopause. These symptoms captdsseep and interfere with
quality of life. An estimated two million women ueidjo menopause every year in the United Statek,amivtal population of 50 million
postmenopausal women.

Historically, hormone replacement theragylHRT, with estrogen and/or progesterone was densd the most efficacious approach to
relieving menopausal symptoms such as hot flasth@sever, data from the Women's Health InitiativeYdHlI, identified increased risks for
malignancy and cardiovascular disease associatbdcesfrogen therapy. Sales of HRT declined suliathnafter the release of the initial WHI
data, but HRT remains the current standard of frarmany women suffering from hot flashes. Howewre to concerns about the potential
long-term risks and contraindications associatatd WRT, we believe that there is a significant nmchew therapeutic options to treat
vasomotor symptoms. Pfizer's Premarin productriémeains the market leader for drugs to manage naersap symptoms with 2011 worldwi
sales in excess of $1 billion.

Pharmacologic Characteristic

RAD1901 has been shown to bind to the gsettaeceptor alpha, or ER, and to have both estrogéke and estrogen antagonist effect
different tissues. RAD1901 has also been showmate fboth estrogen-like behavioral effects in aninaald to reduce vasomotor signs in an
animal model of menopausal hot flashes. In bone)ERI01 protects against castration-induced bonevibdle showing no unwanted
stimulation of the endometrium. In cell culture, B#901 does not stimulate replication of breast eagells and antagonizes the stimulating
effects of estrogen. Overall, RAD1901 exhibits anber of properties that would make it a suitablegdrandidate for the management of
menopausal symptoms, particularly the treatmemtsebmotor symptoms.

Phase 1 Stud

A Phase 1 safety, PK and bioavailabilitydstwas conducted in 80 healthy postmenopausal wawer a range of doses of RAD1901,
including placebo. After single dosing with RAD196y mouth, the mean half-life ranged between 2Adt32.5 hours. Bioavailability was
determined to be approximately 10%. Food effect alas investigated and the presence of food wasméted to increase absorption and
delay clearance of RAD1901.

RAD1901 was generally well tolerated. Alidy-related adverse events were of mild intensiith some increase in frequency at the
higher doses in the multiple dose group, most contyngastrointestinal symptoms and headaches. There no SAEs observed.

Phase 2 Stud

A Phase 2 proof of concept study was cotetlin 100 healthy postmenopausal women usingdoses of RAD1901 (10 mg, 25 mg, 50
mg and 100 mg) and placebo. The primary study oéceas reduction in the frequency and severity efi@nate and severe hot flashes. W
a classic dose-response effect was not demonstedfedicy was determined to occur at the 10 mgedegel which achieved a statistically
significant reduction in the frequency of moderaitel severe hot flashes both by linear trend tesbsircomparison to placebo and in overall
(mild-moderate-severe) hot flashes at either the tiinree- or four-week time-points. A similar retion in composite score (frequency x
severity of hot flashes) was identified at all thp&ints, with a statistically significant differemérom placebo achieved at the two-, three- or
four-week time-points. Numerical reductions in meawerity and mean daily severity were observetdiznot reach statistical significance.

No SAEs were reported during the courstnefstudy. Overall, 69% of patients had an adveveat, generally mild or moderate in
severity, with some evidence of dose dependendyegaants were most commonly gastrointestinal symptand headaches. Three severe
adverse events occurred, one in
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a placebo patient, and were not considered tredtrakzied. Two patients discontinued treatmenttduen adverse event, neither in relation to
the 10 mg dose.

Our current strategy is to collaborate wtind parties for the further development and cartialization of RAD1901. Therefore, the d
of any FDA approval of RAD1901, if ever, cannotpredicted at this time. As a result of the uncettas around the completion of a
collaboration arrangement for RAD1901 with thirdtpss, we are unable to determine the durationcarsts to complete current or future
clinical stages of our RAD1901 product candidate/ben, or to what extent, we will generate reverfums the commercialization and sale of
RAD 1901. From January 1, 2010 through Decembe312, we incurred $1.8 million in research andedegment costs related to RAD19
Any failure by us to obtain, or any delay in obtam regulatory approvals for RAD1901 could sigedtfitly increase our need to raise additi
working capital funds and materially adversely efffeur product development efforts and our busioessall. If we do not succeed in the
timely raising of additional funds on acceptablerts, we may be unable to complete planned predliried clinical studies or obtain approval
of any product candidates, including RAD1901 frdra EDA and other regulatory authorities. In additiewe could be forced to discontinue
product development, reduce or forego sales an#letiag efforts and forego attractive business opputies related to RAD 1901.

Manufacturing of RAD1901

The API of RAD1901 is manufactured for usaocontract basis by Irix Pharmaceuticals, In@ present cGMP of RAD1901 comprises
nine synthetic steps. The current manufacturinggss requires no chromatographic separations. RBDIE9a chiral material present as
essentially one enantiomer.

Patents relating to RAD190

RAD1901 as a composition of matter is ceddry US Patent No. 7,612,114 (statutory term elddrio 2026 with 967 days of patent term
adjustment absent any Hatch-Waxman extension)e€ponding cases issued in Australia and Canadpearding in India and Europe will
have a normal expiration date in 2023. A patentieaion covering methods of using RAD1901 for treatment of vasomotor symptoms has
been filed in the United States (published as UB)AML05733A1), Europe and Canada and any claimsgsvill have a normal expiration in
2027. Patent applications covering a dosage fowa baen filed in the United States, Europe, CamadiaMexico, and any claims that might
issue from these applications will have a normaimetion date no earlier than 2031.

Competition for RAD1901

The development and commercialization af peoducts to treat women's health is highly contipet and there will be considerable
competition from major pharmaceutical, biotechnglagd specialty pharmaceutical companies. Manyoftompetitors have substantially
more resources than we do, including both finareral technical. In addition, many of these compah#ve longer operating histories and
more experience than us in preclinical and clind=telopment, manufacturing, regulatory and gl@oatmercialization. See "Risk Factors—If
we cannot compete successfully for market sharmstgather drug companies, we may not achievedafft product revenues and our busi
will suffer" above.

Our potential competitors in relation to B2901 include, but are not limited to, Pfizer (NDAder review) and Depomed (NDA under
review) who both have agents in more advanced staiggevelopment than RAD1901. We believe that R@@M1will be able to compete with
other agents for the treatment of hot flashes sxae expect it to have a similar efficacy anddvetafety profile than estrogen products, as
well as a better efficacy and safety profile than+estrogen products. We
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have no products approved for sale and therefore ha share of any therapeutic markets in whiclhege to introduce RAD1901.
RAD140

Pharmacologic Characteristic

RAD140 is a nonsteroidal SARM that resuliean an internal drug discovery program that beiga2005. RAD140 has demonstrated
potent anabolic activity on muscle and bone in lpr@al studies and has completed 28-day preclinmdcology studies in both rats and
monkeys. Because of its high anabolic efficacyepsor selectivity, potent oral activity and longralion half-life, we believe that RAD140 has
clinical potential in a number of indications whéie increase in lean muscle mass and/or bonetgdémnsieneficial, such as treating the weight
loss due to cancer cachexia, muscle frailty aneopsirosis.

Our current strategy is to collaborate witind parties for the further development and caroialization of RAD140 so the date of any
FDA approval of RAD140, if ever, cannot be predic# this time. As a result of the uncertaintiesuad the completion of a collaboration
arrangement for RAD140 with third parties, we anahle to determine the duration and costs to camplarrent or future clinical stages of «
RAD140 product candidate or when, or to what extertwill generate revenues from the commercidbraand sale of RAD140. From
January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2012, weried0.4 million in research and development cadtged to RAD140. Any failure by us
to obtain, or any delay in obtaining, regulatorpigvals for RAD140 could significantly increase oaed to raise additional working capital
funds and materially adversely affect our produwstedopment efforts and our business overall. Iidwanot succeed in the timely raising of
additional funds on acceptable terms, we may bélerta complete planned preclinical and clinicaldéés or obtain approval of any product
candidates, including RAD140 from the FDA and ottegulatory authorities. In addition, we could beckd to discontinue product
development, reduce or forego sales and marketfogsand forego attractive business opportunities

Patents relating to RAD14

RAD140 as a composition of matter and mashaf using RAD140 is covered by US Patent No. B3 (effective filing date
February 19, 2009, and a statutory term extend&epaember 25, 2029, with 281 days of patent teljosément due to delays by the USPTO)
and U.S. Patent No. 8,268,872 (effective filingedgebruary19, 2009 with term understood to be ebenvith 232 days of patent term
adjustments). Related patents have been grantdsimalia and Mexico and additional patent appiaat are pending in the United States anc
numerous additional countries worldwide. Any pagaasued from these filings will have a normal exion in 2029 absent any extensions.

Competition for RAD140

The development and commercialization af peoducts to treat women's health is highly contipet and there will be considerable
competition from major pharmaceutical, biotechnglagd specialty pharmaceutical companies. Manyuoftompetitors have substantially
more resources than we do, including both finarenal technical. In addition, many of these commhave longer operating histories and
more experience than us in preclinical and clindmtelopment, manufacturing, regulatory and glaoahmercialization. See "Risk Factors—If
we cannot compete successfully for market sharmstgather drug companies, we may not achievedafft product revenues and our busi
will suffer" above.

Potential competitors to Radius in relatioiRAD140 include, but are not limited to, GTx &k 3) and Ligand (Phas£2) who both
have agents in more advanced stages of develoghant
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RAD140. We believe that RAD140 will be able to catgwith other SARM agents because we expecthat@ high potency to increase
muscle and bone with a strong safety profile. Waeeh#o products approved for sale and therefore hav@are of any therapeutic markets in
which we hope to introduce RAD140.

Collaborations and License Agreements
Nordic Bioscience

BAO058-SC Phase 3 Clinical StugyVe entered into a letter of intent with Nordic 8aptember 3, 2010, pursuant to which we funded
preparatory work by Nordic in respect of a Phasériical study of BA058-SC. The letter of intent svextended on December 15, 2010 and o
January 31, 2011. Pursuant to the letter of iraedtthe two extensions, we funded an aggregaten$illisn of preparatory work by Nordic
during 2010 and funded an additional $750,000 eparatory work by Nordic during 2011. On March 2011, we and Nordic entered into a
Clinical Trial Services Agreement, a Work StateméBt1, or the Work Statement NB-1, under such ChhiTrial Services Agreement and a
related Stock Issuance Agreement. Pursuant to ibr Btatement NB-1, Nordic is managing the Phaséngal study, or the Phase 3 Clinical
Study, of BA058-SC and Nordic will be compensatadsiuch services in a combination of cash and starstock.

The Clinical Trial Services Agreement hdiva-year term unless it is sooner terminated. Thrical Trial Services Agreement or any
Work Statement may be terminated by mutual agreeofahe parties at any time. Either party may atsminate any Work Statement upon a
material breach by the other party with respectutth Work Statement unless such other party cheealleged breach within the notice period
specified in the Clinical Trial Services Agreemenif not capable of being cured within such petiloe party alleged to be in breach
commences efforts to cure and diligently proceedsite. Termination of any Work Statement doesesilt in termination of the Clinical
Services Agreement or any other Work Statementghaiemain in force until terminated. Either pamtyay also terminate a Work Statement if
force majeure conditions have prevented performagdbe other party for more than a specified pkdbtime. We may also terminate a W
Statement with notice to Nordic if authorizatiordaapproval to perform any clinical study that ie #ubject of such Work Statement is
withdrawn by the FDA or other toxicological tessudts support termination of the clinical studyateig to such Work Statement for reasons o
safety or if the emergence of any adverse evesidereffect in the clinical study relating to siWork Statement is of such magnitude or
incidence in our opinion as to support termination.

The Clinical Trial Services Agreement camsacustomary risk allocation clauses with eactiypademnifying the other in respect of third-
party claims arising out of or resulting from: ¢h¥ negligence or intentional misconduct of suattyp@s employees, agents or representative:
in performing its obligations under the Clinicalrdees Agreement or any Work Statement; and (2)aewch by such party of its
representations and warranties under the Clinidal Bervices Agreement. We have agreed to indgniifrdic in respect of thirgrarty claims
for product liability or personal injury arisingoim or relating to our products or our use of anjvdeables. In addition, we separately provide
indemnification to the investigative sites perfangiservices pursuant to Work Statement NB-1 ingespf third-party claims of injury, illness
or adverse side effects to a patient in the sthdyis the subject of Work Statement NB-1 thatameébutable to the Radius study drug under
indemnification letters with such investigativeesit The Clinical Services Agreement contains aothistomary clauses and terms as are
common in similar agreements in the industry.
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In December 2011, we entered into an amemndto the Work Statement NB-1, or the First AmeadiPursuant to the original terms of
the Work Statement NB-1, the study was to be corediinn 10 countries at a specified number of sitiélsin each country. The terms of the
First Amendment (1) provided for two additional atries (the United States and India) in which ttuglg will be conducted, (2) specified a
certain number of sites within each such additi@aaintry for the conduct of the study, and (3) adeghvarious terms and provisions of the
Work Statement NB-1 to reflect the addition of seoluntries and sites within the study's parameRagments to be made by us to Nordic
under the First Amendment in connection with thedract of the study in such additional countriesderominated in both euros and U.S.
dollars and total up to both €717,700 ($946,35%9) $289,663, respectively, for the 15 additionatigtsites in India contemplated by the First
Amendment and up to both €1.2 million ($1.6 milli@and $143,369, respectively, for the five additibstudy sites in the United States
contemplated by the First Amendment.

In June 2012, we entered into a second dment to the Work Statement NB-1, or the Second idneent. Pursuant to the original terms
of the Work Statement NB-1, as amended by the Rirs¢ndment, the study was to be conducted in 1Btcies at a specified number of sites
within each country. The terms of the Second Amesmin(l) increased the overall number of sites ldirayisites in Europe, Brazil and
Argentina and removing other sites, (2) specifi@ddain number of sites within each country fa donduct of the study, and (3) amended
various terms and provisions of the Work StatenNBtl to reflect additional services provided atstixig sites and the addition of the new
study sites within the study's parameters. The 1s&onendment also provided that cash payments tdiblander the Clinical Trial Services
Agreement as well as the payment of shares of stodkr the related Stock Issuance Agreement wih & reduced by an amount of €11,941
($15,745) per subject for any subjects enrollebhdhia or the United States. Such reductions stefifiplied in pro rata monthly installments.
Payments to be made by us to Nordic under the Sleorendment in connection with the extra serviaewigled at existing sites and the
conduct of the study at the new study sites aremi@mated in both euros and U.S. dollars and t@af #nillion ($4.9 million) and $205,540,
respectively.

Pursuant to the Work Statement lBwe are required to make certain per patient agsndenominated in both euros and U.S. dollar
each patient enrolled in the Phase 3 Clinical Sfotlgwed by monthly payments for the duration loé study and final payments in two equal
euro-denominated installments and two equal U.Baddenominated installments. Changes to the €instudy schedule may alter the
timing, but not the aggregate amounts, of the paysm&he Work Statement NB-1, as amended on Deceti2911 and June 18, 2012,
provides for a total of up to approximately €41.@ion ($54.3 million) of euro-denominated paymeatsd a total of up to approximately
$3.2 million of U.S. dollar-denominated paymentgiothe course of the Phase 3 Clinical Study.

Pursuant to the Stock Issuance Agreemsrareended, Nordic agreed to purchase the equivall€X71,864 of series A-5 preferred stock
at $8.142 per share, and we sold 64,430 sharesieSsA-5 preferred stock to Nordic on May 17, 2@driproceeds of $525,154 to the Former
Operating Company. These shares were exchanghd Merger for an aggregate of 6,443 shares ofssérg preferred stock.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNoatlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock dedls, payable in shares of series A-6
preferred prior to the conversion of the Compapygserred stock into common stock, and shares wineon stock after our preferred stock has
been converted into common stock in accordance auitltertificate of incorporation, having an aggegvalue of up to €36.8 million
($48.5 million), or the Nordic Accruing Dividench the event Nordic sells the shares of series Aefepred stock or in the event the shares of
series A-5 preferred stock are converted into comstock in accordance with our amended certifiohiacorporation, this right to receive the
Nordic Accruing Dividend will terminate, but a rigto receive an equivalent number of share
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series A-6 preferred stock or common stock, asiegipk, will remain with Nordic as a contractuaght under the Stock Issuance Agreement.
As of December 31, 2012, 309,264 shares of seri@preferred stock are due to Nordic, or afterabhmatic conversion into common stock
of our convertible preferred stock, 3,092,640 shafecommon stock.

BA058-SC Phase 3 Clinical Extension Stadyn October 22, 2012, we entered into a Letter @i or the October Letter of Intent, w
Nordic, which provides that we and Nordic will, gett to compliance by the Company with certain reaents of our Certificate «
Incorporation and applicable securities laws, nieg@in good faith to enter into a Work StatemeBt3 or the Work Statement NB-3.

The October Letter of Intent further praasathat Nordic will perform an extension study valaate six months of standard-of-care
osteoporosis management following the completiothefl8-month BAO5&C Phase 3 clinical study. Upon acceptance of tttel@r Letter ¢
Intent, the Company was required to make an ini@lment of €806,468 ($1.1 million).

In February 2013, we entered into Work &tant NB-3, under the Clinical Trial Services Agnemt and a related Stock Issuance
Agreement. As noted above, pursuant to the WorteStant NB-3, Nordic will perform an extension studyevaluate six months of standard-
of-care osteoporosis management following the cetigsl of BA058-SC Phase 3 clinical study and wdldompensated for such services in a
combination of cash and shares of stock.

Payments in cash to be made by us to Norttier Work Statement NB-3 are denominated in baties and U.S. dollars and total up to
€4.5 million ($6.0 million based on the exchange @ of February 21, 2013) and $579,495, respégctiveaddition, we will issue to Nordic,
subject to an amendment to the Amended and ResSabelt Issuance Agreement, or Stock Issuance AgraeAmendment, shares of our
series A-6 preferred stock having a value of up4d million ($6.0 million based on the exchandge s of February 21, 2013) and
$0.3 million, as additional payment for servicedéoprovided under the Work Statement NB-3 andSéreices Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement provides beaginning with the quarter ended March 31, 201@&di¢ is entitled to receive quarterly stc
dividends in connection with services performedamdork Statement NB-3, payable in shares of séiégpreferred stock, or shares of
common stock if our preferred stock has been auioelly converted into common stock in accordandth wur certificate of incorporation,
having an aggregate value of up to €4.5 million@$6illion based on the exchange rate as of Fep2r2013) and $0.3 million. In the event
Nordic sells the shares of serie-5 preferred stock or in the event the sharesidésé-5 preferred stock are converted into comistoigk in
accordance with our amended certificate of incapon, this right to receive the Nordic Accruingvidiend will terminate, but a right to
receive an equivalent number of shares of seriésppeferred stock or common stock, as applicabikeremain with Nordic as a contractual
right under the Stock Issuance Agreement.

BAO058-TD Phase 2 Clinical StuéyOn July 26, 2012, we entered into a Letter ofribteith Nordic, or the Letter of Intent, which
provides that we and Nordic will, subject to coraptie by us with certain requirements of its Cedif¢ of Incorporation and applicable
securities laws, negotiate in good faith to entéw (1) a Work Statement NB-2, or the Work StateiN8-2, a draft of which is attached to the
Letter of Intent, and (2) an amendment to the Ameenaihd Restated Stock Issuance Agreement. The Blatkment NB-2 is contemplated by
the terms of the Clinical Trial Services Agreement.

The Letter of Intent further provided tiNgrdic would begin providing clinical trial servieeelating to the Phase 2 clinical study of the
Company's BA058-TD product, or the Phase 2 Clingtally, as contemplated by the Services Agreemmehthe draft Work Statement NB-2.
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In February 2013, we executed the final M\@atement NB-2, under the Clinical Trial Serviéggeement and a related Stock Issuance
Agreement. As noted above, pursuant to the WorteBtant NB-2, Nordic will provide clinical trial saces relating to the Phase 2 Clinical
Study and will be compensated for such servicesdambination of cash and shares of stock. Paynirectssh to be made by us to Nordic
under Work Statement NB-2 are denominated in bothsand U.S. dollars and total up to €3.6 milli$a.8 million based on the exchange
rate as of February 21, 2013) and $257,853, reispsctin addition, we will issue to Nordic sharefsour series A-6 preferred stock having a
value of up to $2.9 million, as additional paymfartservices to be provided under the Work Stateri8i2 and the Services Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement provides beaginning with the quarter ended December 31, 2Rbedic is entitled to receive quarterly
stock dividends in connection with services perfednunder Work Statement NB-2, payable in sharegiés A-6 preferred stock, or shares o
common stock if our preferred stock has been aufoally converted into common stock in accordand wur certificate of incorporation,
having an aggregate value of up to $2.9 millionthie event Nordic sells the shares of series Aefepred stock or in the event the shares of
series A-5 preferred stock are converted into comstock in accordance with our amended certifiohiacorporation, this right to receive the
Nordic Accruing Dividend will terminate, but a rigto receive an equivalent number of shares oései-6 preferred stock or common stock,
as applicable, will remain with Nordic as a contuat right under the Stock Issuance Agreement.fABezember 31, 2012, 12,886 shares of
series A-6 preferred stock are due to Nordic, terahe automatic conversion into common stockuwfaonvertible preferred stock, 128,860
shares of common stock.

3M

In December 2008, we entered into a FdagilBigreement with 3M whereby 3M assessed theibdlity of developing a BA058-TD
product and supplying the product for preclinidaldses in an animal model. Upon successful congotedif the feasibility study, during June
2009, we entered into a Development and ClinicpipBas Agreement with 3M under which 3M is respbiesio develop a BAO58D product
and manufacture clinical and toxicology supplieswéh patch product for preclinical, Phase 1 arabPI2 studies on an exclusive basis during
the term of the agreement. In December 2012, werethinto an amendment to the Development anddalisiupplies Agreement in which &
agreed to develop and manufacture clinical ancctbdagy supplies for the Phase 3 BAO5-TD clinicaidst In addition, 3M agreed that it will
not use jointly owned intellectual property deveddpmluring and resulting from its work with Radius®AO058-TD in relation to any other PT
and PTHrP analogue or derivative.

We pay 3M for services delivered pursuarthe Development and Clinical Supplies Agreemena dee for service or a fee for delivere
basis as specified in the Development and Cliriegdplies Agreement. The Feasibility Agreement expon or around September 2009. We
have paid 3M approximately $10.5 million, in thegeegate, through December 31, 2012 in respectrtices and deliverables delivered
pursuant to the Feasibility Agreement and the Diwmlent and Clinical Supplies Agreement.

The Development and Clinical Supplies Agneat, as amended, provides for services througlember 31, 2017, unless it is sooner
terminated. Either party may terminate the Develepnand Clinical Supplies Agreement upon a matéri@ch by the other party unless suct
other party cures the alleged breach within thécagieriod specified in the Development and Clihi@applies Agreement. The Development
and Clinical Supplies Agreement contains customiakyallocation clauses with 3M indemnifying usr@spect of third-party claims arising
from any personal injury to the extent that suainslresults from 3M's breach of warranty with retpge BA058-TD meeting applicable
specifications; and us indemnifying 3M in respeidthird-party claims arising with from our or ougent's use, testing or clinical studies of
BAO058-TD. The Development and Clinical Supplies
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Agreement contains other customary clauses andtasmare common in similar agreements in the inglust
Ipsen Pharma

In September 2005, we entered into a Liedxgreement with Ipsen, as amended in Septembét @@ May 2011, under which we
exclusively licensed certain Ipsen compound teabmohbnd related patents covering BA058 to resea®elop, manufacture and
commercialize certain compounds and related predodcill countries, except Japan (where we do alat bommercialization rights) and
France (where our commercialization rights areesttttp certain co-marketing and pocemotion rights retained by Ipsen). Ipsen alsotga us
an exclusive right and license under the Ipsen @amg@ technology and related patents to make anel imade compounds or product in Japar
Ipsen also granted us an exclusive right and leemsler certain Ipsen formulation technology atated patents solely for purposes of
enabling us to develop, manufacture and commezeiaibmpounds and products covered by the compeashadlogy license in all countries,
except Japan (where we do not hold commercialimatghts) and France (where our commercializatights are subject to certain co-
marketing and co-promotion rights retained by Ips@¥ith respect to France, if Ipsen exercisesatsnarketing and co-promotion rights then
Ipsen may elect to receive a percentage of thecggtg revenue from the sale of products by bottiegan France (subject to a mid-double
digit percentage cap) and Ipsen shall bear a quoreng percentage of the costs and expenses @tchyrboth parties with respect to such
marketing and promotion efforts in France; Ipseallsiiso pay us a mid-single digit royalty on Ip'sesllocable portion of aggregate revenue
from the sale of products by both parties in Frasgeecifically, we licensed US Patent No. 5,969,{88ective filing date March 29, 1996,
statutory term expires March 29, 2016) entitled dfags of Parathyroid Hormone," US Patent No. 6 844, (effective filing date March 29,
1996, statutory term ends March 29, 2016) entithathlogs of Parathyroid Hormone" and the corresprogdoreign patents and continuing
patent applications.

In addition, we have rights to joint ingstual property including rights to US Patent N&0B,770 (effective filing date October 3, 2007,
statutory term extended to March 26, 2028 with dd@$s of patent term adjustment due to delays ianpgirosecution by USPTO), US Patent
No. 8,148,333 (effective filing date October 3, 206tatutory term extended to November 8, 2027 @ftliays of patent term adjustment du
delays in patent prosecution by the USPTO) ande@lpatents and patent applications both in theedrtates and worldwide that cover the
method of treating osteoporosis using the Phas¢i@i8al dosage strength and form.

As consideration for the rights to BAO5&elised to us by Ipsen, we paid Ipsen a non-refuedabn-creditable initial license fee of
$250.0 thousand. The License Agreement requirés nske payments to Ipsen upon the achievemergrtdin development milestones in the
range of $750.0 thousand and upon the achievenfieettain development, regulatory and commercidstones in the range of €10.0 million
to €36.0 million ($13.2 million to $47.5 milliongnd we have, as of December 31, 2012, paid $7606uBand in milestone payments and
issued 17,326 shares of series A-1 convertibleepred stock to Ipsen on May 17, 2011 in lieu ofi@dénillion cash payment due to Ipsen u
initiation of the first BA0O58 Phase 3 clinical studf we or our sublicensees commercialize a prothat includes the compound licensed from
Ipsen or any analog thereof, we will be obligateg@ay to Ipsen a fixed five percent royalty basedet sales of the product on a country-by-
country basis until the later of the last to exmfé¢he licensed patents or for a period of 10 gedier the first commercial sale in such country.

The date of the last to expire of the BA@a&ents, barring any extension thereof, is expetttde March 26, 2028. In the event that we
sublicense the rights licensed from Ipsen to atparty, we are obligated to pay Ipsen a percerthgertain payments received from such
sublicensee (in lieu of milestone payments noteaad at the time of such sublicense). The appkcpbtcentage is in the
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low double digit range. In addition, if we or owtdicensees commercialize a product that includesngpound discovered by us based on or
derived from confidential Ipsen know-how, we wi# bbligated to pay to Ipsen a fixed low single digyalty on net sales of such product on ¢
country-by-country basis until the later of thet lmsexpire of our patents that cover such produdor a period of 10 years after the first
commercial sale of such product in such countne Tizense Agreement expires on a country by courdsjs on the later of (1) the date the
last remaining valid claim in the licensed patesdpires, in that country; or (2) a period of 10ngeafter the first commercial sale of the
licensed products in such country, unless it imgoterminated.

The License Agreement may be terminatedsoith prior notice to Ipsen. The License Agreetmeay be terminated by Ipsen upon
notice to us with immediate effect, if we, in arguatry of the world, bring an action or proceedsegking to have any Ipsen patent right
declared invalid or unenforceable. The License Agrent can also be terminated by Ipsen if we failge reasonable commercial efforts to
develop the licensed product for sale and commiezataon in those countries within the territory &re it is commercially reasonable to do so
as contemplated by the License Agreement, ordaikse reasonable commercial efforts to performpbligations under the latest revised
version of the development plan approved by thet jgieering commitee, or fail to use reasonablensernial efforts to launch and sell one
licensed product in those countries within theitty where it is commercially reasonable to doEither party may also terminate the License
Agreement upon a material breach by the other pantigss such other party cures the alleged bre&bimwhe notice period specified in the
License Agreement. Ipsen may terminate the Licéggeement in the event that the License Agreenseassigned or sublicensed or in the
event that a third party acquires us or in the etreat we acquire control over a PTH or a PTHrP gouamd that is in clinical development or is
commercially available in the territory and thatldwing such assignment, sublicense, acquisitioracquisition of control by us, such
assignee, sublicensee, acquirer or we fail to tieetimetable under the latest revised versiomefdevelopment plan approved by the joint
steering committee under the License Agreement.fAilyre to meet such timetable for purposes ohgdecmination clause is deemed a
material breach by us.

The License Agreement contains customaiyailocation clauses with each party indemnifytimg other in respect of third-party claims
arising out of or resulting from: (1) the gross liggnce or willful misconduct of such party, itdikdtes, licensees, distributors or contractors;
(2) any breach by such party of its representatimtswarranties or any other provision of the LeAgreement or any related agreement;
(3) the manufacture on behalf of such party of kagnsed product or compound; (4) (in the caseséih) the use, development, handling or
commercialization of any licensed compound, licenseduct or the Ipsen formulation technology byoibehalf of Ipsen or any of its
affiliates, licensees, distributors or contractensd (5) (in our case) the making, use, developniemtdling or commercialization of any
licensed compound or any licensed product by aswrbehalf or any of our affiliates, licensees onttactors. The License Agreement cont
other customary clauses and terms as are comnsimilar agreements in the industry. The Licenseeggrent was amended on Septembe
2007 and May 11, 2011.

In January 2006, we entered into a Pharotmed Development Agreement as contemplated by itense Agreement with Ipsen. The
Pharmaceutical Development Agreement as amendadyir?007, February 2009, June 2010 and Decemiddr @@vides for the supply of
guantities of licensed product for use in certdimcal trials. Beaufour Ipsen Industrie SAS, asidiary of Ipsen, is responsible for the supply
of BA058-SC in liquid form in a multi-dose cartrigldor use in a pen delivery device. The multi-dogeridges are manufactured for Beaufour
Ipsen Industrie SAS by Vetter under a separatecaggat between those parties, and BA058 API is naawfed by Lonza for us and is
delivered to Vetter for vialing in the multi-dosartridges. The Pharmaceutical Development Agreemmepites upon the completion of the
work plan entered into under the Pharmaceuticakel@ment Agreement unless it is sooner termindted.Pharmaceutical
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Development Agreement shall automatically termingten termination of the Ipsen license Agreemerd.iéy terminate the Pharmaceutical
Development Agreement at any time and for any reagth a specified prior notice period to Ipserthér party may terminate the
Pharmaceutical Development Agreement upon a mategach by the other party with respect to therPlaaeutical Development Agreement
or the Ipsen License Agreement unless such othiy pares the alleged breach within the noticequkspecified in the Development and
Manufacturing Services Agreement. The Pharmacduieaelopment Agreement contains other customaysgs and terms as are commc
similar agreements in the industry.

Eisai

In June 2006, we exclusively licensed tlvelawide (except Japan) rights to research, devetgmufacture and commercialize RAD1901
and related products from Eisai. Specifically, wemhsed the patent application that subsequersiietbas US Patent No. 7,612,114 (effective
filing date December 25, 2003, statutory term edéehto August 18, 2026 with 967 days of patent tadjustment due to delays by the
USPTO) entitled "Selective Estrogen Receptor Mamuathe corresponding foreign patent applicatiand continuing patent applications. As
consideration for the rights to RAD1901, we paiddtian initial license fee of $500.0 thousand.dnrection with the License Agreement, we
have agreed to pay Eisai certain fees in the rahé.0 million to $20.0 million (inclusive of tH8500.0 thousand initial license fee), payable
upon the achievement of certain clinical and regpmamilestones. As of December 31, 2012, we ddoetieve there were any milestones
probable of being achieved in the foreseeable éutur

Should a product covered by the licenselrelogy be commercialized, we will be obligategh&y to Eisai royalties in a variable mid-
single digit range based on net sales of the ptaalu@a country-by-country basis until the latettod last to expire of the licensed patents or th
expiration of data protection clauses covering suciluct in such country; the royalty rate shadirttbe subject to reduction and the royalty
obligation will expire at such time as sales offiavgeneric version of such product account for enitvan a specified minimum percentage of
the total sales of all products that contain therised compound. The latest valid claim to expiag;ing any extension thereof, is expected on
August 18, 2026.

We were also granted the right to sublieamih prior written approval from Eisai, and sudtjeo a right of first negotiation held by Eise
we seek to grant sublicenses limited to particAkian countries. If we sublicense the licensednetdygy to a third party, we will be obligated
to pay Eisai, in addition to the milestones refeszhabove, a fixed low double digit percentageesfain fees we receive from such sublicense
and royalties in low single digit range based onsades of the sublicensee. The license agreemgpires on a country by country basis on the
later of (1) date the last remaining valid clainthe licensed patents expires, lapses or is inag@ilin that country, the product is not covered
by data protection clauses, and the sales of laggnkric version of the product account for moenth specified percentage of the total sal
all pharmaceutical products containing the licensampound in that country; or (2) a period of 1@rgeafter the first commercial sale of the
licensed products in such country, unless it imsoterminated.

The license agreement may be terminatagshwith respect to the entire territory with primtice to Eisai if we reasonably determine tha
the medical/scientific, technical, regulatory onguercial profile of the licensed product does mstify continued development or marketing.
The license agreement can also be terminated lay &iisa country by country basis at any time pigathe date on which we have filed for
either an FDA NDA approval or an EMA marketing apal with respect to a licensed product, upon psidtten notice to us if Eisai makes a
good faith determination that we have not used cemially reasonable efforts to develop the licensexdiuct in the territory having reference
to prevailing principles and time scales associatitldl the development, clinical testing and goveentrapproval of products of a like nature to
such licensed product, unless such
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default is cured within the period specified in tltense agreement or if not capable of being cunghin such period we commence efforts to
cure and make diligent efforts to do so. Eithettyparay also terminate the license agreement upoatarial breach by the other party unless
such other party cures the alleged breach withemtitice period specified in the license agreentgititer party may also terminate the license
agreement upon the bankruptcy or insolvency obther party. Eisai may also terminate the licergge@ment with prior notice if we are
acquired by, or if we transfer all of our pharma@=al business assets (or an essential part of @sgdts) or more than 50% of our voting stock
to, any third party person or organization, or otlise come under the control of, such a persorrgarozation, whether resulting from merger,
acquisition, consolidation or otherwise in the ewbat Eisai reasonably determines that the pessamganization assuming control of us is no
able to perform the license agreement with the s@egeee of skill and diligence that we would usehsdetermination being made with
reference to the following criteria with respecthe person or organization assuming control of Liswhether such person or organization ha:
the financial resources to assume our obligatiaitis r@spect to development and commercializatioprofiucts; (2) whether such person or
organization has personnel with skill and expefeadequate to assume our obligations with respet#velopment and commercialization of
products at the stage of development and commiati@in as of the date of such change; and (3) mdretuch person or organization expre
assumes all obligations imposed on us by the leagseement and agrees to dedicate personnelremtifal resources to the development an
commercialization of the licensed product thatadrkeast as great as those provided by us. Eiadlifshther have the right to terminate if the
acquiring person or organization: (a) has any meltand active litigations with Eisai; (b) is a tan type of pharmaceutical company; or (c) is
a hostile takeover bidder against us which hasaeh approved by our board of directors as comstittmmediately prior to such change of
control.

The license agreement contains customskyatiocation clauses with each party indemnifytimg other in respect of third-party claims
arising out of or resulting from: (1) the negligenceckless or intentional acts or omissions ohqarty, its affiliates, and licensees; (2) any
breach by such party of its representations andanties; and (3) any personal injury arising outhef labeling, packaging, package insert,
other materials or promotional claims with resgediny licensed product by such party or its a&fféds, licensees or distributors in the territory
(in our case) or Japan (in the case of Eisai).liCease agreement contains other customary claarsbserms as are common in similar
agreements in the industry.

Lonza

In October 2007, we entered into a Develepnand Manufacturing Services Agreement with Lol¥a and Lonza have entered into a
series of Work Orders pursuant to the DevelopmedtManufacturing Services Agreement pursuant tc&lvhonza has performed
pharmaceutical development and manufacturing ses\iicr our BA058 product. We pay Lonza for servieaslered and deliverables deliverec
pursuant to these work orders on a fee for sehdsts as specified in the applicable work stateniére Development and Manufacturing
Services Agreement will expire on April 4, 2013e8¥ it is sooner terminated, and is subject towahky us for successive multipjear term
with notice to Lonza.

The Development and Manufacturing Servisgeement or any Work Order may be terminated byeeiparty upon a material breach by
the other party with respect to the Developmentiadufacturing Services Agreement unless such gty cures the alleged breach within
the notice period specified in the Development lstlachufacturing Services Agreement. Either party malsp terminate a Work Order if force
majeure conditions have prevented performance &@pther party for more than a specified periodroétwith respect to such Work Order.
Termination of any Work Order for force majeurelshat result in termination of the Development avfidnufacturing Services Agreement or
any other Work Orders, which shall remain in foucdil terminated. Either party may
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also terminate the Development and Manufacturingi€es Agreement upon the bankruptcy or insolverfape other party. We may also
terminate the Development and Manufacturing Sesvisgreement or any Work Order with prior noticd.tmza for convenience. We may a
terminate the Development and Manufacturing Sesvigreement or any Work Order if we reasonably rieitee that Lonza is or will be
unable to perform the applicable services in acmoed with the agreed upon timeframe and budgdbghtin the applicable Work Order, or if
Lonza fails to obtain or maintain any material goweental licenses or approvals required in conogatiith such services.

The Development and Manufacturing Servisgeement contains customary risk allocation clawsigh each party indemnifying the
other in respect of thirgarty claims arising out of or resulting from: e negligence or willful misconduct of such paity,affiliates and the
respective officers, directors, employees and agerperforming its obligations under the Develapand Manufacturing Services Agreement;
and (i) any breach by such party of its repreg@ria and warranties under the Development and féatwring Services Agreement. We have
agreed to indemnify Lonza in respect of third-pathims arising from or relating to the use of puvduct.

On December 23, 2011, we entered into V@nder No. 4, or Work Order No. 4, under that ceraevelopment and Manufacturing
Services Agreement with Lonza. Pursuant to WorkeDNb. 4, Lonza agreed to perform activities reegliior our filing of an NDA in the
United States with the FDA and similar applicatioeguired by the EMA and other authorities, exahgdauthorities in Japan, for BA058,
including production of three validation batchebe3e activities will provide for full process gdiafation and all required documentation
necessary for regulatory submissions of the ND#&oFDA and the NDA equivalents to such other atiles. The total compensation paya
to Lonza from us for services performed under W@r#er No. 4 is up to €363.5 thousand plus up ta iillion ($479.3 thousand, plus up to
$1.4 million), for the regulatory qualification andlidation campaigns (based on a rate of 180 g@mpsoduct being used in connection with
the activities to be conducted as part of such cégms).

Charles River Laboratories

In March 2004, we entered into a Laborateyvices and Confidentiality Agreement with ChaufRéver Laboratories, Inc., or CRLI, and
amended this agreement on November 7, 2008. Wedrdeeed into a series of letter agreements withI@Rrsuant to this Laboratory
Services and Confidentiality Agreement, covering performance of certain testing and analyticalises concerning our product candidates.
We pay CRLI for services rendered and deliverabdivered pursuant to these letter agreementsfee for service basis. We are permitted tc
terminate any on-going study under the Laborat@nviSes and Confidentiality Agreement at any tinithythe specified prior notice to CRLI
and subject to the payment of applicable studyscastl fees. Either party may terminate the Laboyéervices and Confidentiality Agreem
at any time with the specified prior notice to titeer party and subject to the completion of amntbn-going studies and the payment by us c
any fees for such studies. Either party may alsoiteate the Laboratory Services and Confidentidiyeement upon a material breach by the
other party unless such other party cures theeadidgeach within the notice period specified inltaboratory Services and Confidentiality
Agreement.

The Laboratory Services and Confidentiafigreement contains customary risk allocation asusith each party indemnifying the other
in respect of third-party claims arising out ofimiconnection with the negligence or willful misahret of such party. We also agreed to
indemnify CRLI in respect of third-party claimssirig out of or in connection with the manufactulistribution, use, sale or other disposition
by us, or any of our distributors, customers, fignisees or representatives, of any of our produqisocesses and/or any other substances
which are produced, purified, tested or vialed IRLC We also agreed to indemnify CRLI against ang all liability that may be incurred as
the result of any contact by us or our employeds @RLI's animals, tissues or specimens duringsvisi
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CRLI or after delivery of any samples/specimensdoThe Laboratory Services and Confidentiality @gmnent contains other customary
clauses and terms as are common in similar agresrimethe industry.

Government Regulation
United States—FDA Process

The research, development, testing, matwfacabeling, promotion, advertising, distributiand marketing, among other things, of our
products are extensively regulated by governmenitidorities in the United States and other cousittiethe United States, the FDA regulates
drugs under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmeticoht¢he FDCA, and its implementing regulationaillire to comply with the applicable
United States requirements may subject us to adtrative or judicial sanctions, such as FDA refusapprove pending NDAs, warning
letters, product recalls, product seizures, totadastial suspension of production or distributiotjunctions, and/or criminal prosecution. We
expect BA058, RAD1901 and RAD140 will each be sabjfe review by the FDA as a drug under NDA staddahough we currently only
have an active IND application in relation to BAOB&he United States

Drug Approval Process-None of our drugs may be marketed in the UnitedeStuntil the drug has received FDA approval. Steps
required to be completed before a drug may be nedlkia the United States include:

. preclinical laboratory tests, animal studies, amdnulation studies, all performed in accordancénhie FDA's Good Laborato
Practice, or GLP, regulations;

. submission to the FDA of an IND application farman clinical testing, which must become effechefore human clinical
trials may begin and must be updated annually;

. adequate and well-controlled human clinical trialestablish the safety and efficacy of the drugefich indication to FDA's
satisfaction;

. submission to the FDA of an NDA;

. satisfactory completion of an FDA inspectiortled manufacturing facility or facilities at whichet drug is produced to assess
compliance with cGMP, regulations; and

. FDA review and approval of the NDA.

Preclinical tests include laboratory evélwaof product chemistry, toxicity, and formulaticas well as animal studies. The conduct of th
preclinical tests and formulation of the compoufatgesting must comply with federal regulationslaaquirements. The results of the
preclinical tests, together with manufacturing mfiation and analytical data, are submitted to thé s part of an IND application, which
must become effective before human clinical tabsy begin. An IND application will automatically dmme effective 30 days after receipt by
the FDA, unless before that time the FDA raisesceams or questions about issues such as the cooiihet trials as outlined in the IND
application. In such a case, the IND applicatioonsgor and the FDA must resolve any outstanding EBcerns or questions before clinical
trials can proceed. We cannot be sure that subonisdian IND application will result in the FDA aWing clinical trials to begin.

Clinical trials involve the administratiom the investigational drug to human subjects uitidersupervision of qualified investigators.
Clinical trials are conducted under protocols digtgithe objectives of the study, the parametetsetased in monitoring safety, and the
effectiveness criteria to be evaluated. Each potowist be submitted to the FDA as part of the I&{iplication.
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Clinical trials necessary for product apgicare typically conducted in three sequentialdesabut the Phases may overlap. The study
protocol and informed consent information for stsdpjects in clinical trials must also be approlgdn Institutional Review Board, or IRB,
for each institution where the trials will be cowted, and each IRB must monitor the study until pletion. Study subjects must sign an
informed consent form before participating in aidal trial. Clinical testing also must satisfy exsive good clinical practice, or GCP,
regulations and regulations for informed conseit privacy of individually identifiable informatiorlRhase 1 usually involves the initial
introduction of the investigational drug into pe®pd evaluate its short-term safety, dosage toterametabolism, pharmacokinetics and
pharmacologic actions, and, if possible, to gairarty indication of its effectiveness. Phase Histsiare usually conducted in healthy
individuals and are not intended to treat diseaskness. However, Phase 1b studies are conductleédalthy volunteers or in patients
diagnosed with the disease, or condition for whighstudy drug is intended, who demonstrate sowmadaiker, surrogate, or possibly clinical
outcome that could be considered for "proof of emic Proof of concept in a Phase 1b study typraadinfirms the hypothesis that the current
prediction of biomarker, or outcome benefit is catifple with the mechanism of action. Phase 2 uguaolves trials in a limited patient
population to: (1) evaluate dosage tolerance apdogpiate dosage; (2) identify possible adverseat$fand safety risks; and (3) evaluate
preliminarily the efficacy of the drug for specifitdications. Several different doses of the dray e looked at in Phase 2 to see which dose
has the desired effects. Patients are monitoresidereffects and for any improvement in theirda, symptoms, or both. Phase 3 trials usuall
further evaluate clinical efficacy and test furtfear safety by using the drug in its final forman expanded patient population. A Phase 3 trial
usually compares how well the study drug works carag with an inactive placebo and/or another ammiauedication. One group of patients
may receive the new drug being tested, while amagt@mup of patients may receive the comparator dalrgady-approved drug for the disease
being studied), or placebo. There can be no assethat Phase 1, Phase 2 or Phase 3 testing watieleted successfully within any
specified period of time, if at all. Furthermores ar the FDA may suspend clinical trials at anyetiom various grounds, including a finding
that the subjects or patients are being exposad tmacceptable health risk.

The FDCA permits FDA and the IND applicatigponsor to agree in writing on the design anel sfzlinical studies intended to form the
primary basis of an effectiveness claim in an NDAis process is known as a Special Protocol Assessrar SPA. Under an SPA, the FDA
agrees to not later alter its position with resgecdequacy of the design, execution or analyst#ecclinical trial intended to form the primary
basis of an effectiveness claim in an NDA withdwg sponsor's agreement, unless the FDA identifsegatantial scientific issue essential to
determining the safety or efficacy of the drug iafésting begins.

Assuming successful completion of the regfliclinical testing, the results of the preclihistudies and of the clinical studies, together
with other detailed information, including inforn@t on the manufacture and composition of the dang,submitted to the FDA in the form of
an NDA requesting approval to market the producbfte or more indications. The testing and apprpvatess requires substantial time, effor
and financial resources. The FDA reviews the appib and may deem it to be inadequate, and corepaainnot be sure that any approval
will be granted on a timely basis, if at all. ThBA-may also refer the application to an appropréteisory committee, typically a panel of
clinicians, for review, evaluation and a recommeéintieas to whether the application should be apgiloThe FDA is not bound by the
recommendations of the advisory committee, bytgitcally follows such recommendations.

The FDA has various programs, including feeck, priority review and accelerated approttzt are intended to expedite or simplify the
process for reviewing drugs and/or provide for appl on the basis of surrogate endpoints. Genemdilygs that may be eligible for one or
more of these programs are those intended togesatus or life-threatening conditions, those wiite potential to address
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unmet medical needs, and those that provide mefahipgnefit over existing treatments. A companyragrbe sure that any of its drugs will
qualify for any of these programs, or if a drug slgealify, that the review time will be reduced.

Before approving an NDA, the FDA usualljlwispect the facility or the facilities at whi¢he drug is manufactured and will not approve
the product unless the manufacturing is in compkanith cGMP regulations. If the NDA and the mantifising facilities are deemed
acceptable by the FDA, it may issue an approvigiedr in some cases, an approvable letter foklblayean approval letter. Both letters usually
contain a number of conditions that must be merdter to secure final approval of the NDA. When drtdose conditions have been met to
FDA's satisfaction, the FDA will issue an approledier. The approval letter authorizes commerciatkating of the drug for specific
indications. As a condition of NDA approval, the Ahay require post-marketing testing and survedéato monitor the drug's safety or
efficacy, or impose other conditions. Approval nadgo be contingent on a Risk Evaluation and MitaqaBtrategy, or REMS, that limits the
labeling, distribution or promotion of a drug pratduOnce issued, the FDA may withdraw product applrd ongoing regulatory requirements
are not met or if safety problems occur after ttadpct reaches the market.

After approval, certain changes to the aped product, such as adding new indications, ngakartain manufacturing changes or making
certain additional labeling claims, are subjedutther FDA review and approval. Before a compaay market products for additional
indications, it must obtain additional approvalsnfrthe FDA. Obtaining approval for a new indicatgemerally requires that additional clinical
studies be conducted. A company cannot be sureatlyaadditional approval for new indications foygmoduct candidate will be approved on
a timely basis, or at all.

Post-Approval RequirementsOften times, even after a drug has been approyelebFDA for sale, the FDA may require that certai
post-approval requirements be satisfied, includigconduct of additional clinical studies. If symstapproval conditions are not satisfied,
FDA may withdraw its approval of the drug. In adiatit holders of an approved NDA are required td:ré€port certain adverse reactions to the
FDA, (2) comply with certain requirements concegnadvertising and promotional labeling for theioghucts, and (3) continue to have quality
control and manufacturing procedures conform to €a®gulations after approval. The FDA periodicaligpects the sponsor's records relatec
to safety reporting and/or manufacturing facilititgs latter effort includes assessment of ongaimmpliance with cGMP regulations.
Accordingly, manufacturers must continue to exptime, money and effort in the area of productiod gnality control to maintain cGMP
compliance. We have used and intend to continwsécahirdparty manufacturers to produce our products inadirand commercial quantitie
and future FDA inspections may identify compliamssues at the facilities of our contract manufaatsithat may disrupt production or
distribution, or require substantial resourcesdweact. In addition, discovery of problems withraguct after approval may result in restrictic
on a product, including withdrawal of the producini the market.

Hatch-Waxman Aet-Under the Drug Price Competition and Patent Temst&ation Act of 1984, also known as the Hatch-kvax Act,
Congress created an abbreviated FDA review prdoeggeneric versions of pioneer (brand name) dmeglpcts. In considering whether to
approve such a generic drug product, the FDA reguhiat an Abbreviated New Drug Application, or AN@applicant demonstrate, among
other things, that the proposed generic drug prslactive ingredient is the same as that of tlereéace product, that any impurities in the
proposed product do not affect the product's safesffectiveness, and that its manufacturing pgees and methods ensure the consistent
potency and purity of its proposed product.

The Hatch-Waxman Act provides five yearslaffa exclusivity for new chemical entities whiagleyents the FDA from accepting ANDAS
and 505(b)(2) applications containing the protectetive ingredient. We expect to be eligible feefyears of data exclusivity following any
FDA approval of BA058-SC.
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The Hatch-Waxman Act also provides thresry®f exclusivity for applications containing tfessults of new clinical investigations (other
than bioavailability studies) essential to the FP&pproval of new uses of approved products, ssictew indications, delivery mechanisms,
dosage forms, strengths, or conditions of useekample, if BAO58-SC is approved for commercialmai&and we are successful in performing
a clinical trial of BA0O58-TD that provides a newsmfor approval (a different delivery mechanisti} ipossible that we may become eligible
for an additional three year period of data exeitysiwhich protects against the approval of ANDA®I&05(b)(2) applications for the protec
use but will not prohibit the FDA from acceptingapproving ANDAs or 505(b)(2) applications for atlpeoducts containing the same active
ingredient.

The Hatch-Waxman Act requires NDA applisaaihd NDA holders to provide certain informatiomatypatents related to the drug for
listing in the FDA's list of Approved Drug Produetith Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluations (commdmigwn as the Orange Book). ANDA
and 505(b)(2) applicants must then certify regagyadiach of the patents listed with the FDA for thierence product. A certification that a lis
patent is invalid or will not be infringed by thearketing of the applicant's product is called aréigeaph IV certification.” If the ANDA or 505
(b)(2) applicant provides such a notification ofgrd invalidity or non-infringement, then the FDAaynaccept the ANDA or 505(b)(2)
application beginning four years after approvatha NDA. If an ANDA or 505(b)(2) application cont@tig a Paragraph IV certification is
submitted to the FDA and accepted as a reviewilbilg by the agency, the ANDA or 505(b)(2) applitéimen must provide, within 20 days,
notice to the NDA holder and patent owner stathmag the application has been submitted and progittie factual and legal basis for the
applicant's opinion that the patent is invalid ot mfringed. The NDA holder or patent owner theaynfile suit against the ANDA or 505(b)(2)
applicant for patent infringement. If this is domighin 45 days of receiving notice of the Paragréipleertification, a one-time 3@ionth stay c
the FDA's ability to approve the ANDA or 505(b)@plication is triggered. The 30-month stay beginthe end of the NDA holder's data
exclusivity period, or, if data exclusivity has égal, on the date that the patent holder is natifiEthe submission of the ANDA. The FDA
may approve the proposed product before the eipiraf the 30-month stay if a court finds the paiawmalid or not infringed or if the court
shortens the period because the parties have tailegloperate in expediting the litigation.

European Unior—EMA Process

In the EU, medicinal products are authatifdlowing a similar demanding process as thatiregl in the United States. Applications are
based on the ICH Common Technical Document and maiside a detailed plan for pediatric approvaguth approval is sought. Medicines
can be authorized in the European Union by usitigeethe centralized authorization procedure oionat authorization procedures.

Centralized procedure-Under the centralized procedure, after the EMAéssan opinion, the European Commission issuasgéesi
marketing authorization valid across the EU, ad a&lceland, Liechtenstein and Norway. The ceiziedIprocedure is compulsory for human
medicines that are: derived from biotechnology psses, such as genetic engineering, contain actexe aubstance indicated for the
treatment of certain diseases, such as HIV/AID8¢cen diabetes, neurodegenerative disorders oinamtione diseases and other immune
dysfunctions, and officially designated orphan rogdis. For medicines that do not fall within theagegories, an applicant has the option of
submitting an application for a centralized mankgtauthorization to the EMA, as long as the medidancerned is a significant therapeutic,
scientific or technical innovation, or if its autimation would be in the interest of public health.
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National authorization proceduresThere are also two other possible routes to aionedicinal products in several countries, which
are available for products that fall outside thepscof the centralized procedure:

. Decentralized procedure Using the decentralized procedure, an applicayt apply for simultaneous authorization in more
than one EU country of a medicinal product thatatsyet been authorized in any EU country and dloas not fall within the
mandatory scope of the centralized procedure.

. Mutual recognition procedure.ln the mutual recognition procedure, a medicigrst authorized in one EU Member State, in
accordance with the national procedures of thattguThereafter, further marketing authorizaticas be sought from other |
countries in a procedure whereby the countries@maal agree to recognize the validity of the odginational marketing
authorization.

In light of the fact that there is no pgliat the EU level governing pricing and reimbursatmthe 27 EU Member States each have
developed their own, often varying, approachesnamy EU Member States, pricing negotiations must tdace between the holder of the
marketing authorization and the competent natiantthorities before the product is sold in their kearith the holder of the marketing
authorization required to provide evidence demattisiyy the pharmaco-economic superiority of its piidn comparison with directly and
indirectly competing products. We have designeddmwelopment program, proposed Phase 3 study desidroverall nortlinical and clinica
data package to support future regulatory approf/BIA058-SC in the EU. In December 2012, we mehulite Swedish Medical Products
Agency, or MPA, to review the design and the ovgradgress of the Phase 3 study. The MPA confirthatlthe program, based on the curren
single pivotal trial design, would support the sigsion and potential approval of an MAA in the Eignding the results of the Phase 3 study.

Good manufacturing practicesLike the FDA, the EMA, the competent authoritidsh®e EU Member States and other regulatory
agencies regulate and inspect equipment, facibiesprocesses used in the manufacturing of phauiaal and biologic products prior to
approving a product. If, after receiving clearafroen regulatory agencies, a company makes a mhbtdr@age in manufacturing equipment,
location, or process, additional regulatory revaavd approval may be required. Once we or our parit@mmercialize products, we will be
required to comply with cGMP, and product-spediéigulations enforced by, the European CommissimmEMA and the competent
authorities of EU Member States following produgpeoval. Also like the FDA, the EMA, the competenthorities of the EU Member States
and other regulatory agencies also conduct regodaindic visits to re-inspect equipment, facibti@and processes following the initial approva
of a product. If, as a result of these inspectidris,determined that our or our partners' equiptnicilities, or processes do not comply with
applicable regulations and conditions of produgtrapal, regulatory agencies may seek civil, crirhvaadministrative sanctions and/or
remedies against us, including the suspension ofmramufacturing operations or the withdrawal of product from the market.

Data and Market Exclusivity-Similar to the United States, there is a procesgéneric versions of innovator drug productdhm EU.
Abridged applications for the authorization of gengersions of drugs authorized by EMA can be sitieih to the EMA through a centralized
procedure referencing the innovator's data and dstraging bioequivalence to the reference produabng other things.

New medicinal products in the EU can reeadight years of data exclusivity coupled with tyears of market exclusivity, and a potential
one year extension, if the marketing authorizatiooisler obtains an authorization for one or mong tteerapeutic indications that demonstr:
"significant clinical benefit" in comparison witlxisting therapies; this system is usually refemeeds "8+2+1".
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We expect to be eligible for at least ten yeamhafket exclusivity following any approval of BAOSSC.

Abridged applications cannot rely on arowattor's data until after expiry of the 8 year datelusivity term; applications for a generic
product can be filed but the product cannot be etadkuntil the end of the market exclusivity term.

Other International Markets—Drug approval process

In some international markets (e.g., Clindapan), although data generated in United StatE8) trials may be submitted in support of a
marketing authorization application, additionahi@dal trials conducted in the host territory, ardsting people of the ethnicity of the host
territory, may be required prior to the filing g@oval of marketing applications within the coyntr

Pricing and Reimbursemer

In the United States and internationallfes of products that we market in the future, @mdability to generate revenues on such sales,
are dependent, in significant part, on the avditgtand level of reimbursement from third-partyypas such as state and federal governments
managed care providers and private insurance pRangte insurers, such as health maintenance @agaoms and managed care providers,
have implemented cost-cutting and reimbursemetiaiivies and likely will continue to do so in thetdire. These include establishing
formularies that govern the drugs and biologics il be offered and also the out-of-pocket obtigas of member patients for such products.
In addition, particularly in the United States ancdreasingly in other countries, we are requiredrtavide discounts and pay rebates to state
federal governments and agencies in connectionpuitbhhases of our products that are reimbursedidly entities. It is possible that future
legislation in the United States and other jurigdits could be enacted which could potentially istghe reimbursement rates for the products
we are developing and may develop in the futureadsal could further impact the levels of discouarid rebates paid to federal and state
government entities. Any legislation that impadbisse areas could impact, in a significant way anility to generate revenues from sales of
products that, if successfully developed, we btmgarket.

There is no legislation at the EU level gming the pricing and reimbursement of medicimabpcts in the EU. As a result, the competen
authorities of each of the 27 EU Member States laalopted individual strategies regulating the pgcand reimbursement of medicinal
products in their territory. These strategies oftary widely in nature, scope and application. Hegrea major element that they have in
common is an increased move towards reductiondmeaimbursement price of medicinal products, acgdo in the number and type of
products selected for reimbursement and an incdgasference for generic products over innovatioglpcts. These efforts have mostly been
executed through these countries' existing pricgrobmethodologies. The government of the UK, wltibntinuing for now to utilize its
established Pharmaceutical Pricing Reimbursememdr8e approach, has announced its intentions torghas by 2014, a new value-based
pricing approach, at least for new product intrdiuns. Under this approach, in a complete depaftora established methodologies,
reimbursement levels of each drug will be explcithsed on an assessment of value, looking atethefits for the patient, unmet need,
therapeutic innovation, and benefit to society asale. It is increasingly common in many EU MemBgates for Marketing Authorization
Holders to be required to demonstrate the pharneaooomic superiority of their products as compaosgroducts already subject to pricing
and reimbursement in specific countries. In oréerdfugs to be evaluated positively under suclegat pharmaceutical companies may nee
re-examine, and consider altering, a number oftteandl functions relating to the selection, studpd management of drugs, whether currentl
marketed, under development, or being evaluatedmdidates for research and/or development.
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Future legislation, including the curreptsions being considered at the federal levelénthited States and at the national level in EU
Member States, or regulatory actions implementaagnt or future legislation may have a significafifiect on our business. Our ability to
successfully commercialize products depends ingrathe extent to which reimbursement for the costaur products and related treatments
will be available in the United States and worldevidom government health administration authorjtgsate health insurers and other
organizations. Substantial uncertainty exists dheaeimbursement status of newly approved hea¢hproducts by third-party payors.

Sales and Marketing

The FDA regulates all advertising and praoroactivities for products under its jurisdictiboth prior to and after approval. A company
can make only those claims relating to safety dficaey that are approved by the FDA. Physiciany mescribe legally available drugs for
uses that are not described in the drug's labeliithat differ from those tested by us and apptdyethe FDA. Such off-label uses are
common across medical specialties, and often tedl@hysician's belief that the off-label use s ltest treatment for the patients. The FDA
does not regulate the behavior of physicians iir tf@ice of treatments, but FDA regulations do % stringent restrictions on manufactul
communications regarding off-label uses. Failureamply with applicable FDA requirements may subgcompany to adverse publicity,
enforcement action by the FDA, corrective advertsiconsent decrees and the full range of civil adinal penalties available to the FDA.

We may also be subject to various fedardlstate laws pertaining to healthcare "fraud dndse," including anti-kickback laws and false
claims laws. Anti-kickback laws make it illegal famprescription drug manufacturer to solicit, offexceive, or pay any remuneration in
exchange for, or to induce, the referral of businesluding the purchase or prescription of aipaldr drug. Due to the breadth of the statuton
provisions and the absence of guidance in the fifrregulations and very few court decisions addngsimdustry practices, it is possible that
our practices might be challenged under anti-kickba similar laws. Moreover, recent healthcaremaf legislation has strengthened these
laws. For example, the recently enacted PPACA, gnotiner things, amends the intent requirement®feéderal anti-kickback and criminal
healthcare fraud statutes, so that a person dy erx@tilonger needs to have actual knowledge ofdtaitute or specific intent to violate it. In
addition, PPACA permits the government to asset dhclaim that includes items or services regylfiom a violation of the federal anti-
kickback statute constitutes a false or fraudubéaitn for purposes of the false claims statutetsd=elaims laws prohibit anyone from
knowingly and willingly presenting, or causing te presented for payment, to third-party payorsitiog Medicare and Medicaid) claims for
reimbursed drugs or services that are false odfrint, claims for items or services not providediaimed, or claims for medically
unnecessary items or services. Our activitiesingldb the sale and marketing of our products magubject to scrutiny under these laws.
Violations of fraud and abuse laws may be punighallcriminal and civil sanctions, including finasd civil monetary penalties, the
possibility of exclusion from federal healthcaregmrams (including Medicare and Medicaid) and caapmmtegrity agreements, which impose.
among other things, rigorous operational and moinigorequirements on companies. Similar sanctiors@enalties also can be imposed upon
executive officers and employees, including crirhBanctions against executive officers under thealed "responsible corporate officer"
doctrine, even in situations where the executifieaf did not intend to violate the law and waswaee of any wrongdoing.

Given the significant penalties and finattcan be imposed on companies and individuaisn¥icted, allegations of such violations of
result in settlements even if the company or irdlial being investigated admits no wrongdoing. 8etéints often include significant civil
sanctions, including fines and civil monetary p&ral and corporate integrity agreements. If theegoment were to allege or convict us or out
executive officers of violating these laws, ouribass could be harmed. In
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addition, private individuals have the ability torig similar actions. Our activities could be suthj challenge for the reasons discussed aboy
and due to the broad scope of these laws and thesaising attention being given to them by law ergorent authorities. Further, there are an
increasing number of state laws that require martufars to make reports to states on pricing andketing information. Many of these laws
contain ambiguities as to what is required to cgmyith the laws. Given the lack of clarity in lawad their implementation, our reporting
actions could be subject to the penalty provisiofithe pertinent state authorities.

Similar rigid restrictions are imposed e promotion and marketing of medicinal productthim EU and other countries. Laws (includ
those governing promotion, marketing and anti-kaakbprovisions), industry regulations and profesai@odes of conduct often are strictly
enforced. Even in those countries where we arelinettly responsible for the promotion and markgtiri our products, inappropriate activity
by our international distribution partners can hamplications for us.

Other Laws and Regulatory Processes

We are subject to a variety of financiaaltbsure and securities trading regulations aséigpcompany in the United States, including
laws relating to the oversight activities of theCS&nd, if any or our capital stock becomes listed mational securities exchange, we will be
subject to the regulations of such exchange ontwhiz shares are traded. In addition, the Finaaiabunting Standards Board, or FASB, the
SEC and other bodies that have jurisdiction overfthm and content of our accounts, our finanditiesnents and other public disclosure are
constantly discussing and interpreting proposatseatisting pronouncements designed to ensure tmapanies best display relevant and
transparent information relating to their respetivsinesses.

Our international operations are subjeadmpliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Acthe FCPA, which prohibits corporations
and individuals from paying, offering to pay, otlaarizing the payment of anything of value to aayefgn government official, government
staff member, political party, or political candidan an attempt to obtain or retain business atherwise influence a person working in an
official capacity. We also may be implicated unthex FCPA for activities by our partners, collaborat CROs, vendors or other agents.

Our present and future business has begw#incontinue to be subject to various other laamsl regulations. Various laws, regulations
and recommendations relating to safe working caomit laboratory practices, the experimental usenahals, and the purchase, storage,
movement, import and export and use and dispodazdrdous or potentially hazardous substancesingahnection with our research work
are or may be applicable to our activities. Certajreements entered into by us involving excluloense rights or acquisitions may be sub
to national or supranational antitrust regulatasgteol, the effect of which cannot be predictede Bxtent of government regulation, which
might result from future legislation or administvat action, cannot accurately be predicted.

Intellectual Property

As of December 31, 2012, we owned fourasisunited States patents, as well as ten pendintgd/States patent applications and 32
pending foreign patent applications in Europe afhather jurisdictions, eight granted foreign paseartd two pending international
applications. As of December 31, 2012, we had fesrto nine United States patents, one UnitedsSpatient application as well as numerous
foreign counterparts to many of these patents aehp applications. We licensed these patents atghpapplications on an exclusive basis fo
all countries except Japan, though our rights anEe with respect to BA058 are subject to certaipromotion and co-marketing rights held
by Ipsen and our rights to sublicense in certaii&=acific countries in respect of RAD1901 are sabjo a right of first refusal held by Eisai,
all as described herein in our discussion of merlse agreements with Ipsen and Eisai.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we employed faurttill-time employees and one part-time employeee of whom held Ph.D. or M.D.
degrees. Nine of our employees were engaged iangsand development activities and six were ergjagsupport administration, including
business development and finance. We intend ta@C&@s and other third parties to perform our clihgtadies and manufacturing.

Corporate Information

We were incorporated in the state of Delawm February 4, 2008 under the name MPM Acquaisi€orp. In May 2011, we entered into
a reverse merger transaction, or the "Merger," withpredecessor, Radius Health, Inc., a Delawangocation formed on October 3, 2003, or
the Former Operating Company, pursuant to which-tirener Operating Company became a wholly-ownedidigry of ours. Immediately
following the merger transaction, the Former Opagag€ompany was merged with and into us, or the'tshorm Merger, we assumed the
business of the Former Operating Company and cldamgename to "Radius Health, Inc."
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Set forth below are risks and uncertainties thatlda@ause actual results to differ materially frone results contemplated by the forward
looking statements contained in this report. Beeanfsthe following important factors, as well abetvariables affecting our operating
results, past financial performance should not besidered as a reliable indicator of future perf@amece and investors should not use
historical trends to anticipate results or trendsfuture periods.

Risks Related to Our Business
Risks Related to Our Financial Position and Need foCapital
We currently have no product revenues and will ndedaise additional capital immediately in ordeo tontinue operating our business.

To date, we have generated no product t@gerJntil, and unless, we receive approval froemRBDA and other regulatory authorities for
our product candidates, we will not be permittedat our drugs and will not have product reven@srently, our only product candidates are
BA058, RAD1901 and RAD140, and none of these prixicandidates is approved by the FDA for sale. &loee, for the foreseeable future,
we will have to fund our operations and capitalenglitures from cash on hand, borrowings, licengéeg and grants and, potentially, future
offerings of our securities. We believe that oussgng resources will not be sufficient to fund glanned operations beyond the end of May
2013. We have based this estimate on assumptiahsthy prove to be wrong, and we could use oula@dai capital resources sooner than we
currently expect. If we fail to obtain additionapital immediately, we may be unable to completeptenned preclinical and clinical trials and
obtain approval of any product candidates fromRB& and other regulatory authorities. In additiarg could be forced to discontinue product
development, reduce or forego sales and markeffogs forego attractive business opportunitiesliscontinue our operations entirely. Any
additional sources of financing may not be avaédai may not be available on favorable terms aridikély involve the issuance of additior
equity securities, which will have a dilutive effem stockholders. Our future capital requiremevitsdepend on many factors, including the
scope and progress made in our research and devemb@ctivities and our clinical studies.

We are not currently profitable and may never becoprofitable.

We have a history of net losses and exjpeicicur substantial losses and have negative tipgreash flow for the foreseeable future, and
may never achieve or maintain profitability. We hred losses of $69.1 million, $42.5 million and $l#illion during the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelpfAecember 31, 2012, we had an accumulated defi@200.7 million. Even if we
succeed in developing and commercializing one aemebour product candidates, we expect to incbstntial losses for the foreseeable
future and may never become profitable. We als@eixip continue to incur significant operating @agital expenditures and anticipate that
our expenses will increase substantially in thegeeable future as we:

. continue to undertake preclinical development dimdcal trials for product candidates;
. seek regulatory approvals for product candidates;

. implement additional internal systems and infrattrce; and

. hire additional personnel.

We also expect to experience negative flaghfor the foreseeable future as we fund our aprg losses and capital expenditures. As a
result, we will need to generate significant revenin order to achieve and maintain profitabilitye may not be able to generate these
revenues or achieve profitability in the future.cAadingly, unless and until we generate revenudsbacome profitable,
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we will need to raise additional capital to congrto operate our business. Our failure to achiewvaeaintain profitability or to raise additional
capital could negatively impact the value of ownsidies.

Our credit facility imposes significant restricticnon our business, and if we default on our obligats, the lenders would have a right to
foreclose on substantially all our asse

In May 2011, we entered into our $25.0 imvillcredit facility with General Electric Capitab@oration, or GECC, as agent and lender,
Oxford Finance LLC, as lender. We drew $12.5 milli;mder our credit facility during 2011 and we ditew remaining $12.5 million on
May 29, 2012. Our credit facility contains a numbg&covenants that impose significant operating fimehcial restrictions on us. These
covenants limit our ability to:

. dispose of our business or certain assets;

. change our business, management, ownership ordsssiocations;

. incur additional debt or liens;

. make certain investments or declare dividends;

. acquire or merge with another entity for considerain excess of an allowable amount;
. engage in transactions with affiliates; or

. encumber our intellectual property.

Our credit facility may limit our abilityotfinance future operations or capital needs anigage in, expand or pursue our business
activities. It may also prevent us from engagingdtivities that could be beneficial to our bussiaad our stockholders unless we repay the
outstanding debt, which may not be desirable osiptes

We have pledged substantially all of owsess other than our intellectual property to seoureobligations under our credit facility. If we
default on our obligations and are unable to obdaivaiver for such a default, the lenders wouldehavight to accelerate the debt and termi
all commitments under our credit facility. They vidalso have the right to foreclose on the pledagsbts, including our cash and cash
equivalents. Any such action on the part of lendgainst us would significantly harm our business aur ability to operate.

Raising additional capital may cause dilution to pexisting stockholders, restrict our operations mequire us to relinquish rights to ou
technologies or product candidates.

Until such time, if ever, as we can gernegtbstantial product revenues, we expect to fimanec cash needs through a combination of
equity offerings, debt financings, collaboratiosisategic alliances, licensing arrangements anerattarketing and distribution arrangements.
We do not have any committed external source adsuiio the extent that we raise additional cagitadugh the sale of equity or convertible
debt securities, your ownership interest will beitgid, and the terms of these securities may ircliggiidation or other preferences that
adversely affect your rights as a stockholder. Diglaincing, if available, may involve agreementsttimclude covenants limiting or restricting
our ability to take specific actions, such as imicwy additional debt, making capital expendituresleclaring dividends. If we raise additional
funds through marketing and distribution arrangetsien other collaborations, strategic alliancebagnsing arrangements with third parties,
we may have to relinquish valuable rights to oght®logies, future revenue streams, research pragoa product candidates or to grant
licenses on terms that may not be favorable tdf uge are unable to raise additional funds throaghity or debt financings when needed, we
may be required to delay, limit, reduce or terménadir product development or commercializationréffor grant rights to
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develop and market product candidates that we wathierwise prefer to develop and market ourselves.
We are a company with a limited operating historpan which to base an investment decision.

We are a company with a limited operatirggdry and have not demonstrated an ability togrerfthe functions necessary for the
successful commercialization of any product candslarhe successful commercialization of any prodandidates will require us to perform
a variety of functions, including:

. continuing to undertake preclinical development elimtical trials;
. participating in regulatory approval processes;

. formulating and manufacturing products; and

. conducting sales and marketing activities.

Our operations have been limited to orgagiand staffing our company, acquiring, developgang securing our proprietary technology
and undertaking preclinical and clinical trialsonfr product candidates. These operations provlaei@d basis for you to assess our ability to
commercialize our product candidates and the aliityaof investing further in our securities.

Our financial results may fluctuate from quarter tquarter, which makes our results difficult to préd and could cause our results to fall
short of expectations

Our financial results may fluctuate assuteof a number of factors, many of which are wig&®f our control. For these reasons,
comparing our financial results on a periodgtriod basis may not be meaningful, and you shoatdely on our past results as an indicatio
our future performance. Our revenues, if any, nhagt@iate from quarter to quarter and our futurertprly and annual expenses as a percentas
of our revenues may be significantly different frtmose we have recorded in the past or which weepr the future. Our financial results in
some quarters may fall below expectations. Anyhebe events as well as the various risk factaedli this section could adversely affect ou
financial results and cause the value of our stodhll.

Risks Related to the Discovery, Development and Carrercialization of Our Product Candidates

We are heavily dependent on the success of BA058&8@ BA058TD as a follow on product, both of which are undelinical developmeni
We cannot be certain that BA058-SC or BA058-TD wiliceive regulatory approval or be successfully enercialized even if we receive
regulatory approval.

BAO058-SC is our only product candidatedtetstage clinical development, and our businesemily depends heavily on its successful
development, regulatory approval and commerciatimatWe have no drug products for sale currently mxay never be able to develop
marketable drug products. The research, testingufaaturing, labeling, approval, sale, marketind dristribution of drug products are subject
to extensive regulation by the FDA and other regumaauthorities in the United States and othemtaes, which regulations differ from
country to country. We are not permitted to mai&&058-SC in the United States unless and until @eive approval of an NDA from the
FDA, or in any foreign countries unless and untl rgceive the requisite approval from regulatoparities in such countries. In addition, the
approval of BA0O58-TD as a follow-on product is degent on the earlier approval of BA058-SC. We havesubmitted an NDA to the FDA
or comparable applications to other regulatory auitles. Obtaining approval of an NDA is an exteersi
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lengthy, expensive and uncertain process, and porpeaal of BA058-SC may be delayed, limited or @enfior many reasons, including:

. we may not be able to demonstrate that BAO58 is aafl effective as a treatment for osteoporodiseaatisfaction of the FDA;

. the results of our clinical studies may not meetldvel of statistical or clinical significance teged by the FDA for marketing
approval,

. the FDA may disagree with the number, design, siaeduct or implementation of our clinical studies;

. the CRO that we retain to conduct clinical sasdinay take actions outside of our control thaenmty adversely impact our

clinical studies;

. the FDA may not find the data from preclinicaldies and clinical studies sufficient to demortstthat BA058's clinical and
other benefits outweigh its safety risks;

. the FDA may disagree with our interpretation ofad@bm our preclinical studies and clinical studiesnay require that we
conduct additional studies;

. the FDA may not accept data generated at our elisttidy sites;

. if our NDA is reviewed by an advisory committélee FDA may have difficulties scheduling an adwscommittee meeting in a
timely manner or the advisory committee may recomurelgainst approval of our application or may recwnd that the FDA
require, as a condition of approval, additionakfirécal studies or clinical studies, limitations approved labeling or
distribution and use restrictions;

. the FDA may require development of a Risk Evaluatiod Mitigation Strategy, or REMS as a conditibaproval; or

. the FDA may identify deficiencies in the manufagigrprocesses or facilities of our third-party mtauturers.

In addition, the FDA may change its appt@dicies or adopt new regulations. For exampiteFebruary 15, 2012, we received a letter
from the FDA stating that, after internal considiena the agency believes that a minimum of 24-rhdrdacture data are necessary for approve
of new products for the treatment of postmenopansi@loporosis, and our ongoing BA058-SC pivotalsBaclinical study is designed to
produce fracture data based on an 18-month prieradpoint. Based on our discussions with the FDAbwléeve that continued use of the 18-
month primary endpoint will be acceptable, provideat our NDA includes the 24-month fracture datdwed from a 6-month extension of the
BAO058 80 g and placebo groups in our Phase 3 shatywill receive an approved alendronate (gerieogamax®) therapy for osteoporosis
management. We plan to file the NDA with the 18-thdinacture data and supplementally provide ther@fth fracture data, when available.
We cannot be certain that the FDA will not charfys &pproval policy again, or adopt other apprgaicies or regulations that adversely
affect any NDA that we may submit.

Before we submit an NDA to the FDA for BAD&s a treatment for osteoporosis, we must compéteral additional studies, including,
but not limited to, our pivotal Phase 3 study bagedn 18month fracture data, a thorough QT Phase 1 stuBage 1 pharmacokinetic, or |
study in renal patients, a Phase 1 absolute biltadoiiity PK study, a maximum tolerated dose stusbyeral drug interaction studies, a
carcinogenicity study in rats, and bone qualityd&s in rats and monkeys. We have not commenced #ikese required studies and the result:
of these studies will have an important bearinghenapproval of BA058. In addition to fracture @D, our pivotal Phase 3 study will
measure a number of other potential safety indisatocluding anti-BA058 antibodies which will haga important bearing on the approval of
BAO058. At an interim preliminary analysis of
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histopathology of pre-terminal rats in our rat @amgenicity study, which includes BA058 and hPTE); a daily subcutaneous injection of
human parathyroid hormone as a positive controlhawgee observed osteosarcomas in both the BAOS8Rm#(1-34) treated groups. The fir
results from the rat carcinogenicity study may shi&t BA058 dosing results in more osteosarcomas BTH, at similar exposure multiples
the human therapeutic dose, which may have a rahsetverse bearing on approval of BA058.

If we experience delays in the enrollment of patterin our clinical trials, our receipt of necessarggulatory approvals could be delayed
prevented

We may not be able to initiate or contilirical trials for some of our product candidaifese are unable to locate and enroll a sufficien
number of eligible patients to participate in th&gss as required by the FDA or other regulataughorities. In addition, many of our
competitors have ongoing clinical trials for protloandidates that could be competitive with ourdpiad candidates, and patients who would
otherwise be eligible for our clinical trials maystead enroll in clinical trials of our competitgpsoduct candidates.

Enroliment delays in our clinical trials yneesult in increased development costs for oudpecocandidates, which would cause the value
of the company to decline and limit our abilitydbtain additional financing. Our inability to enralsufficient number of patients for any of
current or future clinical trials would result iigsificant delays or may require us to abandonanmore clinical trials altogether.

If we do not obtain the necessary United Statesareign regulatory approvals to commercialize angoduct candidate, we will not be ab
to sell our product candidates.

We cannot assure you that we will receheedpprovals necessary to commercialize any opmduct candidates, including BA058,
RAD1901 and RAD140, or any product candidate weugiegr develop in the future. We will need FDA apgl to commercialize our
product candidates in the United States and apleian the FDA-equivalent regulatory authoritiesforeign jurisdictions to commercialize
our product candidates in those jurisdictions.rteo to obtain FDA approval of any product candigiate must submit to the FDA an NDA
demonstrating that the product candidate is safadmans and effective for its intended use. Thimanstration requires significant research
and animal tests, which are referred to as predirstudies, as well as human tests, which areregfe¢o as clinical trials. Satisfaction of the
FDA's regulatory requirements typically takes mgagrs, depends upon the type, complexity and npeélthe product candidate and requires
substantial resources for research, developmentestidg. We cannot predict whether our researchcéinical approaches will result in drugs
that the FDA considers safe for humans and effedtivindicated uses. The FDA has substantial eligxr in the drug approval process and
may require us to conduct additional preclinicad afinical testing or to perform post-marketingdias. The approval process may also be
delayed by changes in government regulation, fuegislation or administrative action or change&DA policy that occur prior to or during
its regulatory review, such as the request we veddgirom the FDA with respect to providing a minimwf 24month fracture data for approy
of BA058. Delays in obtaining regulatory approvailay:

. delay commercialization of, and our ability teride product revenues from, our product candidates
. impose costly procedures on us; and
. diminish any competitive advantages that we magmwilse enjoy.

Even if we comply with all FDA requestse thDA may ultimately reject one or more of our NDAge may never obtain regulatory
clearance for any of our product candidates. Failarobtain
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FDA approval of any of our product candidates séll’erely undermine our business by leaving us withsaleable product, and therefore
without any source of revenues, until another pcbdandidate can be developed. There is no guarama we will ever be able to develop or
acquire any product candidate.

In foreign jurisdictions, we must receiympeoval from the appropriate regulatory authoribesore we can commercialize any drugs.
Foreign regulatory approval processes generalludtecall of the risks associated with the FDA appi@rocedures described above. We
cannot assure you that we will receive the appsratessary to commercialize any of our produatidates for sale outside the United Ste

Most of our product candidates are in early stagg<linical trials.

Except for BA058, each of our other prodtentdidates, which are RAD1901 and RAD140, is ityesiages of development and requires
extensive preclinical and clinical testing. We oatnpredict with any certainty if or when we mighibsnit an NDA for regulatory approval for
any of our product candidates or whether any suoi Mill be accepted.

Clinical trials are very expensive, time-consumiagd difficult to design and implement.

Human clinical trials are very expensive difficult to design and implement, in part beattsey are subject to rigorous regulatory
requirements. A substantial portion of our BAO58a&lepment costs are denominated in euro and amgraglvnovement in the dollar/euro
exchange rate will result in increased costs agdire us to raise additional capital to completedbvelopment of our products. The clinical
trial process is also time consuming. We estinfadié ¢linical trials of BA058-SC will take severalditional years to complete. Furthermore,
failure can occur at any stage of the trials, aerdcauld encounter problems that cause us to abayrd@peat clinical trials. The
commencement and completion of clinical trials rhaydelayed by several factors, including:

. changes in government regulation, administrativ®a®r changes in FDA policy with respect to diali trials that change the
requirements for approval,

. unforeseen safety issues;

. determination of dosing issues;

. lack of effectiveness during clinical trialspgler than expected rates of patient recruitmentesmdliment;
. inability to monitor patients adequately durimgafter treatment; and

. inability or unwillingness of medical investigas to follow our clinical protocols.

In addition, we, the FDA, or other regulgtauthorities and ethics committees with jurisdictover our studies may suspend our clinical
trials at any time if it appears that we are expggarticipants to unacceptable health risks trafFDA or other authorities find deficiencies in
our regulatory submissions or the conduct of thiaks. Therefore, we cannot predict with any datiathe schedule for existing or future
clinical trials.

The results of our clinical trials may not suppodur product candidate claims.

Even if our clinical trials are completezidanned, we cannot be certain that the resultswpport our product candidate claims. Succes
in preclinical testing and early clinical trialsetonot ensure that later clinical trials will besgssful, and we cannot be sure that the results o
later clinical trials will replicate the results pfior clinical trials and preclinical testing. Fexample, our Phase 3 study of BA058-SC for
fracture prevention may not replicate the posigffecacy results for BMD from
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our Phase 2 study. The clinical trial process nagiytd demonstrate that our product candidatesaie for humans and effective for indicated
uses. This failure would cause us to abandon auptathindidate and may delay development of otheatymt candidates. Any delay in, or
termination of, our clinical trials will delay tH#ing of our NDAs with the FDA and, ultimately, oability to commercialize our product
candidates and generate product revenues. In@addatir clinical trials to date have involved snpatient populations. Because of the small
sample sizes, the results of these clinical trizgdy not be indicative of future results.

Any product candidate for which we obtain marketimgproval could be subject to restrictions or witlasval from the market and we may
subject to penalties if we fail to comply with relgtory requirements or if we experience unanticiat problems with our products, whe
and if any of them are approved.

Any product candidate for which we obtaiarketing approval, along with the manufacturinggesses, post-approval clinical data,
labeling, advertising and promotional activities $och product, will be subject to continual regmients of and review by the FDA and other
regulatory authorities. These requirements includemissions of safety and other post-marketingmétion and reports, registration and
listing requirements, current good manufacturirgcgices, or cGMP, requirements relating to qualdgtrol, quality assurance and
corresponding maintenance of records and docunreqggirements regarding the distribution of sampdgshysicians and recordkeeping. E
if we obtain marketing approval of a product caadid the approval may be subject to limitationghenindicated uses for which the product
may be marketed or to the conditions of approvatomtain requirements for costly post-marketirgjitey and surveillance to monitor the
safety or efficacy of the product. The FDA closedgulates the post-approval marketing and promaifadrugs to ensure drugs are marketed
only for the approved indications and in accordanitk the provisions of the approved labeling. Fi2A imposes stringent restrictions on
manufacturers' communications regarding off-lalsel and, if we do not market our products for thpjproved indications, we may be subject
to enforcement action for off-label marketing.

In addition, later discovery of previousigknown problems with our products, manufacturenfianufacturing processes, or failure to
comply with regulatory requirements, may yield eas results, including:

. restrictions on such products, manufacturera@nufacturing processes;

. restrictions on the labeling or marketing of a protl

. restrictions on product distribution or use;

. requirements to conduct post-marketing clinicalls:i

. warning or untitled letters;

. withdrawal of the products from the market;

. refusal to approve pending applications or suppigmt approved applications that we submit;
. voluntary or mandatory recall of products and edgbublicity requirements;
. fines, restitution or disgorgement of profitsrevenue;

. suspension or withdrawal of marketing approvals;

. refusal to permit the import or export of ouogucts;

. product seizure; or

. injunctions or the imposition of civil or crimah penalties.
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Physicians and patients may not accept and use duugs.

Even if the FDA approves one or more of purduct candidates, physicians and patients magetept and use them. Acceptance ant
of any of our products will depend upon a numbefiaofors including:

. perceptions by members of the healthcare communitjyding physicians, about the safety and effectess of our drug;
. cost-effectiveness of our product relative to cotimgeproducts;

. availability of coverage and reimbursement for product from government or other healthcare paysns;

. effectiveness of marketing and distribution effdaysus and our licensees and distributors, if any.

Because we expect sales of our currentymtathndidates, if approved, to generate substiyrdihof our product revenues for the
foreseeable future, the failure of these drugsaia gharket acceptance would harm our business anttwequire us to seek additional
financing.

We may expend our limited resources to pursue atjgatar product candidate or indication and fail toapitalize on product candidates or
indications that may be more profitable or for whidhere is a greater likelihood of success.

Because we have limited financial and managresources, we focus on research programpmamtlict candidates that we identify for
specific indications. As a result, we may foregalelay pursuit of opportunities with other prodaahdidates or for other indications that later
prove to have greater commercial potential. Oupuese allocation decisions may cause us to fatbfutalize on viable commercial products
profitable market opportunities. Our spending orrent and future research and development progesntiproduct candidates for specific
indications may not yield any commercially viablegucts. If we do not accurately evaluate the consiakpotential or target market for a
particular product candidate, we may relinquishughle rights to that product candidate throughatmltation, licensing or other royalty
arrangements in cases in which it would have beem mdvantageous for us to retain sole developarhtommercialization rights to such
product candidate.

If serious adverse or inappropriate side effect®adentified during the development of our produzndidates, we may need to abandon
development of some of our product candidates.

All of our product candidates are stillgreclinical or clinical development. It is impodsilto predict when or if any of our product
candidates will prove effective or safe in humanwitl receive regulatory approval, if ever. If oproduct candidates result in undesirable side
effects or have characteristics that are unexpeateanay need to abandon their development.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on Third Parties
Our drug development program depends upon third{yaresearchers, investigators and collaborators wdre outside our control.

We depend upon independent researcheestigators and collaborators, such as Nordic, taact our preclinical and clinical trials
under agreements with us. These third partiesatreur employees and we cannot control the amaoutitning of resources that they devote to
our programs. These third parties may not assigyree a priority to our programs or pursue therdiégently as we would if we were
undertaking such programs ourselves. If outsidialootators fail to devote sufficient time and reses to our drug-development programs, or
if their performance is
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substandard, the approval of our FDA applicatidfremy, and our introduction of new drugs, if amyjll be delayed. These collaborators may
also have relationships with other commercial ggjtsome of whom may compete with us. If our dafators assist competitors at our
expense, our competitive position would be harmed.

If a regulatory or governmental authority determisehat a financial interest in the outcome of théhBse 3 study of BAO:-SC by any of the
entities managing our Phase 3 study affected thiateility of the data from the Phase 3 study, oubitity to use the data for our planned
regulatory submissions could be compromised, whictuld harm our business and the value of our commstock.

The Phase 3 study of BA058-SC is being maddy Nordic at certain clinical sites operatedd@BR, a leading global CRO with
extensive experience in global osteoporosis regietr studies. Nordic controls, and holds an owmiprsiterest in, the local CCBR clinical
sites. The clinical trial investigators are empley®f CCBR and may also hold an equity interesiténlocal CCBR clinical trials.

In consideration of Nordic's managemerthaf Phase 3 study, we agreed to make variousgaghents to Nordic denominated in both
euros and U.S. dollars over the course of the PBiasedy equal to a total of up to approximatel§ . 24million ($54.3 million) and a total of up
to approximately $3.2 million. We also agreed tib sieares of capital stock to Nordic that were exaed in the Merger for 6,443 shares of ou
series A-5 preferred stock for proceeds of appraxéty $0.5 million. These shares of our series préferred stock will automatically convert
into 64,430 shares of our common stock upon thiadjof our common stock on a national securitieshange. Pursuant to the terms of our
agreements with Nordic, we will also issue to Norshares of stock with an aggregate value of {3608 million ($48.5 million). These sha
of stock accrue at a quarterly rate based on thgress of the Phase 3 clinical study and are i$sw@dla price per share equal to the greater of
$8.142 or the 20-day average of the closing pricio common stock at any time after our commoulsis publicly traded. The fair market
value of our common stock may be subject to widetflations in response to various factors, manyleth are beyond our control, including
any negative outcome of the Phase 3 study. Accghdithe shares of stock that we will issue to Nord consideration of Nordic's
management of the Phase 3 study may be less tadulitivalue contemplated under our agreements Midfdic. As a result, the total
consideration that Nordic will receive in cash atatck may be viewed to be below the market prigé pg other companies for comparable
clinical trial services.

Because of the potential decrease in theevaf the common stock issuable to Nordic uporgative outcome of the Phase 3 study,
Nordic, CCBR and the clinical trial investigatorayrbe viewed as having a financial interest indiecome of the study. We have obtail
written acknowledgments from the clinical trial @stigators certifying that they have no finanamérest in the outcome of the Phase 3 study.
However, if the FDA, the EMA or any other simil@gulatory or governmental authority determines Maidic, CCBR or the clinical trial
investigators have a financial interest that afiddhe reliability of the data from the Phase 8igtuve could be subject to additional regulatory
scrutiny and the utility of the Phase 3 data faippses of our planned regulatory submissions cbeldompromised, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business and theexafl our common stock.
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We will rely exclusively on third parties to formate and manufacture our product candidates.

We have no experience in drug formulatiomanufacturing and do not intend to establishawan manufacturing facilities. We lack the
resources and expertise to formulate or manufactur@wn product candidates. We have entered mreenents with contract manufacturers
to manufacture BA058 for use in clinical trial adtiies. These contract manufacturers are currenthyonly source for the production and
formulation of BA058. We may not have sufficiennatal supplies of BA058 to complete the Phasauig8ysfor BA058-SC and the Phase 2
study of BAO58-TD but believe that our contract m@cturers will be able to produce sufficient syppli BA058 to complete all of the
planned BAO58 clinical studies. If our contract méatturers are unable to produce, in a timely mgragequate clinical supplies to meet the
needs of our clinical studies, we would be requiteseek new contract manufacturers that may reaisrto modify our finished product
formulation and modify or terminate our clinicaligtes for BA058. Any modification of our finishedqaluct or modification or termination of
our Phase 3 clinical study could adversely affectability to obtain necessary regulatory approwald significantly delay or prevent the
commercial launch of the product, which would mialgr harm our business and impair our ability &ise capital.

We depend on a number of single sourceraonimanufacturers to supply key components of BBAG®r example, we depend on Lonza
Group Ltd., or Lonza, which produces supplies dklalnug product of BA058 to support BA058-SC and®A8-TD clinical studies and
potential commercial launch. We also depend onnigsel its subcontractor Vetter Pharma Fertigung B&lCo, or Vetter, for the production
of finished supplies of BA0O58-SC and we depend MInf@& the production of BAO58-D. Because of our dependence on Vetter for thleatil
finish" part of the manufacturing process for BABGS8, we are subject to the risk that Vetter mayhasie the capacity from time to time to
produce sufficient quantities of BAO58 to meet tleeds of our clinical studies or be able to saaleotmmercial production of BA058. Because
the manufacturing process for BA058-TD requiresube of 3M's proprietary technology, 3M is our ssberce for finished supplies of BA058-
TD.

While we are currently in discussions, &bed neither we nor our collaborators have enteteda long-term agreement with Lonza or
Vetter, each of whom currently produce BA058 oatedl components on a purchase order basis foragardingly, Lonza and Vetter could
terminate their relationship with us at any timel &or any reason. We may not be able to negotiatg-term agreements on acceptable terms,
or at all. If our relationship with any of thesent@ct manufacturers is terminated, or if theywarable to produce BA0O58 or related compon
in required quantities, on a timely basis or atallif we are forced to accept unfavorable terarsolur future relationship, our business and
financial condition would be materially harmedaly of our current product candidates or any prbdacdidates we may develop or acquir
the future receive FDA approval, we will rely oneoor more third-party contractors to manufacturedsugs or related components. Our
anticipated future reliance on a limited numbethirfd-party manufacturers exposes us to the folhgwisks:

. We may be unable to identify manufacturers on aetd@ terms, or at all, because the number of piatenanufacturers is
limited and the FDA must approve any replacementregtor. This approval would require new testing aompliance
inspections. In addition, a new manufacturer wddde to be educated in, or develop substantiallyvatent processes for,
production of our products after receipt of FDA apgl, if any.

. Our third-party manufacturers might be unable torfi@late and manufacture our drugs or related compisrin the volume and
of the quality required to meet our clinical neadsl commercial needs, if any.

. Our future contract manufacturers may not penfas agreed or may not remain in the contract naatwiiing business for the
time required to supply our clinical trials or tacsessfully produce, store and distribute our pctglu
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. Drug manufacturers are subject to ongoing periadannounced inspection by the FDA, the Drug Enfoiea Administration,
and corresponding state agencies to ensure stnigpliance with cGMP, and other government regutestiand corresponding
foreign standards. We do not have control ovedtparty manufacturers' compliance with these ragula and standards.

. If any third-party manufacturer makes improvemsan the manufacturing process for our productsyway not own, or may
have to share, the intellectual property righthinnovation.

Each of these risks could delay our clihidals, the approval, if any, of our product cadates by the FDA or the commercialization of
our product candidates or result in higher costdeprive us of potential product revenues.

If we are not able to establish additional collakairons, we may have to alter our development ple

Our product development programs and thergial commercialization of our product candidatéls require substantial additional cast
fund expenses. For some of our product candida®snay decide to collaborate with pharmaceuticdllgintechnology companies for the
development and potential commercialization of ¢hpoduct candidates.

We face significant competition in seekapgpropriate collaborators. Collaborations are cexmphd time-consuming to negotiate and
document. We may also be restricted under existiligboration agreements from entering into agregmen certain terms with other
potential collaborators. We may not be able to tiagocollaborations on acceptable terms, or atfdthat were to occur, we may have to
curtail the development of a particular productdidate, reduce or delay its development programneror more of our other development
programs, delay its potential commercializatiomemtuce the scope of our sales or marketing a&s;itir increase our expenditures and
undertake development or commercialization acégifit our own expense. If we elect to increasexpenditures to fund development or
commercialization activities on our own, we maydhé&e obtain additional capital, which may not baitable to us on acceptable terms or at
all. If we do not have sufficient funds, we willtnze able to bring our product candidates to maaketgenerate product revenue.

Risks Relating to Marketing and Sale of Our Producs
We have no experience selling, marketing or distriing products and no internal capability to do so.

We currently have no sales, marketing stritiution capabilities. We do not anticipate havihe resources in the foreseeable future to
allocate to the sales and marketing of our propgseducts. Our future success depends, in pauorbility to enter into and maintain
collaborative relationships for such capabilitigs® collaborators' strategic interest in the présluader development and such collaborators'
ability to successfully market and sell any suabdpicts. We intend to pursue collaborative arrangesnegarding the sales and marketing of
our products. However, there can be no assuraatevihwill be able to establish or maintain sucletorative arrangements, or if we are able
to do so, that our collaborators will have effeetaales forces. To the extent that we decide natrtare unable to, enter into collaborative
arrangements with respect to the sales and magketiaur proposed products, significant capitalenditures, management resources and tim
will be required to establish and develop an indemarketing and sales force with technical exgerfihere can also be no assurance that w
will be able to establish or maintain relationshigth third-party collaborators or develop in-howssdes and distribution capabilities. To the
extent that we depend on third parties for marketind distribution, any revenues we receive witieted upon the efforts of such third parties,
and there can be no assurance that such effottbevdiuccessful. In addition, there can also basswurance that we will be able to market and
sell our products in the United States or overseas.
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If we cannot compete successfully for market shagainst other drug companies, we may not achievfisient product revenues and ot
business will suffer.

The market for our product candidates mrabterized by intense competition and rapid teldyical advances. If any of our product
candidates receives FDA approval, it will competdna number of existing and future drugs and thieadeveloped, manufactured and
marketed by others. If we fail to develop BA058-Tddy commercial opportunity for BA058 will be lireidl. Existing or future competing
products may provide greater therapeutic converienclinical or other benefits for a specific ioaiion than our products, or may offer
comparable performance at a lower cost. If our petalfail to capture and maintain market sharemag not achieve sufficient product
revenues and our business will suffer.

We will compete against fully integratedapimaceutical companies and smaller companies tbatodlaborating with larger
pharmaceutical companies, academic institutiongeigonent agencies and other public and privatearebeorganizations. Many of these
competitors have compounds already approved ogweldpment. In addition, many of these competiteither alone or together with their
collaborative partners, operate larger researctdamdlopment programs or have substantially grdat@ncial resources than we do, as well a
significantly greater experience in:

. developing drugs;

. undertaking preclinical testing and human clinicalls;
. obtaining FDA and other regulatory approvals ofgdru
. formulating and manufacturing drugs; and

. launching, marketing and selling drugs.

Developments by competitors may render our productsechnologies obsolete or n-competitive.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical imisiare intensely competitive and subject to rapid significant technological change. Some
of the drugs that we are attempting to developh .cBA058, RAD1901 and RAD140 will have to compeiil existing therapies. In additic
a large number of companies are pursuing the deredat of pharmaceuticals that target the same sisesnd conditions that we are targeting
We face competition from pharmaceutical and biatedbgy companies in the United States and abreeaddition, companies pursuing
different but related fields represent substamtahpetition. Many of these organizations competitity us have substantially greater capital
resources, larger research and development stafffaailities, longer drug development history itaining regulatory approvals and greater
manufacturing and marketing capabilities than weTd@se organizations also compete with us tocttpaalified personnel and parties for
acquisitions, joint ventures or other collaborasioand therefore, we may not be able to hire ainagualified personnel to run all facets of our
business.

Our ability to generate product revenues will berdhished if our drugs sell for inadequate prices patients are unable to obtain adequate
levels of reimbursement.

Our ability to commercialize our drugs,reoor with collaborators, will depend in part oe #xtent to which coverage and reimbursemer
will be available from:

. government and health administration authorities;
. private health maintenance organizations and héegwtirers; and
. other healthcare payers.
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Significant uncertainty exists as to thientfursement status of newly approved healthcardymts. Healthcare payers, including Medic
are challenging the prices charged for medical petsland services. Government and other healtlpegters increasingly attempt to contain
healthcare costs by limiting both coverage andefiel of reimbursement for drugs. Even if one of product candidates is approved by the
FDA, insurance coverage may not be available, emdoursement levels may be inadequate, to covér dwug. If government and other
healthcare payers do not provide adequate coveragdjeecimbursement levels for one of our producticiaies, once approved, market
acceptance of such product could be reduced.

We may incur substantial liabilities and may be tgcpd to limit commercialization of our products iresponse to product liability lawsuits.

The testing and marketing of medical prasi@ntail an inherent risk of product liability.We cannot successfully defend ourselves ag
product liability claims, we may incur substantiabilities or be required to limit commercializati of our products. Our inability to obtain
sufficient product liability insurance at an ac@dpé cost to protect against potential producilligklaims could prevent or inhibit the
commercialization of pharmaceutical products weetl®y, alone or with collaborators.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

If we fail to comply with our obligations in our itellectual property licenses with third parties, weuld lose license rights that are importe
to our business.

We are a party to a number of intellecpralperty license agreements with third partiesexybct to enter into additional license
agreements in the future. Our existing licenseemgents impose, and we expect that any future lecagseements will impose, various
diligence, milestone payment, royalty, insurance aimer obligations on us. If we fail to comply wihese obligations, our licensors may have
the right to terminate these agreements, in whieimewe might not be able to develop and marketpaoguct that is covered by these
agreements. Termination of these licenses or reduot elimination of our licensed rights may résalour having to negotiate new or
reinstated licenses with less favorable terms.ddwairrence of such events could materially harmboiginess.

If our efforts to protect our intellectual propertyelated to BA058, RAD1901 and/or RAD140 fail toexjliately protect these assets, we
suffer the loss of the ability to license or suce@dly commercialize one or more of these candida

Our commercial success is significantlyategent on intellectual property related to our paigortfolio. We are either the licensee or
assignee of numerous issued and pending patentafiqs that cover various aspects of our assetsiding BA058, RAD1901 and RAD14

Patents covering BA058 as a compositiomafter have been issued in the United States (WhPido. 5,969,095), Europe and several
additional countries. Because the BA058 compositiomatter patent was filed in 1996, it is expedetiave a normal expiration in
approximately 2016 in the United States (this diates not include the possibility of Hatch-Waxmatepaterm extension which could extend
the expiration in the United States into the fiqgarter of 2021 if an application for extensiomiade and the maximum extension is granted b
the USPTO) and additional countries where it haisad.

We and Ipsen are also co-assignees to tEitdo. 7,803,770 that we believe provides exeltysuntil 2028 in the United States (absent
any Hatch-Waxman patent term extensions) for théhoakof treating osteoporosis with the intendedépeutic dose for BA058-SC.
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We and Ipsen are also co-assignees to tehido. 8,148,333 that we believe provides exeltysuntil 2027 in the United States (absent
any Hatch-Waxman patent term extensions) for ttengted therapeutic formulation for BA058-SC.

We and 3M are co-assignees to an intemaltjpatent application and a corresponding U.Srapplication filed in 2012 which cover
various aspects of BA058 for microneedle applicatidny issued claims resulting from these applarsiwill expire no earlier than 2032.
However, pending patent applications in the Unf¢ates and elsewhere may not issue since theiietation of the legal requirements of
patentability in view of claimed inventions are abways predictable. Additional intellectual projyecovering BA058-TD technology exists in
the form of proprietary information contained bgde secrets. These can be accidentally disclos@upendently derived by or
misappropriated by competitors, possibly reducingliminating the exclusivity advantages of thisnficof intellectual property, thereby
allowing those competitors more rapid entry inte tharketplace with a competitive product thus ré@dyour marketing advantage of BA058-
TD. In addition, trade secrets may in some instatezome publicly available required disclosureggulatory files. Alternatively,
competitors may sometimes reverse engineer a prodge it becomes available on the market. Everrevaeompetitor does not use an
identical technology for the delivery of BAO58jstpossible that they could achieve an equivaleetven superior result using another
technology. Such occurrences could lead to eitheray more alternative competitor products ava@ais the market and/or one or more
generic competitor products on the market with mesponding decrease in market share and/or pid®@A058-TD.

Patents covering RAD1901 as a compositfanatter have been issued in the United Statesadzand Australia and are pending in
Europe and India. The RAD1901composition of mgtegent in the United States expires in 2026 (nduiing any Hatch-Waxman
extension). Additional patent applications relatingnethods of treating vasomotor symptoms andocelirdosage strengths using RAD1901
have been filed. Pending patent applications irlLthited States and elsewhere may not issue sieciatitrpretation of the legal requirement
patentability in view of any claimed invention beddhat patent office are not always predictableaAesult, we could encounter challenges o
difficulties in building, maintaining and/or defeind our intellectual property both in the Unitecis and abroad.

Patent applications covering RAD140 ancgo®ARM compounds that are part of the SARM poidgfbhve been granted in the United
States, Mexico and Australia, and are pendingénUhited States and elsewhere. The RAD140 compasgiti matter case expires in 2029 in
the United States (this does not include the pdigibf any Hatch-Waxman extension) and additiocalintries if and when it issues. Since
patents are both highly technical and legal docusnémat are frequently subject to intense litigaiwessure, there is risk that even if one or
more RAD140 patents does issue and is asserteththpatent(s) will be found invalid, unenforceadhal/or not infringed when subject to said
litigation. Finally, the intellectual property lavesd practices can vary considerably from one aguntanother and also can change with time
As a result, we could encounter challenges ordiliffies in building, maintaining and defending auellectual property both in the United
States and abroad.

We may become party to, or threatened itfure adversarial proceedings or litigation reliyag intellectual property rights with respect
to patents issued or licensed to us, includingfiatence proceedings before the USPTO. Third martiay assert infringement claims against
us. If we are found to infringe a third party'seiitéctual property rights, we could be requiresdibtain a license from such third party to
continue developing and marketing our productstantnology. However, we may not be able to obtainrequired license on commercially
reasonable terms or at all. Even if we were ablagbtain a license, it could be non-exclusive, thgrgiving our competitors access to the same
technologies licensed to us. We could be forceduding by court order, to cease commercializirgitifringing technology or product. In
addition, we could be found liable for
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monetary damages. A finding of infringement coulévent us from commercializing our product candédair force us to cease some of our
business operations, which could materially harmbusiness. Claims that we have misappropriatedahédential information or trade
secrets of third parties could have a similar nggampact on our business.

If we are unable to obtain and maintain patent peattion for our technology and products, or if ouicensors are unable to obtain ar
maintain patent protection for the technology orquaiucts that we license from them, our competitomild develop and commercialize
technology and products similar or identical to aarand our ability to successfully commercializerdachnology and products may be
adversely affected.

Our success depends in large part on alipanlicensors' ability to obtain and maintaingetprotection in the United States and other
countries with respect to our proprietary technglagd products. In some circumstances, we may an# the right to control the preparation,
filing and prosecution of patent applications,@ntaintain the patents, covering technology or petsithat we license from third parties.
Therefore, we cannot be certain that these patent@pplications will be prosecuted and enforcealimanner consistent with the best interest
of our business. In addition, if third parties wili@nse patents to us fail to maintain such patemtbose rights to those patents, the rights we
have licensed may be reduced or eliminated.

The patent position of biotechnology andrpiaceutical companies generally is highly uncertavolves complex legal and factual
guestions and has in recent years been the sutfjpuich litigation. As a result, the issuance, s;oglidity, enforceability and commercial
value of our and our licensors' patent rights dgéliz uncertain. Our and our licensors' pending futdre patent applications may not result in
patents being issued which protect our technolagyr@ducts or which effectively prevent others froommercializing competitive
technologies and products. Changes in either ttenpkaws or interpretation of the patent lawshie United States and other countries may
diminish the value of our patents or narrow thepgcof our patent protection. The laws of foreignroies may not protect our rights to the
same extent as the laws of the United States. ¢ainins of discoveries in the scientific literatofeen lag behind the actual discoveries, and
patent applications in the United States and gthesdictions are typically not published until &®nths after filing, or in some cases not at all
Therefore, we cannot be certain that we or ounioes were the first to make the inventions claiineour owned and licensed patents or
pending patent applications, or that we or oumsms were the first to file for patent protectafrsuch inventions. Assuming the other
requirements for patentability are met, in the BdiStates, the first to make the claimed invensamtitled to the patent, while outside the
United States, the first to file a patent applioatis entitled to the patent. We may become inwineopposition or interference proceedings
challenging our patent rights or the patent rigtftsthers. An adverse determination in any suclegeding could reduce the scope of, or
invalidate, our patent rights, allow third parttescommercialize our technology or products and pet@ directly with us, without payment to
us, or result in our inability to manufacture onouercialize products without infringing third-paggatent rights.

Even if our owned and licensed patent apgibbns issue as patents, they may not issuedmathat will provide us with any meaningful
protection, prevent competitors from competing withor otherwise provide us with any competitiveaadage. Our competitors may be abl
circumvent our owned or licensed patents by dewetppimilar or alternative technologies or produnts noninfringing manner. The issuan
of a patent is not conclusive as to its scopeditglor enforceability, and our owned and licenpatents may be challenged in the courts or
patent offices in the United States and abroadh $hallenges may result in patent claims beingoweed, invalidated or held unenforceable,
which could limit our ability to stop or prevent frem stopping others from using or commercializemgilar or identical technology and
products, or limit the duration of the patent potiten of our technology and products. Given the amof time required for the development,
testing and regulatory review of new product caathid, patents protecting such
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candidates might expire before or shortly aftehstendidates are commercialized. As a result, sured and licensed patent portfolio may no
provide us with sufficient rights to exclude othéem commercializing products similar or identitalours.

Payments, fees, submissions and various additiaegjuirements must be met in order for pending patapplications to advance i
prosecution and issued patents to be maintainedydRous compliance with these requirements is esggid procurement and maintenanc
of patents integral to the product portfolio.

Periodic maintenance fees, renewal feagjignfees and various other governmental feesatants and/or patent applications will come
due for payment periodically throughout the lifeleyof patent applications and issued patents. deraio help ensure that we comply with any
required fee payment, documentary and/or procedecalirements as they might relate to any patemte/fiich we are an assignee or co-
assignee, we employ competent legal help and cefatefessionals as needed to comply with thoseirements. Our outside patent counsel
uses Computer Packages, Inc. for patent annuitynpais. Failure to meet a required fee payment,deati production or procedural
requirement can result in the abandonment of aipgnmhtent application or the lapse of an issuddntaln some instances the defect can be
cured through late compliance but there are sanativhere the failure to meet the required evemh@gbe cured. Such an occurrence could
compromise the intellectual property protectionuaeha preclinical or clinical candidate and possikéaken or eliminate our ability to protect
our eventual market share for that product.

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality olur trade secrets, our business and competitiveitpms would be harmed

In addition to our patented technology pratlucts, we rely on trade secrets, including usted know-how, technology and other
proprietary information, to maintain our compet#iposition. We seek to protect these trade sedéngsyrt, by entering into non-disclosure and
confidentiality agreements with parties that haveeas to them, such as our employees, corpordébontors, outside scientific collaborators,
sponsored researchers, contract manufacturergjltams, advisors and other third parties. We alger into confidentiality and invention or
patent assignment agreements with our employeesarsliltants. In addition, any of these parties braach the agreements and disclose ou
proprietary information, and we may not be ablelitain adequate remedies for such breaches. Engpactclaim that a party illegally disclos
or misappropriated a trade secret is difficult,engve and time-consuming, and the outcome is dligiedble. In addition, some courts inside
and outside the United States are less willingnovilling to protect trade secrets. If any of owade secrets were to be lawfully obtained or
independently developed by a competitor, we woahgeno right to prevent them from using that tedbgy or information to compete with
us. If any of our trade secrets were to be disdaser independently developed by a competitor,comnpetitive position would be harmed.

If we infringe the rights of third parties, we codlbe prevented from selling products and could becéd to pay damages and defend agal
litigation.

If our products, methods, processes anerdédthnologies infringe the proprietary rightotfer parties, we could incur substantial costs
and may have to:

. obtain licenses, which may not be available ammercially reasonable terms, if at all;
. abandon an infringing drug candidate;

. redesign our products or processes to avoid irgrment;

. stop using the subject matter claimed in the patkald by others;

. pay damages; or
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. defend litigation or administrative proceedings ethimay be costly whether we win or lose and whimhlat result in a
substantial diversion of our financial and managetnesources.

We may become involved in lawsuits to protect ofoece our patents, which could be expensive, tinnmsuming and unsuccessful.

Competitors may infringe our patents. Targer infringement or unauthorized use, we mayeogiired to file infringement claims, which
can be expensive and time consuming. In additioaniinfringement proceeding, a court may decidé dlpatent of ours is invalid or
unenforceable, or may refuse to stop the othey fiianin using the technology at issue on the grouhdsour patents do not cover the
technology in question. An adverse result in atigdiion proceeding could put one or more of ouepts at risk of being invalidated or
interpreted narrowly. Furthermore, because of thstantial amount of discovery required in conroectvith intellectual property litigation,
there is a risk that some of our confidential infation could be compromised by disclosure during)tifpe of litigation. In addition, our
licensors may have rights to file and prosecuté slaims and we may be reliant on them to do so.

We may be subject to claims that our employees harengfully used or disclosed alleged trade seciftsheir former employers.

Some of our employees were previously eggalaat universities or other biotechnology or pteceutical companies, including our
competitors or potential competitors. Although wetb ensure that our employees do not use therigtapy information or know-how of
others in their work for us, we may be subjectl&énes that we or these employees have used oiodesttlintellectual property, including trade
secrets or other proprietary information, of angtrsemployee's former employer. Litigation may beeassary to defend against these claims. |
we fail in defending any such claims, in additiorphying monetary damages, we may lose valual##idntual property rights or personnel.
Even if we are successful in defending against slaims, litigation could result in substantial toand be a distraction to management.

Intellectual property litigation could cause us &pend substantial resources and distract our penseinfrom their normal responsibilities

Even if resolved in our favor, litigation ather legal proceedings relating to intellectoraperty claims may cause us to incur significant
expenses, and could distract our technical and geanant personnel from their normal responsibilitirsaddition, there could be public
announcements of the results of hearings, motiowsh@r interim proceedings or developments, ais@durities analysts or investors perceive
these results to be negative, it could have a anhat adverse effect on the price of our commonlstSuch litigation or proceedings could
substantially increase our operating losses angceedur resources available for development aigsvitVe may not have sufficient financial
other resources to adequately conduct such litigair proceedings. Some of our competitors maybteta sustain the costs of such litigation
or proceedings more effectively than we can becafiffeeir substantially greater financial resourdgéiscertainties resulting from the initiation
and continuation of patent litigation or other predings could have a material adverse effect omloility to compete in the marketplace.

Risks Related to Legislation and Administrative Acions
Healthcare reform may have a material adverse effen our industry and our results of operation

From time to time, legislation is implemedto reign in rising healthcare expenditures. brdh 2010, President Obama signed into law
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Actam&nded by the Health Care and Education RecammiliAct, or PPACA. PPACA includes
a number of provisions
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affecting the pharmaceutical industry, includingiaal, non-deductible fees on any entity that marctufas or imports certain branded
prescription drugs and biologics, beginning in 20drid increases in Medicaid rebates owed by maturfxs under the Medicaid Drug Rebate
Program. In addition, among other things, PPACA aistablishes a new Patient-Centered Outcomes iRbhdaatitute to oversee, identify
priorities in and conduct comparative clinical effeeness research. Congress has proposed a nofribgislative initiatives to alter PPACA,
including possible repeal of PPACA. At this timesemains unclear whether there will be any chamgade to certain provisions of PPACA or
its entirety. In addition, other legislative chaadmve been proposed and adopted since PPACA watdnMost recently, on August 2, 2011,
President Obama signed into law the Budget Coattobf 2011, which may result in such changes agegate reductions to Medicare
payments to providers of up to two percent perfigear, starting in 2013. The full impact on ousiness of PPACA and the Budget Control
Act is uncertain. We cannot predict whether otkegidlative changes will be adopted, if any, or lsueh changes would affect the
pharmaceutical industry generally.

We are subject to healthcare laws, regulation anda@cement, and our failure to comply with thoseva could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financiabaditions.

We are subject to several healthcare réignkand enforcement by the federal governmentlamdtates and foreign governments in
which we conduct our business. The laws that mésctbur ability to operate include:

. the federal Health Insurance Portability and dwatability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, as amended bg tHealth Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,ielhgoverns the conduct of certain electronic lnealte transactions and
protects the security and privacy of protectedthdaformation;

. the federal healthcare programs' Anti-Kickback @&&twhich prohibits, among other things, perseomfknowingly and
willfully soliciting, receiving, offering or payingemuneration, directly or indirectly, in excharfgeor to induce either the
referral of an individual for, or the purchase,@rdr recommendation of, any good or service foictvpayment may be made
under federal healthcare programs such as the lsiedésnd Medicaid programs;

. the federal transparency requirements under PPAMGh require manufacturers of drugs, devices dgials and medical
supplies to report to the Department of Healthldachan Services information related to physiciannpagts and other transfers
of value and physician ownership and investmemer@sts;

. federal false claims laws, which prohibit, amather things, individuals or entities from knowingresenting, or causing to be
presented, claims for payment from Medicare, Mddijoar other third-party payors that are falserautiulent;

. federal criminal laws that prohibit executing@heme to defraud any healthcare benefit programasing false statements
relating to healthcare matters; and

. state law equivalents of each of the above fedawa, such as anti-kickback and false claims lalwkkvmay apply to items or
services reimbursed by any third-party payor, iditlg commercial insurers.

If our operations are found to be in vimatof any of the laws described above or any offoeernmental regulations that apply to us, we
may be subject to penalties, including civil annénal penalties, damages, fines, the curtailmemestructuring of our operations, the
exclusion from participation in federal and stagalthcare programs and imprisonment, any of whigliccadversely affect our ability to
operate our business and our financial results.
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We may be exposed to liability claims associatethwie use of hazardous materials and chemicals.

Our research and development activities megive the controlled use of hazardous matedal$ chemicals. Although we believe that
safety procedures for using, storing, handling @isgosing of these materials comply with federatesand local laws and regulations, we
cannot completely eliminate the risk of accidemgalry or contamination from these materials. la #vent of such an accident, we could be
held liable for any resulting damages and any litgltould materially adversely affect our businefasancial condition and results of
operations. In addition, the federal, state andllaws and regulations governing the use, manufacstorage, handling and disposal of
hazardous or radioactive materials and waste ptednay require us to incur substantial compliarasiscthat could materially adversely aff
our business, financial condition and results aragions.

Risks Related to Employee Matters and Managing Grotin
We may not successfully manage our growth.

Our success will depend upon the expansi@ur operations and the effective managementuofyoowth, which will place a significant
strain on our management and on administrativeratipaal and financial resources. To manage thosvtr, we may be required to expand our
facilities, augment our operational, financial andnagement systems and hire and train additioradifiga personnel. If we are unable to
manage this growth effectively, our business wdngddharmed.

We may enter into or seek to enter into businesmbmations and acquisitions which may be difficutt integrate, disrupt our business,
divert management attention or dilute stockholdexlwe.

We may enter into business combinationsaauglisitions. We have limited experience in maldanguisitions, which are typically
accompanied by a number of risks, including:

the difficulty of integrating the operations andgmnel of the acquired companies;

. the potential disruption of our ongoing business distraction of management;

. potential unknown liabilities and expenses;

. the failure to achieve the expected benefits otthrabination or acquisition;

. the maintenance of acceptable standards, conprmisedures and policies; and

. the impairment of relationships with employees assailt of any integration of new management ahérgpersonnel.

If we are not successful in completing asigjons that we may pursue in the future, we wdwddrequired to reevaluate our business
strategy and we may have incurred substantial esqgeand devoted significant management time andiress in seeking to complete the
acquisitions. In addition, we could use substamttations of our available cash as all or a portibthe purchase price, or we could issue
additional securities as consideration for thegpimitions, which could cause our stockholderauites significant dilution.

We rely on key executive officers and scientificcamedical advisors, and their knowledge of our messs and technical expertise would be
difficult to replace.

We are highly dependent on our chief exeeudfficer and our principal scientific, regulayaand medical advisors. We do not have "key
person” life insurance policies for any of our oéfis. The loss of the technical knowledge and mamagt and industry expertise of any of our
key personnel could result in delays in productedigement, loss of customers and sales and diveddioranagement resources, which could
adversely affect our operating results.
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If we are unable to hire additional qualified persoel, our ability to grow our business may be hard

We will need to hire additional qualifiedrgonnel with expertise in preclinical testingnidal research and testing, government regule
formulation and manufacturing and sales and margetVe compete for qualified individuals with nummes biopharmaceutical companies,
universities and other research institutions. Cditipe for such individuals is intense, and we aainpe certain that our search for such
personnel will be successful. Attracting and retajrqualified personnel will be critical to our sess.

Risks Relating to Our Securities

We have a history of operating losses, expect tuirsignificant and increasing operating losses tine future, and may never be consister
profitable.

We have a limited operating history for ytotevaluate our business. We have no approvediptednd have generated no product
revenue from sales. We have primarily incurred afpeg losses. As of December 31, 2012, we had eumaalated deficit of $200.7 million.
We have spent, and expect to continue to spenuifisent resources to fund the research and dewedop of BA0O58-SC, BA058-RD and our
other drug candidates. We need to raise capitakidiately in order to continue operating our bussn®ghile we may have net income in fut
periods as the result of non-recurring collaboratievenue, we expect to incur substantial operatisges over the next several years as our
clinical trial and drug manufacturing activitiexiease. As a result, we expect that our accumuthaédit will also increase significantly.

Our drug candidates are in varying stadgsexlinical and clinical development and may ndwe approved for sale or generate any
revenue. We will not be able to generate productmae unless and until one of our drug candidatesessfully completes clinical trials and
receives regulatory approval. Since even our mi&iced drug candidate requires substantial additidinical development, we do not
expect to receive revenue from our drug candidateseveral years, if at all. Even if we eventuagnerate revenues, we may never be
profitable, and if we do achieve profitability, weay not be able to sustain or increase profitahilit a quarterly or annual basis.

There is not now and never has been any marketdar securities and an active market may never depelYou may therefore be unable to
re-sell shares of our securities at times and pdadbat you believe are appropriate.

There is no market—active or otherwidereur common stock or our preferred stock andheeiis eligible for listing or quotation on a
securities exchange, automated quotation systeanyoother over-the-counter market, such as the Biltin Board, or the OTCBB, or the
Pink Sheets. Even if we are successful in obtainproval to have our common stock quoted on th€EH; it is unlikely that an active
market for our common stock will develop any tinoes thereafter. Accordingly, our common stock ghity illiquid. Because of this
illiquidity, you will likely experience difficultyin re-selling such shares at times and pricesythatmay desire.

There is no assurance that our common stock willllsted on a national securities exchange or quotad an automated quotation system.

We plan to seek listing of our common stooka national securities exchange or quotatiomuofcommon stock on the OTCBB, as soc
practicable. However, there is no assurance webailible to meet the initial listing standardsitifer of those or any other stock exchange or
automated quotation systems, or that we will be &bimaintain a listing of our common stock on eitbf those or any other stock exchange o
automated quotation system. An investor may findate difficult to dispose of shares or obtain aateiquotations as to the market value of
our common stock while our common stock is listadtee OTCBB. If our common stock is listed on thEGBB, we would be
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subject to an SEC rule that, if it failed to mdwt triteria set forth in such rule, imposes varipiactice requirements on brolkagalers who se
securities governed by the rule to persons otteer #stablished customers and accredited inve§€orsequently, such rule may deter broker-
dealers from recommending or selling our commonkstavhich may further limit its liquidity. This wdd also make it more difficult for us to
raise additional capital.

Shares of our capital stock issued in the Mergeearot freely tradable under federal securities lawghich will limit stockholders' ability tc
sell such shares of our capital stoc

Shares of our preferred stock and our comstock issued as consideration in the Merger puntstine Merger Agreement are deemed
"Restricted Securities" under the federal secwi@vs, and consequently such shares may not bkl ithout registration under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Seesrict, or without an exemption from the Securifies, such as resales effected in
compliance with Rule 144 promulgated under the Btesl Act. Notwithstanding any such exemption,silares of our stock issued in the
Merger are subject to a lock-up provision set famtthe applicable stockholders' agreements andmoaipe resold prior to the expiration of the
specified lock-up period.

Because we became an operating company by meaaseverse merger, we may not be able to attractdtiention of major brokerags
firms.

Additional risks may exist as a result af becoming a public reporting operating compamgubgh a "reverse merger." Security analysts
of major brokerage firms may not provide coverafjeuw capital stock or business. Because we be@apublic reporting operating company
through a reverse merger, there is no incentil@dkerage firms to recommend the purchase of ommeon stock. No assurance can be given
that brokerage firms will want to provide analysverage of our capital stock or business in theréut

The resale of shares covered by our existing reselgistration statement could adversely affect tharket price of our common stock in the
public market, should one develop, which result vidin turn negatively affect our ability to raiseditional equity capital.

The sale, or availability for sale, of @mammon stock in the public market pursuant to cisting resale registration statement may
adversely affect the prevailing market price of cammon stock and may impair our ability to raiddiional capital by selling equity or
equity-linked securities. Our existing resale regison statement registered the resale of a sagmif number of shares of our common stock.
The resale of a substantial number of shares of@mmon stock in the public market could adversélgct the market price for our common
stock and make it more difficult for you to selbsbs of our common stock at times and prices thatffgel are appropriate. Furthermore, we
expect that, because there are a large numbeatdshegistered pursuant to the registration stterselling stockholders will continue to
offer shares covered by such registration stateffioert significant period of time, the precise dima of which cannot be predicted.
Accordingly, the adverse market and price pressw®dting from an offering pursuant to the registm statement may continue for an
extended period of time and continued negativespireson the market price of our common stock chalke a material adverse effect on our
ability to raise additional equity capital.

We are subject to Sarbanes-Oxley and the reportiaquirements of federal securities laws, which che expensive.

As a public reporting company, we are stitje the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as the infdgiom and reporting requirements of the
Exchange Act and other federal securities laws.cdsts of compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Adt@fipreparing and filing annual and
quarterly reports, proxy statements and other im&gion with the SEC, and furnishing audited reptirts
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stockholders, will cause our expenses to be hitjtear they would be if we were privately held. Wer@veot currently subject to Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, but may be subject to 8eetd4 in the future. Section 404 may require nsaw annual basis, to review and evaluate
our internal controls, and may require our indegeéuditors to attest to the effectiveness ofiati@rnal controls. Any failure by us to
maintain the effectiveness of our internal continlaccordance with the requirements of SectionefGtie Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as such
requirements exist today or may be modified, suppleted or amended in the future, could have a mb#atverse effect on our business,
operating results and stock price.

For so long as shares of our preferred stock remaintstanding, if we are sold in a transaction yi@hlg) less than the liquidation preference
payable in the aggregate to holders of outstandprgferred stock, holders of our common stock mayt neceive any proceeds from su
transaction and may lose their investment entirely.

As of December 31, 2012, we had outstan88%204 shares of common stock; 939,612 sharesrigfs A-1 preferred stock; 983,208
shares of series A-2 preferred stock; 142,227 shafreeries A-3 preferred stock; 3,998 sharesmésé\-4 preferred stock; 6,443 shares of
series A-5 preferred stock; warrants to acquir@ 34 shares of series A-1 preferred stock; and wisita acquire 266 shares of common stock
As more fully described herein and in our Certificaf Incorporation, holders of shares of our prefé stock outstanding at the time of a sale
or liquidation will have a right to receive procsed any, from any such transactions, before aayngents are made to holders of our commor
stock. In the event that there are not enough pax® satisfy the entire liquidation preferencewf preferred stock, holders of our common
stock will receive nothing in respect of their aguioldings.

We will incur increased costs as a result of opéngtas a public company, and our management will tegjuired to devote substantial time
new compliance initiatives.

As a public company that may become liste@ national securities exchange, we will incgngicant legal, accounting and other
expenses that we did not incur as a private compadyprior to any listing of our common stock. tiddion, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and rules
subsequently implemented by the SEC and the natecarities exchanges have imposed various regeinés on public companies, including
establishment and maintenance of effective discéband financial controls and corporate governgmaetices. Our management and other
personnel will need to devote a substantial amotitine to these compliance initiatives. Moreowvhgse rules and regulations will increase
our legal and financial compliance costs and wike some activities more time-consuming and costly.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the SarbanesyOXtt we may be required to furnish a report by management on our internal control over
financial reporting, including an attestation repmr internal control over financial reporting isslby our independent registered public
accounting firm at such time as we no longer qualff a smaller reporting company. To achieve canpg with Section 404 within the
prescribed period, we will be engaged in a protescument and evaluate our internal control divencial reporting, which is both costly
and challenging. In this regard, we will need tatowue to dedicate internal resources, potentetigage outside consultants and adopt a
detailed work plan to assess and document the adgapi internal control over financial reportingntinue steps to improve control processe:s
as appropriate, validate through testing that adsire functioning as documented and implemeohnéiruous reporting and improvement
process for internal control over financial repagti Despite our efforts, there is a risk that rezitlve nor our independent registered public
accounting firm will be able to conclude within theescribed timeframe that our internal controlrdirgancial reporting is effective as requit
by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. This doeabult in an adverse reaction in the financiatk®e® due to a loss of confidence in the
reliability of our financial statements.
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Our directors, executive officers and principal stcholders have substantial control over us and cdulelay or prevent a change in
corporate control.

As of December 31, 2012, our directorscekige officers and holders of more than five patad our common stock, together with their
affiliates, owned, in the aggregate, substantillyf our outstanding voting stock. As a resuigge stockholders, acting together, have the
ability to control the outcome of matters submitteaur stockholders for approval, including theatibn of directors and any merger,
consolidation or sale of all or substantially dlbar assets. In addition, these stockholdersngdtgether, have the ability to control the
management and affairs of our company. Accordintlig, concentration of ownership might harm thekatprice of our common stock by:

. delaying, deferring or preventing a change in caafsocontrol;
. impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or othesiness combination involving us; or
. discouraging a potential acquirer from making aleroffer or otherwise attempting to obtain contblis.

Certain provisions in our charter documents and Belare law could discourage takeover attempts aratléo management entrenchment.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylagentain provisions that could have the effectelfgling or preventing changes in control or
changes in our management without the consentrdf@ard of directors. These provisions include:

. the exclusive right of our board of directorsetect a director to fill a vacancy created by ekpansion of the board of directors
or the resignation, death or removal of a direatdrich prevents stockholders from being able foseicancies on our board of
directors;

. the ability of our board of directors to determtna@ssue shares of preferred stock and to deterthmerice and other terms of

those shares, including preferences and votinggighithout stockholder approval, which could bedifo significantly dilute
the ownership of a hostile acquirer; and

. the requirement that a special meeting of stocldrslchay be called only by the directors or anyceffinstructed by the
directors to call the meeting, which may delaydb@ity of our stockholders to force consideratafra proposal or to take actis
including the removal of directors.

We are also subject to certain anti-takegvevisions under Delaware law. Under Delaware, laworporation may not, in general, engag
in a business combination with any holder of 15%nore of its capital stock unless the holder had thee stock for three years or, among o
things, the board of directors has approved thestetion by which such holder acquired the stock.

Our ability to utilize our net operating loss carfgrwards and certain other tax attributes may benited.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $194.4ionilbf federal and $161.6 million of state net @iy loss carryforwards available to offset
future taxable income. Under Section 382 of therimil Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the, @@deorporation undergoes an
"ownership change" (generally defined as a grehter 50% change (by value) in its equity ownersivipr a three year period), the
corporation's ability to use its pre-change netafieg loss carryforwards and other pre-changattaibutes to offset its post-change income
may be limited. We have not performed a detailemlyesis to determine whether an ownership changemgdction 382 of the Code has
previously occurred. As a result, if we earn ngabde income, our ability to use our pre-changeopetrating loss carryforwards to offset U.S.
federal taxable income may become subiject to liroita, which could potentially result in increadature tax liability to us.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

On July 15, 2011, we entered into a leasthe Lease, for our executive offices with BroagMHampshire Associates Limited
Partnership, or the Landlord, for approximately72,6entable square feet of space in the buildicgted at 201 Broadway, Cambridge,
Massachusetts 02139.

The Lease has an initial term of three yeemmmencing on August 1, 2011 and expiring on 3] 2014. Pursuant to the Lease, our
monthly base rent is $15,125 in year one, $15,69&ar two and $16,071 in year three and we angnedjto pay additional monthly rent in
amount equal to our proportionate share of cettaias and operating expenses, as further setifottte Lease.

An event of default under the Lease isrdefias the occurrence of any of the following esefiatilure to pay rent within five business d:
after the same is due and payable; provided, howenehe first occasion of failure to pay rent whthue the Landlord will provide us with
notice and permit us a five-day period to cure dadhre after providing such written notice; faiuto pay additional monthly rent within ten
days after the same is due and payable; failupetiorm or observe any other covenant or obligatioder the Lease provided the same is not
cured within thirty days; the voluntary filing ofbkruptcy or any other petition for the relief @fd, acquiescence in the appointment of a
bankruptcy trustee or a consent to the assignnfexgsets; and the involuntary petition againstnden the bankruptcy code which is not
dismissed within sixty days.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are not currently involved in any makkegal proceedings.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market for Registrant's Common Equity

There is no market for our common stockl ifs not eligible for listing or quotation onyasecurities exchange, automated quotation
system or any other over-the-counter market, ssch@OTCBB or the Pink Sheets.

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximaité stockholders of record of our common stocle Méve not paid any cash dividends
since inception and do not anticipate paying cagidehds in the foreseeable future. Our abilityp&y cash dividends is restricted pursuant to
the terms of our credit facility and we may only stock dividends so long as no Default or EveriDefault exists (as defined in the credit
facility).

Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table provides information oar equity compensation plans as of December ®112:2

Number of securities
remaining
available for future issuance

Number of securities to Weighted-average
be issued upon exercise exercise price of under equity compensation
of outstanding options, outstanding options, plans (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde 3,899,14 $ 3.1C 79,18:
Equity compensation plans nc
approved by security holde — — —
Total 3,899,14 $ 3.1C 79,18:

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Reeds from Registered Securities
(a) Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not sell any equity securities whigére not registered under the Securities Act dutfire year ended December 31, 2012 that

not otherwise disclosed on our quarterly report&omm 10-Q or our current reports on Form 8-K fitkding the year ended December 31,
2012.

(b) Use of Proceeds from Public Offering of Common &toc

None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

You should read the following selected ficial data together with our financial statememid #he related notes contained in Item 8 of
Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We halezived the statements of operations data for etie three years ended December 31,
2010, 2011 and 2012 and the balance sheets dafdasember 31, 2011 and 2012 from the auditechfifzd statements contained in ltem 8 of
Part Il of this Form 10-K. The selected balancessidata as of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 201¢hanstatement of operations data for the
years ended 2008 and 2009 has been derived froautlited financial statements for such years rtded in this Form 1-K.

The financial information set forth belowar the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009, 201Gl have been recast to reflect the
adoption of Accounting Standards Update No. 2011P@&sentation of Comprehensive Income

The historical financial information settfobelow may not be indicative of our future penfiance and should be read together with
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finarn€@idition and Results of Operations" and our hisébifinancial statements and notes to
those statements included in Item 7 of Part Il kewh 8 of Part I, respectively, of this Annual Repon Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31
Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss Da 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)

Revenue
Option fee $ — 3 — $ — $ 1,61¢$ 2,427
Operating expense
Research and developm 54,96, 36,17¢ 11,69: 14,51¢ 22,31%
General and administrati\ 9,46¢ 5,33( 3,63( 2,66¢ 3,05¢
Restructuring — — 217 — —
Loss from operation (64,430 (41,509 (15,539 (15,57) (22,949
Other income (expense
Other (expense) income, r (2,09 (23€) 824 @) (628)
Interest (expense) income, | (2,609 (731) 85 48¢ 1,211
Net loss (69,12 (42,47¢ (14,630 (15,089 (22,365

Other comprehensive loss, net of t
Unrealized (loss) gain from available-for-si

securities 5) 8 (18) (232 17z

Comprehensive los $(69,139) $ (42,469 $ (14,649 $(15,32) $(22,19))
Net (loss) earnings attributable to comn

stockholder $(83,120%  25Z $(26,779)$(26,499)% (7,65))

As of December 31

Balance Sheet Dat: 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalel $ 18,65! $ 2512¢ $ 10,58: $ 7,89¢ $ 8,57/
Marketable securitie 4,00( 31,58( 7,96¢ 23,82¢ 41,81
Working capital 8,02¢ 56,60 15,44¢ 29,88: 44,97
Total asset 25,30( 63,637 18,96¢ 32,08« 50,947
Total liabilities 55,31 26,58¢ 3,38t 1,98¢ 5,65t

Total convertible preferred stock

and redeemable convertible

preferred stocl 170,64¢ 156,65¢ 143,83t 131,69« 120,28
Total liabilities, convertible

preferred stock, redeemable

convertible preferred stock and

stockholders' defici 25,30( 63,63’ 18,96¢ 32,08¢ 50,94%
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You should read the following discussions in codiiom with our consolidated financial statementsl aelated notes included in this
report. This discussion includes forward-lookingtetnents that involve risk and uncertainties. Assult of many factors, such as those set
forth under "Risk Factors," actual results may eiffnaterially from those anticipated in these foré-looking statements.

Executive Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focasedeveloping new therapeutics for the treatmewistéoporosis and other women's health
conditions. We have three product candidates irldgment, the most advanced of which is BA058. Wgalm dosing subjects in a pivotal
Phase 3 clinical study of BA058-SC for the prevemf fractures in women suffering from osteopaasiApril 2011 and completed
enrollment in March 2013. We are also developinddB&TD, a short wear time, transdermal form of B8@Bat is based on a microneedle
patch technology from 3M. We believe that BA058-iay eliminate the need for injections and leadeter treatment compliance for
patients. We began dosing subjects in a Phasai2allstudy of BAO58-TD in the third quarter of Z0&dnd completed enrollment in January
2013. Our second clinical-stage product candidaiRAD1901, which has completed an initial Phaselidécal study for the treatment of
vasomotor symptoms, commonly known as hot flashespmen entering menopause. Our third product icate, RAD140, is in preclinical
development and is a potential treatment for atpga@ muscle loss, frailty, weight loss associat@ti cancer cachexia and osteoporosis.

We currently have no product revenues atigve that our existing resources will not be isight to fund our planned operations beyond
the end of May 2013. As a result, we need to oladufitional capital immediately in order to contne fund our operations. We are currently
pursuing a number of financing opportunities toradd our capital needs, including the completioa pfivate placement or public offering ¢
other strategic financing alternatives that coualtide, but are not limited to, partnering or otbeltaboration agreements. We cannot guar:
that additional funding will be available on favblaterms, if at all. If we fail to obtain additiahcapital immediately, we may be unable to
complete our planned preclinical and clinical 8iahd obtain approval of any product candidates tite FDA and other regulatory authoriti
In addition, we could be forced to discontinue prctddevelopment, reduce or forego sales and markefforts, forego attractive business
opportunities or discontinue our operations entirel

BAOQ58 is a novel synthetic peptide analbgRTHrP we are developing as a bone anabolicnreatt for osteoporosis. hPTHrP is a critical
cytokine for the regulation of bone formation, atdeebuild bone with low associated risk of indwgchypercalcemia as a side effect. In Aug
2009, we announced positive Phase 2 data that shB#858-SC produced faster and greater BMD increas¢he spine and the hip after six
months and 12 months of treatment than did Fovtich was a comparator in our study. Key findinggevthat the highest dose of BA058
tested of 80 |g increased mean lumbar spine BMD at six monthsl&nghonths by 6.7% and 12.9% compared to the isesseen with Forte
trial arms of 5.5% and 8.6%, respectively. BAOSbgbroduced increases in mean femoral neck BMBeahip at six months and 12 months
3.1% and 4.1% compared to increases for Forteol®b and 2.2%, respectively. We believe there isang correlation between an increased
level of BMD and a reduction in the risk of fractuor patients with osteoporosis. BA0O58 was gehesalfe and well tolerated in this study,
with adverse events similar between BA058, placaimbForteo groups. In addition, the occurrenceypelhcalcemia as a side effect for the 80
pg dose of BAO58 was half that seen with Forted\pnil 2011, we began the dosing of subjects invatal Phase 3 clinical study managed by
Nordic and expect to report t-line 18-month data from this study in the fourthacter of 2014. We designed this planned Phasedy $b
enroll a total of 2,400 patients to be randomizedadly to receive daily doses of one of the follogui 80 micrograms (ug) of BA058,
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a matching placebo, or the approved dose of 20f rgreeo for 18 months. We plan to file the NDA wthe 18-month fracture data and
supplementally provide the 24-month fracture datsen available. The study is powered to show tHQ3B is superior to placebo for
prevention of vertebral fracture. The study is gdewered to show that BAO58 is superior to Fortogireater BMD improvement at major
skeletal sites and for a lower occurrence of hygesmnia, a condition in which the calcium levehipatient's blood is above normal.

On May 17, 2011, the Former Operating Campaerged with a subsidiary of ours and the sung\dorporation of such merger was
merged into us. Our efforts and resources are &mtpsmarily on developing BA058 and our other phaceutical product candidates, raising
capital and recruiting personnel. We have no prbdales to date and we will not receive any revdrua product sales unless and until we
receive approval for BA058-SC from the FDA, or e@liént foreign regulatory bodies. However, deveigghharmaceutical products is a
lengthy and very expensive process. Assuming weotil@ncounter any unforeseen delays during theseaefrdeveloping BA058, we do not
expect to complete development and file the NDAnsigbion for BA058-SC until approximately mid-201adéor BA058-TD until
approximately mid-2017. Accordingly, our succespatels not only on the safety and efficacy of BAQ&#&,also on our ability to finance the
development of these products, which will requirbstantial additional funding to complete developtrand file for marketing approval. Our
ability to raise this additional financing will depd on our ability to execute on the BA058 develephplan, complete patient enroliment in
clinical studies in a timely fashion, manage andrdmate on a cost-effective basis all the requa@thponents of the NDA submission for
BA058-SC and scale-up BA058-SC and BA058-TD martufaty capacity, as well as overall capital ma@tditions for companies with
limited operating histories.

In addition, we currently have no salestkating or distribution capabilities and thus obility to market BA058 will depend in part on
our ability to enter into and maintain collaboratielationships for such capabilities, the collabors' strategic interest in the products under
development and such collaborators' ability to sasfully market and sell any such products. Oditalbd secure collaborators for BA058 will
depend on the strength of our clinical data. Howewe believe that there are certain favorabledsethat will interest third parties to
collaborate on BA058, including increasing prevatenf osteoporosis due to an increase in the glgepulation in most developed countries,
increased availability and reimbursement of diagindacilities, growing physician and patient awages regarding the importance of treating
osteoporosis, and concerns regarding the long-$afety profiles of the bisphosphonates promptingsigiians to be interested in new therapie:
for osteoporosis. We are also evaluating strataiggenatives with respect to collaborating withrdhparties for the future development of
RAD1901 and RAD140. Our ability to further develbygse product candidates will be dependent uponuteme of our collaboration
strategy and the successful resolution of our ctistate of liquidity.

Financial Overview
Research and Development Expen:

Research and development expenses conisigtrily of clinical testing costs, including paynts in cash and stock made to contracted
research organizations, salaries and related psesonsts, fees paid to consultants and outsidécgeproviders for regulatory and quality
assurance support, licensing of drug compoundsp#tret expenses relating to the manufacture, dpuedot, testing and enhancement of our
product candidates. We expense our research ardbgevent costs as they are incurred.

None of the research and development exgsengelation to our product candidates are ctigréorne by third parties. Our lead product
candidate is BA058 and it represents the largest
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portion of our research and development expenseasufoproduct candidates. We began tracking prograpenses for BA058-SC in 2005, and
program expenses from inception to December 312 2&Fe approximately $98.0 million. We began tragkprogram expenses for BA058-
TD in 2007, and program expenses from inceptiobgoember 31, 2012 were approximately $18.1 millidie. began tracking program
expenses for RAD1901 in 2006, and program expgnsesinception to December 31, 2012 were approxatye$15.5 million. We began
tracking program expenses for RAD140 in 2008, aiogiiam expenses from inception to December 31, 282 approximately $5.2 million.
These expenses relate primarily to external castsaated with manufacturing, preclinical studied alinical trial costs. Costs related to
facilities, depreciation, share-based compensatimhresearch and development support serviceariractly charged to programs as they
benefit multiple research programs that share ressu

We expect that future development costedlto BA058-SC and BA058-TD programs will increeagynificantly through possible
marketing approval in the United States for BAOS8i8 mid-2016 and for BAO58-TD in mid-2018. For B3®SC, we estimate that future
development costs may exceed $122.0 million, inolg&90.0 million for clinical costs, $23.0 millidor license and milestone payments and
NDA filing fees, $4.0 million for preclinical cosend $5.0 million for manufacturing costs. For B&-TD, we estimate that future
development costs may exceed $42.0 million, incigci30.0 million for clinical costs, $11.0 millidar manufacturing costs, $1.0 million for
preclinical costs and NDA filing fees. We expecfit@ance these future development costs of BAOS& wir existing cash and cash
equivalents and marketable securities and futudeinfjs of our common stock or preferred stockadidition, our current strategy is to
collaborate with third parties for the further diyment and commercialization of RAD1901 and RAD.IRerefore, we do not expect that
will incur substantial future costs for these paigs because we expect these costs to be bornedpdnties. Our ability to further develop
these product candidates will be dependent upomlaility to secure third-party collaborators, ahi$inot possible to project the future
development costs for RAD1901 and RAD140 or posgilthrketing approval timeline at this time.

The successful development of BA058-SCBAA58-TD is subject to numerous risks and uncetiesrassociated with developing drugs,
including the variables listed below. A changeha butcome of any of these variables with respettié development of any of our product
candidates could mean a significant change indlsesand timing associated with the developmettiaifproduct candidate.

BAO058-SC is our only product candidateatelstage development, and our business curregplgrils heavily on its successful
development, regulatory approval and commerciatimatWe have no drug products for sale currently muay never be able to develop
marketable drug products. We have not submitted[2A to the FDA or comparable applications to ottegulatory authorities. Obtaining
approval of an NDA is an extensive, lengthy, expanand uncertain process, and any approval of BABE may be delayed, limited or
denied for many reasons, including:

. we may not be able to demonstrate that BA058 is aafl effective as a treatment for osteoporodiseaatisfaction of the FDA;

. the results of our clinical studies may not meetldvel of statistical or clinical significance teged by the FDA for marketing
approval,

. the FDA may disagree with the number, desigrg,stonduct or implementation of our clinical sag]i

. the CRO that we retain to conduct clinical sdsdinay take actions outside of our control thaenity adversely impact our

clinical studies;
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. the FDA may not find the data from preclinical sagdand clinical studies sufficient to demonstithtg BA058's clinical and
other benefits outweigh its safety risks;

. the FDA may disagree with our interpretation ofad@bm our preclinical studies and clinical studiesnay require that we
conduct additional studies;

. the FDA may not accept data generated at oniceli study sites;

. if our NDA is reviewed by an advisory committélee FDA may have difficulties scheduling an adwscommittee meeting in a
timely manner or the advisory committee may recomuregainst approval of our application or may reemnd that the FDA
require, as a condition of approval, additionakfinécal studies or clinical studies, limitations approved labeling or
distribution and use restrictions;

. the FDA may require development of a REMS asralition of approval; or

. the FDA may identify deficiencies in the manutaing processes or facilities of our third-partamofacturers.

In addition, the FDA may change its appt@daicies or adopt new regulations. For exampiteFebruary 15, 2012, we received a letter
from the FDA stating that, after internal considiena the agency believes that a minimum of 24-rhdracture data are necessary for approve
of new products for the treatment of postmenopansigloporosis, and our ongoing BA058-SC pivotalsBtaclinical study is designed to
produce fracture data based on an 18-month prieradgpoint. Based on our discussions with the agemeypelieve that continued use of the
18-month primary endpoint will be acceptable, pded that our NDA includes the 24-month fractureadigrived from a 6-month extension of
the BAO58 80 pg and placebo groups in our Phasi@i8ad study that will receive an approved alenthte (generic Fosamax®) therapy for
osteoporosis management. We plan to file the NDth tie 18-month fracture data and supplementatlyige the 24-month fracture data,
when available. We cannot be certain that the FDIAnet change this approval policy again, or adeibter approval policies or regulations
that adversely affect any NDA that we may submit.

We are unable to determine the durationcasts to be incurred by us to continue developroERIAD1901 and RAD140 until such time
as we are able to secure a third party to colldbara the further development and commercializatioiihese product candidates. We antici|
that we will make determinations as to which addisl programs to pursue and how much funding tectlto each program on an ongoing
basis in response to the scientific and clinicahdd each product candidate, progress on secthirdyparty collaborators, as well as ongoing
assessments of such product candidate's commpetéitial and our ability to fund such product depenent. If we are unable to continue to
fund the development of RAD1901 and/or RAD140 argdumable to secure third-party collaborators iese product candidates, our busines
will be adversely affected and we will depend sotah the successful development, regulatory appr@ové commercialization of BA058-SC
and BA058-TD.

The following table sets forth our reseaacld development expenses related to BA058-SC, BAW, RAD1901 and RAD140 for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010d{rsdimds)

Year Ended
2012 2011 2010
BAO058-SC $ 44,69. $ 27,04¢ $ 4,66/
BAO058-TD 6,04( 6,36¢ 1,86:
RAD1901 59 70 1,65¢
RAD140 18 23 31z
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses copsisirily of salaries and related expense for aiee, finance and other administrative
personnel, professional fees, business insuraant,general legal activities, including costs @imaining our intellectual property portfolio
and other corporate expenses. We expect our gearadtadministrative expenses to increase as a mdshijher costs associated with being a
public company and any listing of our securitiesaamational securities exchange.

Our results also include stock-based corsgion expense as a result of the issuance of stutlstock option grants to employees,
directors and consultants. The stock-based compensxpense is included in the respective categaf expense in the statement of
operations (research and development and genetadministrative expenses). We expect to recordiaddl non-cash compensation expens
in the future, which may be significant.

Interest Income and Interest Expen:
Interest income reflects interest earneduncash, cash equivalents and marketable sexuriti

Interest expense reflects interest due wadecurrent credit facility, which we enteredarntn May 23, 2011 and pursuant to which we
borrowed an aggregate of $12.5 million during tearyended December 31, 2011 and $12.5 million dutia year ended December 31, 2012.
See "Financings."

Other Income and Other Expense

For the years ended December 31, 2012 @hd, ther expense primarily reflects changesérfair value of the series A-6 preferred
stock liability from the date of the initial acciua the reporting date as discussed in note itdinancial statements included in this Annual
Report.

Accretion of Preferred Stoc
Accretion of preferred stock reflects tlveration on our series A-1, A-2 and A-3 convertipfeferred stock.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our financial statemeatgiires us to make certain estimates and assomsptiat affect the reported amounts of asse!
and liabilities and expenses during the reportetbgds. We believe the following accounting policas "critical" because they require us to
make judgments and estimates about matters thanagertain at the time we make the estimate, affiereint estimates, which would have b
reasonable could have been used, which would tesudted in different financial results.

Accrued Clinical Expense

As part of the process of preparing ouafficial statements, we are required to estimatactued expenses. This process involves
reviewing open contracts and purchase orders, conuaiing with our personnel to identify serviceatthave been performed on our behalf
and estimating the level of service performed &mdassociated cost incurred for the service whehave not yet been invoiced or otherwise
notified of actual cost. Payments under some ottraracts we have with parties depend on factureh as successful enroliment of certain
numbers of patients, site initiation and the coripieof clinical trial milestones. Examples of estited accrued clinical expenses include:

. fees paid to investigative sites and laborasoineconnection with clinical studies;

. fees paid to CROs in connection with clinicaides, if CROs are used; and
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. fees paid to contract manufacturers in connectiibh thie production of clinical study materials.

In accruing clinical expenses, we estintlagetime period over which services will be perfedrand the level of effort to be expended in
each period. If possible, we obtain informationameting unbilled services directly from these sezvicoviders. However, we may be required
to estimate the cost of these services based omiation available to us. If we underestimate @restimate the cost associated with a trial ol
service at a given point in time, adjustments seagch and development expenses may be neces$atyraperiods. Historically, our
estimated accrued clinical expenses have approgdrattual expense incurred. Subsequent changssrimages may result in a material che
in our accruals.

Research and Development Expent:

We account for research and developmert$ dgsexpensing such costs to operations as intuResearch and development costs
primarily consist of personnel costs, outsourcegaech activities, laboratory supplies and licdess.

Nonrefundable advance payments for goodeniices to be received in the future for useegearch and development activities are
deferred and capitalized. The capitalized amouiitdo® expensed as the related goods are delivaréke services are performed. If
expectations change such that we do not expectilveegd the goods to be delivered or the serviods rendered, capitalized nonrefundable
advance payments would be charged to expense.

Stoclk-based Compensation

We measure stock-based compensation ctist atcounting measurement date based on theafai of the option and recognize the
expense on a straighite basis over the requisite service period ofapgon, which is typically the vesting period. \Wstimate the fair value
each option using a Black-Scholes option pricingleldhat takes into account the fair value of ammmon stock, the exercise price, the
expected life of the option, the expected volatitift our common stock, expected dividends on omnroon stock, and the risk-free interest rate
over the expected life of the option. Due to omited history, we use the simplified method desmiin the SEC's Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 107,Share-Based Paymetat determine the expected life of the option grante estimate of expected volatility is based oevéew of the
historical volatility of similar publicly held congmies in the biotechnology field over a period cansurate with the option's expected term.
We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock and we do not expect to do slerforeseeable future. Accordingly,
we utilize an expected dividend yield of zero. Tis&-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury ygalde in effect at the time of grant valuation
for a period commensurate with the option's expktgam. These assumptions are highly subjectivechadges in them could significantly
impact the value of the option and hence the cosgté@n expense.

We apply an estimated forfeiture rate toent period expense to recognize compensationnsepenly for those awards expected to vest
We estimate forfeitures based upon historical dedpysted for known trends, and will adjust theneate of forfeitures if actual forfeitures
differ or are expected to differ from such estinsat®ubsequent changes in estimated forfeitureseaognized through a cumulative adjustmen
in the period of change and also will impact theoant of stock-based compensation expense in fyerieds.

Stock-based compensation expense for apticanted to consultants is also determined bagsed the fair value of the options issued, bu
the unvested portion of such option grants is rasueed at each reporting period.
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The following table presents the grant siaed related exercise prices of stock optionstgdaitom January 1, 2012 to December 31,
2012,

Per Share

Per Share Weighted

Exercise or Estimated Average

Purchase Fair Estimated
Nature of Number of Price Value of Fair Value of

Date of Issuance Issuance Shares per Share Common Stock(1) Options(2)
April 11, 2012 Option grani 188,000 $ 421 % 421 $ 2.3¢€
May 24, 2012 Option grani 10,00C $ 421 % 421 $ 2.3¢€
August 27, 201. Option grani 20,00C $ 427 % 4271 $ 2.3t

(1)  The per share estimated fair value of common stepkesents the determination by our board of dirsaif the fair valu
of our common stock as of the date of grant, takig account various objective and subjectivedectind including the
results, if applicable, of valuations of our comnstock as discussed below.

(2) Our estimate of the per share weighted avef@iggalue for stock option grants was computesiobupon the Black-
Scholes-Merton option-pricing model with the asstions disclosed in the notes to our financial stegets included in
this Annual Report

We have historically granted stock optiahgxercise prices not less than the fair valusuofcommon stock as determined by our boa
directors. Our board of directors has historicdlyermined, with input from management, the estih#air value of our common stock on the
date of grant based on a number of objective ahgestive factors, including:

. the prices at which we sold shares of convertibddgored stock;

. the superior rights and preferences of securigess to our common stock at the time of each grant

. the likelihood of achieving a liquidity event sua a public offering or sale of our company;

. our historical operating and financial performaace the status of our research and product developefforts; and
. the achievement of enterprise milestones, includingentering into collaboration and license agrests

Our board of directors also considers widna provided by management in determining theviaiue of our common stock. Such
valuations were prepared as of March 31, 2012 and 30, 2012 and valued our common stock at $hé1$4.27 per share, respectively. The
valuations have been used to estimate the faiewvaflour common stock as of each option grant lilstel above and in calculating stollsec
compensation expense. Our board of directors hasistently used the most recent valuation provigdechanagement for determining the fair
value of our common stock unless a specific eveotis that necessitates an interim valuation.

The valuations were based on the guidamee theValuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Secestissued as Compensatioor
Practice Aid, that was developed by staff of theefican Institute of Certified Public Accountantglantask force comprising representatives
from the appraisal, preparer, public accountingtwe capital and academic communities. The oppidcing method was selected to value ou
common stock based on our stage of developmenthendiegree of uncertainty surrounding the futuessis of clinical trials for our product
candidates.

For the valuations prepared as of Marchi2B12 and June 30, 2012, we utilized the probgbaiéighted expected return method, or
PWERM, as outlined in the Practice Aid, which coless the
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value of preferred and common stock based upoprtigability-weighted present value of expectedreituet cash flows, considering each of
the possible future events, as well as the rightspaeferences of each share class. PWERM is caraglé requires numerous assumptions
relating to potential future outcomes of equitynte, the use of this method can be applied: (1)wgessible future outcomes can be predicte
with reasonable certainty; and (2) when theredsraplex capital structure (i.e., several classquefierred and common stock).

We utilized the fair value of common stalgeived from the March 31, 2012 valuation for pug®of the April 11, 2012 and May 24,
2012 option grants and the fair value of commouglstterived from the June 30, 2012 valuation foppges of the August 27, 2012 option
grants. We concluded, for purposes of the April2d12 and May 24, 2012 grants, that there weragmifieant changes to the assumptions
used in the PWERM model between March 31, 20124rd 11, 2012 and May 24, 2012 that would impdue fair value of our common
stock. We concluded, for purposes of the AugusPP12 grant, that there were no significant changése assumptions used in the PWERM
model between June 30, 2012 and August 27, 201 2vtndd impact the fair value of our common stodke also used this methodology to
estimate the fair value of our preferred stockcaised in note 9 to our financial statements irezdiud this Annual Report, and to determine
fair value of shares of series A-6 convertible erefd stock due to Nordic at December 31, 2018jszsissed in note 13 to our financial
statements included in this Annual Report.

Fair Value Measurements

We define fair value as the price that widog received to sell an asset or be paid to teamsliability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Wardite fair value based on the assumptions magdditipants use when pricing the asse
liability. We also use the fair value hierarchyttpdoritizes the information used to develop thassumptions.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highmsbrity to unadjusted quoted prices in active nesskfor identical assets (Level 1), and the lo
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). Our ficéal assets and liabilities are classified witthia fair value hierarchy based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair valmeasurement. The three levels of the fair vaieaichy, and its applicability to our financial
assets, are described below:

Level 1—Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thahecessible at the measurement date of identiocedstricted assets.

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar assets, or inputs thatadoservable, either directly or indirectly, fobstantially the full term
through corroboration with observable market datel 2 includes investments valued at quoted prasjusted for legal or contracti
restrictions specific to the security.

Level 3—Pricing inputs are unobservable for the asset,ishatputs that reflect the reporting entity's cagsumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pgithe asset. Level 3 includes private investmdrasadre supported by little or no
market activity.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, we hiolgfcial assets which are measured using Levegiell2 and Level 3 inputs. Assets
measured using Level 1 inputs include money mdtkets, which are valued using quoted market pnaés no valuation adjustments applit
Assets measured using Level 2 inputs include mabketsecurities which consist primarily of goverminagency securities (direct issuance
bonds, corporate bonds, etc.). These assets aredvasing third-party pricing resources which galiguse interest rates and yield curves
observable at commonly quoted intervals of simalssets as observable inputs for pricing. Assetsuned using Level 3 inputs include our
stock asset, which represents the prepaid balarmecaued balance of the of the stock dividend reerequired to issue to Nordic in shares of
series A-6 preferred stock, as discussed in note b8r
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financial statements included in this Annual Repdite amount of research and development expelaeddo stock dividend amounts is
being recognized ratably over the estimated peepatreatment period. The fair value of the stasket and stock liability is based upon the
fair value of the series A-6 preferred stock agmined using PWERM (discussed above), which censithe value of preferred and commor
stock based upon analysis of the future valuesdoity assuming various future outcomes.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, we hiolgfcial liabilities which are measured using Le¥éhputs. These liabilities consist of a
warrant liability and other liability, and stoclability. The warrant liability represents the liyi for the warrants issued to the placement aget
in connection with the series A-1 financings, acdssed in note 8 to our financial statements dwealun this Annual Report, and to the lender:
in connection with our credit facility, as discudse note 8 to our financial statements includethia Annual Report. The warrant liability is
calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton optidnipg method. This method of valuation includesxgsnputs such as the valuation of our
various classes of preferred stock, historical tildla the term of the warrant and rigkee interest rates. The fair value of our shafemmor
and preferred stock was estimated using PWERMeassribed above.

The other liability represents the lialilib issue shares of series A-6 preferred stodkalic for services rendered in connection with th
Phase 3 clinical study of BA058-SC and BA058-TDdegussed in note 13 to our financial statemertisided in this Annual Report. The
liability is calculated based upon the number @freb earned by Nordic through the performanceiwicel trial services multiplied by the
estimated fair value of our series A-6 preferretktat each reporting date. The estimated fairevafuour series A-6 preferred stock is
determined using PWERM, as described above.

As of December 31, 2012, Level 3 assetsLave! 3 liabilities represent approximately 2%gqmatt and 101% of our total assets,
respectively. The other liability balance will conte to increase until we issue the accrued stadrssries A-6 to Nordic. The stock asset and
stock liability balances will fluctuate with thehar liability and amount of research and developgreapense related to stock dividend amount
being recognized ratably over the estimated peepiatreatment period. Increases and decreasés iaggregate fair value of these assets and
liabilities will affect net loss as changes in failue are recognized as other (expense) incomeh&whanges will not significantly impact our
liquidity and capital resources.
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Results of Operations

The following discussion summarizes the fe@fors our management team believes are necdssary understanding of our financial
statements. The results for the year ended Dece®ih@010 are the results of the Former Operatiogn@any. The results for the year ended
December 31, 2011 include our pre- and post-Meawegilts.

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Operating expense

Research and developme $ 5496. $ 36,17¢ $ 11,69:

General and administratiy 9,46¢ 5,33( 3,63(

Restructuring — — 217
Loss from operation (64,4300 (41,509 (15,539
Other (expense) incom

Other (expense) income, r (2,09 (23¢€) 824

Interest (expense) income, | (2,609 (737) 85
Net loss $ (69,128 $ (42,476 $ (14,63()

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Efdlecember 31, 2011

Years Ended December 31 Change
2012 2011 $ %
(in thousands)

Operating expense
Research and developm $ 54,96. % 36,17¢ $ 18,78. 52%
General and administrati 9,46¢ 5,33( 4,13¢ 78%

Research and development expensEsr the year ended December 31, 2012, researctevadopment expense was $55.0 million
compared to $36.2 million for the year ended Decan®i, 2011, an increase of $18.8 million, or 52%is increase was primarily the result of
increased professional contract services assootadhe development of BA058-SC and BA058-TD. Hwe year ended December 31, 2012
we incurred professional contract services assatiaith the development of BA058-SC and BA058-T$60.7 million, compared to
$33.4 million for the year ended December 31, 20hls increase was primarily the result of expensesrred for continuing enroliment of
patients in our Phase 3 study of BA058-SC, whiaalmewith the dosing of patients in April 2011. Wkpect that BA058-SC expenses will be
maintained or increase over the course of the Phasady and that the BA0O58-TD expenses will insesas a result of the Phase 2 clinical
study that commenced during the third quarter d22@However, there will be variability from quarterquarter in the costs for both BA058-
SC and BAO058-TD, driven primarily by the rate ofipat enrollment, the euro/dollar exchange ratefarmuations in the value of the stock
issued to Nordic under a Stock Issuance Agreemamtden us and Nordic, or the Stock Issuance Agreeme

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended December 31, 2012, genera@mihistrative expense was $9.5 million
compared to $5.3 million for the year ended Decam8fie2011, an increase of $4.1 million or 78%. Tweease is primarily the result of
increased employee related costs, including ar#ase in stock-based compensation expense and eaf@gse as a result of an increase in
employee headcount, as well as an increase in é&ghhccounting fees and the costs associatedweiitiyy a public company.
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Other (expense) income, reFor the year ended December 31, 2012, other expresef other income, was $2.1 million. Other exge
net of other income, primarily reflects changethia fair value of the stock dividend liability frotine date of the initial accrual to the reporting
date as discussed in note 13 to our financial skames included in this Annual Report.

Interest (expense) income, wdtor the year ended December 31, 2012, interesresqy net of interest income, was $2.6 million
compared to $0.7 million for the year ended Decam3fie2011. Interest expense reflects interestodueur loan and security agreement with
Oxford Finance Corporation, or Oxford Finance, &CC, which was effective on May 23, 2011.

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Erdleckmber 31, 2010

Years Ended
December 31 Change
2011 2010 $ %
(in thousands)

Operating expense

Research and developme $ 36,17¢ $ 11,69: $ 24,487 20<%
General and administrati\ 5,33( 3,63( 1,70C 47%
Restructuring — 217 (217) -10C%

Research and development expensesr the year ended December 31, 2011, researcHenrlopment expense was $36.2 million
compared to $11.7 million for the year ended Decam®, 2010, an increase of $24.5 million or 208%. the year ended December 31, 2011
we incurred professional contract services assetiaith the development of BA058-SC of $27.0 millicompared to $4.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010. The increase was printaglyesult of expenses incurred in connection thithinitiation of our Phase 3 study of
BAO058-SC, which began with the dosing of patientapril 2011. We expect this higher level of BAOS& expenses to be maintained or
increase over the course of the Phase 3 studyhwiicexpect to report top-line 18-month fracturtada the fourth quarter of 2014. However,
there will be variability from year to year drivenimarily by the rate of patient enrollment, theadollar exchange rate and fluctuations in the
value of our stock issued to Nordic under the Steskance Agreement. Additionally, for the yearesh@®ecember 31, 2011, as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2010, we incurredridlibn more in contract services associated whit development of BAO58D in relatior
to the manufacture of toxicology and Phase 2 dinsipplies. These increases during the year ebdedmber 31, 2011 were offset by a
reduction of $0.3 million on RAD140 spending, aneduction of $1.6 million in professional contraetvices associated with the
development of RAD1901 due to the completion ofRhase 2a study of RAD1901 in early 2010. We adgbriductions in facilities expenses
of approximately $0.4 million for the year endedcBmber 31, 2011 compared to the year ended Dece3th2010. These reductions were
attributable to the closure of a laboratory fagilit September 2010.

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended December 31, 2011, genera@mihistrative expense was $5.3 million
compared to $3.6 million for the year ended Decamfie 2010, an increase of $1.7 million or 47%. Tiwease is primarily the result of
increased legal, accounting, and marketing costajedl as business insurance, related to publicpeamy reporting.

Restructuring expensesWe incurred restructuring costs of approximateédy2$million in the year ended December 31, 201ibnarily
related to lease termination costs associatedwaithting our laboratory space. No similar costseviecurred in the year ended December 31,
2011.

Other (expense) income, reFor the year ended December 31, 2011, other egpass of other income, was $0.2 million, which
primarily reflects changes in the fair value of sezies A-6 preferred
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stock liability from the date of the initial acctua the reporting date as discussed in note IRitdinancial statements included in this Annual
Report. No similar costs were incurred in the yaated December 31, 2010. For the year ended Dec&hh2010, we had other income, net
of other expense, of $0.8 million, which was priityacomprised of approximately $0.7 million of gtgroceeds from the Internal Revenue
Service pursuant to the qualifying therapeutic aigry grant program and approximately $0.1 millioproceeds from the sale of equipment.
We did not receive grant proceeds or sell equiprdarihg the year ended December 31, 2011.

Interest (expense) income, adtor the year ended December 31, 2011, interesresqy net of interest income, was $0.7 million
compared to interest income, net of interest expenfs$0.1 million for the year ended DecemberZiL0. Interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2011 reflects interest accrued orcradlit facility.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

From inception to December 31, 2012, weehaeurred an accumulated deficit of $200.7 milliprimarily as a result of expenses incu
through a combination of research and developmaivitées related to our various product candidated expenses supporting those activities
We believe that our existing resources will noshé#icient to fund our planned operations beyorelehd of May 2013. As a result, we need tc
obtain additional capital immediately in order tmtinue to fund our operations. We are currentlgsping a number of financing opportunities
to address our capital needs, including the conapietf a private placement or public offering anbey strategic financing alternatives that
could include, but are not limited to, partneringother collaboration agreements. We cannot gueeathiat additional funding will be available
on favorable terms, if at all. If we fail to obtaadditional capital immediately, we may be unableamplete our planned preclinical and
clinical trials and obtain approval of any prodoahdidates from the FDA and other regulatory aiitilesr In addition, we could be forced to
discontinue product development, reduce or foregessand marketing efforts, forego attractive bessnopportunities or discontinue our
operations entirely.

We have financed our operations since itigeprimarily through the private sale of prefelstock as well as the receipt of $5.0 million
in fees associated with an option agreement. We hbso borrowed $25.0 million under our creditliaicin three term loans. See "Financing
Our total cash, cash equivalents and marketablgities balance as of December 31, 2012 is $22llfomi

The following table sets forth the majouszes and uses of cash for each of the periodsrsletbelow (in thousands):

Years ended December 3:

2012 2011 2010
Net cash (used in) provided
Operating activitie! $ (43,15¢) $ (35,89¢) $ (12,98¢)
Investing activities 27,43t (23,800 15,67(
Financing activitie: 9,24¢ 74,24; 2
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis $ (647 $ 1454t $ 2,68¢

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities far year ended December 31, 2012 was $43.2 milkbich was primarily the result of a net loss
of $69.1 million, partially offset by changes in tkimg capital of $6.4 million and $19.5 million abn-cash adjustments to reconcile net loss t
net cash used in operations, including $15.1 nnilbbresearch and development expenses settlédak. §he $69.1 million net loss and
$15.1 million of research and development expesstked in stock are
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primarily due to expenses incurred in connectiothwir ongoing Phase 3 clinical study of BA058-3@d aur Phase 2 clinical study of
BAO058-TD, which commenced during the third quaak2012.

Net cash used in operating activities far year ended December 31, 2011 was $35.9 millibich was primarily the result of a net loss
of $42.5 million and changes in working capitalaf9 million, partially offset by $12.5 million afon-cash adjustments to reconcile net loss t
net cash used in operations, including $10.3 nnilbbresearch and development expenses settlédak. §he $42.5 million net loss and
$10.3 million of research and development expesstiked in stock are primarily due to expensesrigclin connection with our ongoing
Phase 3 clinical study of BA058-SC which commenioefipril 2011.

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activitiesthe year ended December 31, 2012 was $27.4mjilis compared to net cash used in
investing activities of $23.8 million for the yeanded December 31, 2011.

The net cash provided by investing acesitiluring the year ended December 31, 2012 wasplyna result of a $27.5 million in net
proceeds from the sale or maturity of marketabbeisges. The net cash used in investing activiiesng the year ended December 31, 2011
was primarily a result of $32.5 million of purchas# marketable securities, partially offset by%#illion in proceeds from the sale or
maturity of marketable securities.

Our investing cash flows will be impactadtbe timing of purchases and sales of marketadtar#ties. All of our marketable securities
have contractual maturities of less than one y@ae. to the short-term nature of our marketable r$ées;, we would not expect our operational
results or cash flows to be significantly affecbyda change in market interest rates due to the-##on duration of our investments.

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities the year ended December 31, 2012 was $9.2 millis compared to $74.2 million net cash
provided by financing activities for the year end@etember 31, 2011.

Net cash provided by financing activities the year ended December 31, 2012 consists o5$iillion of net proceeds from our credit
facility and $0.3 million of net proceeds from staaption exercises, offset by $3.5 million of payrteeon our credit facility.

Net cash provided by financing activities the year ended December 31, 2011 included $6Rlibn of proceeds, net of issuance costs,
from the series A-1 preferred stock and series greferred stock financings, $12.1 million of pgeds, net of discount and issuance costs,
our credit facility and $0.2 million of net proceefilom stock option exercises, offset by $0.2 wiillof payments under our credit facility.

Our continued operations will depend on tikbewe are able to raise additional funds throumgtious potential sources, such as equity ar
debt financing and potential collaboration agreetmehhrough December 31, 2012, almost all of ocnarficing was through private placements
of preferred stock and borrowings under our crisdiility. We believe that our existing resourcedl wot be sufficient to fund our planned
operations beyond the end of May 2013. We needise radditional capital immediately in order to thowe operating our business, including
to allow us to conduct clinical and non-clinicaldies, seek regulatory approvals and, subjectdb approvals, commercially launch our
product candidates. We can give no assurancearlyadditional capital that we are able to obt#iany, will be sufficient to meet our needs.
Our future capital requirements will depend on meagjors, including the scope and progress madeiimesearch and development activities
and
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our clinical studies. We may also need additionali for possible future strategic acquisitionbusinesses, products or technologies
complementary to our business. Financing may neatvddable on acceptable terms, or at all, andfailure to raise capital when needed could
materially adversely impact our growth plans andfmancial condition and results of operationsdiinal equity financing may be dilutive
to the holders of our common stock and debt firagaif available, may involve significant cash pamhobligations and covenants that res
our ability to operate our business.

Financings

Through December 31, 2012, we have receagepiegate net cash proceeds of $168.0 million flersale of shares of our preferred stocl
as follows:

Net Proceeds (ir

Issue Year No. Shares(1 thousands)
Series B redeemable convertible prefe

stock 2003, 2004, 20(¢ 1,599,99° ¢ 23,77¢
Series C redeemable convertible prefe

stock 2006, 2007, 20C  10,146,62 82,09¢
Series /1 convertible preferred stox 2011 9,223,04. 61,59:
Series /5 convertible preferred stox 2011 64,43( 52t

Total 21,034,09 $ 167,98

Q) Share amounts stated in pre-Merger shareshwitinverted into the rights to one-tenth of oreralpursuant to the
Merger.

On May 11, 2011, accredited investors ge@des A-1 convertible preferred stock financingthe Series A-1 Private Placement, entered
into an irrevocable legally binding commitment torg¢hase approximately $64.3 million of seried Areferred stock in three closings. The 1
closing, or the Stage | Closing, of the Series Rrilzate Placement occurred on May 17, 2011 andteskin gross proceeds of approximately
$21.4 million through the sale of 2,631,845 shafehe Former Operating Company's seriet gonvertible preferred stock. Those shares-
exchanged in the Merger for an aggregate of 263shares of series A-1 preferred stock. Each sHatewseries A-1 preferred stock is
convertible into ten shares of our common stocle 3écond closing, or Stage Il Closing, occurretlomember 18, 2011, and we received
gross proceeds of approximately $21.4 million tiglothe sale of 263,178 shares of series A-1 pesdestock. The third closing, or Stage |l
Closing, occurred on December 14, 2011, and wewedgross proceeds of approximately $21.4 milttmough the sale of 263,180 shares of
series A-1 preferred stock. In connection with¢basummation of the Stage | Closing, Stage Il @ipsind the Stage 1l Closing, Leerink
Swann LLC received on May 17, 2011, November 18128nd December 14, 2011, warrants, which are wilyrexercisable at any time and
expiring five (5) years from the date of issuaratea purchase price of $81.42 per share, for @pttdal of 2,454 shares of series A-1 preferred
stock. After the automatic conversion of the prefdrstock upon the listing of our common stock erational securities exchange, these
warrants will be exercisable for a total of 24,5#@ares of common stock at a purchase price of 8gé&dshare.

Concurrently with the Stage | Closing, B@mer Operating Company issued 64,430 sharegiess®-5 preferred stock to Nordic for
gross proceeds of approximately $0.5 million. Thelseres were exchanged in the Merger for 6,443shafrour series A-5 convertible
preferred stock, which shares will automaticallyeert upon the listing of our common stock on aametl securities exchange into 64,430
shares of common stock.

On May 23, 2011, we entered into our créditlity with GECC, as agent and a lender, andd@kf~inance LLC, as a lender, consisting of
three term loans, pursuant to which we may drawggregate of $25.0 million. We drew $6.3 milliorden the initial term loan on May 23,
2011. The
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initial term loan is repayable over a term of 42, including a six-month interest-only periodddears interest at 10.16% per year. We
drew $6.3 million under the second term loan on&oler 21, 2011. The second term loan is repayatgleasterm of 36 months, including an
approximately six-month interest-only period, amdis interest at 10.0% per year. On May 29, 20&2new $12.5 million under the third
term loan. The third term loan is repayable oviarm of 30 months, including an approximated sixathdnterest-only period, and bears
interest at 10.0% per year. On each of May 23, 20ibYember 21, 2011 and May 29, 2012, we issuedants to GECC and Oxford

Finance LLC for the purchase of up to a total 1@,2Bares of series A-1 preferred stock, which béltome exercisable for 122,800 shares of
common stock at a purchase price of $8.142 peesifter the listing of our common stock on a nalaecurities exchange. The exercise
period of each warrant is 10 years from the daissafance.

Research and Development Agreeme

BA058-SC Phase 3 Clinical StugyOn March 29, 2011, we and Nordic entered intoiai€l Trial Services Agreement, a Work
Statement NB-1, or the Work Statement NB-1, undeh<Clinical Trial Services Agreement and a relé@éatk Issuance Agreement. Pursuant
to the Work Statement NB-1, Nordic is managingRhase 3 clinical study, or the Phase 3 Clinicatltof BA058-SC and Nordic will be
compensated for such services in a combinatiomasiti and shares of stock.

In December 2011, we entered into an amendio the Work Statement NB-1, or the First AmeedimPursuant to the original terms of
the Work Statement NB-1, the study was to be corediinn 10 countries at a specified number of sitiésin each country. The terms of the
First Amendment (1) provided for two additional atries (the United States and India) in which thuelg will be conducted, (2) specified a
certain number of sites within each such additi@aaintry for the conduct of the study, and (3) adeghvarious terms and provisions of the
Work Statement NB-1 to reflect the addition of sgolintries and sites within the study's parameRagments to be made by us to Nordic
under the First Amendment in connection with thedrect of the study in such additional countriesderominated in both euros and U.S.
dollars and total up to both €717,700 ($946,35%) $289,663, respectively, for the 15 additionatlgtsites in India contemplated by the First
Amendment and up to both €1.2 million ($1.6 mili@and $143,369, respectively, for the five addigibstudy sites in the United States
contemplated by the First Amendment.

In June 2012, we entered into a second dment to the Work Statement NB-1, or the Second dment. Pursuant to the original terms
of the Work Statement NB-1, as amended by the Rimstndment, the study was to be conducted in 12tc@s at a specified number of sites
within each country. The terms of the Second Amesmin(l) increased the overall number of sites ldiraylsites in Europe, Brazil and
Argentina and removing other sites, (2) specifiegdain number of sites within each country fa donduct of the study, and (3) amended
various terms and provisions of the Work StatenNBHl to reflect additional services provided atstixig sites and the addition of the new
study sites within the study's parameters. The i&kéonendment also provided that cash payments tditlander the Clinical Trial Services
Agreement as well as the payment of shares of stodkr the related Stock Issuance Agreement wih & reduced by an amount of €11,941
($15,745) per subject for any subjects enrollebhdia or the United States. Such reductions shefifplied in pro rata monthly installments.
Payments to be made by us to Nordic under the Sleorendment in connection with the extra serviaewigled at existing sites and the
conduct of the study at the new study sites arem@mated in both euros and U.S. dollars and t@af #nillion ($4.9 million) and $205,540,
respectively.

Pursuant to the Work Statement lBwe are required to make certain per patient agsndenominated in both euros and U.S. dollar
each patient enrolled in the Phase 3 Clinical Sfotlgwed by monthly payments for the duration lo€ study and final payments in two equal
euro-denominated installments and two equal U.Baddenominated installments. Changes to the
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Clinical Study schedule may alter the timing, bot the aggregate amounts, of the payments. The \Batement NB-1, as amended on
December 9, 2011 and June 18, 2012, providestfuiahof up to approximately €41.2 million ($54.3lllan) of euro-denominated payments
and a total of up to approximately $3.2 millionlfS. dollar-denominated payments over the courgleeoPhase 3 Clinical Study.

Pursuant to the Stock Issuance Agreemsrareended, Nordic agreed to purchase the equivall€X71,864 of series A-5 preferred stock
at $8.142 per share, and we sold 64,430 sharesiefsA-5 preferred stock to Nordic on May 17, 2@drlproceeds of $525,154 to the Former
Operating Company. These shares were exchangbd Mérger for an aggregate of 6,443 shares of SAHB.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNoadlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock deidls, payable in shares of series A-6
preferred stock prior to the conversion of the Canys preferred stock into common stock, and shafresmmon stock after our preferred
stock has been converted into common stock in decae with our certificate of incorporation, havengaggregate value of up to
€36.8 million ($48.5 million), or the Nordic AccrugrDividend. In the event Nordic sells the sharesesfes A-5 preferred stock or in the event
the shares of series A-5 preferred stock are ceenyénto common stock in accordance with our amérodetificate of incorporation, this right
to receive the Nordic Accruing Dividend will ternaite, but a right to receive an equivalent numbeshafes of series A-6 preferred stock or
common stock, as applicable, will remain with Nards a contractual right under the Stock Issuargreément. As of December 31, 2012,
309,264 shares of series A-6 preferred stock aegadlordic, or after the automatic conversion icdonmon stock of our convertible preferred
stock, 3,092,640 shares of common stock.

We recorded $30.8 million and $5.1 millimivesearch and development expense during the pealed December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, for per-patient costs incurred faigrets that had enrolled in the Phase 3 Clinicati$t During the year ended December 31,
2011, we also recorded approximately $11.0 mildbresearch and development expense associatedheittosts incurred for preparatory anc
other start-up costs to initiate the Phase 3 Glirstudy.

As of December 31, 2012, in addition ta28.8 million liability that is reflected in otheabilities on the balance sheet for the Nordic
Accruing Dividend, as noted above, we have (1akility of $0.2 million reflected in accrued expessand other current liabilities on our
balance sheet resulting from services provided bgd which are payable in the form of a stock dénd, and (2) a liability of $5.2 million
that is reflected in accrued expenses and otheemuliabilities on our balance sheet resultingrfreervices provided by Nordic which are
payable in cash.

BAO058-SC Phase 3 Clinical Extension Stadyn October 22, 2012, we entered into a Letter i) or the October Letter of Intent, w
Nordic, which provides that we and Nordic will, gett to compliance by the Company with certain reaents of our Certificate «
Incorporation and applicable securities laws, neg®in good faith to enter into a Work StatemeBt3

The October Letter of Intent further praasdthat Nordic will perform an extension study valaate six months of standard-of-care
osteoporosis management following the completiothefl8-month BAO5&C Phase 3 clinical study. Upon acceptance of tttel@r Letter ¢
Intent, the Company was required to make an ini@lment of €806,468 ($1.1 million).

In February 2013, we entered into Work &tant NB-3, under the Clinical Trial Services Agnemt and a related Stock Issuance
Agreement. As noted above, pursuant to the WorteBitant NB-3, Nordic will perform an extension studyevaluate six months of standard-
of-care osteoporosis management following the cetigsl of BA058-SC Phase 3 clinical study and wdldompensated for such services in a
combination of cash and shares of stock.

Payments in cash to be made by us to Nomtier Work Statement NB-3are denominated in botbseand U.S. dollars and total up to
€4.5 million ($6.0 million based on the exchange rad of
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February 21, 2013) and $579,495, respectivelydtiten, we will issue to Nordic, subject to the8t Issuance Agreement Amendment,
shares of our series A-6 preferred stock havinglaevof up to €4.5 million ($6.0 million based ¢ texchange rate as of February 21, 2013)
and $0.3 million, as additional payment for sersit@be provided under the Work Statement NB-3thadServices Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement provides beaginning with the quarter ended March 31, 201@&di¢ is entitled to receive quarterly stc
dividends in connection with services performedamdork Statement NB-3, payable in shares of sétiégpreferred stock, or shares of
common stock if our preferred stock has been auioelly converted into common stock in accordandth wur certificate of incorporation,
having an aggregate value of up to €4.5 million@3$8illion based on the exchange rate as of Fep2Br2013) and $0.3 million. In the event
Nordic sells the shares of serie-5 preferred stock or in the event the sharesésé\-5 preferred stock are converted into comistogk in
accordance with our amended certificate of incaapon, this right to receive the Nordic Accruingvidiend will terminate, but a right to
receive an equivalent number of shares of seriésppeferred stock or common stock, as applicabikeremain with Nordic as a contractual
right under the Stock Issuance Agreement.

BAO058-TD Phase 2 Clinical StuéyOn July 26, 2012, we entered into a Letter ofribteith Nordic, which provides that we and Nordic
will, subject to compliance by us with certain reggments of its Certificate of Incorporation angbgable securities laws, negotiate in good
faith to enter into (1) a Work Statement NB-2, o ¥Work Statement NB-2, a draft of which is attattethe Letter of Intent, and (2) an
amendment to the Amended and Restated Stock Isséayreement. The Work Statement NB-2 is contemglbiethe terms of the Clinical
Trial Services Agreement.

The Letter of Intent further provided tiNdrdic would begin providing clinical trial servieeelating to the Phase 2 clinical study of the
Company's BA058-TD product, or the Phase 2 Clingtally, as contemplated by the Services Agreentghtle draft Work Statement NB-2.

In February 2013, we executed the final M\@matement NB-2, under the Clinical Trial Serviéggeement and a related Stock Issuance
Agreement. As noted above, pursuant to the WorteStant NB-2, Nordic will provide clinical trial sdces relating to the Phase 2 Clinical
Study and will be compensated for such servicesdaombination of cash and shares of stock. Paynirectsh to be made by us to Nordic
under Work Statement NB-2 are denominated in bothsand U.S. dollars and total up to €3.6 milli$4.8 million based on the exchange
rate as of February 21, 2013) and $257,853, reispéctin addition, we will issue to Nordic sharefsour series A-6 preferred stock having a
value of up to $2.9 million, as additional paymemtservices to be provided under the Work StateriBi2 and the Services Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement provides Nhatlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock dimnds in connection with services performed
under Work Statement NB-2, payable in shares aéseéy-6 preferred stock, or shares of common stioolar preferred stock has been
automatically converted into common stock in acaamt with our certificate of incorporation, haveng aggregate value of up to $2.9 million.
In the event Nordic sells the shares of seriespkeferred stock or in the event the shares of séYié preferred stock are converted into
common stock in accordance with our amended ceatéiof incorporation, this right to receive thertio Accruing Dividend will terminate,
but a right to receive an equivalent number of eh@af series A-6 preferred stock or common stoglgpplicable, will remain with Nordic as a
contractual right under the Stock Issuance Agre¢nfenof December 31, 2012, 12,886 shares of s@ri@preferred stock are due to Nordic,
or after the automatic conversion into common stwfour convertible preferred stock, 128,860 shafesommon stock.

We recorded $1.4 million of research andettgpment expense during the year ended Decembh@O032 for per-patient costs incurred for
patients that had enrolled in the Phase 2 Clinical
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Study. Additionally, we recorded approximately $thBlion of research and development expense aatativith the costs incurred for
preparatory and other start-up costs to initiateRhase 2 Clinical Study during the year ended Dbee 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, in addition tale0$million liability that is reflected in otherbilities on the balance sheet that will be setitfe
shares of stock, as noted above, we have (1) ah@s$0.4 million reflected in prepaid expensed ather current assets on our balance shee
resulting from services provided by Nordic whicke gayable in the form of a stock dividend, the Yailue of which exceeds the services
provided by Nordic as of December 31, 2012, and(2asset of $0.4 million that is reflected in giepexpenses and other current assets ¢
balance sheet resulting from services provided bsdN which are payable in cash.

We are also responsible for certain pasaitih costs in connection with the Phase 3 Clirstatly and Phase 2 Clinical Study. We
recognized research and development expense ofiiidh and $5.0 million for pass through costsidg the years ended December 31, 2
and 2011, respectively.

License Agreement Obligatior
BAO58

In September 2005, we exclusively licentgedworldwide rights (except Japan) to BA058 andl@gs from Ipsen, including US Patent
No. 5,969,095, (effective filing date March 29, &98tatutory term expires March 29, 2016) entitikdalogs of Parathyroid Hormone" th
claims BA058 and US Patent No. 6,544,949, (effectiing date March 26, 1996, statutory term expikéarch 29, 2016) entitled "Analogs of
Parathyroid Hormone" that claims methods of treptinteoporosis using BA058 and pharmaceutical caitipos comprising BA058, and the
corresponding foreign patents and continuing paapptications. In addition, we have rights to jdimtellectual property related to BAO58,
including rights to the jointly derived intelleciyaroperty contained in US Patent No. 7,803,778eétive filing date October 3, 2007, statut
term expires October 3, 2028, plus 175 days ofipatem adjustment due to delays in patent prosatiy the USPTO) and related patents
and patent applications both in the United Statekveorldwide (excluding Japan) that cover the métbbtreating osteoporosis using the
Phase 3 clinical study dosage strength and forrooisideration for the rights to BA058 and in ratitign of certain milestones having been
met as of December 31, 2012, we have paid to lpeeaggregate amount of $1.0 million. The license@gent further requires us to make
payments upon the achievement of certain futuréceli and regulatory milestones. The range of rtoles payments that could be paid under
the agreement is €10.0 million to €36.0 million A million to $47.5 million). Should BA058 becoraemmercialized, we or our sublicensees
will be obligated to pay to Ipsen a fixed five pemtroyalty based on net sales of the product aouatry by country basis until the later of the
last to expire of the licensed patents or for agoeof 10 years after the first commercial salsuigch country. The date of the last to expire o
BAO058 patents, barring any extension thereof, fgeeted to be March 26, 2028. In the event thatwidicense BA058 to a third party, we are
obligated to pay a percentage of certain paymemsived from such sublicensee (in lieu of milestpagments not achieved at the time of <
sublicense). The applicable percentage is in tediouble digit range. In addition, if we or our §abnsees commercialize a product that
includes a compound discovered by us based onrivedefrom confidential Ipsen know-how, we will béligated to pay to Ipsen a fixed low
single digit royalty on net sales of such produtiacountry-by-country basis until the later of kst to expire of our patents that cover such
product or for a period of 10 years after the fominmercial sale of such product in such countfiediive May 11, 2011, Ipsen agreed to
accept shares of series A-1 preferred stock indfeaicash milestone payment of €1.0 million. Wsuesd 173,263 shares of series A-1 preferre
stock to Ipsen on May 17, 2011 to settle the lighilThese shares were exchanged in the Mergarf@aggregate of 17,326 shares of series A-
convertible preferred stock and upon the listing
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of our common stock on a national securities exghawill convert automatically to 173,260 sharesamhmon stock. The license agreement
contains other customary clauses and terms aoearmon in similar agreements in the industry.

RAD1901

In June 2006, we exclusively licensed tlelewide rights (except Japan) to RAD1901 from Eibaparticular, we have licensed US
Patent No. 7,612,114 (effective filing date Decenftie 2003, statutory term extended to August D262with 967 days of patent term
adjustment due to delays by the USPTO). In conatier for the rights to RAD1901 and in recognitmfrcertain milestones having been me
date, we have paid to Eisai an aggregate amouit.6fmillion. The range of milestone payments tmatld be paid under the agreement is
$1.0 million to $20.0 million. The license agreerntmther requires us to make payments upon theeeement of certain future clinical and
regulatory milestones. Should RAD1901 become comialézed, we will be obligated to pay to Eisai gatty in a variable mid-single digit
range based on net sales of the product on a goloptrountry basis for a period that expires onldter of (1) date the last remaining valid
claim in the licensed patents expires, lapses iowvaidated in that country, the product is note@d by data protection clauses, and the sale:
of lawful generic version of the product accountrfwore than a specified percentage of the totaksafl all pharmaceutical products containing
the licensed compound in that country; or (2) aqueof 10 years after the first commercial sal¢haf licensed products in such country, unles:
it is sooner terminated. The latest valid claimipected to expire, barring any extension the@ofugust 18, 2026. The royalty rate shall 1
be subject to reduction and the royalty obligatidlh expire at such time as sales of lawful genegcsion of such product account for more
than a specified minimum percentage of the totassaf all products that contain the licensed coumgb We were also granted the right to
sublicense with prior written approval from Eidaiit subject to a right of first negotiation heldBigai if we seek to grant sublicenses limite
particular Asian countries. If we sublicense RAD190 a third party, we will be obligated to pay &jsn addition to the milestones referencec
above, a fixed low double digit percentage of dertees we receive from such sublicensee and liegdlt a variable mid-single digit range
based on net sales of the sublicensee. The liGgrsement contains other customary clauses and s&rare common in similar agreements i
the industry.

Net Operating Loss Carryforward

As of December 31, 2012, we had federalsiat® net operating loss carryforwards of apprakéty $194.4 million and $161.6 million,
respectively. If not utilized, the net operatingdaarryforwards will expire at various dates tiglo2032.

Under Section 382 of the Code, substantiahges in our ownership may limit the amount ¢faperating loss carryforwards that could
be utilized annually in the future to offset tax@bicome. Specifically, this limitation may arisethe event of a cumulative change in
ownership of our company of more than 50% withthrae-year period. Any such annual limitation may#icantly reduce the utilization of
the net operating loss carryforwards before thgjrexThe private placements and other transactiwatshave occurred since our inception,
may have triggered an ownership change pursug¢dtion 382, which could limit the amount of needing loss carryforwards that could
utilized annually in the future to offset taxabheome, if any. Any such limitation, whether as tbsult of prior private placements, sales of
common stock by our existing stockholders or addél sales of common stock by us, could have anmabtglverse effect on our results of
operations in future years. We have not completstiidy to assess whether an ownership change based, or whether there have been
multiple ownership changes since our inception, tdude significant costs and complexities assediatith such study. In each period since
our inception, we have recorded a valuation allaeaior the full amount of our deferred tax assethe realization of the deferred tax asset is
uncertain.
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As a result, we have not recorded any federalaie shcome tax benefit in our statement of openatio
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet asanagts or any relationships with unconsolidatediestof financial partnerships, such as
entities often referred to as structured financepacial purpose entities.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board, or FASB, issued Accounting StandardatkNo. 2011-0Fresentation of
Comprehensive Incomer ASU No. 2011-05, which requires companiesrsent the components of net income and other amepsive
income either as one continuous statement or agtweecutive statements. ASU No. 2011-05 elimindte®ption to present components of
other comprehensive income as part of the stateofaitanges in stockholders' equity. The updates do¢ change the items which must be
reported in other comprehensive income, how suhdtare measured or when they must be reclasgifieet income. We adopted ASU
No. 201:-05 on January 1, 2012. Its adoption did not hareaterial impact on our financial statements oultsf operations.

In May 2011, FASB issued Accounting Staddddpdate No. 2011-0&air Value Measurement (Topic 82)—Amendments tdefeh
Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requéints in U.S. GAAP and IFRS® ASU No. 2011-04. The amendments in this
update ensure that fair value has the same meanlug. GAAP and in IFRS and that their respectaievalue measurement and disclosure
requirements are the same. This update is effeptivgpectively for interim and annual periods bagig after December 15, 2011. We ado|
ASU No. 2011-04 on January 1, 2012. Its adoptiahndit have a material impact on our results of aj@ns, financial position or cash flows.

New Accounting Standards

In February 2013, FASB issued Accountingn8iards Update No. 2013-@Reporting of Amounts Reclassified out of Accumd|@&tther
Comprehensive Incomer ASU 2013-02. Under ASU 2013-02, an entityeiguired to provide information about the amount$assified out
of accumulated other comprehensive income by compoin addition, an entity is required to preseither on the face of the financial
statements or in the notes, significant amountassified out of accumulated other comprehensigerire by the respective line items of net
income, but only if the amount reclassified is rieggh to be reclassified in its entirety in the san@gorting period. For amounts that are not
required to be reclassified in their entirety to imeome, an entity is required to cross-referancether disclosures that provide additional
details about those amounts. ASU 2013-02 doeshaotge the current requirements for reporting redrime or other comprehensive income in
the financial statements. ASU 2013-02 is effectix@spectively for reporting periods beginning afiecember 15, 2012. We have not
completed its review of ASU No. 2013-02, but do expect its adoption to have a material impactwnresults of operations, financial
position or cash flows.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Radigaltd, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balaneetstof Radius Health, Inc. as of December 31, 2022011, and the related statements of
operations and comprehensive loss, convertiblemed stock, redeemable convertible preferred samckstockholders' deficit, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endeceBber 31, 2012. These financial statements areeiponsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an afuithe Company's internal control over finangigorting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company's internal contr@rdinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnéxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementgaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementiened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the financial position of Radius Health, Inc
at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results operations and its cash flows for each of theetlyears in the period ended December 31
2012, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedamting principles.

The accompanying financial statements Heaen prepared assuming that the Company will coatas a going concern. As discussed in
Note 1 to the financial statements, the Companyéasring losses from operations and has a nétataeficiency that raise substantial do
about its ability to continue as a going conceranisigement's plans in regard to these matterssralascribed in Note 1. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments thattméglolt from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 15, 2013
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Radius Health, Inc.
Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31 December 31
2012 2011

Assets
Current asset:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 18,65: $ 25,12¢

Marketable securitie 4,00( 31,58(

Prepaid expenses and other current a: 2,46: 6,682
Total current asse 25,11¢ 63,39(
Property and equipment, r 13¢ 167
Other asset 45 80
Total asset $ 25,30 $ 63,637
Liabilities, convertible preferred stock, redeengatbnvertible

preferred stock and stockholders' del
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 55C $ 318

Accrued expenses and other current liabili 8,74( 3,59(

Current portion of note payable, net of discc 7,80( 2,88(
Total current liabilities 17,09( 6,78
Note payable, net of current portion and discc 13,00¢ 8,88¢
Warrant liability 83C 45C
Other liabilities 24,38 10,47(

Commitments and contingencieNote 17)
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vadue; 1,000,000

shares authorized, 939,612 shares issued and ruitsjeat

December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2 71,955 65,67t
Series A-2 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vpédue; 983,213

shares authorized, 983,208 shares issued and raiitsjeat

December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2 86,71« 79,97¢
Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vadue; 142,230

shares authorized, 142,227 shares issued and ruitsjeat

December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2 11,18: 10,20¢
Series A4 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001 par value0@d share

authorized, 3,998 shares issued and outstandidg@mber 31,

2012 and December 31, 20 271 271
Series A5 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001 par valu@QUd share

authorized, 6,443 shares issued and outstandibgamber 31,

2012 and December 31, 20 52t 52t
Series A-6 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vadue; 800,000

shares authorized, no shares issued and outstaaidid®rember 3.

2012 and December 31, 20 — —

Stockholders' deficit
Common stock, $.0001 par value; 100,000,000 stearéwrized,
867,204 and 645,399 shares issued and outstanding a
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplyc — —

Additional paic-in-capital — 2,744

Accumulated other comprehensive i — 5

Accumulated defici (200,66 (122,359
Total stockholders' defic (200,66 (119,61
Total liabilities, convertible preferred stock, essnable convertible

preferred stock and stockholders' del $ 25,30C $ 63,63’

See accompanying notes to financial statem
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Radius Health, Inc.

Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Operating expense
Research and developm
General and administrati\
Restructuring

Loss from operation

Other (expense) incom
Other (expense) income, r
Interest incomt
Interest expens

Net loss

Other comprehensive loss, net of t
Unrealized gain (loss) from availa-for-sale securitie

Comprehensive los

(Loss) earnings attributable to common stockholddrasic
and diluted (Note 1=

(Loss) earnings per share (Note 1
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shart
Basic

Dilued

December 31

2012 2011 2010
$ 54,96. $ 3617¢ $ 11,69
9,46¢ 5,33( 3,63(
— — 217
(64,43 (41509 ~ (15,539
(2,09%) (236) 824
64 27 85
(2,667) (75¢) —
$ (69,120 $ (42,470 $ (14,630
(5) 8 (18)
$ (69,13) $ (42,469 $ (14,649
$ (83,120 $ 255 $ (26,779
$ (98.99 $ 051 $ (83.42)
$ (98.99 $ 0.07 $ (83.4)
839,69 499,94 320,92
839,60  3,454,27" 320,92

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Radius Health, Inc.

Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Redeem&bConvertible
Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Deficit

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Convertible Preferred Stock
Series /-1 Series /-2 Series /-3 Series /-4 Series /-5 Series /-6
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balance at
December 31,
2009 —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ —
Net loss
Unrealized loss

on marketable
securities
Stock-based
compensatior
expenst
Accretion of
preferred stoc
issuance cos!
Accretion of
preferred stoc
to redemption
value
Accretion of
preferred stoc
investor
rights/obligatic

Balance at
December 31,
2010 — $ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ —
Net loss
Unrealized loss
on marketable
securities
Forced
conversion to
common stocl
Recapitalization
1) 983,20¢ 75,97¢ 142,22 9,62¢ 3,99¢ 271
Issuance of
preferred stoc 922,28( 62,297 6,44: 52&
Accretion of
dividends on
preferred stoc 1,96¢ 4,00 57¢
Stock-based
compensatior
expenst
Stock options
exercisec
Milestone
payment
settled with
stock 17,32¢ 1,41C

Balance at
December 31,
2011 939,61 $ 65,67¢ 983,20t $ 79,97¢ 142,22° $ 10,20¢ 3,99¢ $ 271 6,44:$ 52t —$ —

Net loss
Unrealized loss
from
available-for-
sale securitie
Issuance of
preferred stoc
Accretion of
dividends on
preferred stoc 6,282 6,73¢ 974
Stock-based
compensatior
expenst
Stock options
exercisec

Balance at

December 31,
2012 939,61: $ 71,957 983,20t $ 86,71« 142,22" $ 11,18: 3,99¢ $ 271 6,44:$ 52t —$ =




See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Radius Health, Inc.

Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Redeem&bConvertible
Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Deficit (Continué)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Convertible Preferred Stock

Stockholders' Deficit

Series A Series B

Series C

Common Stock

Additional Accumulated

Other Total

Shares Amount Shares Amount

Shares

Amount

Shares Amount Amount

Paid-In  Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders
Capital
Deficit

Income (Loss) Deficit

Balance at
December 31,
2009
Net loss
Unrealized loss

on marketable
securities
Issuance of
common stocl
Stock-based
compensation
expenst
Accretion of
preferred stoc
issuance cost
Accretion of
preferred stoc
to redemption
value
Accretion of
preferred stock
investor
rights/obligation

61,66 $

2,83¢

93 1,599,99 $ 35,47( 10,146,62 $ 96,13:

17:

7,81%

1,31¢

320,42 $

2,38:¢

—3 3 s 15$ (101,610%

(14,630

(101,599
(14,630

(18) (18

2 2

134 134

(136) (37 179

(10,65

(10,65

(1,319 (1,319

Balance at
December 31,

2010 61,66 $

93 1,599,99 $ 38,30¢ 10,146,62 $ 105,43

322,80 $

(3)$ (128,25)$ (128,25)

Net loss
Unrealized gain
from available
for-sale
securities
Forced
conversion to
common stocl (21,667)
Recapitalization
(1)
Issuance of
preferred stoc
Accretion of
dividends on
preferred stoc
Stock-based
compensation
expenst
Stock options
exercisec
Milestone
payment
settled with
stock

(33 (177,69)  (29€)

(40,009

1,17¢

(314,49))

(225)

(60) (1,422,30) (39,18Y) (9,832,13) (108,42})

3,21¢

102,76

219,82!

(42,47¢) (42,47¢)

554 554

8,26¢ 52,71: 60,98:

(6,590) (4,349 (10,939

304 304

204 204

Balance at
December 31,
2011

645,39¢ $

2,74¢ $ 5% (122,359% (119,610

Net loss
Unrealized loss
from available-
for-sale
securities
Accretion of
dividends on
preferred stoc
Stock-based
compensation
expenst

(69,129 (69,129

®) ®

(4,818 (9,179 (13,99)

1,79% 1,79%



Stock options

exercisec 221,80! 27¢ 27¢
Balance at
December 31,
2012 — % — —$ — —$ — | 867,20 $§ — $ — 3 — $ (200,66)% (200,66
1) The recapitalization includes the exchange of SekieSeries B and Series C shares for Series AdesSA-3, and Series A-2 shares, respectivelgditition to

the 1:10 exchange of Serie-2, Series -3, and Series -4 preferred stock, which occurred in conjunctiothvthe Merger, and is more fully described in nbt

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (69,129 $ (42,476 $(14,63()
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 44 40 70
Gain on fixed asset dispos — — (200
Amortization of premium (accretion of discount) smort-
term investments, ni 101 21 308
Stoclk-based compensation expel 1,79¢ 304 134
Research and development expense settled in 15,061 10,29¢ —
Change in fair value of other current assets, watiability
and other liability 2,06¢ 264 —
Nor-cash interes 44¢ 16f —
Milestone payment settled with st — 1,41(C —
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4,62: (6,469 (139
Other lon¢-term asset 35 25 (27
Accounts payabl 237 (301) (99)
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 1,55(C 81¢ 1,491
Net cash used in operating activit (43,159 (35,89¢) (12,98
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipir (40 (17¢) (14
Proceeds from sale of equipm — — 14¢
Purchases of marketable securi (18,989 (32,479 (24,120
Sales and maturities of marketable secur 46,46 8,85¢ 39,65¢
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi 27,43 (23,800  15,67(
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the sale of common st — — 2
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 27¢ 204 —
Net proceeds from the issuance of preferred < — 62,11¢ —
Proceeds from note payat 12,50( 12,50( —
Discount on note payab — (36€) —
Deferred financing cos (31 (56) —
Payments on note payal (3,500 (15€) —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 9,24¢ 74,24 2
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (6,475  14,54¢ 2,68¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 25,12¢ 10,58: 7,89¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 18,65: $ 25,12¢ $ 10,58:
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash paid for intere: $ 1801 $ 35¢ $ —
NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Accretion of preferred stock issuance cc $ — $ — $ 17¢
Accretion of dividends on preferred stc $ 13,99 $ 10,93! $ 10,65:
Accretion of preferred stock investor rights/obtigas $ — $ — $ 1,31¢
Fair value of preferred stock issued in the recdiption $ — $ 85,87¢ $ —
Fair value of warrants issus $ 37¢ $ 46% % —

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
1. Nature of Business

Radius Health, Inc. ("Radius" or the "Comyd, which was formerly known as MPM Acquisitiorofp., is a biopharmaceutical company
focused on developing new therapeutics for therreat of osteoporosis and other women's healthittons. The Company's lead product
candidate, currently in Phase 3 clinical developimerBA058-SC, a daily subcutaneous injection @fel synthetic peptide analog of human
parathyroid hormone-related protein ("hPTHrP")tlee treatment of osteoporosis. The BA058-SC Phadedy began dosing patients in April
2011 and completed enroliment in the study in M&@h3. The Company is also developing BAOA3; a short wear time, transdermal forn
BAO058 delivered using a microneedle technology fRivhDrug Delivery Systems ("3M"), for which the Cpany commenced a Phase 2
clinical study during the third quarter of 2012. \@empleted enroliment in January of 2013 and exymgetine data to be available during the
third quarter of 2013. The Company also has twemphnoduct candidates, RAD1901, a selective estrogeeptor modulator, in Phase 2
clinical development for the treatment of vasomatgmptoms (hot flashes) in women entering menopaurseRAD140, a selective androgen
receptor modulator, currently in preclinical deysiment as a potential treatment for age-related ladsss, frailty, weight loss associated with
cancer cachexia and osteoporosis. As used throtitiese financial statements, the terms "Radighipany,” "we," "us" and "our" refer to
Radius Health, Inc. (f’/k/a MPM Acquisition Corp.).

Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Mether"Merger Agreement” or the "Merger") enteretbiin April 2011 by and among the
Company (a public-reporting, Form 10 shell companthe time), RHI Merger Corp., a Delaware corgoraaind wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company ("MergerCo"), and Radius Health, laqrivately-held Delaware corporation ("Former Gyieig Company"), MergerCo merged
with and into the Former Operating Company, witl lormer Operating Company remaining as the sumyientity and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. This transaction is inereferred to as the "Merger". The Merger wasaife on May 17, 2011, upon the filing of
a certificate of merger with the Delaware Secretdrgtate. Following the Merger on May 17, 201E @ompany's board of directors approvec
the Merger of the Former Operating Company with iamal the Company, leaving the Company as the sumyicorporation (the "Short-Form
Merger"). As part of the Short-Form Merger, the Qamy, then named MPM Acquisition Corp., changedase to Radius Health, Inc. and
assumed the operations of the Former Operating @oyp

The Company is subject to the risks assediwith emerging companies with a limited opemtiistory, including dependence on key
individuals, a developing business model, markeeptance of the Company's product candidates, ditropeor its product candidates, and
the continued ability to obtain adequate finandméund the Company's future operations. The Compas incurred losses and expects to
continue to incur additional losses for the foredde future. As of December 31, 2012, the Compasyam accumulated deficit of
$200.7 million and believes that its existing casd cash equivalents and marketable securitiesuffieient to fund its operations, including
obligations under the Nordic agreement describettia 13, beyond the end of May 2013. If the Corggails to obtain additional capital
immediately, it may be unable to complete its pkhpreclinical and clinical trials and obtain apioof any product candidates from the
Federal Drug Administration or other regulatoryhauities. In addition, the Company could be fortediscontinue product development,
reduce or forego sales and marketing efforts, fitractive business opportunities or discontioperations entirely. These factors raise
substantial doubt regarding the Company's abitity t
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(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
1. Nature of Business (Continued)

continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the cargtion of the Company as a going concern is dep#ngon its ability to identify future
investment opportunities and obtain the necessaloy @ equity financing to support future operagionhese financial statements do not
include any adjustments to the recoverability adadsification of recorded asset amounts and claatidn of liabilities that might be necessary
should the Company be unable to continue as a gmingern. The Company is currently pursuing a nurnbénancing opportunities to
address its capital needs, including the compledfaa private placement or public offering and otieategic financing alternatives that could
include, but are not limited to, partnering or atbellaboration agreements. However, there is rargpuiee that any of these financing
opportunities will be executed or executed on fabe terms, and some could be dilutive to exissitogkholders.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates-The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United State
("GAAP") requires the Company's management to neskienates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could dfffean those estimates. The Company considers eeemtansactions that occur after the
balance sheet date but before the financial stattnaee issued as additional evidence for certgtimates or to identify matters that require
additional disclosure. Subsequent events have éesdnated up to the date of issuance of thesediabstatements.

Cash Equivalents-The Company considers all highly liquid investmestruments with an original maturity when purdsf three
months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash eguigaht December 31, 2012 and December 31, 201driararily comprised of money mark
funds.

Marketable Securities-All investment instruments with an original matyrilate, when purchased, in excess of three mdvaths been
classified as current marketable securities. Themdetable securities are classified as availairiesdle and are carried at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses, if any, are includiinvother comprehensive income (loss) within ktaiders' deficit. The amortized cost of
debt securities in this category is adjusted foodimation of premiums and accretion of discountsiaturity. Such amortization is included in
interest income. Realized gains and losses onahblaifor-sale securities are included in interesbime. The cost of securities sold is based ol
the specific identification method. The Companyigdically reviews the portfolio of securities totdemine whether an other-than-temporary
impairment has occurred. No such losses have amttordate. There were no realized gains or lamséle sale of securities for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)

Fair Value MeasurementsThe Company determines the fair market valuessdfnancial instruments based on the fair valwgdrichy,
which requires an entity to maximize the use ofeobable inputs and minimize the use of unobserviaiplets when measuring fair value. The
following are three levels of inputs that may bedito measure fair value:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets foniiteal assets or liabilities that the Company has
the ability to access at the measurement

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgauated prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are adtive; or other inputs that are observe
or can be corroborated by observable market datsutostantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littltammarket activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets orilitibs.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Off-BalesSheet Risk-Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to credit risk
primarily consist of cash and cash equivalentsavailable-for-sale marketable securities. The Campaitigates its risk with respect to cash
and cash equivalents and marketable securitiesdiytaining its deposits and investments at higlaliufinancial institutions. The Company
invests any excess cash in money market funds ted securities, and the management of these imeggs is not discretionary on the part of
the financial institution. The Company's credit expre on its marketable securities is limited bydiversification among United States
government and agency debt securities. The Comipasiyo significant off-balance-sheet risks suctoesgn exchange contracts, option
contracts, or other hedging arrangements.

Property and EquipmentProperty and equipment are recorded at cost apigtdiated using the straight-line method over gterated
useful lives of the respective assets.

Research and DevelopmenThe Company accounts for research and developoosig by expensing such costs to operations as
incurred. Research and development costs primaoitgist of clinical testing costs, including paynsein cash and stock made to contracted
research organizations, personnel costs, outsouesedrch activities, laboratory supplies, anchbecfees.

Nonrefundable advance payments for goodeniices to be received in the future for useegearch and development activities are
deferred and capitalized. The capitalized amour@®gpensed as the related goods are deliverér @etvices are performed.

Licensing AgreementsCosts associated with licenses of technology gperesed as incurred, and are included in reseaith a
development expenses.

Impairment of Long-Lived AssetsThe Company evaluates long-lived assets for piatientpairment when there is evidence that events
or changes in circumstances have occurred thatdtelthat the carrying amount of a long-lived ass&y not be recovered. Recoverability of
these assets is assessed based on the undiscexpéetied future cash flows from the assets, corisgla number of factors, including past
operating results, budgets and economic projectimasket trends, and product development cyclepalment in the carrying value of each
asset is assessed when the undiscounted expetiesl ¢ash flows derived from the asset are lessitbaarrying value.
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An impairment loss would be recognizednnaaount equal to the excess of the carrying amowet the undiscounted expected future
cash flows. No impairment charges have been rezedrsince the Company's inception.

Segment Informatiear-Operating segments are defined as components eitaenprise engaged in business activities for whiscrete
financial information is available and regularlyiewed by the chief decision maker in determiniogvhio allocate resources and in assessing
performance. The Company views its operations asdages its business in one operating segment arCiaimpany operates in one
geographic segment.

Income Taxes-The Company recognizes deferred tax assets dpitities for the future tax consequences attribleab differences
between the financial statement carrying amounexisting assets and liabilities and their respediax basis, as well as operating loss and ta
credit carry forwards. The Company measures deféae assets and liabilities using enacted taxsraxpected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differencesaand/forwards are expected to be recovered oeseteferred tax assets are reduced by a
valuation allowance to reflect the uncertainty assed with their ultimate realization. The effect deferred tax assets and liabilities as a rest
of a change in tax rates is recognized as incontieeiperiod that includes the enactment date.

The Company uses judgment to determinegbegnition threshold and measurement attributéfiancial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expectée@ tiaken in a tax return. Any material interest pedalties related to unrecognized tax
benefits are recognized in income tax expense.

Due to uncertainty surrounding the real@abf the favorable tax attributes in future taxurns, the Company has recorded a full valu
allowance against otherwise realizable net defelardssets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Financial Instruments Indexed to and Patglyt Settled in the Company's Common Ste€khe Company evaluates all financial
instruments issued in connection with its equitghgs when determining the proper accountingttneat for such instruments in the
Company's financial statements. The Company corssalaumber of generally accepted accounting piesito determine such treatment and
evaluates the features of the instrument to deterrfie appropriate accounting treatment. The Cognptlizes the Black-Scholes method or
other appropriate methods to determine the fainevaf its derivative financial instruments. Keywaion factors in determining the fair value
include, but are not limited to, the current stpcke as of the date of measurement, the exercise, phe remaining contractual life, expected
volatility for the instrument and the risk-freeenést rate. For financial instruments that arerdgteed to be classified as liabilities on the
balance sheet, changes in fair value are recorsledain or loss in the Company's statement ofadipeis with the corresponding amount
recorded as an adjustment to the liability on @&&bce sheet.

Stock-Based CompensatieiThe Company measures stde&sed compensation cost at the accounting measnirelate based on the fi
value of the option and recognizes the expensestraght-line basis over the requisite servicequeof the option, which is typically the
vesting period. The Company estimates the fairevafueach option using a Black-Scholes option pgehodel that takes into account the fair
value of its common stock, the exercise price etkgected life of the
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option, the expected volatility of the Company'snoaon stock, expected dividends on the Company'sraamstock, and the risk-free interest
rate over the expected life of the option. Dugddimited history, the Company uses the simplifieethod described in the SEC's Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107Share-Based Paymeid, determine the expected life of the option grafite Company's estimate of expected
volatility is based on a review of the historicalatility of similar publicly held companies in théotechnology field over a period
commensurate with the option's expected term. Tdragainy has never declared or paid any cash divddendts common stock and does not
expect to do so in the foreseeable future. Accalgirthe Company utilizes an expected dividenddyil zero. The riskree rate is based on 1
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the timegodint valuation for a period commensurate withapgon's expected term. These assumption:s
are highly subjective and changes in them couldifsggntly impact the value of the option and hettee Company's compensation expense.

The Company applies an estimated forfeitate to current period expense to recognize cosgiEm expense only for those awards
expected to vest. Estimated forfeitures are baped tistorical data, adjusted for known trends, ailidbe adjusted if actual forfeitures differ
or are expected to differ from such estimates. 8milxsnt changes in estimated forfeitures are rezedrthrough a cumulative adjustment in
period of change and also will impact the amourdtotk-based compensation expense in future periods

Stock-based compensation expense for aptjeemted to consultants is also determined based e fair value of the options issued, bu
the unvested portion of such option grants is rasueed at each reporting period.

Net (Loss) Income Per Common Shaiget (loss) income per common share is calculagiguhe two-class method, which is an
earnings allocation formula that determines netslancome per share for the holders of the Compammmon shares and participating
securities. All of the Company's series of preféistock contain participation rights in any dividgmaid by the Company and are deemed to b
participating securities. Net income available émenon shareholders and participating preferredeshiarallocated to each share on an as-
converted basis as if all of the earnings for ttequl had been distributed. The participating séiesrdo not include a contractual obligation to
share in losses of the Company and are not inclirdége calculation of net loss per share in theégge that have a net loss.

Diluted net income per share is computeédguthe more dilutive of (a) the two-class method(b) the ifconverted method. The Comp:
allocates net income first to preferred stockhad®sed on dividend rights and then to common egféped stockholders based on ownershi
interests. The weighted-average number of commarestoutstanding gives effect to all potentiallatilie common equivalent shares,
including outstanding stock options, warrants, poténtial issuance of stock upon the issuance éSA-6 Convertible Preferred Stock
("Series A-6") as settlement of the liability to ida Bioscience ("Nordic"). Common equivalent sksaaee excluded from the computation of
diluted net income (loss) per share if their efisanti-dilutive.

Comprehensive (Loss) Incom&€omprehensive (loss) income refers to revenugmreses, gains and losses that are excluded from net
income, as these amounts are recorded directly adjastment
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to stockholders' deficit, net of tax. The Compamyter comprehensive (loss) income is comprisathogalized gains (losses) on its available-
for-sale securities.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standarda June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standaroar® ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard
Update No. 2011-0Fresentation of Comprehensive Incof&SU No. 2011-05"), which requires companies tegemt the components of net
income and other comprehensive income either agaminuous statement or as two consecutive statiEm&SU No. 2011-05 eliminates the
option to present components of other comprehensoane as part of the statement of changes irkkistdders' equity. The update does not
change the items which must be reported in othempecehensive income, how such items are measuretiem they must be reclassified to net
income. The Company adopted ASU No. 2011-05 onalgril 2012. Its adoption did not have a matengdact on the Company's financial
statements or results of operations.

In May 2011, FASB issued Accounting Staddadpdate No. 2011-0O&air Value Measurement (Topic 82)—Amendments tdefeh
Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requents in U.S. GAAP and IFRSASU No. 2011-04"). The amendments in this
update ensure that fair value has the same meanlng. GAAP and in IFRS and that their respectaievalue measurement and disclosure
requirements are the same. This update was eféeptspectively for interim and annual periods beijig after December 15, 2011. The
Company adopted ASU No. 2011-04 on January 1, 26 adoption did not have a material impact onGoenpany's results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.

New Accounting Standardsin February 2013, FASB issued Accounting Standahoidate No. 2013-0Reporting of Amounts
Reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehersn@me("ASU 2013-02"). Under ASU 2013-02, an entity igu@ed to provide
information about the amounts reclassified outasfuanulated other comprehensive income by compoheatldition, an entity is required to
present, either on the face of the financial stateinor in the notes, significant amounts reclassidut of accumulated other comprehensive
income by the respective line items of net incom#,only if the amount reclassified is required®reclassified in its entirety in the same
reporting period. For amounts that are not requiodake reclassified in their entirety to net income entity is required to cross-reference to
other disclosures that provide additional detaisua those amounts. ASU 2013-02 does not changeutinent requirements for reporting net
income or other comprehensive income in the firergtatements. ASU 2013-02 is effective prospeltif@ reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2012. The Company has not completeevtew of ASU No. 2013-02, but it does not expecadoption to have a material
impact on the Company's results of operationsnfire position or cash flows.

3. Merger

As described in note 1, the Company corepletreverse merger transaction with the Formeraipg Company on May 17, 2011,
pursuant to which the Company changed its name &M Acquisition Corp. to Radius Health, Inc. ars$amed the operations of the
Former Operating Company. The accompanying findstiéements and the related disclosures takeaittount the Merger and Short-Form
Merger transactions. In addition, all historicahstand per share amounts in the financial statesmelating to the Former Operating Comp
have been retroactively adjusted for all periodspnted to give effect to the 1:15 reverse stolikaffall the Former Operating
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Company's capital stock (the "Reverse Stock Splitluding reclassifying an amount equal to theguion in par value to additional paid-in-
capital, approved by the Former Operating Compa®gard of Directors prior to the Merger on May 2011.

As of the effective time of the Merger (thigfective Time"), the legal existence of Merger€@eased and all of the shares of the Former
Operating Company's common stock, par value $0e@Elpare, and shares of the Former Operating Cortspareferred stock, par value $0.01
per share, that were outstanding immediately piadhe Merger were cancelled and converted intaigid to receive shares of the Company's
common or preferred stock, as applicable. Eachtanding share of the Former Operating Company comstack outstanding immediately
prior to the Effective Time was automatically corted into the right to receive one share of the Gany's common stock, $0.0001 par value
per share (the "Common Stock") and each outstarslinge of the Company's preferred stock outstaridingediately prior to the Effective
Time was automatically converted into the rightdoeive one-tenth of one share of the Companyfenpeel stock, $0.0001 par value per share
(the "Preferred Stock") as consideration for thedée.

The Company assumed all options and warmafrthe Former Operating Company outstanding inmately prior to the Effective Time,
which became exercisable for shares of the Comp&@unmmon Stock or Preferred Stock, as the caséomagontemporaneously with the
closing of the Merger, pursuant to the terms oeddtnption Agreement dated April 25, 2011 by andragrtbe Company and its then-current
stockholder, the Company completed the repurchBS®60,000 shares of Common Stock from its forswde stockholder in consideration of
an aggregate of $50.0 thousand (the "Redempti®@h§.5,000,000 shares constituted all of the thgueid and outstanding shares of the
Company's capital stock, on a fully-diluted basignediately prior to the Merger. Upon completiortiod Merger and the Redemption, the
former stockholders of the Former Operating Comgaeig 100% of the outstanding shares of capitalkstd the Company.

Pursuant to the Merger, the Company asswathed the Former Operating Company's obligatiander its existing contracts. In particu
the Company has assumed the rights and obligatibtiie Former Operating Company under that ce@aies A-1 Convertible Preferred
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 251284 amended, (the "Purchase Agreement”) withctirgain investors listed therein (the
"Investors") pursuant to which, among other thirige, Company was obligated to issue and sell torrestors up to an aggregate of 789,553
shares of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stoakyplue $.0001 per share (the "Series A-1"), eachpurchase price per share of $81.42, tc
be completed in three closings for cash procee@6413 million. The transactions covered by thecRase Agreement are referred to herein a
the "Series A-1 Financing". An initial closing wesmpleted on May 17, 2011 by the Former Operatiom@any prior to the Merger.

4. Recapitalization

Subsequent to the Reverse Stock Split aiod to the Merger, the Former Operating Companganwent a recapitalization pursuant to
which the preferred stock of the Company (Serig3ofwvertible Preferred Stock ("Series A"), Serie€@vertible Preferred Stock ("Series |
and Series C Convertible Preferred Stock ("Serlgsdollectively "Old Preferred Stock") was exchadgor a new series of convertible
preferred stock (Series A-2 Convertible Preferramtls ("Series A-2"),
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Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series";-Series A-4 Convertible Preferred Stock ("SeAed"), collectively with Series A-5
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A-5"), "Neveferred Stock") to the extent that the existingklbmlder participated in the Series A-1
Financing in an amount at least at the level itsRata Share, as defined in the Purchase Agreemerdrding to the amended Articles of
Incorporation of the Former Operating Company, lgtotders who did not participate in the Series Rilancing in an amount at least equal tc
their Pro Rata Share amount were subject to adaroaversion (the "Forced Conversion") to commaglstat a rate of 1 share of common
stock for every 5 shares of Old Preferred Stodket@o converted. As a result, 21,661 shares oéS£ri 177,697 shares of Series B and
314,496 shares of Series C converted into 102 [i&es of the Company's common stock on May 17,.2011

The 9,832,133 shares of Series C converpitdferred stock that remained outstanding dfeFbrced Conversion, were recapitalized an
exchanged for 9,832,133 shares of Series A-2, #221300 shares of Series B convertible preferreckghat remained outstanding after the
Forced Conversion, were recapitalized and exchafagetd422,300 shares of Series A-3, and the 40sb@Bes of Series A convertible
preferred stock that remained outstanding afteFtireed Conversion, were exchanged for 40,003 stadr8eries A-4. All prior dividends that
had accrued on the original Series B and Seriese€@fPed Stock through May 17, 2011 were forfelbgdhe holders as part of the
recapitalization. In addition, the holders of thigmal Series B and Series C Preferred Stock vehitieir contingent redemption rights on such
shares.

Certain investors participated in the SeAel Financing in an amount in excess of their Rata Share amount and as consideration for
investing such excess amount, received that nupftedditional shares of Series A-1 as set fortihiwithe Purchase Agreement. The Former
Operating Company issued 1,327,506 additional shafr&eries A-1 in exchange for this additionakisiment.

In accordance with the Purchase AgreenteatStage | Closing occurred on May 17, 2011 ardlted in net proceeds of $20.3 million as
consideration for the issuance of 2,631,845 shafr&€gries A-1 which were converted in the Mergedescribed below into the right to receive
one-tenth of one share of Seried AThe issuance of the aforementioned additioraleshdid not generate a beneficial conversion feattthe
date of issuance or at December 31, 2011.

Subsequent to the recapitalization andhfirey, pursuant to the Merger, each outstandingeshigpreferred stock was converted into the
right to receive one-tenth of one share of Prefe8®ck. After the recapitalization, Series A-1 &aties A-5 (as described in note 3)
financings and the Merger, the Company has thevatlg shares of preferred stock outstanding at Bdes 31, 2012, which include the she
of Series A-1 issued in the Stage Il Closing arah&tIl Closing as discussed below:

Number
Class of Shares
Series /1 939,61
Series /-2 983,20t
Series /-3 142,22
Series /-4 3,99¢
Series /-5 6,44:
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The Company has accounted for the recagatadn and exchange of the Old Preferred StockHeNew Preferred Stock as an
extinguishment of the Old Preferred Stock due &odiignificance of the changes to the substantimractual terms of the preferred stock,
which included the forfeiture of accrued dividemafsthe Series A and B, the removal of the contihgeslemption feature pursuant to which
the Series B and Series C was redeemable at tlwnaftthe holder at a future determinable date, the addition of a mandatory conversion
provision to common stock upon the listing of thenfpany's Common Stock on a national securitiesan@d, among other changes. Refer to
note 9 for the rights and preferences on the Neafelred Stock. Accordingly, the Company recordeddifference between the fair value of
the new shares of Preferred Stock issued in thieagyge and the carrying value of the Old PrefertediSshares as a gain of $60.9 million that
was recorded within stockholders' deficit. The Campallocated $8.3 million to additional paid-irp@tal to recover the amount of additional
paid-in capital that had previously been reducediliidends accreted on Series B and Series C taatforfeited as part of the recapitalization,
and the balance of $52.7 million was recorded twamnilated deficit. The gain on extinguishment fierted as a preferred stock redemption ir
the calculation of net income available to commimeisholders in accordance with Accounting Stand&uddification ("ASC") 260Earnings
Per Share. The fair value of the Series A-1, Series A-2,i&A-3 and Series A-4 was determined using thbalriity-weighted expected
return method (see note 11).

In connection with the Series A-1 Finangitihge Former Operating Company issued to a placeagant, and in the Merger, the Company
assumed, a warrant to purchase 818 shares of Pelid¥eferred Stock. The warrant has an exeraise pf $81.42 and expires on May 17,
2016. The warrant is classified as a liability ba Company's balance sheet and was recorded aspaent of the issuance costs related t
Series A-1 Financing. The Company recorded theama@at a fair value of $35.0 thousand, calculatedgithe Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The revaluation of the warrant at Decemliei2812 was not material to the financial statement

Subsequent to the exchange of outstandiages of preferred stock for the right to receime-tenth of one share of Preferred Stock, in
accordance with the Purchase Agreement, the Sk&gjeding occurred on November 18, 2011 and reduitanet proceeds of approximately
$21.0 million through the sale of 263,178 shareSeries A-1. On December 14, 2011, the Stage dsi@h occurred resulting in net proceeds
of approximately $21.0 million through the sale2683,180 shares of SerieslA-The issuance of the shares in the Stage Il gageSll Closing:
did not generate beneficial conversion featurebeatlate of issuance or at December 31, 2012.

In connection with the Stage Il and Stdg€losings, the Former Operating Company issuea pacement agent, warrants to purchase
1,636 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock. Theants have an exercise price of $81.42 and exfiee five (5) years. The warrant is
classified as a liability on the Company's balastteet and was recorded as a component of the tesgasts related to the Series A-1
Financing. The Company recorded the warrant air a&ue of $68.0 thousand, calculated using thecBIScholes option pricing model. The
revaluation of the warrant at December 31, 2011 nedsnaterial to the financial statements.
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5. Marketable Securities
Available-for-sale marketable securitied aash and cash equivalents consist of the follgyiimthousands):

December 31, 201,

Amortized Cost Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized
Value Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash $ 1,132  $ — 3 — $ 1,13¢
Money marke 16,02( — — 16,02(
Domestic corporate
commercial pape 1,49¢ — — 1,49¢
Total $ 18,65: $ — 3 — $ 18,65
Marketable securitie:
Domestic corporate
commercial pape 4,00( — — 4,00(
Total $ 4000 $ — 3 — $ 4,00C

December 31, 201

Amortized Cost Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized
Value Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash $ 5,00 $ — % — $ 5,00:
Money marke 20,12¢ — — 20,12¢
Total $ 25,12¢  $ — — $ 25,12¢
Marketable securitiet
Domestic corporate debt
securities 10,26( — (6) 10,25«
Domestic corporate
commercial pape 18,981 11 — 18,99¢
U.S. government securitit 2,32¢ — — 2,32¢
Total $ 3157 % 11 ¢ (6) $ 31,58(

There were no debt securities that had bean unrealized loss position for more than 12ithe as of December 31, 2012 or
December 31, 2011. There were no debt securitias imrealized loss position for less than 12 moattDecember 31, 2012 and there were -
debt securities that had been in an unrealizeddosgion for less than 12 months at December @112The aggregate unrealized loss on thes
securities as of December 31, 2011 was $6.0 thousaa the fair value was $8.0 million. The Compeoagsidered the decline in market value
for these securities to be primarily attributaldectirrent economic conditions. As it was not mdkely than not that the Company would be
required to sell these securities before the ragoektheir amortized cost basis, which may be mgtuthe Company did not consider these
investments to be other-than-temporarily impairedfaDecember 31, 2011.
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6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of thewaithg (in thousands):

Estimated Useful December 31
Life (In Years) 2012 2011
Furniture and fixture 5 $ 68 $ 66
Computer equipment and softw: 3 284 254
Shorter of useful
Leasehold improvements life or remaining 50& 497
lease tern
857 817
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (71¢) (650
Property and equipment, r $ 13¢ $ 167

7. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses consist of the followiingtlfousands):

December 31

2012 2011
Research cos $ 6,55¢ $ 2,27¢
Payroll and employee benef 962 58€
Professional fee 39¢ 472
Vacation 12¢ 79
Accrued interest on notes paya 59t 177
Other 97 —
Total accrued expenses and other current liab $ 8,74C $ 3,59(

8. Loan and Security Agreement

On May 23, 2011, the Company entered irltaa and security agreement (the "Loan and Sgcigteement") with Oxford Finance LL
and General Electric Capital Corporation (colleelyy the "Lender") pursuant to which the Lenderegglrto lend the Company up to
$25.0 million. Upon entering into the Loan and SéguAgreement, the Company borrowed $6.3 millioonfi the Lender on May 23, 2011
("Term Loan A"), $6.3 million on November 21, 20¢'Term Loan B") and an additional $12.5 million bfay 29, 2012 ("Term Loan C"). Tt
Company's obligations under the Loan and Securige@ment are secured by a first priority securitgriest in substantially all of the assets of
the Company.

Interest on the outstanding Term Loan A pagable on a monthly basis through and includiegdinber 1, 2011. Principal and interest
payments on Term Loan A are payable in 36 equalihipimstallments beginning December 1, 2011 thifoNgvember 1, 2014, with a final
balloon payment of $0.6 million due upon maturityMovember 22, 2014. Interest is payable on Teranl& at an annual interest rate of
10.16%. Interest on the outstanding Term Loan B pegmble on a monthly
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8. Loan and Security Agreement (Continued)

basis through and including June 1, 2012. Prin@pal interest payments on Term Loan B are payat3€ iequal monthly installments
beginning June 1, 2012, through November 1, 201t avfinal balloon payment of $0.6 million due upmaturity on November 22, 2014.
Interest is payable on Term Loan B at an annualtést rate of 10%. Interest on Term Loan C waslgaya@n a monthly basis through, and
including, November 1, 2012. Principal and intepstments on Term Loan C are payable in 24 moritistallments beginning December 1,
2012, through November 1, 2014 with a final ball@ayment of $1.3 million upon maturity on NovemB@&r 2014. Interest is payable on Tt
Loan C at an annual interest rate of 10%.

Upon the last payment date of the amouotsolved under the Loan and Security Agreement, dredn the maturity date of one of the
Term Loans, on the date of any prepayment or onl#lte of acceleration in the event of a defauét,Zlompany will be required to pay the
Lender a final payment fee equal to 3.5% of anthefTerm Loans borrowed. In addition, if the Compespays all or a portion of the Term
Loans prior to maturity, it will pay the Lender eepayment fee of three percent of the total amptepaid if the prepayment occurs prior to
first anniversary of the funding of the relevantd.oan, two percent of the total amount prepaithéf prepayment occurs between the first
and second anniversary of the funding of the releVarm Loan, and one percent of the total amotepaid if the prepayment occurs on or
after the second anniversary of the funding ofrehevant Term Loan.

Upon the occurrence of an event of defanduding payment defaults, breaches of covenantsaterial adverse change in the collateral,
the Company's business, operations or conditioauifiial or otherwise) and certain levies, attachtmand other restraints on the Company's
business, the interest rate will be increased\®y fiercentage points and all outstanding obligatieii become immediately due and payable.
The Loan and Security Agreement also contains gestine acceleration clause, which provides thedserihe ability to demand repayment of
the loan early upon a material adverse changegfased. The portion of the Term Loans that is nag evithin 12 months of December 31, 2
has been classified as long-term, as the Compdievbe a material adverse change is remote.

In connection with each Term Loan, the Campissued Warrants to the Lender to purchase @xR&res of the Company's Series A-1
Preferred Stock (the "Warrant"). The Warrants aer@sable, in whole or in part, immediately, arad la per share exercise price of $81.42
may be exercised on a cashless basis. The Wagacishave a term of 10 years. The exercise prigeb@madjusted in the event the Company
issues shares of the Series A-1 at a price loveer #81.42 per share. The Warrants are classifiediability in the Company's balance sheet
and will be remeasured at their estimated fair @tueach reporting period. The changes in fairesare recorded as other (expense) income
the statement of operations.

The initial fair value of the Warrant issli@ connection with Term Loan A was $182.6 thoukand was recorded as a discount to Term
Loan A. The fair value of the warrant at Decemhbkr2)12 was $178.1 thousand. The Company alsatipaidender a facility fee of
$250.0 thousand and reimbursed the Lender certaits @ssociated with the Loan and Security Agreeofeapproximately $117.0 thousand,
both of which are also recorded as a discount tonTi®an A. The discount is being amortized to iestrexpense over the 42 month period the
Term Loan A is outstanding using the effective iiet¢ method.
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The initial fair value of the Warrant issi@ connection with Term Loan B was $177.6 thodsand was recorded as a discount to Term
Loan B. The fair value of the warrant at Decembier2012 was $180.7 thousand. The Company also tegal the Lender for certain costs
associated with Term Loan B of approximately $18dusand, which is also recorded as a discounetmToan B. The discount is being
amortized to interest expense over the 36 montioghéinat Term Loan B is outstanding using the difecinterest method.

The initial fair value of the Warrant issi@ connection with Term Loan C was $379.7 thodsamd was recorded as a discount to Term
Loan C. The fair value of the warrant at Decemtier2®12 was $370.9 thousand. The Company also tegal the Lender for certain costs
associated with the Loan and Security Agreemeanppfoximately $31.0 thousand, which is also reabatea discount to Term Loan C. The
discount is being amortized to interest expense thee30 month period that Term Loan C is outstagdising the effective interest method.

Future principal payments under the Loash &eacurity Agreement at December 31, 2012, arelksvs (in thousands):

Principal

Payments
2013 8,18¢
2014 13,15¢
Total $ 21,34«
Current portion of net payab 8,18
Discount on current portion of note paya (387)
Current portion of net payable, net of disca $ 7,80C
Discount on noncurrent portion of note paye (152)
Note payable, net of current portion and discc $ 13,00t

9. Convertible Preferred Stock
The rights, preferences, and privilegethefCompany's New Preferred Stock are as follows:

Conversior—Each holder of New Preferred Stock has the rigttheir option at any time, to convert any sucireb of New Preferred
Stock into such number of fully paid shares of camrstock as is determined by dividing the origipaichase price of $81.42 by the
conversion price ("Optional Conversion"). The casien price of the New Preferred Stock as of Deaam®i, 2012 was $8.142 per share (the
"Conversion Price"), which represents a conversiio of one share of New Preferred Stock intodleares of common stock. Upon the
Optional Conversion, the holder of the converteavNReeferred Stock is entitled to payment of allraed, whether or not declared, but unpaid
dividend in shares of the common stock of the Cama the then effective conversion price of shafdsew Preferred Stock.

Each share of the New Preferred Stocktisraatically convertible into fully paid and non-assable shares of common stock at the
applicable Conversion Price then in effect upona(1)
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vote of the holders of at least 70% of the outstaqdhares of Series A-1, Series A-2 and Seriesté\«dnvert all shares of New Preferred
Stock or (2) the common stock becoming listed fading on a national stock exchange ("Special MamgldConversion™). Upon a Special
Mandatory Conversion, all accrued, whether or mafated, but unpaid dividends shall be paid in casthares of common stock (calculated
based on the then effective conversion price oSes A-1) at the discretion of the Company'srBad Directors.

Redemptior-The shares of New Preferred Stock are not cugreatieemable.

Dividends—Holders of shares of Series A-1 are entitled teree dividends at a rate of 8% per annum, compioagrahnually, which
accrue on a quarterly basis commencing on theafassuance of the shares of Series A-1. Divideardspayable, as accrued, upon liquidation
event of sale, and conversion to common stock seritied above. The holders of shares of Seriesafe hlso entitled to dividends declared or
paid on any shares of common stock.

Following payment in full of required diwidds to the holders of Series A-1, holders of Seki2 are entitled to receive dividends at a
of 8% per annum, compounding annually, which acome quarterly basis commencing on the date aiisse of the shares of Series A-2.
Dividends are payable, as accrued, upon liquidageant of sale, and conversion to common stodeasribed above. The holders of share
Series A-2 are also entitled to dividends declareplaid on any shares of common stock.

Following payment in full of required diwidds to the holders of Series A-1 and Series AoRldns of Series A-3 are entitled to receive
dividends at a rate of 8% per annum, compoundimgialty, which accrue on a quarterly basis commenoimthe date of issuance of the sh
of Series A-3. Dividends are payable, as accrugdnliquidation, event of sale and conversion tmemn stock as described above. The
holders of shares of Series A-3 are also entitteditidends declared or paid on any shares of comstack.

Without regard to the payment of requiraddgnds to the holders of Series A-1, Series Ax@ Series A-3, holders of Series A-5 are
entitled to receive the Series A-5 Accruing Dividegraid in shares of Series A-6 as described in hdtélolders of shares of Series A-6 are
entitled to receive dividends on shares of Serids when and if declared by the Board of Directatra rate to be determined by the Board of
Directors. Dividends are payable, as accrued, ligaidation, event of sale and conversion to comrstmtk as described above. The holde
shares of Series A-5 and Series A-6 are also edititl dividends declared or paid on any sharesmiton stock.

Following payment in full of required divddds to the holders of Series A-1, Series A-2,6SeAi-3 and Series A-5, holders of Series A-4
are entitled to receive an accrued dividend payabdbares of stock, when and if declared by tharBof Directors at a rate to be determined
by the Board of Directors. Dividends are payabseaecrued, upon liquidation, event of sale, and/emion to common stock as described
above. The holders of shares of Series A-4 areaaittied to dividends declared or paid on any et@&f common stock.

Dividends on the New Preferred Stock angpte, at the sole discretion of the Board of Dtives; in cash or in shares of the Company's
common stock, when and if declared by the Boamdigdctors, upon liquidation or upon an event oesal the current market price of shares o
common
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stock. Upon Optional Conversion, dividends are plya shares of the common stock at the then &ffeconversion price of shares of New
Preferred Stock.

The Company has accrued dividends of $8lm $10.7 million and $1.6 million on Series -A-2 and A-3, respectively, as of
December 31, 2012.

Voting—The New Preferred Stockholders are entitled t@ vogether with the holders of the common stocresclass on an as-if
converted basis.

In addition, as long as the shares of Sekid are outstanding, the holders of Series Aeling as a separate class, have the right to elec
two members of the Company's Board of Directors.

Liquidation—The shares of Series A-1 rank senior to all ottesses of New Preferred Stock. Series A-2 rankisijuo Series A-1 and
senior to Series A-3, Series A-4, Series A-5 amieS&-6. Series A-3, Series A-5 and Series A-&ragually but junior to Series A-1 and
Series A-2 and senior to Series A-4. Series A-&sa®nior to the Company's common stock.

In the event of a liquidation, dissoluti@n,winding-up of the Company, the holders of tlegi&s A-1 are entitled to be paid first out of the
assets available for distribution, before any payn®made to the Series A-2, Series A-3, Serids 8eries A-5 and Series &-Payment to tt
holders of Series A-1 shall consist of the origisaliance price of $81.42, plus all accrued bugtitchgividends. After the distribution to the
holders Series A-1, the holders of Series A-2, béllentitled to receive an amount per share equaktoriginal purchase price per share of
$81.42, plus any accrued but unpaid dividends.rAfte distribution to the holders Series A-1 ande3eA-2, the holders of Series A-3,

Series A-5 and Series A-6, will be entitled to reeean amount per share equal to the original @selprice per share of $81.42, plus any
accrued but unpaid or declared and unpaid dividesglappropriate. After the distribution to thedsok Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3,
Series A-5 and Series A-6, the holders of Serigsviill be entitled to receive an amount per shapgatto the original purchase price per shar
of $81.42, plus any declared and unpaid dividetidee assets of the Company are insufficient tp the full preferential amounts to the
holders of Series A-1, the assets will be distedutatably among the holders of Series A-1 in pridqo to their aggregate liquidation
preference amounts. If the assets of the Companinaufficient to pay the full preferential amoutdshe holders of Series A-2, the assets wil
be distributed ratably among the holders of Seki&sin proportion to their aggregate liquidatioreference amounts. If the assets of the
Company are insufficient to pay the full preferahtimounts to the holders of Series A-3, Seriesahd Series A-6, the assets will be
distributed ratably among the holders of Series, &&ies A-5 and Series &in proportion to their aggregate liquidation greince amounts.
the assets of the Company are insufficient to payfull preferential amounts to the holders of &&#-4, the assets will be distributed ratably
among the holders of Series A-4 in proportion &irthggregate liquidation preference amounts. Adteliquidation preference payments have
been made to the holders of the New Preferred Stbelholders of the New Preferred Stock shalligigette in the distribution of the remaini
assets with the holders of the Company's commak €to an as-if converted basis.

In the event of, and simultaneously wittg tlosing of an event of sale of the Company &iseéd in the Company's Amended Certificate
of Incorporation), the Company shall redeem athef shares of Series A-1, Series A-2, Series AeBeS A-4, Series A-5 and Series A-6 then
outstanding at
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the Special Liquidation Price, as defined. If therg of sale involves consideration other than cshSpecial Liquidation Price may be paid
with such consideration having a value equal to3pecial Liquidation Price. The Special Liquidat®rice shall be equal to an amount per
share, which would be received by each New PrafeBteckholder if, in connection with the event alfes all the consideration paid in
exchange for the assets or the shares of capitekt sf the Company was actually paid to and reckbsethe Company, and the Company was
immediately liquidated thereafter and its assedfriduted pursuant to the liquidation terms above.

10. Stockholders' Deficit
Common Stoek-The Company has reserved the following numbehafes of common stock (in thousands):

December 31

2012 2011
Conversion of Series-1 Preferred Stoc 10,00C 10,00(
Conversion of Series-2 Preferred Stoc 9,83: 9,83:
Conversion of Series-3 Preferred Stoc 1,422 1,42%
Conversion of Series-4 Preferred Stoc 40 40
Conversion of Series-5 Preferred Stoc 70 70
Conversion of Series-6 Preferred Stoc 8,00( 8,00(
Stock options and Warrar 19,65¢ 19,12¢
Total 49,02( 48,49
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The following tables summarize the finaheissets and liabilities measured at fair valu@ oecurring basis in the accompanying balance
sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thdgkan

As of December 31, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash $ 1132 § — % — 1,13¢
Money market funds(1 16,02( — — 16,02(
Domestic corporate commercial papel — 1,49¢ — 1,49¢
Marketable Securitie:
Domestic corporate commercial papel — 4,00( — 4,00(
Stock asset( — — 407 407
$ 17,15 $ 549¢ $ 407 23,06(
Liabilities
Warrant liability(3) $ — % — $ 8 83C
Other liability(3) — — 24,38’ 24,38’
Stock liability(3) 24k 24~
$ — 3 — $ 25,46 25,46:
As of December 31, 201
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash $ 5,00 $ — 3 — 5,00
Money market funds(1 20,12t — — 20,12t
Marketable securitie:
Domestic corporate debt securities — 10,25¢ — 10,25¢
Domestic corporate commercial papel — 18,99¢ — 18,99¢
U.S. government securities( — 2,32¢ — 2,32¢
Stock asset(z — — 3,37¢ 3,37¢
$ 25,12¢ $ 31,58( $ 3,37¢ 60,08’
Liabilities
Warrant liability(3) $ — 9 — $  45C 45(
Other liability(3) — — 10,47( 10,47(
$ — 3 — $ 10,92( 10,92(

Q) Fair value is based upon quoted market prices.

(2) Fair value is based upon quoted prices foilainmstruments in active markets, quoted priagsdentical or similar

instruments in markets that are not active and th-based valuatio

112




Table of Contents

Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
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techniques for which all significant assumptions aloservable in the market or can be corroboragezbbervable market
data for substantially the full term of the assktputs are obtained from various sources includeket participants,
dealers and brokers.

3) Fair value is determined using the probability-viégl expected return model ("PWERM"), as discussdolw. Changes
in the fair value of the Level 3 assets and litibsi are recorded as other income (expense) istéhement of operation

The stock asset represents the prepaiddmiaf the accrued stock dividend to issue to Moftlj prior to the conversion of our preferred
stock into common stock upon the listing of our coom stock on a national exchange, shares of S&repreferred stock ("Series A-6"), and
(2) subsequent to such conversion, shares of sumum stock (see notes 9 and 13), and the amouaseérch and development expense
related to stock dividend amounts being recogniatably over the estimated per patient treatmenbgainder Work Statement NB-2 (see
note 13). The stock liability represents the acdro@lance of the stock dividend to issue to Notl)gprior to the conversion of our preferred
stock into common stock upon the listing of our coom stock on a national exchange, shares of S&rtepreferred stock ("Series A-6"), and
(2) subsequent to such conversion, shares of sumum stock (see notes 9 and 13), and the amouwnseérch and development expense
related to stock dividend amounts being recogniagably over the estimated per patient treatmenbgender Work Statement NB-1 (see
note 13). The fair value of the stock asset andksiability are based upon the fair value of thexi€s A-6 as determined using PWERM, whick
considers the value of preferred and common staskdbupon an analysis of the future values fortg@sisuming various future outcomes.
Accordingly, share value is based upon the proliglwveighted present value of expected future mshdlows, considering each of the poss
future events, discount rate as determined usiagdipital asset pricing model, as well as the sigind preferences of each share class.
PWERM is complex as it requires numerous assumptielating to potential future outcomes of equignce, the use of this method can be
applied: (1) when possible future outcomes canrbdipted with reasonable certainty; and (2) whemehs a complex capital structure
(i.e., several classes of preferred and commorkstdbe Company utilized the PWERM approach irvatiation based on the Company's
expectations regarding the time to becoming adigteblicly-traded entity as well as the Compa®gsies A-1 financing and the initiation of
the BA058-SC Phase 3 study that resolved sufficientrtainty regarding a discrete range of outcatm&tscould be identified and evaluated.
As such, the valuation of the stock asset andliiglbvas determined using Level 3 inputs.

The warrant liability represents the lidtgifor the warrants issued to the placement ageodnnection with the Series AFinancings an
to the lenders in connection with the Loan and 8gcAgreement (see note 8). The warrant liabiigtyalculated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing method. This method of valuationlirtes using inputs such as the fair value of then@any's various classes of preferred st
historical volatility, the term of the warrant arisk free interest rates. The fair value of the @any's shares of common and preferred stock
was estimated using PWERM, as described aboveudtsthe valuation of the warrant liability is deténed using Level 3 inputs.

The other liability represents the lialyilib issue shares of Series A-6 to Nordic for smwirendered in connection with the Company's
Phase 3 clinical studies of BA058-SC and BA058-8§Be(note 13). The liability is calculated basedughe number of shares earned by
Nordic through the performance of clinical triahdgees multiplied by the estimated fair value of ompany's Series-6
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at each reporting date. The estimated fair valub@®Series A-6 is determined using PWERM, as desdrabove. As such the valuation of the
warrant liability is determined using Level 3 input

The Company's Level 3 fair value measuramealated to its stock asset, stock liabilityyraat liability and other liability are based ug
the fair value of the Company's preferred stocle fdilowing table provides quantitative informatiahout the fair value measurement of the
Company's preferred stock, including significanbloservable inputs:

Valuation

Instrument Technigue Unobservable Input Estimate
Preferred Stock PWERM  Time to becoming a listed, publicly- ¢ 0.0 — 0.8
traded entity (years
¢ Probability of BAO58 coming to e 70% — 80%
market
¢ Discount rate * 20% — 30%
¢ Long-term revenue growth rate(1) * 2% — 117%
e Long-term revenue growth rate(2) e 8% — 63%
e Long-term pre-tax operating margine 13% — 79%
3
e Long-term pre-tax operating margine 28% — 73%
4
¢ Discount for lack of marketability e 22% — 50%
¢ Revenue multiple(5) e 33-7.2
Market Comparable
Companie

@

)

®3)

(4)

(®)

Estimated long-term revenue growth rate in oneatermas the above range and an average of appteiyn24% over
16 revenue years.

Estimated long-term revenue growth rate in a secoedario has the above range and an average raixapptely 20%
over 16 revenue years.

Estimated long-term pretax operating margione scenario has the above range after achieasij\e pretax operating
margin and an average of approximately 69% fordaty.

Estimated long-term pretax operating margin in@ad scenario has the above range after achieasigiye pretax
operating margin and an average of approximateldg &% 17 years.

Represents amounts used when the Company has tfetdrthat market participants would use such miekipvhen
valuing the Company's preferred sto

As of December 31, 2012, the stock dividasset, warrant liability, other liability and skdebility have fair values of $0.4 million,
$0.8 million, $24.4 million and $0.2 million, resg#ely. Significant changes in the significant bservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement of the Company's preferred stock iatisn would result in a significantly differentifasalue measurement of the stock dividend
asset, warrant liability and other liability. Geally, a change in the assumption used for the fritiyaof successful development is
accompanied by a directionally similar change maksumption used for the long-term revenue groatthand long-term pre-tax operating
margin and estimated fair value measurement o€trapany's preferred stock.
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Significant increases (decreases) in theifitant unobservable inputs used in the fair gaheasurement of the warrant liability and othe
liability in isolation would result in a significdly higher (lower) fair value measurement. Gengrallchange in the assumption used for the
probability of successful development is accompaibiea directionally similar change in the assuoptised for the lontgrm revenue growl
rate and long-term pretax operating margin.

The following table provides a roll forwanfithe fair value of the assets, where fair vadugetermined using Level 3 inputs (in
thousands):

Balance at January 1, 20 $ —
Additions 3,48
Change in fair valu (203)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 3,37¢
Expense recognize (4,080
Additions 39¢
Change in fair valu 71C
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 407

The following table provides a roll forwanfithe fair value of the liabilities, where faialue is determined using Level 3 inputs (in
thousands):

Balance at January 1, 20 $ —
Additions 10,75¢
Change in fair valu 161
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 10,92(
Additions 11,76:
Change in fair valu 2,77¢
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 25,46

Additions represent (1) the value of theea®r liability for additional accrued shares tfck issuable to Nordic for services rendered in
connection with the Company's Phase 3 clinicalystf BA058-SC and Phase 2 clinical study of BAO9B-{Bee note 13) and (2) warrants
issued to lenders in connection with additionakrbeings under the Company's loan and security ageeé

The fair value of the Company's notes plyabdetermined using current applicable ratesiimilar instruments as of the balance sheet
date. The carrying value of the Company's noteslplayapproximates fair value because the Comparigi®st rate is near current market
rates. The fair value of the Company's notes payabls determined using Level 3 inputs.

12. License Agreements

On September 27, 2005, the Company enteted license agreement (the "Ipsen Agreemend"graended, with SCRAS S.A.S, a Fre
corporation on behalf of itself and its affiliatEsllectively, "Ipsen”). Under the Ipsen Agreemdpgen granted to the Company an exclusive
right and license
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under certain Ipsen compound technology and refaaéehts to research, develop, manufacture and eoonalize certain compounds and
related products in all countries, except Japan(amject to certain co-marketing and co-promotights retained by Ipsen) France. With
respect to France, if Ipsen exercises its co-mengketnd co-promotion rights then Ipsen may elecet®ive a percentage of the aggregate
revenue from the sale of products by both partidsrance (subject to a mid-double digit percentag® and Ipsen shall bear a corresponding
percentage of the costs and expenses incurredthypbdies with respect to such marketing and ptameefforts in France; Ipsen shall also
pay Radius a mid-single digit royalty on Ipsenlecdble portion of aggregate revenue from the sijwoducts by both parties in France.
BAO58 (the Company's bone growth drug) is subjethé Ipsen Agreement. Ipsen also granted the Coynga exclusive right and license
under the Ipsen compound technology and relatezhfsto make and have made compounds or proddapamn. Ipsen also granted the
Company an exclusive right and license under aettaen formulation technology and related patsalsly for purposes of enabling the
Company to develop, manufacture and commerciabngpounds and products covered by the compound aéawnlicense in all countries,
except Japan and (subject to certain co-marketidgpeao-promotion rights retained by Ipsen) Frameeonsideration for these licenses, the
Company made a nonrefundable, non-creditable payai&250.0 thousand to Ipsen, which was expenseidgl 2005. The Ipsen Agreement
provides for further payments in the range of €1illion to €36.0 million ($13.2 million to $47.5itfion) to Ipsen upon the achievement of
certain development and commercialization milessapecified in the Ipsen Agreement, and for therpat of fixed 5% royalties on net sales
of any product by the Company or our sublicensees country-byeountry basis until the later of the last to exgife¢he licensed patents or -

a period of 10 years after the first commercia¢ salsuch country of any product that includesdbepound licensed from Ipsen or any analog
thereof.

If the Company sublicenses the rights kaehfrom Ipsen, then the Company will also be meglio pay Ipsen a percentage of certain
payments received from such sublicensee (in liemitdstone payments not achieved at the time di sublicense). The applicable percentage
is in the low double digit range. In addition, lilet Company or its sublicensees commercialize augtdtiat includes a compound discoverel
it based on or derived from confidential Ipsen krwmow, it will be obligated to pay to Ipsen a fixkeav single digit royalty on net sales of such
product on a country-bgeuntry basis until the later of the last to expiféts patents that cover such product or for @opeof 10 years after tt
first commercial sale of such product in such courih connection with the Ipsen Agreement, the @any recorded approximately
$0.7 million, $1.0 million and $1.2 million in remech and developments costs in the years endechibere31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The costs were incurred by Ipsendnadged to the Company for the manufacture of linical supply of the licensed compound.

On May 11, 2011, the Company entered irdeand amendment to the Ipsen Agreement purswavitith Ipsen agreed to accept shares
of Series A-1 in lieu of cash as considerationafonilestone payment due to Ipsen following thdatian of the first BA0O58 Phase 3 study. The
number of shares of Series A-1 to be issued tanlpses determined based upon the U.S. dollar exeéheatg for the euro two business days
prior to closing. On May 17, 2011, the Company éski7,326 shares of Series A-1 to Ipsen to séii@bligation. Accordingly, the Company
recorded research and development expense of $llighrduring the year ended December 31, 2011. &tpense represents the fair value of
the Series A-1 shares of $81.42 per share.
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BA058-SC Phase 3 Clinical StugyOn March 29, 2011, the Company and Nordic entereda Clinical Trial Services Agreement, a
Work Statement NB-1 (the "Work Statement NB-1") e@nguch Clinical Trial Services Agreement and atesl Stock Issuance Agreement.
Pursuant to the Work Statement NB-1, Nordic is ngangathe Phase 3 clinical study (the "Phase 3 Ginstudy") of BA058-SC and Nordic
will be compensated for such services in a comhinaif cash and shares of stock.

In December 2011, the Company enteredantamendment to the Work Statement NBie "First Amendment"). Pursuant to the orig
terms of the Work Statement NB-1, the study waset@onducted in 10 countries at a specified nurobsites within each country. The terms
of the First Amendment (1) provided for two additid countries (the United States and India) in Whee study will be conducted,

(2) specified a certain number of sites within eagbh additional country for the conduct of thedgtiand (3) amended various terms and
provisions of the Work Statement NB-1 to refleat #ddition of such countries and sites within tiuely's parameters. Payments to be made &
the Company to Nordic under the First Amendmertonnection with the conduct of the study in suctlittahal countries are denominated in
both euros and U.S. dollars and total up to bott7€700 ($946,359) and $289,663, respectively,Herlt5 additional study sites in India
contemplated by the First Amendment and up to BdtB million ($1.6 million) and $143,369, respectiydor the five additional study sites
the United States contemplated by the First Amemdme

In June 2012, the Company entered intcarskamendment to the Work Statement NB-1(the "S@¢éanendment"). Pursuant to the
original terms of the Work Statement NB-1, as aneehloly the First Amendment, the study was to be ected in 12 countries at a specified
number of sites within each country. The termshef$econd Amendment (1) increased the overall nuoflsites by adding sites in Europe,
Brazil and Argentina and removing other sites,sf®cified a certain number of sites within eachnégufor the conduct of the study, and
(3) amended various terms and provisions of thek/#tatement NBE to reflect additional services provided at erigtsites and the addition
the new study sites within the study's paramefdre.Second Amendment also provided that cash pagrieiNordic under the Clinical Trial
Services Agreement as well as the payment of slvdusteck under the related Stock Issuance Agreemiireach be reduced by an amount of
€11,941 ($15,745) per subject for any subjects &déh India or the United States. Such reductgire| be applied in pro rata monthly
installments. Payments to be made by the CompaNyptdic under the Second Amendment in connectidh thie additional services provided
at existing sites and the conduct of the studhainew study sites are denominated in both eurd&JaB. dollars and total €3.7 million
($4.9 million) and $205,540, respectively.

Pursuant to the Work Statement NB-1, then@@any is required to make certain per patient paysndenominated in both euros and U.S.
dollars for each patient enrolled in the PhaseiBicl Study followed by monthly payments for theration of the study and final payments in
two equal euro-denominated installments and twakdusS. dollar-denominated installments. ChangaheadClinical Study schedule may alter
the timing, but not the aggregate amounts, of thenents. The Work Statement NB-1, as amended oardger 9, 2011 and June 18, 2012,
provides for a total of up to approximately €41.@ion ($54.3 million) of euro-denominated paymeatsd a total of up to approximately
$3.2 million of U.S. dollar-denominated paymentgiothe course of the Phase 3 Clinical Study.
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Pursuant to the Stock Issuance Agreemsrareended, Nordic agreed to purchase the equivali€¥71,864 of Series A-5 at $8.142 per
share, and the Company sold 64,430 shares of Sefia® Nordic on May 17, 2011 for proceeds of $328 to the Former Operating
Company. These shares were exchanged in the Mergan aggregate of 6,443 shares of Series A-5.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNioadlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock dimidls, payable in shares of Series A-6 prior t
the conversion of the Company's preferred stoakéommon stock, and shares of common stock if tragany's preferred stock has been
converted in accordance with its amended certdicdtincorporation, having an aggregate value ofou@36.8 million ($48.5 million), or the
Nordic Accruing Dividend. In the event Nordic sele shares of series-5 preferred stock or in the event the sharesigs®-5 preferred
stock are converted into common stock in accordantteour amended certificate of incorporationsthight to receive the Nordic Accruing
Dividend will terminate, but a right to receive equivalent number of shares of series A-6 prefestedk or common stock, as applicable, will
remain with Nordic as a contractual right under$teck Issuance Agreement.

The Nordic Accruing Dividend is determintgased upon the estimated period that will be reguio complete the Phase 3 Clinical Study.
On the last business day of each calendar quadeh( an "Accrual Date"), beginning with the quagteded June 30, 2011, the Company has
liability to issue shares of Series A-6 (or comnstwock, after the conversion of the Company's prefestock into common stock) to Nordic
that is referred to as the Applicable Quarterly Amioand is equal to (1) €36.8 million ($48.5 mitljaninus the aggregate value of any prior
Nordic Accruing Dividend accrued divided by (2) thember of calendar quarters it will take to congline Phase 3 Clinical Study.
calculate the aggregate number of shares due Widioreach calendar quarter, the Company contegtportion of €36.8 million
($48.5 million) to accrue in such calendar quairiey U.S. dollars using the simple average of tkehange rate for buying U.S. dollars with
euros for all Mondays in such calendar quarter. Company then calculates the aggregate numbemroésho accrue in such calendar quarter
by dividing the U.S. dollar equivalent of the Apgalble Quarterly Amount, by the greater of (1) thie inarket value as of the applicable
Accrual Date and (2) $8.142 and rounding down #silting quotient to the nearest whole number. Shelnes due to Nordic will be issued
when declared or paid by the Company's board etthrs, who are required to do so upon Nordic'sesty or upon an event of sale. During
the year ended December 31, 2012, additional irdtion became available that required the Compamptiate the estimated period it will
take to complete the Phase 3 Clinical Study, wighart of the calculation of the Applicable QuastéAmount, as described above. The
estimated period that it will take to complete @lmical Study was updated from a total of 11 cdlmquarters as of December 31, 2011 to a
total of 15 calendar quarters as of December 31228uch change in the number of calendar quétteil take to complete the Clinical Stu
resulted in a lower number of shares due to Nadiof December 31, 2012 and will result in a lomember of shares due to Nordic through
the end of the Phase 3 Clinical Study. The redndtiche number of shares due to Nordic has no étnpa the total amount of expense to be
recognized in the statement of operations. As afeb#er 31, 2012, 309,264 shares of Series A-6 dugrdo Nordic, or, after the automatic
conversion into common stock of the Company's cdible preferred stock, 3,092,640 shares of comstook.
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Prior to the issuance of shares of stodkdadic in satisfaction of the Nordic Accruing Dildnd, the liability to issue shares of stock is
being accounted for as a liability in the Compaibgkance sheet. As of December 31, 2012, the &iirevof the liability is $23.4 million based
upon the fair value of the Series6fas determined using PWERM (see note 11). Changhs fair value from the date of accrual to tlaedof
issuance of the shares are recorded as a gaisoml@ther (expense) income in the statement efations.

The Company recognizes research and dawelopexpense for the amounts due to Nordic undewtbrk Statement NB-1 ratably over
the estimated per patient treatment period beginapon enroliment in the Phase 3 Clinical Studya bwenty-month period. The Company
recorded $30.8 million and $5.1 million of reseaactd development expense during the years endeehiier 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, for per patient costs incurred faigras that had enrolled in the Phase 3 Clinicati$t During the year ended December 31, 2
the Company also recorded approximately $11.0aniltif research and development expense associitethe costs incurred for preparatory
and other start-up costs to initiate the Phaser8dal Study.

As of December 31, 2012, in addition to $28.4 million liability that is reflected in othé&abilities on the balance sheet for the Nordic
Accruing Dividend, as noted above, the Company(hpa liability of $0.2 million reflected in accrdeexpenses and other current liabilities on
the balance sheet resulting from services provigeNordic which are payable in the form of a stdokdend, the fair value of which is less
than the services provided by Nordic as of Decer8ttef012, and (2) a liability of $5.2 million thiatreflected in accrued expenses and other
current liabilities on the balance sheet resultiogn services provided by Nordic which are payableash.

BA058-SC Phase 3 Clinical Extension Stadyn October 22, 2012, the Company entered intotet_ef Intent, or the October Letter of
Intent, with Nordic, which provides that we and Niorwill, subject to compliance by the Company wétrtain requirements of its Certificate
of Incorporation and applicable securities lawgiatate in good faith to enter into a Work StatetéB-3 (the "Work Statement NB-3").

The October Letter of Intent further praasathat Nordic will perform an extension study valaate six months of standard-of-care
osteoporosis management following the completiothefl8-month BA058-SC Phase 3 Clinical Study. Upoceptance of the October Letter
of Intent, the Company was required to make arlrpayment of €806,468 ($1.1 million).

In February 2013, the Company entered\Witok Statement NB-3, under the Clinical Trial Sees Agreement and a related Stock
Issuance Agreement. As noted above, pursuant td/thr& Statement NB-3, Nordic will perform an extemsstudy to evaluate six months of
standard-of-care osteoporosis management follottiegompletion of BA0O58-SC Phase 3 Clinical Studgt will be compensated for such
services in a combination of cash and shares oksto

Payments in cash to be made to Nordic umk Statement NB-3 are denominated in both earmusU.S. dollars and total up to
€4.5 million ($6.0 million based on the exchange a4 of February 21, 2013) and $579,495, respégctiveaddition, we will issue to Nordic,
subject to the Stock Issuance Agreement Amendrskates of our series A-6 preferred stock havinglaevof up to €4.5 million ($6.0 million
based on the exchange rate as of February 21, 208350.3 million, as
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additional payment for services to be provided unke Work Statement NB-3 and the Services Agre¢men

The Stock Issuance Agreement provides beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 201@&di¢ is entitled to receive quarterly stc
dividends in connection with services performedamdork Statement NB-3, payable in shares of séiégpreferred stock, or shares of
common stock if our preferred stock has been aufoally converted into common stock in accordand wur certificate of incorporation,
having an aggregate value of up to €4.5 million@3$8illion based on the exchange rate as of Fep2Br2013) and $0.3 million. In the event
Nordic sells the shares of serie-5 preferred stock or in the event the sharesésé\-5 preferred stock are converted into comistogk in
accordance with our amended certificate of incapon, this right to receive the Nordic Accruingvidiend will terminate, but a right to
receive an equivalent number of shares of seriégfeferred stock or common stock, as applicabiléremain with Nordic as a contractual
right under the Stock Issuance Agreement.

BAO58-TD Phase 2 Clinical StugyOn July 26, 2012, the Company entered into a Lefténtent (the "Letter of Intent") with Nordic,
which provides that the Company and Nordic wilbjsat to compliance by the Company with certairursments of its Certificate of
Incorporation and applicable securities laws, nieg@in good faith to enter into (1) a Work StatetéB-2 (the "Work Statement NB-2"), a
draft of which is attached to the Letter of Inteamid (2) an amendment to the Amended and Restatel Bsuance Agreement. The Work
Statement NB-2 is contemplated by the terms ofafi@cal Trial Services Agreement.

The Letter of Intent further provided tiNgdrdic would begin providing clinical trial serviseelating to the Phase 2 clinical study of the
Company's BA058-TD product (the "Phase 2 Clinidaldg"), as contemplated by the Services Agreemedtiae draft Work Statement NB-2.

In February 2013, we executed the final \@tatement NB-2, under the Clinical Trial Serviéegeement and a related Stock Issuance
Agreement. As noted above, pursuant to the WorteStant NB-2, Nordic will provide clinical trial sdces relating to the Phase 2 Clinical
Study and will be compensated for such servicesdambination of cash and shares of stock. Paynirectssh to be made by us to Nordic
under Work Statement NB-2 are denominated in bothsand U.S. dollars and total up to €3.6 milli$a.8 million based on the exchange
rate as of February 21, 2013) and $257,853, reispbctin addition, we will issue to Nordic sharefsour series A-6 preferred stock having a
value of up to $2.9 million, as additional paymemtservices to be provided under the Work Staterii2 and the Services Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNoadlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock diidls in connection with services performed
under Work Statement NB-2, payable in shares dESé-6, or shares of common stock if the Compapreserred stock has been
automatically converted in accordance with its adeehcertificate of incorporation. The Nordic AcergiDividend related to the Phase 2
Clinical Study is determined based upon the est@thaeriod that will be required to complete thegeh Clinical Study. On each Accrual
Date, beginning with the quarter ended DecembeR@12, the Company will recognize a liability tgug shares of Series A-6 to Nordic that i
referred to as the Applicable Quarterly Amount enequal to (1) $2.9 million minus the aggregatiei@af any prior Nordic Accruing
Dividend related to the Phase 2 Clinical Studydidd by (2) the number of
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calendar quarters it will take to complete the BHa€linical Study. The Company calculates the eggte number of shares of Series A-6 to
accrue in such calendar quarter by dividing thelispple Quarterly Amount, by the greater of (1) faie market value as of the applicable
Accrual Date and (2) $8.142 and rounding down #silting quotient to the nearest whole number. Shelnes due to Nordic will be issued
when declared or paid by the Company's board ettbirs, who are required to do so upon Nordic'sesy or upon an event of sale. As of
December 31, 2012, 12,886 shares of Series A-8wédo Nordic in connection with the Phase 2 Céh&tudy, or after the automatic
conversion into common stock of the Company's cuible preferred stock, 128,860 shares of commookst

Prior to the issuance of shares of stodkdadic in satisfaction of the Nordic Accruing Dilend, the liability to issue shares of stock is
being accounted for as a liability in the Compatwgk&ance sheet. As of December 31, 2012, the &iirevof the liability is $1.0 million based
upon the fair value of the SerieséAas determined using PWERM (see note 11). Changdhs fair value from the date of accrual to tlagedof
issuance of the shares are recorded as a gaisoml@ther income (expense) in the statement efations.

The Company recognizes research and dawelopexpense for the amounts due to Nordic undewtbrk Statement NB-2 ratably over
the estimated per patient treatment period beginapon enrollment in the Phase 2 Clinical Studya aine-month period. The Company
recorded $1.4 million of research and developmepépse during the year ended December 31, 20J&fqpatient costs incurred for patients
that had enrolled in the Phase 2 Clinical Studydifidnally, the Company recorded approximately $@iBion of research and development
expense associated with the costs incurred forapagqry and other start-up costs to initiate thadet Clinical Study during the year ended
December 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, in addition to $1e0 million liability that is reflected in othdéabilities on the balance sheet that will be settl
in shares of stock, as noted above, the Companglhas asset of $0.4 million reflected in prepagenses and other current assets on the
balance sheet resulting from services provided bsd which are payable in the form of a stock dénd, the fair value of which exceeds the
services provided by Nordic as of December 31, 28hd (2) an asset of $0.4 million that is reflddateprepaid expenses and other current
assets on the balance sheet resulting from serpiosgded by Nordic which are payable in cash.

The Company is also responsible for ceppaiss through costs in connection with the PhaSkngal Study and Phase 2 Clinical Study.
Pass through costs are expensed as incurred ordgtivary. The Company recognized research andldewent expense of $6.0 million and
$5.0 million for pass through costs during the gesrded December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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The Company has the following stock-basmdmensation plans as of December 31, 2012 undehvettjuity awards have been granted t
employees, directors and consultants:

. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan; and

. 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

The 2011 Equity Incentive Plan replaced26@3 Long-Term Incentive Plan when the board céalors approved the new plan on
November 7, 2011. As of December 31, 2012, an aggeeof approximately 4,671,000 shares have beto@zed for issuance under t
Company's stock-based compensation plans, withoajppately 3,899,000 options outstanding. The nunab@mmon shares available for
granting of future awards to employees and dirsatmder these plans was approximately 79,000 agrbleer 31, 2012.

2003 Long-Term Incentive PlanThe Company's 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (theéntive Plan") provides for the granting of
incentive stock options and nonqualified optionkeg employees, directors and consultants of thg2my. The exercise price of the incen
stock options, as determined by the board of direcimust be at least 100% (110% in the case ehinge stock options granted to a
stockholder owning in excess of 10% of the Compmaogmmon stock) of the common stock fair valuefah@date of the grant. The
provisions of the Incentive Plan limit the exeraidgéncentive stock options, but in no case mayetkercise period extend beyond ten years
from the date of grant (five years in the casenoéntive stock options granted to a stockholderinogvin excess of 10% of the Company's
common stock). Stock options generally vest ovieuayear period. Certain options contain explggtformance conditions. The Company
authorized approximately 2,016,000 shares of comshack for issuance under the Incentive Plan.

2011 Equity Incentive PlarThe Company's 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the 'liigRlan™) provides for the granting of incentiesk
options and nonqualified options to key employeé#®ctors and consultants of the Company. The éseqrice of the incentive stock options,
as determined by the board of directors, must beaat 100% (110% in the case of incentive stotlonp granted to a stockholder owning in
excess of 10% of the Company's common stock) ofdinemon stock fair value as of the date of the grEime provisions of the Incentive Plan
limit the exercise of incentive stock options, buho case may the exercise period extend beyangears from the date of grant (five years in
the case of incentive stock options granted t@eksiplder owning in excess of 10% of the Compacgramon stock). Stock options generally
vest over a four-year period. Certain options dongaplicit performance conditions. The Company &athorized approximately 2,655,000
shares of common stock for issuance under the ¥ERlain. In addition, the shares remaining availéfMéssuance under the Incentive Plan
were assumed as shares authorized under the Ejaity

The Company has historically granted stoofions at exercise prices not less than the &direvof its common stock as determined by its
board of directors, with input from management. Qmnpany's board of directors has historically deteed, with input from management,
the estimated fair value of the Company's commooksbn the date of grant based on a number of tgeand subjective factors, including:

. the prices at which the Company sold shares ofexite preferred stock;
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. the superior rights and preferences of secarg@nior to the Company's common stock at the dihneach grant;

. the likelihood of achieving a liquidity event suat a public offering or sale of the Company;

. the Company's historical operating and financiafqgrenance and the status of its research and ptathwelopment efforts; and
. achievement of enterprise milestones, includingrmg into collaboration and license agreements.

The Company's board of directors also aw®rsid valuations provided by management in deténgitihe fair value of its common stock.
The valuations have been used to estimate thedhie of common stock as of each option grant listed and in calculating stock-based
compensation expense. The Company's board of disgleas consistently used the most recent valugtiovided by management for
determining the fair value of common stock unlespecific event occurs that necessitates an inteaiomtion.

The valuations utilized are based on thdance from th&/aluation of Privately-Held=ompany Equity Securities Issued as Compens
that was developed by staff of the American Instif Certified Public Accountants and a task faromprising representatives from the
appraisal, preparer, public accounting, venturétaaand academic communities. The valuationszetiPWERM, which considers the value of
preferred and common stock based upon the probyabiiighted present value of expected future nehdows, considering each of the
possible future events, as well as the rights aatepences of each share class. PWERM is compléxeguires numerous assumptions
relating to potential future outcomes of equitynte, the use of this method can be applied: (1)wvgussible future outcomes can be predicte
with reasonable certainty; and (2) when theredsraplex capital structure (i.e., several classgwefierred and common stock). The Company
utilized the fair value of common stock derivednfrthe March 31, 2012 valuation for purposes ofApél 11, 2012 and May 24, 2012 option
grants and the fair value of common stock derivedfthe June 30, 2012 valuation for purposes oflngust 27, 2012 option grants. The
Company concluded, for purposes of the April 11,28nd May 24, 2012 grants, that there were ndfgignt changes to the assumptions L
in the PWERM model between March 31, 2012 and Afijl2012 and May 24, 2012 that would impact tlevi@ue of the common stock. T
Company concluded, for purposes of the August QT22yrant, that there were no significant changekeé assumptions used in the PWERM
model between June 30, 2012 and August 27, 2012vtad impact the fair value of the common stothe Company also used this
methodology to estimate the fair value of prefestrtk, which was used in the preferred stock guishment, and to determine the fair value
of shares of series A-6 convertible preferred sthaok to Nordic.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes optitring model to estimate the grant date fair vaitigs employee stock options. The
weighted-average assumptions used in the Blacki&gloption-pricing
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model and the resulting weighted-average estimgtdauat date fair values of its employee stock optimere as follows for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Expected term (year: 6.2t 6.2t 6.2

Volatility 60% 60% 58%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 110% 1.32% 1.92%

A summary of stock option activity for thiear ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:

Weighted-Average

Exercise Price Weighted-Average Aggregate
(in dollars Contractual Life Intrinsic
Shares per share) (In Years) Value
Options outstanding at December 3:
2011 3,950 $ 2.94
Granted 21¢ 4.2z
Exercisec (222) 1.2¢
Cancellec 47 3.7C
Options outstanding at December 3:
2012 3,89¢ $ 3.1C 8.07 8,57¢
Options exercisable at December 3]
2012 1652 $ 2.31 6.9C 4,94
Options vested or expected to vest ¢
December 31, 201 3,72¢ % 3.07 8.0: 8,31

The weighted-average grant-date fair valueptions granted during 2012, 2011 and 2010 v2a365 $2.07 and $0.60, respectively. The
total grant-date fair value of stock options thested during the years ended December 31, 2012GIidwas approximately $1.5 million and
$0.4 million, respectively. The aggregate intrinsadue of options exercised (i.e., the differeneeneen the market price at exercise and the
price paid by employees to exercise the optionjnduhe years ended December 31, 2012 and 201$®asnillion and $0.2 million,
respectively.

The following table summarizes stock-basemhpensation expense by financial statement Iméh@usands):

Years Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2010
Research and developme $ 33 $ 11€ $ 37
General and administratiy 1,45 18¢€ 97
Share-based compensation exper
included in operating expens $ 1,798 $ 304 $ 134
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During the year ended December 31, 20E2¢ettvere no options or stock awards granted t€trepany's Board of Directors. During the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Corsf@oard of directors granted approximately 317 & 258,000 stock optior
respectively, to board members of the Company.rguttie years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 8@LCompany recorded
approximately $483.0 thousand, $131.0 thousands@4d thousand of stock-based compensation expeladed to awards granted its board
of directors and non-employees, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, there was appratéiy $4.3 million of total unrecognized compernsa@xpense related to unvested employe
share-based compensation arrangements, which éstxpto be recognized over a weighted-averagegefiapproximately three years.

15. Net Loss Per Share
Basic and diluted net loss per share isutaled as follows (in thousands, except sharepanghare amounts):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Numerator:

Net loss $ (69,120 $ (42,470 $ (14,630
Extinguishment of preferred sto — 60,93" —
Accretion of preferred stoc (13,999 (10,939 (12,149

Earnings attributable to participating preferred
stockholder — (7,27%) —
Earnings (loss) attributable to common stockho—basic (83,120 258 (26,777)

Effect of dilutive convertible preferred sto
Earnings (loss) attributable to common stockholders
diluted $ (83,12() $ 255 $ (26,779

Denominator
Weighted-average number of common shares usedss)(

earnings per she—basic 839,69 499,94 320,94

Effect of dilutive options to purchase common st — 464,93: —

Effect of dilutive convertible preferred sto — 2,489,39! —
Weighted-average number of common shares usedss)(

earnings per she—diluted 839,69¢ 3,454,271 320,94
(Loss) earnings per sh—basic $ (98.99 $ 051 $ (83.4)

Effect of dilutive options to purchase common st — (0.2 —

Effect of dilutive convertible preferred sto — (0.20 —
(Loss) earnings per sh—diluted $ (98.99 $ 0.07 $ (83.4)

The following potentially dilutive secugs, prior to the use of the treasury stock methade been excluded from the computation of
diluted weighted-average shares outstanding, gsvibald be anti-dilutive. For the years ended Degen81, 2012 and 2010, all convertible
preferred stock, options
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
15. Net Loss Per Share (Continued)

to purchase common stock and warrants outstandang assumed to be anti-dilutive as earnings atafide to common stockholders was in a
loss position.

Year Ended December 3:

2012 2011 2010
Convertible preferred stoc 4,834,68 5,419,94¢ 11,808,29
Options to purchase common stc 3,890,91. 894,16( 1,461,86!
Warrants 15,00( 8,86( 1,33:

16. Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2012 the Company hadridand state net operating loss ("NOL") carryfamis of approximately $194.4 million
and $161.6 million, respectively, which may be usedffset future taxable income. The Company &bt federal and state tax credits of
$2.8 million and $0.4 million, respectively, to séft future tax liabilities. The NOL and tax crechirryforwards will expire at various dates
through 2032, and are subject to review and passitfjustment by federal and state tax authorifies.Internal Revenue Code contains
provision that may limit the NOL and tax credit gdorwards available to be used in any given yaahée event of certain changes in the
ownership interests of significant stockholdersamslection 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.

A reconciliation of income taxes computathg the U.S. federal statutory rate to that réélédn operations follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Income tax benefit using U.S. federal
statutory rate $ (23,509 $ (14,509 $ (4,979
State income taxes, net of federal ber (2,779 (1,859 411
Stocl-based compensatic 72 49 34
Research and development tax cre (55) (385) (320
Change in the valuation allowan 25,17¢ 17,04: 4,83¢
Permanent item 70¢ 91 3
Other 377 (439) 8
$ — % — 3 —

The Company is subject to Massachusetta/ogh taxes, not based on income, which is largéflset by allowable tax credits and
recorded as a component of operating expenses.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

16. Income Taxes (Continued)

The principal components of the Compangfeided tax assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31

2012 2011
Current assett
Accrued expense $ 343 % 62
Gross current deferred tax ass 343 62
Valuation allowanct (343 (62)
Net current deferred tax ass $ — $ —
Nor-current asset:
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 74,487 $ 49,83¢
Capitalized research and developnr 1,04z 1,431
Research and development cre 3,067 2,97
Depreciation and amortizatic 90 12¢
Other 851 26¢
Gross no-current deferred tax asst 79,537 54,64
Valuation allowanct (79,537 (54,649
Net nor-current deferred tax asst $ — $ —

The Company has recorded a valuation alhm&against its deferred tax assets in each ofghes ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
because the Company's management believes thahdrie likely than not that these assets will rotdalized. The increase in the valuation

allowance in 2012 primarily relates to the net liogsirred by the Company.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company hasmmecognized tax benefits or related interest@emhlties accrued. The Company has not,
as yet, conducted a study of research and develtpffR&D") credit carryforwards. In addition, the@@pany has not, as yet, conducted an
Internal Revenue Code Section 382 study, whichccoapact its ability to utilize NOL and tax cred#rryforwards available to be used. These
studies may result in adjustments to the Compdd§B credit carryforwards and NOL carryfowards; haweg until a study is completed and
any adjustment is known, no amounts are being ptedeas an uncertain tax position. A full valuatédlowance has been provided against the
Company's R&D credits and, if an adjustment is el this adjustment would be offset by an adjesttrio the valuation allowance. Thus,
there would be no impact to the balance sheettersent of operations if an adjustment were reduifbe Company would recognize both
accrued interest and penalties related to unrezedrbenefits in income tax expense. The Companybiaecorded any interest or penaltie:

any unrecognized benefits since inception.

The statute of limitations for assessmerthie Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") and stateatgthorities remains open for all tax years.
The Company files income tax returns in the Unii¢aktes and Massachusetts. There are currentlydeodieor state audits in progress.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
17. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation—The Company may be exposed to certain claimssesasnents in the ordinary course of businesselopmion of
management, the outcome of these matters is ray lik have any material effect on the financiadifon, results of operations, or cash flows
of the Company.

Commitments-On January 14, 2011, the Company signed a subdegisement for office space in Cambridge, Massadtsutbeat expire
on July 31, 2011. Monthly rental payments undes shiblease were $9.0 thousand and the Company nivdedtie space in February 2011.
July 15, 2011, the Company entered into an operddiase agreement to remain in the same Cambifidiagsachusetts location. The term of
lease is August 1, 2011 through July 31, 2014. Migrniental payments under the new lease are appaigly $15.0 thousand for the first
12 months and approximately $16.0 thousand fothmonths thereafter.

Rent expense for the years ended Decemhe&032, 2011and 2010 was $0.2 million, $0.1 mmllamd $0.5 million, respectively.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a—15(b) of the Sd@msiExchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the 2@B4our management, including the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial ioéfr, our principal executive officer and princifi@ancial officer, respectively, conducted
an evaluation as of the end of the period coveletthis Annual Report on Form 10-K of the effectiesn of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based on #addi@&ion, our Chief Executive Officer and Chieh&ncial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effectitbeateasonable assurance level in ensuring tf@atiation required to be disclosed by us in
the reports that it files or submits under the 188tis recorded, processed, summarized and repuwithin the time periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We are not currently required to complyhatection 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and amretbee not required to make an assessmen
of the effectiveness of our internal control ovieaficial reporting. Further, our independent reged public accounting firm has not been
engaged to express, nor have they expressed, miotpin the effectiveness of our internal contnofinancial reporting. In connection with
our becoming a public company, we intend to hirdittahal accounting personnel with public compand &EC reporting experience and to
focus on implementing appropriate internal contesld other procedures.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE.

The following table sets forth the nameg agd position of each of our executive officerd dinectors as of December 31, 2012.

Name Age Position

Michael S. Wyzg:i 57 President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

B. Nicholas Harvey 52 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secrete

Louis Brenner, M.D. 42 Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Offi

Michael Franken, M.D. 48 Senior Vice President and Chief Business Off

Gary Hattersley, Ph.D 46 Senior Vice President, Preclinical Developm

Alan H. Auerbach(2)(3 43 Director

Jonathan J. Fleming(. 55 Director

Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.D.(2)(¢ 54 Director

Kurt C. Graves(2)(3 45 Chairman of the Boar

Martin Miinchbach, Ph.D.(J 42 Director

Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.(1 62 Director

Q) Member of the audit committee.
(2) Member of the nominating and corporate goveceecommittee.

3) Member of the compensation committ

Michael S. Wyzgahas served as our President and Chief Executivieedfind as a member of our board of directorsesibecember
2011. Prior to joining us, Mr. Wyzga served in eais senior management positions at Genzyme Corporat global biotechnology company.
Mr. Wyzga joined Genzyme in February 1998 and mestntly served as Executive Vice President, Fiadram May 2003 until November
2011 and as Chief Financial Officer from July 12@8il November 2011. He served as a director faug®\Pharmaceuticals Inc. from 2004 to
2009. Mr. Wyzga received an M.B.A. from Providei@alege and a B.S. in business administration f8uffolk University. We believe
Mr. Wyzga is qualified to serve as a member oflmard of directors because of his extensive omeratiknowledge of, and executive level
management experience in, the biopharmaceuticabtngand significant financial experience.

B. Nicholas Harveyhas served as our Senior Vice President, ChiefnginhOfficer, Treasurer and Secretary since Nowan2010, and
served as a member of our board of directors frawelhber 2010 until the consummation of the Mergaviay 2011. Mr. Harvey served as
the Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presgidef the Former Operating Company from Decemb@62mntil the Merger. Prior to joining
the Former Operating Company, Mr. Harvey servellasaging Director of Shiprock Capital, LLC, a vergwcapital firm, from 2003 to 2006.
Prior to Shiprock Capital, Mr. Harvey served asetlRinancial Officer of a number of venture-backednpanies over a 10-year period,
including LifetecNet from 2001 to 2002, Transfusibechnologies from 1999 to 2000, and Transcendajeartics from 1993 to 1999.

Mr. Harvey received a Bachelor of Economics degmesa Bachelor of Laws degree with first-class heifilmm the Australian National
University and an M.B.A. from the Harvard Busin&hool.

Louis Brenner, M.D., has served as our Senior Vice President and Cheeliddl Officer since November 2011. Prior to jomims, he
served as Senior Vice President at AMAG Pharmacalstia biotechnology company, from September 20@ecember 2010 where he was
responsible for the Phase 3 studies and the sdotesgulatory submission for Feraheme. Prior @t the served in
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progressively senior roles at Genzyme CorporatiomfJune 2002 to September 2006, where he advaneeattvelopment and
commercialization of products to treat metaboliaddisease by co-inventing the formulation for Rgayan oral phosphate binder to treat
hyperphosphatemia, and by leading the acquisiti®oae Care International, manufacturer of Hectoaadynthetic vitamin D analog for the
treatment of hyperparathyroidism. He received a B.8iology from Yale University, an M.D. from DekUniversity and an M.B.A. from
Harvard Business School.

Michael Franken, M.D., has served as our Senior Vice President and ChisthBss Officer since March 2012. Prior to joinusy he
served as Vice President and General Manager, Sofidn Transplantation at Genzyme Corporationpgebhnology company, from January
2010 to November 2011, where he was responsible feorldwide commercial transplant business. Sjaggng Genzyme in 2000, he served
in various and progressively senior roles in bussngevelopment and general management. In the&fgansplantation, he advanced the
growth of the transplant products and busineskérBuropean and International markets. In the @rémmune Disease and Fibrosis, he was
responsible for licensing and transactions, angbfogressing a portfolio of clinical-developmerdag assets. He received an M.D. from the
University of Heidelberg, Germany, and an M.S. ialh Policy and Management from the Harvard ScbbBlublic Health

Gary Hattersley, Ph.D.,has served as our Senior Vice President of Prealilevelopment since December 2011. He servedragioe
President of Biology from May 2011 to December 2@h#l served in the same capacity at the FormerafipgrCompany from April 2008
until the Merger. He also served as Senior DirecfdResearch of the Former Operating Company fré662o0 2008 and as Director of Dise
Biology & Pharmacology from 2003 to 2006. Priofjdming the Former Operating Company, Dr. Hatterstas a Senior Scientist at
Millennium Pharmaceuticals from 2000 to 2003 witsponsibility for the discovery and developmemaéel small-molecule agents for the
treatment of osteoporosis and other metabolic liiseases. Dr. Hattersley also held positions ae@Geninstitute/Wyeth Research from 1992
to 2000 investigating the application of the bormphogenetic proteins in bone and connective tisspair and regeneration. Dr. Hattersley
received a Ph.D. in Experimental Pathology fromG&torge's Hospital Medical School.

Alan H. Auerbach has served on our board of directors since May 20tilserved as a member of the board of direcfaled-ormer
Operating Company from October 2010 until the Merir. Auerbach is currently the Founder, Chief &xtéve Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Puma Biotechnology, laccompany dedicated to in-licensing and develogiugs for the treatment of cancer and
founded in 2010. Previously, Mr. Auerbach foundedi@ar Biotechnology in May 2003 and served as timpany's Chief Executive Officer,
President and as a member of its board of directatis July 2009 when Cougar was acquired by Johi@&sdohnson for approximately
$1 billion. From July 2009 until January 2010, Muerbach served as the Co-Chairman of the Integr&teering Committee at Cougar (as
part of Johnson & Johnson) that provided leaderahigboversight for the development and global coniakization of Cougar's lead product
candidate, abiraterone acetate, for the treatnfeadv@anced prostate cancer. Prior to founding Coudgam June 1998 to April 2003,

Mr. Auerbach was a Vice President, Senior Reseanctiyst at Wells Fargo Securities, where he wagaesible for research coverage of
small-and middle-capitalization biotechnology comipa, with a focus on companies in the field ofaagy. Mr. Auerbach received a B.S. in
Biomedical Engineering from Boston University amdMA.S. in Biomedical Engineering from the Univeysif Southern California. We belie
Mr. Auerbach is qualified to serve as a memberuflmard of directors because of his business esfégsional experience, including his
leadership of Cougar Biotechnology in drug develepmprivate and public financings and a successfld of the business.

Jonathan J. Fleminghas served on our board of directors since May 20tiiserved as a member of the board of direcfahed-ormer
Operating Company from March 2009 until the Merd#r. Fleming is the Managing General Partner of@dfBioscience Partners, an
international venture
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capital firm specializing in life science techngjeigased investments, which he joined in August 1896& General Partner. Prior to joining
Oxford Bioscience Partners, Mr. Fleming was a Fingpé&eneral Partner of MVP Ventures from 1988 t86.9Mr. Fleming is also a co-
founder of Medica Venture Partners, a venture ahjivestment firm specializing in early-stage tisedre and biotechnology companies in
Israel. Mr. Fleming currently serves on the bodrdicectors of Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Xencor,,I@eeenlight, Inc., Laboratory

Partners, Inc. and Railrunner Systems NA Inc. Nenfing also currently serves on the board of marsagfl eerink Swann Holdings LLC and
on the board of trustees of Leerink Swann MassattaiBusiness Trust. He previously served on tledof directors of Memory
Pharmaceuticals Corp. from 1998 to 2004. He redereM.P.A. from Princeton University and a B.Aorfr the University of California,
Berkeley. We believe Mr. Fleming is qualified taveeas a member of our board of directors becafisis tbusiness and professional
experience, and brings to our board of directartesgic insight and experience with his long cameaenture capital and investing in life
sciences technology-based firms for over 20 years.

Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.D. has served on our board of directors since May 20itilserved as a member of the board of direcfdtreo
Former Operating Company from November 2003 unélerger. Dr. Gadicke has been the Co-FoundeMamaging Director of MPM
Capital, a venture capital firm, since August 1996.Gadicke received an M.D. from J.W. Goethe @msity in Frankfurt. Dr. Gadicke is a
director of Dragonfly Sciences, Inc. and Mitokyi. He served on the board of directors of SolBéiarma K.K. from 2006 to 2012,
Verastem, Inc. from 2010 to 2012, Pharmasset,ftam 1999 to 2007 and PharmAthene, Inc. from 2@02007. We believe Dr. Gadicke is
qualified to serve as a member of our board ofctiins because of his business and professionatierpe.

Kurt C. Graves has served on our board of directors since May 20itllas Chairman of our board of directors sinceeer 2011.
Mr. Graves has been the Chairman, President aref Ekecutive Officer of Intarcia Therapeutics, atbchnology company, since April 2012.
He was an independent consultant from October 20@@ril 2012. Mr. Graves served as Executive Ghain of Biolex Therapeutics, a
biotechnology company, from November 2010 to Ma&a0h2, and served as Executive Chairman of Intareerapeutics from August 2010 to
April 2012. Previously, he served as Executive \eesident, Chief Commercial Officer and Head oétegic Development at Vertex
Pharmaceuticals Inc. from July 2007 to October 200%re he led the development of the company's IAGY/CF programs, as well as the
acquisition of Virochem Pharmaceuticals. Priordiming Vertex, Mr. Graves held various leadershigifions at Novartis Pharmaceuticals
from 1999 to June 2007, including serving as a ne¥robthe Executive Committee and the Global Hdati@ General Medicines Business.
He was also the first Chief Marketing Officer fbetPharmaceuticals division from September 20QRit@ 2007. He currently serves as a
director of Intarcia Therapeutics, Pulmatrix Therafics and Achillion Pharnaceuticals. He servetherboard of directors of Biolex
Therapeutics and Springleaf Therapeutics from 20D12. Mr. Graves received a B.S. in Biology frbiiisdale College. We believe
Mr. Graves is qualified to serve as a member oftmard of directors because of his extensive basiaad professional experience.

Martin Munchbach, Ph.D. has served on our board of directors since May 2DtIMunchbach has managed BB Biotech Ventures |l,
venture capital fund, since he launched it in 24 Miinchbach received a Ph.D. in Protein ChemistiM.Sc. in Biochemistry and a Master
in Industrial Engineering and Management from thésS Federal Institute of Technology (ETH). Dr. Miabach currently serves on the boarc
of directors of Atlas Genetics LTD, BioVascular InBonetik AG and Tioga Pharmaceuticals Inc, angdmeed as a director of Optimer
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from 2005 to 2008. We bel@reMiinchbach is qualified to serve on our bodrdigectors because of his extensive
business and professional experience.

Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.has served on our board of directors since May 2Dt1Stoner has been a Managing Director at MPMitah
since October 2007. Dr. Stoner is the Chief Devalept Officer
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of Rhythm Pharmaceuticals, a biotechnology compBnigr to joining MPM Capital, Dr. Stoner servedviarious roles, most recently as Se
Vice President of Global Clinical Development Opienas at Merck Research Laboratories, since 1985Stoner currently serves as a directol
of Momenta Pharmaceuticals Inc., and she serveddagctor of Metabasis Therapeutics, Inc. from2@02010. Dr. Stoner received an M.D.
from Albert Einstein College of Medicine, an M.8.Chemistry from the State University of New YotkSdony Brook and a B.S. in Chemistry
from Ottawa University, Kansas. We believe Dr. $tois qualified to serve on our board of directoesause of her knowledge and expertise i
the development of pharmaceutical products.

Terms of Office; Voting Arrangements as to Directos

Our board of directors currently considtseven members, all of whom were elected as adireqursuant to the board composition
provisions of our stockholders' agreement amonanasour stockholders. Our directors and officerseHzeen appointed for a one-year term ol
until their respective successors are duly eleatetiqualified or until their earlier resignationremoval in accordance with our By-Laws.

Pursuant to a stockholders' agreement andestificate of incorporation:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

for so long as any shares of series A-1 prefert@cksare outstanding, the holders of a majorityhef shares of series A-1
preferred stock outstanding, voting as a sepatass,cshall have the right to elect two (2) memiétee board of directors;

Oxford Bioscience Partners IV L.P. (togethé@th Saints Capital VI, L.P. and their respecti¥iiates and certain transferees),
HealthCare Ventures VII, L.P. (together with it§ile&ftes and certain transferees) and The Wellcdmust Limited as trustee of
The Wellcome Trust (together with its affiliatesdasertain transferees) (collectively, the G3 Haddand individually, each a
Group) voting as a separate class shall haveghéto elect one (1) member of the board of dinectd the Corporation by
majority vote of the shares of series A-1 prefesttk held by them; provided, however, that ineortth be eligible to vote or
consent with respect to the election of such merab#re board of directors, a G3 Holder togethehwiembers of such G3
Holders' Group must hold greater than twenty per(2096) of the shares of series A-1 preferred sfpakchased under the
series A-1 preferred stock Purchase Agreement tly &8 Holder and the members of such G3 Holdewugrand

MPM Capital L.P., voting as a separate cladsll have the right to elect one (1) membeheftioard of directors of the
Corporation by majority vote of the shares of seAel preferred stock held by MPM Capital L.P.; proddbat such member
the board of directors shall be an individual witirticular expertise in the development of pharratical products; and,
provided, further, that in order to be eligibleviwte or consent with respect to the election ohsmember of the board of
directors, MPM Capital L.P. together with membefrthe MPM Group (as defined in the Stockholderstéfegnent) must hold
greater than 20% of the shares of series A-1 pefestock purchased under the series A-1 prefestaedk Purchase Agreement
by MPM Capital L.P. and the members of the MPM Gx.ou

The balance of the board is elected bgfalhe stockholders acting as a single class atidgyon an as-converted basis.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a code of business comahatcethics that applies to all of our employeefic@fs and directors, including those officers
responsible for financial reporting. The code a$ibess conduct and ethics is available on our websiwww.radiuspharm.com. Any
amendments to the code,
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or any waivers of its requirements, will be diseld®n our website. Information contained on or ssit¥e through our website is not
incorporated by reference into this report, and sfoould not consider information contained on aessible through our website to be part of
this report.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors has establishedulit @ommittee, a compensation committee and a matinig and corporate governance
committee, each of which operates under a chdréhias been approved by our board. Our boardectdrs has determined that each of the
members of the audit committee, the compensatiomutiee and the nominating and corporate governaagenittee are independent as
defined under the applicable rules and regulatafrtie SEC, including, in the case of each of tleenbers of our audit committee, the
independence requirements contemplated by Rule3Ll0Ader the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asdet;, or the Exchange Act.

Audit Committee

Our audit committee oversees our corpaat®unting and financial reporting process. Amotigiomatters, the audit committee:

. appoints the independent registered public accogtitim;

. evaluates the independent registered public acitmufitm's qualifications, independence and perfance;

. determines the engagement of the independenteeggispublic accounting firm;

. reviews and approves the scope of the annual andithe audit fee;

. discusses with management and the independenteregigublic accounting firm the results of the @airaudit and the review

of our quarterly financial statements;

. approves the retention of the independent regdtpublic accounting firm to perform any propopetdmissible non-audit
services;

. monitors the rotation of partners of the independegistered public accounting firm on our engagetteam as required by
law;

. reviews our financial statements and our managemeistussion and analysis of financial conditiod eesults of operations to

be included in our annual and quarterly reportsetdiled with the SEC;
. reviews our critical accounting policies andrastes; and

. annually reviews the audit committee charter tn@dcommittee's performance.

The current members of the audit commisieeJonathan J. Fleming, Martin Miinchbach and BfitaStoner. Mr. Fleming serves as the
chairman of the committee. All members of our agdinmittee meet the requirements for financiatdity under the applicable rules and
regulations of the SEC. Our board of directorsdetermined that Mr. Fleming is an "audit commitieancial expert" as defined under the
applicable rules of the SEC.

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee reviews andmeends policies relating to compensation and benefiour officers and employees. The
compensation committee:

. reviews and approves corporate goals and objeatdlegant to compensation of our Chief Executiveidef and other executiy
officers;
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. evaluates the performance of these officers irt lifthose goals and objectives;

. sets the compensation of these officers baseddnealuations;

. approves grants of stock options and other awardsruour stock plans; and

. will review and evaluate, at least annually, thefqgrenance of the compensation committee and its begs) including

compliance of the compensation committee withlirter.

The members of the compensation committeé\mn H. Auerbach, Ansbert K. Gadicke and Kur3Zaves. Mr. Gadicke serves as the
chairman of the committee.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committ
The nominating and corporate governancenaittee is responsible for:

. making recommendations to our board of directogamging candidates for directorships and the sigecamposition of our
board of directors;

. overseeing our corporate governance policies; and

. reporting and making recommendations to our boadirectors concerning governance matters.

The members of the nominating and corpagateernance committee are Alan H. Auerbach, Angbe@adicke and Kurt C. Graves.
Mr. Graves serves as the chairman of the committee.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Actdatdrs, executive officers and beneficial owndrsd% or more of our common stock, or
reporting persons, are required to report to th€ S& a timely basis the initiation of their statissa reporting person and any changes with
respect to their beneficial ownership of our commatwtk. Based solely on our review of copies ohsiacms that we have received, or written
representations from reporting persons, we belieseduring the fiscal year ended December 31, 28l 2xecutive officers, directors and
greater than 10% stockholders complied with alliapple filing requirements, except that Dr. LoBigenner filed a Form 3 on April 20, 2012
for an event that occurred on October 9, 2011 aRdren 4 on September 28, 2012 for an event thatroed on December 15, 2011.
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ITEM 11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The following table summarizes all compéiaseearned by our President and Chief Executivic&fand other named executive officers

during 2012 and 2011.

Non-Equity
Option Incentive Plan All Other
Awards Compensation  Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($) $)(7) ($)(8)(9) ($)(10) $)
Michael S. Wyzga 201z 500,00 — — 1,03z 501,03:
President and Chief
Executive 2011  38,14/(4) 3,351,77 — — 3,389,91
Officer(1)
Louis Brenner 201z 330,00( — — 30C 330,30t
Chief Medical Officer
(2) 2011 47,50((5) 989,53 14,14: 20 1,051,20:
Michael Franken 201z 211,4546) 165,24. — — 376,70(

Sr. Vice President ar
Chief Business
Officer(3)

Q) Mr. Wyzga became our President and Chief Exec@ffieer on December 5, 2011.

(2) Dr. Brenner joined our company on Novembe2®,1 and became Chief Medical Officer on Decemb@011.

3) Dr. Franken joined our company on March 26,20

4) The amount shown represents actual salaryedam2011 based upon an annual base salary ofKBRO0

(5) The amount shown represents actual salaredam?011 based upon an annual base salary of(KEBO

(6) The amount shown represents actual salaryedam2012 based upon an annual base salary of 82¥.5

(7 Represents the aggregate grant date fair valuerafds of stock options granted during the year agtegbin accordance
with FASB ASC 718. For additional information, inding information regarding the assumptions usednwraluing the
awards, refer to note 2 to our financial statemartisided elsewhere in this report.

(8) Represents bonus amounts earned under oualgmerfiormance-based cash bonus program.

9) Bonus amounts earned for 2012 have not yet Hetermined and approved by the compensation ctieenirhe
compensation committee intends to consider 2012demat a future meeting.

(10)

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

All amounts are attributable to life insurance pitams paid by us

We do not currently have any formal polioy determining the compensation of executive eific Base salaries for our named executive
officers have been established through arm's lemggjotiation at the time an executive was hirea @tmpensation committee of our board of
directors annually reviews and evaluates, with fimm the President and Chief Executive Offichg heed for adjustment of the base salarie
of named executive officers based on changes gmetted changes in the scope of an executive'smsigilities, including promotions, the
individual contributions made by and performancéhefexecutive during the prior fiscal year, theaxive's performance over a period of
years, overall labor market conditions, the relatase or difficulty of replacing the execut
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with a well-qualified person, our overall growthdaslevelopment as a company and general salarystieralir industry.

Each named executive officer is eligiblegoeive an annual performance-based cash bonas,amount up to a fixed percentage of his
base salary. At the beginning of each year our @nsgtion committee develops, with input from thesitent and Chief Executive Officer, a
list of goals for the year that are used as a dinel¢o assess the annual performance of the naxeltive officers. As soon as practical after
the year is completed, the board reviews actudbpaance against the stated goals and determimgscsively what it believes to be the
appropriate level of cash bonus, if any, for thenad executive officers.

Each of the named executive officers istawill employee and eligible for discretionary lbismand equity incentive awards with certain
severance rights discussed further below. Thewatig named executive officers have the followingy&t bonus percentages:

. Mr. Wyzga—50%
. Dr. Brenner—30%

. Dr. Franken—30%

For 2012, each named executive officer,thacdpportunity to achieve a bonus equal to theathexecutive officer's respective target
bonus (prorated for any partial year of employmégtachievement of individual performance goalghwie compensation committee
reserving the right to award amounts in excesargfet bonus on a discretionary basis. The inditigoals for 2012 were of different weighted
importance and included completion of certain ficiag and public offering objectives, completionoofjanizational objectives and the
implementation and successful execution of vargaments related to the preclinical studies andaal trials for our products, including the
Phase 3 study for our BA058-SC product. The comgaérs committee has not yet convened to consider aamed executive's performance
against the goals and determine the bonus amaubts awarded for 2012. The compensation committeads to consider 2012 bonuses at a
future meeting.

In April 2012, we granted an option to phase 70,000 shares of our common stock to Mr. Erafdlowing his commencement of
employment. The option has a ten year term andesuton Mr. Franken's continued employment, vestio@5% of the underlying shares on
April 11, 2013 and as to an additional 6.25% ofuhderlying shares on the first day of each caleqdarter thereafter. We did not grant
options or stock awards to our other named exeewtficers during 2012.

Employment, Severance and Change in Control Arrangeents
Michael S. Wyzg

On December 1, 2011, we entered into arletinployment agreement with Mr. Wyzga, pursuamthich Mr. Wyzga agreed to serve as
our Chief Executive Officer effective December B12. The letter agreement provides for an initedébsalary of $500,000 and the opportL
to earn an annual cash incentive award based éorpemce with a target value equal to 50% of Mr.28%/s annual base salary beginning in
2012. In addition, Mr. Wyzga is eligible to recei@@ne-time special bonus ranging from 25% to 56¥#isoannual base salary based upon the
attainment of certain milestones relating to ourstonmation of a successful financing transaction.

In the event Mr. Wyzga's employment is teated by us without cause or due to Mr. Wyzgassgreation for good reason, then subject to
his executing a general release of claims, Mr. Viy&dl be entitled to receive:

. base salary continuation payments for 12 months;

. payment of, or reimbursement for, continued ro@déare premiums for 12 months; and
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. the annual bonus that he would have earned ifiaireed employed through the end of the year in whis termination occurs,
based upon actual performance as determined Hyothrel.

If Mr. Wyzga's employment is terminatedhaitit cause or due to Mr. Wyzga's resignation fadge@ason within 12 months following a
change in control, then subject to his executiggreral release of claims, Mr. Wyzga will be eetltto receive the severance benefits
described in the first two bullet points aboveyadl as:

. payment of his target annual bonus for the yearhiith termination occurs; and
. accelerated vesting of all outstanding equity award
Louis Brenne

On November 9, 2011, we entered into adetimployment agreement with Dr. Brenner pursuamtitich Dr. Brenner commenced
employment on that date and agreed to serve aStdaf Medical Officer effective December 1, 201heTletter agreement provides for an
initial base salary of $330,000 and the opportututgarn an annual cash incentive award basedrforp@nce with a target value equal to &
of Dr. Brenner's annual base salary, proratedrigrpartial year of employment.

In the event Dr. Brenner's employmentimteated by us without cause or due to Dr. Bresmesignation for good reason, then subje
his executing a general release of claims, Dr. Beewill be entitled to receive:

. base salary continuation payments for nine months;
. payment of, or reimbursement for, continued rogldtare premiums for six months;
. a prorated portion of his annual bonus for teanjin which his termination occurs, if the boaededmines to award him a bonus

for the year; and

. if the termination occurs within the first twelveonths of his employment, accelerated vesting obhistanding equity awards
that would have vested based solely upon the passfagne during the six-month period following ésmination.

If Dr. Brenner's employment is terminateithaut cause or due to Dr. Brenner's resignatiogémd reason within 12 months following a
change in control, then subject to his executiggreral release of claims, Dr. Brenner will bet&adito receive the severance benefits
described in the first two bullet points abovewedl as:

. payment of a prorated portion of his target antaalus for the year in which termination occurs; and
. accelerated vesting of all outstanding equity award
Michael Franker

On March 27, 2012, we entered into a lettaployment agreement with Dr. Franken pursuamthich Dr. Franken commenced
employment and agreed to serve as our Chief BusiDff&cer effective that date. The letter agreenpentides for an initial base salary of
$275,000 and the opportunity to earn an annual iceegimtive award based on performance with a targlee equal to 30% of Dr. Franken's
annual base salary, prorated for any partial yeamployment.
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In the event Dr. Franken's employmentiimieated by us without cause or due to Dr. Frarskegsignation for good reason, then subject
to his executing a general release of claims, Eanken will be entitled to receive:

. base salary continuation payments for nine months;

. payment of, or reimbursement for, continued mediea¢ premiums for six months;

. payment of any unpaid bonus for the year priohtoytear of termination; and

. a prorated portion of his annual bonus for thanjin which his termination occurs, if the boaetedmines to award him a bonus

for the year.

If Dr. Franken's employment is terminatathaut cause or due to Dr. Franken's resignatiogémd reason within 12 months following a
change in control of us, then subject to his exagua general release of claims, Dr. Franken vélentitled to receive the severance benefits
described in the first two bullet points abovesuth case, Dr. Franken will also be entitled t@nex

. payment of a prorated portion of his target ahtwonus for the year in which termination occars

. accelerated vesting of all outstanding equitpals.
Retirement Plans

We maintain a defined contribution retirerplan which is tax-qualified under Section 401¢k}he Internal Revenue Code. The plan
allows participants to defer a portion of their aahcompensation, subject to certain limitationpased by the Internal Revenue Code. Our
named executive officers are eligible to partiagpiatour 401(k) plan on the same basis as all eyeplo generally. During 2012, we did not
provide matching or profit sharing contributionshe plan for any employees.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The following table sets forth informatimgarding the outstanding equity awards held bynamned executive officers as of
December 31, 2012.

Number of
Securities Underlying

Unexercised Options E?(F()atrlt(:)ige E)E[)JFi)rtz:\?irg)n
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price Date
Michael S. Wyzg: 382,50( 1,147,50(1) $ 3.8¢ 12/14/2:
Louis Brenne 87,85( 263,55((1) $ 3.8¢ 12/14/2:
— 62,70((2) $ 3.8¢ 12/14/2:
Michael Franker — 70,00(3) $ 4.21 4/11/2:

(1) These stock options vest in twelve substantiallya¢installments on the first day of each calerglarter beginning on
January 1, 2013.

(2) These stock options vest, if at all, upondhee that the board of directors resolves that @A fbr our BA058-SC
product has been submitted to the FDA on or poa $pecified date.

(3) These stock options vest as to 25% of the undeylgivares on April 11, 2013 and as to 6.25% of shelnes the first day
of each calendar quarter thereaf
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Director Compensation

The following table summarizes the comp&osdor director services earned by our remployee directors during 2012. No director \
is also an employee receives additional compenséioproviding director services. Historically,iteer we nor the Former Operating
Company has had any formal policy governing the mamsation of directors, instead negotiating comatms for individual directors at the
time they commence providing services. Mr. Graves r. Auerbach each receive an annual cash retafr&r,500 and a meeting fee of
$1,500 per board or committee meeting attendedeNbour other directors receive cash compenséioproviding director services to us.

We have adopted a non-employee directompemsation policy that will become effective upoa listing of our common stock on a
national securities exchange. The policy providesibn-employee directors to receive an annual cetsiner of $25,000 plus one or more
additional annual cash retainers ranging from $5100610,000 for service on a board committee, elsas grants of options to purchase

30,000 shares of our common stock upon commeneingcg with us (vesting over a four-year period)l 49,000 shares of our common stock
annually thereafter (vesting within one year ofngya

During 2012, we did not grant equity-baaegrds as compensation to any of our non-emploiyeetdrs.

Fees Earned ot

Paid in Cash Total
Name and Principal Position ($) $
Alan H. Auerbach(1 7,50( 7,50(

Jonathan J. Fleming(. — —
Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.D. (3 — —
Kurt C. Graves(4 15,00C 15,00(
Martin Minchbach, Ph.D.(t — —
Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.(t — —

(1) Asof December 31, 2012, Mr. Auerbach held no stekrds and 256,666 options to purchase sharas @oomon
stock.

(2)  Asof December 31, 2012, Mr. Fleming did not hahy atock awards or option awards.

(3)  As of December 31, 2012, Dr. Gadicke did not haid stock awards or option awards.

(4) As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Graves held walsawards and 256,666 options to purchase shams common stock.
(5) As of December 31, 2012, Dr. Minchbach didhmdtl any stock awards or option awards.

(6) Asof December 31, 2012, Dr. Stoner held no stegkrds and 60,000 options to purchase shares afasomon stock

2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan

In the Merger, we assumed the Former Opgr&ompany's 2003 Long Term Incentive Plan, or20@3 Plan, and all options to acquire
common stock of the Former Operating Company issivegtunder. The 2003 Plan is intended to assiahdur affiliates in attracting and
retaining employees and consultants of outstandlilify and to promote the identification of thaiterests with those of our stockholders and
our affiliates. Only incentive stock options, od§ and norstatutory stock options have been granted unde2@b8 Plan. As of December :
2012, we had 995,820 options issued and unexeraisger the 2003 Plan, 910,265 of which were vested.
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connection with the adoption and approval of th#12Bquity Incentive Plan, we determined not to make further awards under the 2003
Plan after November 7, 2011, which we refer tchas'suspension” of the 2003 Plan. No new awardshmayranted under the 2003 Plan, but
awards outstanding at the time of suspension remastanding in accordance with their terms. Ibation or right expires or terminates for
any reason (other than termination by virtue ofekercise of a related option or related righthascase may be) without having been fully
exercised, if shares of restricted stock are ftateior if shares covered by an incentive sharecdmaperformance award are not issued or are
forfeited, the unissued or forfeited shares thatlmsen subject to the award become available éogtant of additional awards under the 2011
Equity Incentive Plan.

Administration. The compensation committee of the board ofcttims administers the 2003 Plan. In the eventttieat is no
compensation committee, the board of directors aidteirs the plan. The committee or the board mégga¢e authority to administer the 2003
Plan to any other committee.

Incentive Stock Options. ISOs are intended to qualify as ISOs underi@ed22 of the Internal Revenue Code and are gigmiesuant
to incentive stock option agreements. The plan adnator determines the exercise price for an M8ich may not be less than 100% of the
fair market value of the stock underlying the optéetermined on the date of grant. Notwithstandiegforegoing, incentive options granted to
employees who own, or are deemed to own, more1f@&nof our voting stock, must have an exercisegpniat less than 110% of the fair
market value of the stock underlying the optiored®ined on the date of grant.

Nonstatutory Stock Options.Nonstatutory stock options are granted pursteanbnstatutory stock option agreements. The plan
administrator determines the exercise price foomstatutory stock option.

Vesting. Options granted under the plan generally \red6i quarterly installments, each quarterly instelhit being equal in number of
shares as possible (as determined by us in ounrrebke discretion), with the first quarterly inst@ént vesting one quarter after the date of the
grant, and an additional quarterly installment wesbn the first day of each calendar quarter thféee, until all of the shares subject to the
option are fully vested and the option may be agertas to 100% of the shares issuable upon egdtmseof.

Changes to Capital Structure.In the event of certain types of changes inaaynital structure, such as a share split, the eummbshares
and exercise price or strike price, if applicalbfeall outstanding awards will be appropriatelylestigd.

Dividends. Any award under the 2003 Plan may confer uperrécipient the right to receive dividend paymentdividend equivalent
payments with respect to the shares subject tavlaed. Such dividend payments may be paid curremttredited to an account in favor of the
recipient. Such dividends may be settled in cas$hares, as determined by the plan administrator.

2011 Equity Incentive Plan

We adopted a new equity incentive plantiectithe 2011 Equity Incentive Plan, or the 201dnPbn November 7, 2011, which our board
of directors voted to amend on December 15, 2081January 31, 2012, and which has been approvedistockholders. The 2011 Plan was
adopted for the benefit of employees, consultamiscur non-employee directors and our affiliates.

The 2011 Plan provides for the grant of $3®@employees, and for the grant of nonqualiftedlsoptions to purchase shares of common
stock, restricted stock, restricted stock units¢lstappreciation rights, stock grants, performantiés and performance awards to employees,
consultants and non-employee directors, for thegaes of encouraging their ownership of commorksamel providing additional incentives
to promote the success of our business througbrdre of awards of
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or pertaining to the common stock. ISOs are intdrtdebe "incentive stock options," as that terrdafined in Section 422 of the Code.

The Employee Retirement Income Security #c974 does not govern the 2011 Plan. In additiom 2011 Plan does not qualify under
Section 401(a) of the Code.

Securities Subject to the 2011 Pl

Under the terms of the 2011 Plan, the agaggeenumber of shares of common stock that maybjec to options and other awards is e
to the sum of (1) 2,655,064 shares of common staol#t,(2) any shares underlying awards outstandidgmuthe 2003 Plan as of November 7,
2011 that, on or after that date, are forfeitethpse without the issuance of shares. As of DeceBihe2012, the maximum number of share
common stock that may become issuable under the R&ih, with respect to ISOs, is 3,987,211. Theeshaf common stock covered by the
2011 Plan are authorized but unissued sharesutsesisares or common stock purchased on the opdremahese figures do not include the
increase of 750,000 shares, approved by our bdalileztors on January 31, 2012, subject to conpietf the then-planned public offering of
our common stock.

To the extent that an award terminatesiregr lapses for any reason or is settled in,casjr shares subject to the award (to the exte
such termination, expiration, lapse or cash settfgirmay be used again for new grants under th& BCn. Shares tendered or withheld to
satisfy the grant or exercise price or tax withimgddobligation pursuant to any award or the exerpisce of an option may be used again for
new grants under the 2011 Plan.

The maximum number of shares of commorkstioat may be subject to one or more awards taticfpant pursuant to the 2011 Plan
during any calendar year is 1,250,000 and the maxiramount that may be paid to a participant in casing any calendar year with respect
to cashbased awards is $2,000,000. However, these liniit®at apply to certain awards granted under th&2Plan until the earliest to oct
of the first material modification of the 2011 Platiowing the date the shares are listed on acyrsies exchange or designated on an
interdealer quotation system, or the Public Tradbage, the issuance of all of the shares resemed$uance under the 2011 Plan, the
expiration of the 2011 Plan or the first meetingof stockholders at which directors are to betetbthat occurs after the close of the third
calendar year following the calendar year in whtod Public Trading Date occurs.

Administration

The 2011 Plan provides that the compensai@mmittee of our board of directors, or the congadion committee, currently administers
the 2011 Plan, although our board of directors maarcise any powers and responsibilities assigméloet compensation committee at any
time.

The compensation committee has the aughtriadminister and interpret the 2011 Plan, iniclgdhe power to determine eligibility, the
types and sizes of awards, the price, timing ahdraerms and conditions of awards and the acdiarar waiver of any vesting or forfeiture
restriction. The compensation committee may detetzatin executive officer or officers the authotdygrant awards to non-officer employees
and to consultants, in accordance with any guidelas the compensation committee may determine.

Eligibility

Persons eligible to participate in the 2@14dn include employees, consultants and our ngulerae directors and our affiliates, as
determined by the compensation committee. Onlyeoyployees and certain of our parent and subsidiamyorations are eligible to receive
grants of options intended to qualify as ISOs.
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Stock Options

The 2011 Plan authorizes the grant of stgatlons, including ISOs and nonqualified stockiaps. Under the 2011 Plan, the exercise [
of ISOs granted pursuant to the 2011 Plan willbetess than the fair market value of the commocoksbn the date of grant, and the exercise
price of nonqualified stock options granted pursuaarnhe 2011 Plan will be determined by the consp#ion committee. Stock options are
subject to such vesting and exercisability condgias are determined by the compensation commaitt@eet forth in a written stock option
agreement. In no event may an ISO have a term of than ten years. ISOs granted to any person wing,cas of the date of grant, stock
possessing more than 10% of the total combineagqtower of all classes of our stock, howeverraguired to have an exercise price that is
not less than 110% of the fair market value ofdbmmon stock on the date of grant and may not haeem of more than five years. The
aggregate fair market value of the shares witheetsip which options intended to be 1ISOs are egabie for the first time by an employee in
any calendar year may not exceed $100,000, oratheln amount as the Code provides without beirfdérkas a nonqualified stock option.

Stock Appreciation Right

A stock appreciation right, or SAR, is tight to receive payment of an amount equal toetteess of the fair market value of a share of
common stock on the date of exercise of the SAR theegrant price of the SAR. The grant price afte8AR granted under the 2011 Plan
be no less than the fair market value of a shaomwimon stock on the date of grant of the SAR. ddrapensation committee is authorized to
issue SARs in such amounts and on such terms amtitioms as it may determine, consistent with #vens of the 2011 Plan.

Restricted Stocl

Restricted stock is the grant of sharesoofimon stock at a price, if any, determined bycttrapensation committee, which shares are
nontransferable and may be subject to forfeitutd specified vesting conditions are met. Restdcstock will be evidenced by a written
agreement. During the period of restriction, res#d stock is subject to restrictions and vesteguirements, as provided by the compensatior
committee. The restrictions may lapse in accordavittea schedule or other conditions determinedhgycompensation committee.

Restricted Stock Unit

A restricted stock unit provides for theuance of a share of common stock at a futurewgaie the satisfaction of specific conditions set
forth in the applicable award agreement. The corsgion committee will specify, or permit the restieid stock unit holder to elect, the
conditions and dates upon which payments underetfteécted stock units will made, which dates maybe earlier than the date as of which
the restricted stock units vest and which condgiand dates will be subject to compliance with i8act09A of the Code. On the distribution
dates, we will transfer to the participant one strieted, fully transferable share of the commarkt(or the fair market value of one such sl
of common stock in cash) for each restricted stoukscheduled to be paid out on such date angmeoiously forfeited.

Performance Units

Performance units represent the participaight to receive an amount, based on the vditiBeocommon stock, if performance goals
established by the compensation committee aresthi@he compensation committee will determineaglicable performance period, the
performance goals and such other conditions thalyap the performance unit.
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Performance Award:

A performance award is cash bonus awaodkdtonus award, performance award or incentivaégtet is paid in cash, shares of
common stock or a combination of both, as deterchinethe compensation committee. The compensationittee will determine the
applicable performance period, the performancesyaadl such other conditions that apply to the pedmce award.

Stock Grants

A stock grant is a grant in the form of sa0f common stock. The number or value of shafresy stock grant will be determined by the
compensation committee.

Qualified Performance-Based Awards

Any award under the 2011 Plan, other thatoek grant, may be issued as a qualified perfoomdased award that is earned based on tl
attainment of performance criteria. The compensat@mmmittee may grant qualified performance-baseards to employees who are or may
be "covered employees," as defined in Section 1pa{rthe Code, that are intended to be performdrased compensation within the meaning
of Section 162(m) of the Code in order to presdimeedeductibility of these awards for federal ineotax purposes. The qualified performance
based awards may be linked to any one or moreegbéinformance criteria set forth in the 2011 Plaatber specific criteria determined by the
compensation committee.

Dividends, Dividend Equivalent

The 2011 Plan authorizes the compensatamattee to provide a participant with the rightéceive dividends or dividend equivalents
with respect to shares of common stock coveredtaveard granted under the 2011 Plan. Dividendsdandend equivalents may be settled in
cash or shares of common stock, as determinedebyaimpensation committee.

Payment Method:

The compensation committee determines tsthods by which payments by any option granted utide2011 Plan may be paid,
including, without limitation, by:

. cash or check;

. placing a market sell order with a broker wiéispect to shares of common stock then-issuable exEncise or vesting of an
award, and directing the broker to pay a sufficfgmtion of the net proceeds of the sale to usfisfction of the aggregate
payments required (provided that payment of suokg®ds is then made to us upon settlement of slej) s

. shares of common stock issuable pursuant to thedaovgreviously held; or

. such other legal consideration deemed acceptahtleebgompensation committee.
Forfeiture of Unvested Awards; Leave of Absence

Upon the termination of service of the ewldf an option or stock appreciation right, unleggerwise provided by the compensation
committee, the award generally will expire on aedzt later than three months after the terminatfoservice. Except as otherwise determine
by the compensation committee, in the event thaethployment or services of the holder of an avatdrminated, the unvested portion of the
award will generally be forfeited or may be subjectepurchase by us, and will cease to vest aorbeaexercisable after the termination.

144




Table of Contents

The compensation committee may provide dinaiward will continue to vest for some or altled period of a leave of absence, or that
vesting of an award will be tolled during a lea¥absence, consistent with applicable law.

Transferability

Generally, awards under the 2011 Plan nmiy loe transferred by will or the laws of descemd distribution, unless and until such award
has been exercised or the shares underlying suatddvave been issued and all restrictions appkcab$uch shares have lapsed. However,
subject to certain terms and conditions, the corsgiéon committee may permit a holder to transfeomqualified stock option or shares of
restricted stock to any "family member" under apgdble securities laws.

Adjustments; Corporate Transactior

In the event of a declaration of a stockd#ind, stock split, reverse stock split, recajztdion, reclassification, reorganization or simila
occurrence, the compensation committee will makeariate adjustments to:

. the number and kind of shares available forruggrants;

. the number and kind of shares covered by eatdtamding award,;
. the grant or exercise price under each outstaralirayd; and

. the repurchase right of each share of restricieekst

In the event that such a corporate actmuis that is not included in the list of actionsered in the immediately preceding sentence, th
compensation committee may equitably adjust angtantling awards under the 2011 Plan in such mawiémay deem equitable and
appropriate.

In the event of a merger or consolidatibe, sale or exchange of all common stock, the salesfer or disposition of all or substantially
of our assets or our liquidation or dissolutiorg tompensation committee may take one or moreeofoffowing actions with respect to
outstanding options and SARSs:

. provide for the assumption or substitution of theeds;

. cancel the awards;

. accelerate the awards in whole or in part;

. cash out the awards;

. convert the awards into the right to receiveiligition proceeds; or
. any combination of the above.

Upon our liquidation or dissolution, excagtotherwise provided in an applicable award agesg, all forfeiture restrictions and/or
performance goals with respect to an award wilbeatically be deemed terminated or satisfied, alicgble.

In the event of a "change of control" (afinkd in the 2011 Plan), our compensation commitiél take any action it deems necessary or
appropriate, including to accelerate an award inlevlor in part. A SAR granted in tandem with a ktoption that can only be exercised during
limited periods following a change of control of may entitle the holder to receive an amount basetthe highest price paid or offered for the
common stock in a transaction relating to the ckasfgcontrol or paid during the thirgay period immediately preceding the change ofrobi
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Termination or Amendment

Our board of directors may terminate, amanchodify the 2011 Plan at any time. However, lstmtder approval of an amendment is
required to increase the aggregate share limifpgd#he description of eligible participants othe extent necessary to comply with applicable
law.

The term of the 2011 Plan will expire ondano ISO may be granted pursuant to the 2011 ¢Haor after, November 7, 2021.
Tax Withholding

We may require participants to dischargdiagble withholding tax obligations with respegtany award granted to the participant. The
plan administrator may in its discretion allow dd®s to meet any such withholding tax obligatiogsetecting to have us withhold shares of
common stock otherwise issuable under any awardlli@w the return of shares of common stock) hawrigir market value equal to the sums
required to be withheld.

Risk Assessment in Compensation Programs

We have assessed our compensation progradnsoncluded that our compensation practices tloreate risks that are reasonably likely
to have a material adverse effect on us.
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ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement

The following table sets forth informatimgarding beneficial ownership of our common staslof February 28, 2013 by: (i) each persor
known by the Company to be the beneficial ownecudated in accordance with Rule 13¢#)(1) promulgated under the Exchange Act of n
than 5% of the outstanding shares of common si{@gleach director and executive officer of the Guany; and (iii) all officers and directors
a group. Unless otherwise stated in the tablesdpiitnotes, the person and entities listed belavehhe sole voting power and investment
power with respect to the shares set forth nernts name. Unless otherwise noted, the addresscbfstockholder below is c/o Radius
Health, Inc., 201 Broadway, 6th Floor, Cambridgey 02139.

Percentage of

Shares Converted
Beneficially Title of Percentage of Common
Owned Class Class(1)(a) Stock(1)(b)
Michael S. Wyzg: 573,75((2) Common Stocl 39.8%
(Chief Executive
Officer, Converted Common Stoc 2.6%
President and
Director)
B. Nicholas Harve 211,7144) Common Stocl 20.2%
(Senior Vice
President Converted Common Stoc 1.C%
Chief Financial
Officer,
Treasurer and
Secretary
Louis Brennel 131,77Y(5) Common Stocl 13.2%
(Senior Vice
President an Converted Common Stoc 0.6%
Chief Medical
Officer)
Michael Franket 21,8756) Common Stocl 2.5%
(Senior Vice
President an Converted Common Stoc 0.1%
Chief Business
Officer)
Gary Hattersle 101,62(7) Common Stocl 10.5%
(Senior Vice
President Converted Common Stoc 0.5%
Preclinical
Development
C. Richard Lyttle, Ph.L 677,49(3) Common Stocl 45.8%
Converted Common Stoc 3.C%
Dr. Ansbert K. Gadicki 8,397,07(8) Common Stocl 90.€%
(Director) 384,26(9) Series /1 Preferred Stoc 40.%
402,15Y10)Series 42 Preferred Stoc 40.%
53,33(11)Series /-3 Preferred Stoc 37.5%
Converted Common Stoc 38.8%
Alan H. Auerbact 213,88{(12)Common Stocl 19.8%
(Director) Converted Common Stoc 1.C%
Jonathan J. Flemir 1,364,83,(13)Common Stocl 51.€%
(Director) 109,71¢(14)Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 11.2%
25,23{(15)Series /-3 Preferred Stoc 17.7%

Converted Common Sto 6.2%



Kurt C. Graves 149,72416)Common Stocl 14.7%
(Director) Converted Common Stoc 0.7%
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Dr. Martin Miinchbact
(Director)

Dr. Elizabeth Stone
(Director)

Entities affiliated with
MPM Capital
200 Clarendon St.,
54th FI.
Boston, MA 0211¢

The Wellcome Trust
Limited as
trustee of The
Wellcome Trus
215 Euston Roa
London NW1 2BE
England

HealthCare Ventures
VII, L.P.
55 Cambridge
Parkway
Suite 10z
Cambridge, MA
02142

Entities affiliated with
Saints Capita
475 Sansome Stre
Suite 185(
San Francisco, CA
94111

BB Biotech Ventures
I, L.P.
Traflagar Cour
Les Banque
St. Peter Pol
Guernsey
Channel Island
GY1 3QL

Entities affiliated with
Oxford Bioscience
Partners
222 Berkley Stree
Suite 165(
Boston, MA 0211¢

Healthcare Private
Equity
Limited Partnershi
Edinburgh One
Morrison Stree
Edinburgh EH3 8BE
U.K.

Percentage of

Shares Converted
Beneficially Title of Percentage of Common
Owned Class Class(1)(a) Stock(1)(b)
1,896,98I((17)Common Stocl 68.€%
84,53€(18)Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 9.C%
105,16:(19)Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 10.7%
Converted Common Stoc 8.8%
35,00((20)Common Stocl 3.2%
Converted Common Stoc 0.2%
8,397,07/(21)Common Stocl 90.€%
384,26:(22)Series /1 Preferred Stoc 40.%
402,15423)Series /2 Preferred Stoc 40.%%
53,33.(24)Series /-3 37.5%
Converted Common Stoc 38.8%
2,868,91(25)Common Stocl 76.8%
76,56€(26)Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 8.1%
210,32! Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 21.8%
Converted Common Stoc 13.%%
2,292,05/(27)Common Stocl 74.5%
58,95{(28)Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 6.2%
98,27¢ Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 10.(%
63,66:  Series /3 Preferred Stoc 44.£%
Converted Common Stoc 10.6%
1,856,10(29)Common Stocl 68.5%
49,127(30)Series /1 Preferred Stoc 5.2%
109,71¢31)Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 11.2%
25,23%(32)Series /-3 Preferrec 17.7%
Converted Common Stoc 8.€%
1,896,98((33)Common Stocl 68.€%
84,53€(34)Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 9.C%
105,16:  Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 10.7%
Converted Common Stoc 8.8%
1,364,83,(35)Common Stocl 51.8%
109,71(36)Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 11.2%
25,23%(37)Series /-3 Preferred Stoc 17.7%
Converted Common Stoc 6.2%
765,02((38)Common Stocl 46.%
20,41¢ Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 2.2%
56,08¢  Series /2 Preferred Stoc 5.7%
Converted Common Stoc 3.5%
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Brookside Capital
Partners
Fund, L.P.
c/o Bain

Capital, LLC

John Hancock Towe
200 Clarendon Stre:
Boston, MA 0211¢

Biotech Growth N.V

Asset Management
BAB N.V.

Ara Hill Top
Building,

Unit A-5

Pletterijweg Oost :

Curagao, Dutch
Caribbear

Ipsen Pharma SA
65, quai Georges
Gorse
92100 Boulogne
Billancourt
France

Stavros C. Manolage
35 River Ridge Circl
Little Rock, AR

72227

Nordic Bioscience
Herlev Hovedgade
207
2730 Herlev
Denmark

General Electric Capit
Corporation

Oxford Finance LLC
133 N. Fairfax Stree
Alexandria, VA

22314

Louis O'Dee
566 Main Stree
Hingham, MA 0204:

Michael Rosenbla
130 Lake Ave
Newton, MA 0245¢

John Katzenellenboge
Trust
704 West
Pennsylvania
Avenue
Urbana, lllinois
61801

Percentage of

Shares Converted
Beneficially Title of Percentage of Common
Owned Class Class(1)(a) Stock(1)(b)
1,228,20((39)Common Stocl 58.€%
122,82( Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 13.1%
Converted Common Stot 5.7%
1,228,20/(40)Common Stocl 58.€%
122,82( Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 13.1%
Converted Common Stot¢ 5.7%
173,26((41)Common Stocl 16.7%
17,32¢ Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 1.8%
Converted Common Sto 0.8%
91,04( Common Stocl 10.5%
Converted Common Stor 0.4%
64,43((42)Common Stocl 6.S%
6.,44: Series /-5 Preferred Stoc 100.(%
Converted Common Sto 0.2%
61,40((43)Common Stocl 6.6%
6,14( Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 0.7%
Converted Common Stot 0.3%
61,40((44)Common Stocl 6.€%
6,14( Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 0.7%
Converted Common Sto 0.2%
193,08 Common Stocl 22.2%
Converted Common Sto 0.2%
44,80: Common Stocl 5.2%
Converted Common Stot 0.2%
56,065(45)Common Stocl 6.5%
Converted Common Sto 0.2%



Chris Miller 63,85: Common Stocl 7.4%
11 Edgar Walker
Court Converted Common Stot 0.3%
Hingham, MA 0204:

149




Table of Contents

Percentage of

Shares Converted
Beneficially Title of Percentage of Common
Owned Class Class(1)(a) Stock(1)(b)
John Thomas Potts, . 83,28:(46)Common Stocl 9.5%
Massachusetts
General Hospite Converted Common Stoc 0.4%
149 13th Street, MC
149400¢=
Charlestown, MA
0212¢-2000
All Officers and
Directors as i 13,098,23 Common Stocl 93.9%
group (11
individuals) Converted Common Stoc 56.%%
Q) (a) Because shares of preferred stock vote togeifitte common stock on an as-converted basis theepéages of

1)

)

®3)

(4)

(®)

(6)

beneficial ownership reported in this column do rediect the beneficial owner's voting percentafjeus outstanding
capital stock. See Note (1)(b). Because each stdd&hof the Company is a party to certain agred¢seith the other
stockholders of the Company, which agreements ggraenong other things, certain voting agreemendtslimitations or
the sale of their shares of common stock, eaclkistdder of the Company may be deemed to be a meaflaetgroup,”
within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exuppa Act. The percentages of beneficial ownershiggmted in this
column are calculated in accordance with Rule 1@f)¢8) promulgated under the Exchange Act, exclgdmthe case of
each beneficial owner, the shares held by any dibeeficial owner, as to which each beneficial omdisclaims
beneficial ownership.

(b) A more accurate reflection of each besiafiowner's voting percentage is their percenti#ghe preferred stock and
the common stock voting together as a single ¢tags'Converted Common Stock"), assuming the caiwerof all
issued and outstanding shares of preferred stoakder to provide accurate disclosure of the eaiébeneficial
ownership percentage of each beneficial owner dedun this table we have set forth each such dakedwner's
ownership percentage (calculated in accordanceRuite 13d3 of the Exchange Act) of the Converted Common ISio
this column. See Note (1)(a).

Consists of 573,750 options to purchase ontraon stock anticipated to be exercisable withird&@s after February 28,
2013.

Includes 610,830 options to purchase our commarkstnticipated to be exercisable within 60 daysrafebruary 28,
2013, held by the Cecil Richard Lyttle Grantor Ret¢a Annuity Trust. Mr. Lyttle is a trustee of tBecil Richard Lyttle
Grantor Retained Annuity Trust and may be deemdxbi®ficially own these securities.

Includes 181,718 options to purchase our comstock anticipated to be exercisable within 60sdafyer February 28,
2013.

Consists of 131,775 options to purchase our comsimek anticipated to be exercisable within 60 deyer February 28,
2013.

Consists of 21,875 options to purchase common sintikipated to be exercisable within 60 days dftruary 28, 201
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(8)

Consists of 101,622 options to purchase out comstmrk anticipated to be exercisable within 60 defyer February 28,
2013.

Includes 82,220 shares of common stock issuabla apoversion of 8,222 shares of Company SeriesP4eferred
Stock, 121,940 shares of common stock issuable apoversion of 12,194 shares of Company SeriesPAeferred
Stock, 29,850 shares of common stock issuable apowersion of 2,985 shares of Company Series AeBRed Stock
issued to MPM BioVentures Ill, L.P. ("BV 1lI"), ithe Merger (as defined below), and 68,740 sharesmimon stock
issuable upon conversion of 6,874 shares of ComBanigs A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BV Il atsaduent closings
of the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stock finagicl,222,900 shares of common stock issuable opowersion of
122,290 shares of Company Series A-1 PreferreckS19813,640 shares of common stock issuable upowession of
181,364 shares of Company Series A-2 PreferreckSamel 443,950 shares of common stock issuable cpaversion of
44,395 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred S¢sdled to MPM BioVentures II-QP, L.P. ("BV Il QR in the
Merger, and 1,022,380 shares of common stock isswglmn conversion of 102,238 shares of CompanigSér1
Preferred Stock issued to BV Ill QP at subsequlasings of the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stioekcing;
103,350 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 10,335 shares of Company Series A-1 PrdeBtock,
153,270 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 15,327 shares of Company Series A-2 PredeBtock, and
37,520 shares of common stock issuable upon caowen$ 3,752 shares of Company Series A-3 Preféstedk issued
to MPM BioVentures Il GmbH & Co. Beteiligungs K.GBV Il KG"), in the Merger, and 86,400 sharesaafmmon
stock issuable upon conversion of 8,640 shareooffany Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BX @Gl at subsequent
closings of the Company's SerieslRreferred Stock financing; 36,930 shares of comstock issuable upon convers
of 3,693 shares of Company Series A-1 PreferredkS4,770 shares of common stock issuable upowetsion of
5,477 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferred Stouk,13,400 shares of common stock issuable uporecsion of
1,340 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred S$sded to MPM BioVentures Il Parallel Fund, L.FBVY 11l PF"), in
the Merger, and 30,860 shares of common stockligswgon conversion of 3,086, shares of CompanieSér-1
Preferred Stock issued to BV Il PF at subsequiarsitgs of the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stioeincing; 23,680
shares of common stock issuable upon conversi@B368 shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred S8%#10 shares
of common stock issuable upon conversion of 3,%tes of Company Series A-2 Preferred Stock, ds@08hares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 859 stidr€gmpany Series A-3 Preferred Stock issued td/IMiBset
Management Investors 2003 BVIII LLC ("AM LLC") itné Merger, and 19,780 shares of common stock itesupon
conversion of 1,978, shares of Company Series AefeRed Stock issued to AM LLC at subsequent olgsiof the
Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stock financing; B4 shares of common stock issuable upon conveddio

54,001 shares of Company Seried freferred Stock, and 1,842,420 shares of commtoak &suable upon conversior
184,242 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferreck$dsaed to MPM Bio IV NVS Strategic Fund, L.P. (Pl NVS")
in the Merger, and 605,360 shares of common s&stkable upon conversion of 60,536, shares of Coynparies A-1
Preferred Stock issued to MPM NVS at subsequestras of the Company's SerieslARreferred Stock financing. MP
BioVentures Il GP, L.P. ("BV lll LP") and MPM Bio®¥ntures Il LLC ("BV3LLC") are the direct and indit general
partners of BV IlI, BV Il QP, BV Ill KG, and BV lIPF. MPM BioVentures IV GP LLC ("BV IV GP") and M®
BioVentures IV LLC ("BV4LLC") are the direct anddirect general partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is ther&ral
Partner of BV IIl LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evniticholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Hendiholas
Simon and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3LL@ #re managers of AM LLC. All members of BV3LLC saall
power to vote, acquire, hold and dispose of altehand warrants. Each member disclaims benetivinkrship of the
securities
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except to the extent of their pecuniary interesteim. BV4LLC is the Managing Member of BV IV GPngbert Gadicke,
Luke Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, Jamed Baopa, Vaughn M. Kailian and Steven St. PetettadVlembers
of MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All members share allyer to vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all shared warrants.
Each member disclaims beneficial ownership of #migties except to the extent of their pecuniatgriest therein. Each
entity mentioned above and Dr. Gadicke disclaimefieial ownership of all shares not held by it antof record.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infatimn known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with$C on
December 27, 2011 by BV I, BV Il QP, BV lll K&V Il PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV IIl LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP,
BV4LLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Gal#ds, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas &inil,
Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, Jafasl Scopa, Steven St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Includes of 8,222 shares of Company Series A-lelfed Stock issued to BV Il in the Merger, and/@,8hares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to B¥tIBubsequent closings of the Company's Serie®feferred Stock
financing; 122,290 shares of Company Series A-feed Stock issued to BV Il QP in the Merger, dfi?,238 shares
of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued tdIB@P at subsequent closings of the Company'sSeXxi1 Preferred
Stock financing; 10,335 shares of Company SeridsPxeferred Stock issued to BV 11l KG in the Mergand 8,640
shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issuBW 11l KG at subsequent closings of the Compar8eries A-1
Preferred Stock financing; 3,693 shares of Com&enes A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BV Ill PFie Merger, and
3,086 shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Séscled to BV 11l PF at subsequent closings of tbenBany's

Series A-1 Preferred Stock financing; 2,368 shafésompany Series A-1 Preferred Stock, issued tolAN in the
Merger, and 1,978 shares of Company Series A-kResf Stock issued to AM LLC at subsequent closofdghe
Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stock financing; %001 shares of Company Series A-1 PreferreckSssaed to
MPM NVS in the Merger, and 60,536 shares of ComBarjes A-1 Preferred Stock issued to MPM NVS assqguent
closings of the Company's Series A-1 PreferrediSiioancing. BV Il LP and BV3LLC, are the direch@ indirect
general partners of BV I, BV Il QP, BV Il KG,rad BV Il PF. BV IV GP and BVALLC are the directéindirect
general partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the Gend?aftner of BV IIl LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evniticholas
Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Nafi@imon and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3lan@ the
managers of AM LLC. All members share all powevdte, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares aamdamts. Each
member disclaims beneficial ownership of the séiesrexcept to the extent of their pecuniary irgeteerein. BVALLC i
the Managing Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadickeké Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, James Baaba,
Vaughn M. Kailian and Steven St. Peter are the Masbf MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All members sharémdwer to
vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares aardamts. Each member disclaims beneficial ownershipe securities
except to the extent of their pecuniary interestéin. Each entity mentioned above and Dr. Gaditikelaim beneficial
ownership of all shares not held by it or him afael. Beneficial ownership information is basedrmformation known t
us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on Dece@be2011 by BV Ill, BV 1l QP, BV Ill KG, BV IlIPF, AM LLC,
MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, LukeEvnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael
Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas Simon llI, DenHisnner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, James Fadpa, Steven
St. Peter and John Vander V¢
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Includes 12,194 shares of Company Series A-2 ResfStock issued BV Il in the Merger; 181,364 &sanf Company
Series A-2 Preferred Stock issued to BV Il QPhe Merger, 15,327 shares of Company Series A-ZRezf Stock
issued BV IIl KG in the Merger; 5,477 shares of Qamy Series A-2 Preferred Stock issued to BV lllifPthe Merger;
3,511 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferred Séscled to AM LLC in the Merger; and 184,242 shafeSompany
Series A2 Preferred Stock issued to MPM NVS in the Mer@af.1ll LP and BV3LLC, are the direct and indirecgera
partners of BV IlI, BV Il QP, BV Ill KG, and BV IIPF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the direct and indirgeneral
partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the General Parto€BV Ill LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Nichol&alakatos,
Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Nicholas Simah ldaart Wheeler are the Members of BV3LLC and thenagers of
AM LLC. All members share all power to vote, acguinold and dispose of all shares and warrantsh Eeenber
disclaims beneficial ownership of the securitiesapt to the extent of their pecuniary interesteiverBVALLC is the
Managing Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Lukenin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, James Paup&co
Vaughn M. Kailian and Steven St. Peter are the Masibf MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All members sharé@wer to
vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares aandamts. Each member disclaims beneficial ownershthe securities
except to the extent of their pecuniary interesteém. Each entity mentioned above and Dr. Gadiikelaim beneficial
ownership of all shares not held by it or him afael. Beneficial ownership information is basedrformation known t
us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on Dece@bg2011 by BV Ill, BV 1l QP, BV IlIl KG, BV IlIPF, AM LLC,
MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, LukeEvnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael
Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas Simon 1lI, DenHisnner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, James Fadpa, Steven
St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Includes 2,985 shares of Company Series AeBeRed Stock issued to BV Il in the Merger; BZhares of Company
Series A-3 Preferred Stock issued BV IIl QP, inkherger; 3,752 shares of Company Series A-3 PiedeBtock issued
to BV IlIl KG, in the Merger; 1,340 shares of Compa&eries A-3 Preferred Stock issued to BV Il RtHe Merger; and
859 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred Steciedsto AM LLC in the Merger. BV IIl LP and BV3LLGye the
direct and indirect general partners of BV lll, BYQP, BV Il KG, and BV Il PF. BV IV GP and BV4LC are the
direct and indirect general partners of MPM NVS.®RY.C is the General Partner of BV Il LP. Ansberadicke, Luke
Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, DerHénner, Nicholas Simon and Kurt Wheeler are tieenlders of
BV3LLC and the managers of AM LLC. All members shatl power to vote, acquire, hold and disposdiateares and
warrants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownprehthe securities except to the extent of theaymiary interest
therein. BV4LLC is the Managing Member of BV IV GRnsbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Todd Foley, John \&ardort,
James Paul Scopa, Vaughn M. Kailian and SteveRes¢r are the Members of MPM BioVentures IV LLCL iembers
share all power to vote, acquire, hold and dispdsdl shares and warrants. Each member disclaensficial ownership
of the securities except to the extent of theirupéary interest therein. Each entity mentioned abawd Dr. Gadicke
disclaim beneficial ownership of all shares nodhgy it or him of record. Beneficial ownership infeation is based on
information known to us and a Schedule 13D filethwlie SEC on December 27, 2011 by BV Ill, BV lIP(BV I

KG, BV Il PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke,
Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheelgcholas Simon Ill, Dennis Henner, Todd Foleyughn M.
Kailian, James Paul Scopa, Steven St. Peter and\Jaider Vort
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Consists of 213,888 options to purchase our comstmek anticipated to be exercisable within 60 deyer February 28, 2013.

Includes 15,173 shares of common stock and 1,086&B8res of common stock issuable upon conver$itf&628 shares of Compe
Series A-2 Preferred Stock, 249,830 shares of camstaxk issuable upon conversion of 24,983 shdr€ampany Series A-3
Preferred Stock (the "OBP IV Shares") held direbyyOBP IV—Holdings LLC ("OBP IV"); and 151 sharescommon stock and
10,900 shares of common stock issuable upon caiwen$ 1,090 shares of Company Series A-2 Prefestedk, 2,500 shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 250 stir€empany Series A-3 Preferred Stock (the "mRIN8Hares") held directly by
MRNA [l—Holdings LLC ("mRNA II"). The OBP IV Sharesnd the mRNA Il Shares are referred to hereimas®xford Shares." The
OBP IV Shares are indirectly held by Oxford Biosde Partners IV L.P. ("OBP LP"), a member of OBP T¥ie mRNA Il Shares are
indirectly held by mRNA Fund Il L.P. ("mRNA LP"),member of mMRNA Il. The Oxford Shares are indirgbttld by OBP
Management IV L.P. ("OBP Management IV"), the spd@eral partner of each of OBP LP and mRNA LP; ttaraFleming and Alan
Walton, the individual general partners of OBP Mgaraent IV; Saints Capital Granite, L.P. ("Saints),.& member of OBP IV and
MRNA 1I; Saints Capital Granite, LLC ("Saints LLC'the sole general partner of Saints LP; and $taidted, David P. Quinlivan, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers of SdihtC. Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton, the indiil general partners of OBP
Management IV, share all voting and investment pawebehalf of OBP Management IV. Scott HalstedyiB#. Quinlivan, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers of SdihtC, share all voting and investment power onalfetf Saints LLC. Each of the
entities and individuals mentioned above disclagnddicial ownership within the meaning of Sectiéaf the Exchange Act or
otherwise of such portion of the Oxford Shares il such entity or individual has no actual peatpinterest therein. Beneficial
ownership information is based on information knadathe Company and a Schedule 13D filed with tBE€ ®n May 27, 2011 by OBP
IV, mMRNA II, mMRNA Fund Il, OBP Management |V, SartP, Saints LLC, Jonathan Fleming, Alan WaltorgtSElalsted, David P.
Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes 108,628 shares of Company SeriePAeferred Stock held directly by OBP IV (the "OBPA-2 Shares") and 1,090 share:
Company Series A-2 Preferred Stock held directlyBNA 11 (the "mRNA Il A-2 Shares"). The OBP IV &-Shares are indirectly he
by OBP LP, a member of OBP IV. The mRNA Il A-2 Sémare indirectly held by mRNA LP, a member of mRINAThe OBP IV A-2
Shares and the mRNA Il A-2 Shares are referrecttoih as the "Oxford A-2 Shares". The Oxford A-2&is are indirectly held by
OBP Management IV, the sole general partner of ea€BP LP and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming and Alaalt@h, the individual
general partners of OBP Management IV; Saints LiRember of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saints LLC, the sgkneral partner of
Saints LP; and Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivard Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers @fitSaLC. Jonathan Fleming a
Alan Walton, the individual general partners of OBBnagement 1V, share all voting and investmentgroen behalf of OBP
Management IV. Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivamd &enneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers @fitSd_LC, share all voting ar
investment power on behalf of Saints LLC. Eachheféntities and individuals mentioned above distlaéneficial ownership within
the meaning of Section 16 of the Exchange Act bewtise of such portion of the Saints A-2 Shareshith such entity or individual
has no actual pecuniary interest therein. Benéfisiaership information is based on information Wmato the Company and a
Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 27, 201108P IV, mRNA II, mRNA Fund I, OBP Management IVaits LP, Saints LLC
Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, D&i®uinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.
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Includes 24,983 shares of Company Series A-3 RegfeStock held directly by OBP 1V (the "OBP IV AShares") and 250 shares of
Company Series A-3 Preferred Stock held directlyrtBNA 11 (the mRNA Il A-3 Shares"). The OBP IV A&hares are indirectly held
by OBP LP, a member of OBP IV. The mRNA Il A-3 Sémare indirectly held by mRNA LP, a member of mRINAThe OBP IV A-3
Shares and the mRNA 1l A-3 Shares are referrecttsih as the "Oxford A-3 Shares". The Oxford A-Z2i&is are indirectly held by
OBP Management IV, the sole general partner of eA€BP LP and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming and Alaaltdh, the individual
general partners of OBP Management IV; Saints LiRember of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saints LLC, the sgkneral partner of
Saints LP; and Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivard Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers @fitSd.LC. Jonathan Fleming a
Alan Walton, the individual general partners of OBBnagement 1V, share all voting and investmentgroon behalf of OBP
Management IV. Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivamd &enneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers @fitSd_LC, share all voting ar
investment power on behalf of Saints LLC. Eachheféntities and individuals mentioned above distlaéneficial ownership within
the meaning of Section 16 of the Exchange Act bewtise of such portion of the Saints A-3 Shareshith such entity or individual
has no actual pecuniary interest therein. Benéfisimership information is based on information wmato the Company and a
Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 27, 201108P IV, mRNA II, mRNA Fund I, OBP Management IVaits LP, Saints LLC
Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, D&i®uinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Consists of 149,724 options to purchase our comstmek anticipated to be exercisable within 60 deyer February 28, 2013.

Includes 435,960 shares of common stock leugon conversion of 43,596 shares of Companie$Sér1 Preferred Stock (the
"BBBV LP A-1 Preferred Stock"), and 1,051,620 slsasécommon stock issuable upon conversion of B¥%bshares of Company
Series A-2 Preferred Stock (together with the BBIHYA-1 Preferred Stock the "BBBV LP Shares") isstm&B Biotech Ventures
II'L.P. ("BBBV LP") in the Merger, and 409,400 sharissuable upon conversion of 40,940 shares ofp@oynSeries A-1 Preferred
Stock issued to BBBV LP at subsequent closingg®i@ompany's Series A-1 Preferred Stock finand®)Biotech Ventures GP
(Guernsey) Limited ("BBBV Limited") is the Genef@artner of BBBV LP. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieus,Ben Morgan are the
directors of BBBV Limited. Dr. Miinchbach, the Seminvestment Advisor Private Equity at Bellevue @dsBlanagement AG, advises
Asset Management BAB N.V. ("AMB NV") who, pursudnta services agreement with BAM AG, advises theators of BBBV
Limited mentioned above. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mataed Ben Morgan share all voting and investmemtgsaover the BBBV LP
shares. Each of the foregoing, except BBBV LP sndhse of the BBBV LP Shares, disclaims benefmialership of the BBBV LP
Shares except to the extent of their pecuniaryeésteherein, if any. Beneficial ownership inforinatis based on information known to
us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on Dece@®e2011 by BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsmadeal Mahieux,

Ben Morgan, and Martin Minchbach.

Includes 43,596 shares of Company SeriesPheterred Stock issued to BBBV LP in the Merged 48,940 shares of Company
Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BBBV LP assgbient closings of the Company's Series A-1 RegfeStock financing. Voting
and investment power with respect to these shargisared by the general partners of this fund. BBBWited is the General Partner of
BBBV LP. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux and Ben Mogayarthe directors of BBBV Limited. Dr. Minchbathe Senior Investment
Advisor Private Equity at Bellevue Asset Managen®e®t advises Asset Management BAB N.V. ("AMB NV"hw, pursuant to a
services agreement with BAM AG, advises the dinecté BBBV Limited mentioned above. Jan BootsmadahMahieux and Ben
Morgan share all
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voting and investment power over the BBBV LP shaEssh of the foregoing, except BBBV LP in the cabthe BBBV LP Shares,
disclaims beneficial ownership of the BBBV LP Shsaescept to the extent of their pecuniary intetlestein, if any. Beneficial
ownership information is based on the informatioown to us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SE©eoember 29, 2011 by
BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal MahieBen Morgan, and Martin Minchbach.

Includes 105,162 shares of Company SeriesPAeferred Stock issued to BBBV LP in the Mergeutilg and investment power with
respect to these shares is shared by the genetna¢rsaof this fund. BBBV Limited is the Generalrfar of BBBV LP. Jan Bootsma,
Pascal Mahieux and Ben Morgan are the directoBB&V Limited. Dr. Miinchbach, the Senior Investmémvisor Private Equity at
Bellevue Asset Management AG, advises Asset ManageBAB N.V. ("AMB NV") who, pursuant to a servicagreement with

BAM AG, advises the directors of BBBV Limited memied above. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux and Begavi@hare all voting and
investment power over the BBBV LP shares. Eacthefftregoing, except BBBV LP in the case of the BBB? Shares, disclaims
beneficial ownership of the BBBV LP Shares excephe extent of their pecuniary interest therdiany. Beneficial ownership
information is based on the information known tcansl a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on Decer2Bep011 by BBBV LP, BBB'
Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux, Ben Morgad, Martin Minchbach.

Consists of 35,000 options to purchase oarrmon stock anticipated to be exercisable withird&gs after February 28, 2013.

Includes 82,220 shares of common stock igeugion conversion of 8,222 shares of Company Sévigé Preferred Stock,

121,940 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 12,194 shares of Company Series A-2 PredeBtock, 29,850 shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 2,985%shafr Company Series A-3 Preferred Stock issuéddiRiv BioVentures IlI, L.P.
("BV III"), in the Merger, and 68,740 shares of aowwn stock issuable upon conversion of 6,874 shafr€@mpany Series A-1
Preferred Stock issued to BV Il at subsequentiotssof the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Statknfting; 1,222,900 shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 122,28@eshof Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 1,8D3sBares of common stock
issuable upon conversion of 181,364 shares of Coynparies A-2 Preferred Stock, and 443,950 shdresromon stock issuable upon
conversion of 44,395 shares of Company Series fefRed Stock issued to MPM BioVentures II-QPRL("BV Il QP"), in the
Merger, and 1,022,380 shares of common stock isswgion conversion of 102,238 shares of CompanigSér1 Preferred Stock
issued to BV Il QP at subsequent closings of tbenBany's Series A-1 Preferred Stock financing; 383 shares of common stock
issuable upon conversion of 10,335 shares of CoynBarnies A-1 Preferred Stock, 153,270 shares ofwomstock issuable upon
conversion of 15,327 shares of Company Series fefeRed Stock, and 37,520 shares of common s&stlable upon conversion of
3,752 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred Ssscled to MPM BioVentures 11l GmbH & Co. BeteiliggmK.G. ("BV 1l KG"), in
the Merger, and 86,400 shares of common stockli$sugon conversion of 8,640 shares of CompanyeSdsil Preferred Stock issur
to BV lll KG at subsequent closings of the Compargeries A-1 Preferred Stock financing; 36,930ehaf common stock issuable
upon conversion of 3,693 shares of Company SeriédPReferred Stock, 54,770 shares of common sgmlable upon conversion of
5,477 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferred Stouk,13,400 shares of common stock issuable upavecsion of 1,340 shares of
Company Series &-Preferred Stock issued to MPM BioVentures lllddat Fund, L.P. ("BV Il PF"), in the Merger, ard®,860 share
of common stock issuable upon conversion of 3,6B6res of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issuBY Il PF at subsequent
closings of the Company's Series A-1
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Preferred Stock financing; 23,680 shares of comstock issuable upon conversion of 2,368 shareoffany Series A-1 Preferred
Stock, 35,110 shares of common stock issuable apowersion of 3,511 shares of Company Series Aefeed Stock, and 8,590
shares of common stock issuable upon conversi@®thares of Company Series A-3 Preferred Stecledsto MPM Asset
Management Investors 2003 BVIII LLC ("AM LLC") itné Merger, and 19,780 shares of common stock issugon conversion of
1,978, shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred S$sced to AM LLC at subsequent closings of the Gany's Series A-1 Preferred
Stock financing; 540,010 shares of common stoadkaiste upon conversion of 54,001 shares of CompanigSA-1 Preferred Stock,
and 1,842,420 shares of common stock issuable cmorersion of 184,242 shares of Company SeriesPAeferred Stock issued to
MPM Bio IV NVS Strategic Fund, L.P. ("MPM NVS") ithe Merger, and 605,360 shares of common stockldswpon conversion of
60,536, shares of Company Series A-1 Preferreck$¢saed to MPM NVS at subsequent closings of thm@any's Series A-1
Preferred Stock financing. All voting and investrnpawer is shared with Dr. Gadicke and the othe@egal partners of these funds. BV
[l LP and BV3LLC are the direct and indirect gealgvartners of BV 1ll, BV 1ll QP, BV Ill KG, and BMII PF. BV IV GP and BV

IV LLC are the direct and indirect general partnefr8PM NVS. BV3LLC is the General Partner of BV LIP. Ansbert Gadicke,

Luke Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael SteinmBnnis Henner, Nicholas Simon and Kurt WheelerteeMembers of BV3LLC
and the managers of AM LLC. All members of BV3LLRase all power to vote, acquire, hold and dispdsslshares and warrants.
Each member disclaims beneficial ownership of #misties except to the extent of their pecuniatgriest therein. BV4LLC is the
Managing Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Lukenin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, James Paup&c@aughn M. Kailian
and Steven St. Peter are the Members of MPM BiavestlV LLC. All members share all power to votegaire, hold and dispose of
all shares and warrants. Each member disclaimsfibed@wnership of the securities except to théeex of their pecuniary interest
therein. Each fund mentioned above disclaims beiaéfiwnership of all shares not held by it of necdeneficial ownership
information is based on information known to us arsichedule 13D filed with the SEC on Decembe2R11 by BV IIl, BV Il QP,

BV Il KG, BV Il PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Il LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BVALLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadiek

Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Whedigcholas Simon Ill, Dennis Henner, Todd Foleyughn M. Kailian, James Paul
Scopa, Steven St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Includes of 8,222 shares of Company Series A-lelfmed Stock issued to BV Il in the Merger, and78,8hares of Company Series A-
1 Preferred Stock issued to BV Il at subsequergings of the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Sioekicing; 122,290 shares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to B@QRIin the Merger, and 102,238 shares of ComparigsSa-1 Preferred Stock
issued to BV Il QP at subsequent closings of tbenffany's Series A-1 Preferred Stock financing; 3® shares of Company SerieslA-
Preferred Stock issued to BV Ill KG in the Mergand 8,640 shares of Company Series A-1 Prefermek$tsued to BV Il KG at
subsequent closings of the Company's Series A{fefPed Stock financing; 3,693 shares of CompanyeSek-1 Preferred Stock issued
to BV Ill PF in the Merger, and 3,086 shares of @amy Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BV llla@PBubsequent closings of the
Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stock financingb@ ghares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stosketsto AM LLC in the

Merger, and 1,978 shares of Company Series A-leResf Stock issued to AM LLC at subsequent closofghe Company's Series A-
Preferred Stock financing; and 54,001 shares of ji2omy Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to MPM NivEhé Merger, and 60,536
shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issubtPM NVS at subsequent closings of the CompaBglies A-1 Preferred Stock
financing. Voting and investment power is sharethwlir. Gadicke and the other general partnersegeh
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funds. BV Ill LP and BV3LLC, are the direct and irett general partners of BV lll, BV Il QP, BV IKG, and BV Ill PF. BV IV GP
and BV4LLC are the direct and indirect general pens of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the General Partner &f Bl LP. Ansbert Gadicke,
Luke Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael SteinmBnnis Henner, Nicholas Simon and Kurt WheelertzeeMembers of BV3LLC
and the managers of AM LLC. All members share aWer to vote, acquire, hold and dispose of allaband warrants. Each member
disclaims beneficial ownership of the securitiesept to the extent of their pecuniary interestefrerBV4LLC is the Managing
Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin,dBoFoley, John Vander Vort, James Paul Scopa, faMyiKailian and Steven
St. Peter are the Members of MPM BioVentures IV LIXE members share all power to vote, acquiredhaid dispose of all shares
and warrants. Each member disclaims beneficial ostiye of the securities except to the extent oi thecuniary interest therein.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infatimn known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with$E&C on December 27, 2011 by
BV IIl, BV Il QP, BV lll KG, BV lll PF, AM LLC, MP M NVS, BV Il LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BVALLC, Luke Ewin, Ansbert
Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz t Kineeler, Nicholas Simon lll, Dennis Henner, Tédddey, Vaughn M. Kailian,
James Paul Scopa, Steven St. Peter and John \Adoder

Includes 12,194 shares of Company SeriesPAeferred Stock issued to BV Il in the Merger; 1384 shares of Company Series A-2
Preferred Stock issued to BV Il QP, in the Mer$jgr327 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferred S¢sdled to BV 11l KG in the
Merger; 5,477 shares of Company Series A-2 PrefeSteck issued to BV Ill PF, in the Merger; 3,5hhaes of Company Series A-2
Preferred Stock issued to AM LLC in the Merger; d18d,242 shares of Company Series A-2 PreferreckS¢sued to MPM NVS in
the Merger. All voting and investment power is gtbwith Dr. Gadicke and the other general partoétiese funds. BV IIl LP and
BV3LLC, are the direct and indirect general parsnegrBV I, BV 1ll QP, BV lll KG, and BV Ill PF. B/ IV GP and BV4LLC are the
direct and indirect general partners of MPM NVS.RY.C is the General Partner of BV Il LP. Ansberadicke, Luke Evnin, Nichole
Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Nah&imon and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3lan@ the managers of
AM LLC. All members share all power to vote, acguinold and dispose of all shares and warrant Eenber disclaims beneficial
ownership of the securities except to the extetheif pecuniary interest therein. BVALLC is thefaging Member of BV IV GP.
Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vandert, James Paul Scopa, Vaughn M. Kailian and&test. Peter are the
Members of MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All members sball power to vote, acquire, hold and disposdlafteares and warrants. Each
member disclaims beneficial ownership of the séiesriexcept to the extent of their pecuniary irgetkerein. Beneficial ownership
information is based on information known to us aréichedule 13D filed with the SEC on DecembeRR11 by BV lil, BV Ill QP,
BV Il KG, BV Il PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV IIl LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadiek Nicholas
Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nickdamon 11, Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn Milkan, James Paul Scopa,
Steven St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Includes 2,985 shares of Company Series AeBRed Stock issued to BV 1l in the Merger; B5Xhares of Company Series A-3
Preferred Stock issued to BV Ill QP in the Merggi752 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred Sssded to BV 11l KG, in the
Merger; 1,340 shares of Company Series A-3 Prafeteck issued BV IIl PF, in the Merger; and 858rsils of Company Series A-3
Preferred Stock issued to AM LLC in the Merger. ¥dting and investment power is shared with Dr. iGeland the other general
partners of these funds. BV IIl LP and BV3LLC, #ne direct and indirect general partners of BVBY, 1l QP, BV Ill KG, and BV llI
PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the direct and indirgeneral partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the Gend?altner of BV IIl LP.
Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin,
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Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Herdeholas Simon and Kurt Wheeler are the MembéBV3LLC and the
managers of AM LLC. All members share all powevdbe, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares asrdamts. Each member disclai
beneficial ownership of the securities except ®dhtent of their pecuniary interest therein. BV@Lis the Managing Member of BV

IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Todd Foley, d&ander Vort, James Paul Scopa, Vaughn M. Kagiath Steven St. Peter are
Members of MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All members shall power to vote, acquire, hold and disposdlaftares and warrants. Each
member disclaims beneficial ownership of the séiesriexcept to the extent of their pecuniary irgetkerein. Beneficial ownership
information is based on information known to us artichedule 13D filed with the SEC on DecembeRR11 by BV IIl, BV I

QP, BV Il KG, BV Il PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert @&ke, Nicholas
Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nickdamon 11, Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn Milkan, James Paul Scopa,
Steven St. Peter and John Vander Vort.

Includes 255,220 shares of common stock issualda apnversion of 25,522 shares of Company SeriésPheferred Stock, and
2,103,250 shares of common stock issuable uponetsion of 210,325 shares of Company Series A-2Bed Stock issued to The
Wellcome Trust Limited as trustee of The Wellconmast in the Merger, and 510,440 shares of commmeksssuable upon conversion
of 51,044 shares of Company Series A-1 Preferredk3ssued to The Wellcome Trust Limited as truste€he Wellcome Trust at
subsequent closings of the Company's Series A{ferfeed Stock financing. Responsibility for the aities of the Wellcome Trust lies
with the Board of Governors of The Wellcome Trushited, which is comprised of William Castell, KBavies, Peter Davies,
Christopher Fairburn, Richard Hynes, Anne JohnBarderick Kent, Eliza ManninghaBuller, Peter Rigby and Peter Smith. The Bc
of Governors share all voting and investment powign respect to the shares held by The WellcomefTlrimited as trustee of the
Wellcome Trust. Beneficial ownership informatiorbased on information known to the Company andre&ae 13D filed with the
SEC on December 23, 2011 by The Wellcome Trustteithas trustee of The Wellcome Trust.

Responsibility for the activities of the Weelme Trust lies with the Board of Governors of Tiellcome Trust Limited, which is
comprised of William Castell, Kay Davies, Peter 2ay Christopher Fairburn, Richard Hynes, Anne §ohnRoderick Kent, Eliza
Manningham-Buller, Peter Rigby and Peter Smith. Bbard of Governors share all voting and investnpenter with respect to the
shares held by The Wellcome Trust Limited as trusfethe Wellcome Trust. Beneficial ownership imf@ation is based on information
known to the Company and a Schedule 13D filed ti¢éhSEC on December 23, 2011 by The Wellcome Triusited as trustee of The
Wellcome Trust.

Includes 83,113 shares of common stock aBgb1® shares of common stock issuable upon comveddi1l9,651 shares of Company
Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 982,780 shares of camstaxk issuable upon conversion of 98,278 shdr€ampany Series A-2
Preferred Stock, 636,630 shares of common stocklids upon conversion of 63,663 shares of Compang$SA-3 Preferred Stock
issued to HealthCare Ventures VII, L.P. ("HCVVII)the Merger, and 393,020 shares of common stmiable upon conversion of
39,302 shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred S¢scled to HCVVII at subsequent closings of the Gany's Series A-1 Preferred
Stock financing. HealthCare Partners VII, L.P. ('PM3I") is the General Partner of HCVVII. The Gendpartners of HCPVII are
James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Harold R. Werner, Johnittééchild, Christopher Mirabelli, Ph.D., and fustine Lawlor. The General
Partners of HCPVII share all voting and investnaower on behalf of HCPVII. Beneficial ownershipanfation is based on
information known to the Company and a Schedule fifeD with the SEC on January 3, 2012 by HCVVICRVII,

159




Table of Contents

(28)

(29)

(30)

James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Harold R. Werner, Johhitth¢child, Christopher Mirabelli, Ph.D., and ustine Lawlor.

HealthCare Partners VII, L.P. ("HCPVII") is the &eal Partner of HCVVII. The General Partners of NORire James H. Cavanaugh,
Ph.D., Harold R. Werner, John W. Littlechild, Clwjgsher Mirabelli, Ph.D., and Augustine Lawlor. TBeneral Partners of HCPVII
share all voting and investment power on behaHl©PVIl. Beneficial ownership information is basadinformation known to the
Company and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC omnidey 3, 2012 by HCVVII, HCPVII, James H. Cavanaugh.D., Harold R.
Werner, John W. Littlechild, Christopher MirabeHih.D., and Augustine Lawlor.

Includes: (i) 15,173 shares of common stock (thBPQV Common Shares") held directly by OBP 1V; (iiB22,520 shares of common
stock (the "OBP IV Conversion Shares" and, togetithy the OBP IV Common Shares, the "OBP |V SaBhsires") issuable to OBP
IV upon the conversion of 48,641 shares of Comenyes A-1 Preferred Stock held directly by OBP 108,628 shares of Company
Series A-2 Preferred Stock held directly by OBPahd 24,983 shares of Company Series A-3 Prefetaak $eld directly by OBP 1V;
(i) 151 shares of common stock (the "mRNA Il CoomShares") held directly by mRNA II; (iv) 18,260ases of common stock (the
"mRNA Il Conversion Shares" and, together withiti@NA || Common Shares, the "mRNA Saints Il SharésSyable to mRNA I
upon the conversion of 486 shares of Company SArie®referred Stock held directly by mRNA 11, 1@8hares of Company

Series A-2 Preferred Stock held directly by mRNAnd 250 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferrezk $ild directly by mRNA 1.
The OBP IV Saints Shares and the mRNA Saints If&hare referred to herein as the "Saints Shares.'Saints Shares are indirectly
held by Saints LP, a member of OBP IV and Saint€Lthe sole general partner of Saints LP, andrttizidual managers of

Saints LLC. The individual managers of Saints L€ Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kennetts8wyer. The individual
managers of Saints LLC share all voting and investhpower on behalf of Saints LLC. Additionallyhet than with respect to the
common stock issuable upon the conversion of th@448shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Steltkdirectly by OBP IV and
the 486 shares of Company Series A-1 PreferredkSteld directly by mRNA Il, the Saints Shares amgiriectly held by OBP LP, a
member of OBP IV. The mRNA Il Shares are indirettiid by mRNA LP, a member of mMRNA Il. The Saintefs are indirectly he
by (i) OBP Management IV, the sole general partierach of OBP LP and mRNA LP and (ii) Jonathanrfilg and Alan Walton, the
individual general partners of OBP Management Bhathan Fleming and Alan Walton, the individual gieh partners of OBP
Management IV, share all voting and investment pawebehalf of OBP Management IV. Each of the @#iand individuals
mentioned above disclaim beneficial ownership withie meaning of Section 16 of the Exchange Aditberwise of such portion of
the Saints Shares in which such entity or individw#s no actual pecuniary interest therein. Bera@favnership information is based
information known to the Company and a Schedule filgD with the SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mMRNMAMRNA Fund I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonafflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qivah, and Kenneth B.
Sawyer.

Includes: 48,641 shares of Company SeriesPheferred Stock held directly by OBP IV (the "OBPA-1 Shares"), and 486 shares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock held directlytBNA 11 (together with the OBP IV A-1 Shares, tt8aints A-1 Shares"). The
Saints A-1 Shares are indirectly held by Saintsd miember of OBP 1V and mRNA I, Saints LLC, théesgeneral partner of

Saints LP, and the individual managers of Saint€ LThe individual managers of Saints LLC are SElatisted, David P. Quinlivan,
and Kenneth B. Sawyer. The individual managersairfitS LLC share all voting and investment powebehalf of Saints LLC. Each
entity mentioned above and Messrs. Halsted, Quinland Sawyer disclaim
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beneficial ownership within the meaning of Secti@nof the Exchange Act or otherwise of such portibthe Saints A-1 Shares in
which such entity or individual has no actual paanninterest therein. Beneficial ownership infotioa is based on information knov
to the Company and a Schedule 13D filed with th€ & May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA II, mRNA Fund @BP Management IV,
Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonathan Fleming, Alan Wgl®cott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kennetis8wyer.

Includes: 108,628 shares of Company Seri@sPheferred Stock held directly by OBP IV (the "OBPA-2 Shares") and 1,090 shares
of Company Series A-2 Preferred Stock held direlayiynRNA Il (together with the OBP IV A-2 Sharelet'Saints A-2 Shares"). The
Saints A-2 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Manag# IV, the sole general partner of each of OBRah&® mRNA LP; Jonathan
Fleming and Alan Walton, the individual generaltpars of OBP Management IV; Saints LP, a memb@&@B® IV and mRNA II;
Saints LLC, the sole general partner of Saintsdtfé} Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KeniietBawyer, the individual
managers of Saints LLC. Jonathan Fleming and Alaift&, the individual general partners of OBP Maragnt 1V, share all voting
and investment power on behalf of OBP Managemengsbott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KennettsBwyer, the individual
managers of Saints LLC share all voting and investrpower on behalf of Saints LLC. Each of thet@#tiand individuals mentioned
above disclaim beneficial ownership within the nmiegrof Section 16 of the Exchange Act or othervaésuch portion of the Saints A-
2 Shares in which such entity or individual hasantual pecuniary interest therein. Beneficial ovghgr information is based on
information known to the Company and a Schedule fifeD with the SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP 1V, mMRMAMRNA Fund I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonatflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qiviah, and

Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes: 24,983 shares of Company SeriesPhe3erred Stock held directly by OBP IV (the "OBPA-3 Shares"); and 250 shares of
Company Series A-3 Preferred Stock held directlyrtBNA 11 (together with the OBP IV A-3 Shares, tt8aints A-3 Shares"). The
Saints A-3 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Manag# IV, the sole general partner of each of OBRah&® mRNA LP; Jonathan
Fleming and Alan Walton, the individual generaltpars of OBP Management IV; Saints LP, a memb@&@B® IV and mRNA II;
Saints LLC, the sole general partner of Saintsdtfé} Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KeniietBawyer, the individual
managers of Saints LLC. Jonathan Fleming and Alaift&, the individual general partners of OBP Maragnt 1V, share all voting
and investment power on behalf of OBP Managemengbott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KennettsBwyer, the individual
managers of Saints LLC share all voting and investrpower on behalf of Saints LLC. Each of thet@#tiand individuals mentioned
above disclaim beneficial ownership within the nmiegrof Section 16 of the Exchange Act or othervaésuch portion of the Saints A-
3 Shares in which such entity or individual hasantual pecuniary interest therein. Beneficial ovghgr information is based on
information known to the Company and a Schedule fifgD with the SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mMRMAMRNA Fund I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonafflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qiviah, and

Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes 435,960 shares of common stock leugon conversion of 43,596 shares of CompanieS$Sér1 Preferred Stock (the
"BBBV LP A-1 Preferred Stock"), and 1,051,620 slsam&écommon stock issuable upon conversion of B¥bshares of Company
Series A-2 Preferred Stock (together with the BBIHYA-1 Preferred Stock the "BBBV LP Shares") isstm&B Biotech Ventures
IIL.P. ("BBBV LP") in the Merger, and 409,400 skharof common stock issuable upon conversion ofd0shares of Company
Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BBBV LP assgbent closings of the Company's Series A-1 Regfe3tock financing.
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BB Biotech Ventures GP (Guernsey) Limited ("BBBWiited") is the General Partner of BBBV LP. Jan Bowa, Pascal Mahieux, a
Ben Morgan are the directors of BBB Limited andrsheall investment and voting power with respedhigse shares. Additionally,
Martin Miinchbach, the Senior Investment Advisov&ié Equity at Bellevue Asset Management AG, adviseset Management

BAB N.V. ("AMB NV") who, pursuant to a services agment with BAM AG, advises the directors of BBBWhiited, may be deemed
to have voting and investment control over the sh&eld by BBBV LP given such advisory role. Eatthe foregoing, except

BBBV LP in the case of the BBBV LP Shares, disckipeneficial ownership of the BBBV LP Shares exd¢ejthe extent of their
pecuniary interest therein, if any. Beneficial owgigp information is based on information knowrthe Company and a Schedule 13D
filed with the SEC on December 29, 2011 by BBBV BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux, Ben §éar, and Martin
Munchbach.

BB Biotech Ventures GP (Guernsey) Limited ("BBBWiited") is the General Partner of BBBV LP. Jan Bowa, Pascal Mahieux, a
Ben Morgan are the directors of BBB Limited andrshall investment and voting power with respedhigse shares. Additionally,
Martin Miinchbach, the Senior Investment Advisov&ié Equity at Bellevue Asset Management AG, advissset Management

BAB N.V. ("AMB NV") who, pursuant to a services agment with BAM AG, advises the directors of BBBWhiited, may be deemed
to have voting and investment control over the sh&eld by BBBV LP given such advisory role. Eatthe foregoing, except

BBBV LP in the case of the BBBV LP Shares, disckipeneficial ownership of the BBBV LP Shares exd¢ejthe extent of their
pecuniary interest therein, if any. Beneficial owaiép information is based on information knowritte Company and a Schedule 13D
filed with the SEC on December 29, 2011 by BBBV BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux, Ben §éor, and Martin
Munchbach.

Includes the OBP IV Shares and the mRNA || Sharkese.OBP IV Shares are indirectly held by OBP Limember of OBP IV. The
MRNA |l Shares are indirectly held by mRNA LP, amizer of mRNA 1l. The Oxford Shares are indirectBlchby OBP Management
IV, the sole general partner of each of OBP LPmfRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton, thevidiial general partners of
OBP Management IV; Saints LP, a member of OBP I mRNA II; Saints LLC, the sole general partnefSaints LP; and Scott
Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawtteg,individual managers of Saints LLC. Jonathanfihg and Alan Walton, the
individual general partners of OBP Management h4re all voting and investment power on behalf BPOManagement IV. Scott
Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawtleg,individual managers of Saints LLC share alingpand investment power on
behalf of Saints LLC. Each of the entities and wdlials mentioned above disclaim beneficial ownigrghithin the meaning of
Section 16 of the Exchange Act or otherwise of qumtiion of the OBP IV Shares and mRNA Fund Il ®san which such entity or
individual has no actual pecuniary interest therBeneficial ownership information is based on infation known to the Company and
a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 27, 204 DIBP 1V, mRNA II, mRNA Fund Il, OBP Management I18aints LP,

Saints LLC, Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walton, Scotistéal, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes: 108,628 shares of Company Seri@sPheferred Stock held directly by OBP IV and 1,88@res of Company Series A-2
Preferred Stock held directly by mRNA 1. The Oxdok-2 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Manageni¢nthe sole general partner
of each of OBP LP and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming/Alad Walton, the individual general partners of@®Blanagement IV;

Saints LP, a member of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saint<l_the sole general partner of Saints LP; andt3¢alsted, David P. Quinlivan,
and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managersairitS LLC. Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton, trghiidual general partners of
OBP Management IV, share all voting and investnpemter on behalf of OBP
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(37)

(38)

Management IV. Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivamd &enneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers @fitSd.LC share all voting and
investment power on behalf of Saints LLC. Eachheféntities and individuals mentioned above distlaéneficial ownership within
the meaning of Section 16 of the Exchange Act betise of such portion of the Saints A-2 Shareshith such entity or individual
has no actual pecuniary interest therein. Benéfisimership information is based on information wmato the Company and a
Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 27, 201108P IV, mRNA II, mRNA Fund I, OBP Management IVaits LP, Saints LLC
Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, D&i®uinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes: 24,983 shares of Company Series A-3 RegfeStock held directly by OBP IV and 250 share€ampany Series A-3
Preferred Stock held directly by mRNA Il. The Oxdok-3 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Managerniénthe sole general partner
of each of OBP LP and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming/Alad Walton, the individual general partners of@®Blanagement IV;

Saints LP, a member of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saint<l,_the sole general partner of Saints LP; andtS¢alsted, David P. Quinlivan,
and Kenneth B. Sawyer, as the individual managegamts Capital Granite, LLC. Jonathan Fleming Afah Walton, the individual
general partners of OBP Management IV, share @ihg@nd investment power on behalf of OBP Managem\é Scott Halsted, Davi
P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individmalnagers of Saints LLC share all voting and inmesit power on behalf of

Saints LLC. Each of the entities and individualsntiened above disclaim beneficial ownership wittiie meaning of Section 16 of the
Exchange Act or otherwise of such portion of then8aA-2 Shares in which such entity or individhak no actual pecuniary interest
therein. Beneficial ownership information is basedinformation known to the Company and a Schei8[@ filed with the SEC on
May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA II, mRNA Fund Il, OB®Ranagement IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonathan FgmAlan Walton,
Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth 8w$er.

Includes 204,160 shares of common stock issuatda apnversion of 20,416 shares of Company SeriésPheferred Stock, and
560,860 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 56,086 shares of Company Series A-2 PrdeBtock. Healthcare Private
Equity Limited Partnership ("HPELP") is a limitedinership which has one general partner, Wavéikslthcare Private Equity
Limited ("Waverley GP") and one limited partnerp8ish Widows plc. As general partner, Waverley @R authority under the
HPELP limited partnership agreement ("LPA") to coatdand manage the business of HPELP. Andrew Nogewatd Archie Struthers
are the directors of Waverly GP and share all efuibting and investment power over the sharesiweldPELP. The controlling
shareholder of Waverley GP is SWIP Group Limiteke Tiltimate controlling entity of SWIP Group Linttés Lloyds Banking

Group plc, a public listed company with many shatéérs. The board of directors of Lloyds Bankingo@y plc consists of nine non-
executive directors (Sir Winifried Bischoff, Lorcelich, Anita Frew, Glen Moreno, David Roberts, Tdthy Ryan Jnr, Martin Sciclu
and Anthony Watson) and three executive directdrgédnito Horta-Osorio, G Truett Tate and Tim Tookelhe Chairman (Sir
Winifried Bischoff) is responsible for leadershiptbe board. The Group Chief executive (Antonio tde®sorio) is responsible for the
day to day management of the business of LloydkiBgrGroup plc, in accordance with the strategy kmngdy term objectives approved
by the board. The nine non-executive directorstareke executive directors of Lloyds Banking Grolpgn not have any sole or shared
voting or investment power with respect to the shdreld by HPELP. Beneficial ownership informati®based on information known
to us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC ondgn7, 2012 by HPELP, Waverly GP, Scottish Windplesand Lloyds Banking
Group plc.
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Includes 1,228,200 shares of common stock issugdda conversion of 122,820 shares of Company Sarie$referred Stock.
Brookside Capital Investors, L.P. ("Brookside Inees") is the sole general partner of Brooksidei@hpartners Fund, L.P. ("Partners
Fund"). Brookside Capital Management, LLC is thke greneral partner of Brookside Investors. The rmbqtersons of Brookside
Capital Management are Executive Committee memBeraey J. Awad, Domenic J. Ferrante, Matthew V. Nefon, William E.
Pappendick IV and John M. Toussaint. The Execu@ismmittee members share all voting and investmewep on behalf of
Brookside Capital Management, LLC. Beneficial ovatgp information is based on information known soamd a Schedule 13D filed
with the SEC on February 1, 2012 by Partners Fund.

Includes 1,228,200 shares of common stockalde upon conversion of 122,820 shares of CompBanies Al Preferred Stock. Biote:
Growth N.V. ("Biotech Growth") is a wholly-ownedIssidiary of BB Biotech AG ("BB Biotech"). The dirers and executive officers
of BB Biotech are Dr. Thomas D. Szucs, Chairmaninéctor; Dr. Clive Meanwell, Vice Chairman andr&tor; and Dr. Erich
Hunziker, Director. The directors and executiveogffs of Biotech Growth are Dr. Thomas D. SzucafuBory Director; Deanna
Chemaly, Statutory Director; and Hugo Jan van Ngerte Statutory Director. Beneficial ownership imf@tion is based on information
known to the Company and a Schedule 13D filed #i¢hSEC on January 3, 2012 by BB Biotech and Bio@wmwth. The directors
and executive officers of BB Biotech and Biotectowth share all voting and investment power wittpees to these shares.

Includes 173,260 shares of common stock issualda apnversion of 17,326 shares of Company SeriésPheferred Stock. Ipsen
Pharma SAS ("Ipsen Pharma") is a société par actonplifiée organized under the laws of Franceiaradwhollyowned subsidiary ¢
Ipsen S.A. ("lpsen"), a société anonyme organizetbuthe laws of France. Ipsen's majority sharehraklMayroy, a société anonyme
organized under the laws of Luxembourg. The dimscémd executive officers of Ipsen Pharma are @ipiee Jean, Director; Claude
Bertrand, Director; Etienne De Blois, Director; Ripe Robert-Gorsse, Director; Eric Drape, Diregctolaire Giraut, Director; Jean
Fabre, Director; Jean-Pierre Dubuc, Director; Didderon, Director; and Marc De Garidel, Presiddite directors of Ipsen are Marc
De Garidel, Director and Chief Executive Officemme Beaufour, Director; Henri Beaufour, Directogri# Couffin, Director; Antoine
Flochel, Director; Gérard Hauser, Director; Pievtartinet, Director; René Merkt, Director; Yves Raawid, Director; Klaus-Peter
Schwabe, Director and Christophe Vérot, Directdre €xecutive officers of Ipsen are Claire Giradiefhe de Blois, Christophe Jean,
Claude Bertrand, and Eric Drape. The directors af/iMy are Anne Beaufour, Antoine Flochel, BeecheT3&, Bee Master B.V.
Holding BV, Henri Beaufour, Klaus Peter Schwabe] dean-Pierre Diehl. The directors and officerfpsén, Mayroy and Ipsen
Pharma share all voting and investment powers mgipect to these shares. Beneficial ownershiprimdtion is based on information
known to the Company and a Schedule 13D filed WiehSEC on June 23, 2011 by Ipsen Pharma and Ipsen.

Includes 64,430 shares of common stock issuabla apoversion of 6,443 shares of Company SeriesPieferred Stock held by
Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII A/S ("Kkbc VII"). Nordic VII beneficially owns 0.30% ohie Fully-Diluted Shares.
Nordic VIl is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nordiddscience Clinical Development A/S ("Nordic A/SNordic A/S is wholly-owned
subsidiary of Nordic Bioscience Holding A/S ("Nardilolding™). Nordic Holding is majority owned by C.. Consulting A/S ("C.C.
Consulting"). Claus Christiansen, MD, and Bentes Rihrstiansen each own 50% of C.C. Consulting hadesall voting and investme
power with respect to these shares. The entitidsratividuals mentioned above disclaim beneficighership of the share except to the
extent of their
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pecuniary interest therein. Beneficial ownershipimation is based on information known to the Campand a Schedule 13D filed
with the SEC on January 20, 2012 by Nordic VII.

Consists of 61,400 shares of common stock, issugla conversion of Warrants to purchase 6,14CeshafrCompany Series A-1
Preferred Stock.

Consists of 61,400 shares of common stosklaisle upon conversion of Warrants to purchaseOgstidres of Company Series A-1
Preferred Stock. Oxford Finance LLC is a single-rhemimited liability company, whose sole membe®igord Holdco LLC. Under
its limited liability company agreement, the busis@ffairs and activities of Oxford Holdco LLC atieected by and controlled by its
board of directors. The Oxford Holdco LLC boarddafectors is composed of three directors appoibte8umitomo Corporation (Tet
Egushi, Kentaro Hori and Rishi Gaind), three diveztappointed by Welsh Carson Anderson & Stower($&alraynor, Thomas A.
Scully, and Chris W. Solomon) and J. Alden Philkrid/, the President and CEO of Oxford Finance LBg.action of its sole membe
Oxford Finance LLC has established a Credit Congmittomposed of its President and CEO, its Chiefadipg Officer and its Senior
Vice President, Credit and Portfolio. These posgiare currently held by Mr. Philbrick, Timothy Bex and Hans S. Houser,
respectively. The Oxford Finance LLC Credit Comeastis authorized to make all decisions concerriegrivestments of Oxford
Finance LLC including, without limitation, any sale exercise of the warrants owned by it and, dreised, any sale of the shares ol
stock resulting from such exercise.

Includes (i) 15,627 shares of common stock heltlbyKatzenellenbogen and (ii) 40,438 shares of comistock held by the John A.
Katzenellenbogen Trust Under Agreement Dated Augu$899 (the "Katzenellenbogen Trust"). Mr. Kagiembogen is the trustee of
the Katzenellenbogen Trust. The Katzenellenbogestimay be deemed to beneficially own the sharkestdyeMr. Katzenellenbogen.

Includes (i) 14,048 options to purchase ammon stock anticipated to be exercisable withil&gs after February 28, 2013,

(i) 48,942 shares of common stock held by Dr. $attd (iii) 20,291 shares of common stock heldheyDr. John Potts, Jr. and Susa
K. Potts Irrevocable Trust for Stephen K. Pottedd-1505 (the "Potts Trust"). Dr. Potts is a trusteehaf Potts Trust. Dr. Potts may
deemed to beneficially own the shares held by titesHrust.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

See Part Il, Item 5, "Equity CompensatitenRnformation."”
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
Transactions with Related Persons

Since January 1, 2010, we have engagdtkifotlowing transactions with our directors, extaori officers and holders of more than five
percent of our voting securities, and affiliatesromediate family members of our directors, exeautfficers and holders of more than five
percent of our voting securities. We believe thabfathese transactions were on terms as favorableould have been obtained from unrelatec
third parties.

Reporting and Overhead

From October 2010 until the closing of Merger, the Former Operating Company funded oupomgExchange Act filing requirements
and other costs associated with investigating aadlyaing an acquisition. Management estimates anobunts to be de minimis. We have use
the office space and equipment of MPM Asset ManagerhlLC, our sole stockholder prior to the redempttompleted in connection with the
Merger, and those of the Former Operating Compeom time to time, in all cases, at no cost to us.

Transactions with Former Operating Company RelatedPersons

As described above, Dr. Lyttle, a formeedior and current Chairman of our Scientific AdvisBoard, was the President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Former Operating Comparipmto the Merger, and each of Dr. Lyttle and Muerbach, Dr. Gadicke and
Mr. Fleming, each current directors, served asctirs of the Former Operating Company prior toNtexger. In addition, certain investment
funds affiliated with MPM Asset Management LLC (@mie stockholder prior to the Merger), including®M BioVentures Il Fund, were
investors in the Former Operating Company pricghtoMerger. Dr. Gadicke, the Managing Director @M Capital was a control person of
ours prior to the Merger and affiliated with magtockholders of the Former Operating Company padhe Merger. The shares held by MPM
Asset Management LLC were repurchased by us faiggnegate purchase price of $50,000 plus reimbweseati certain costs for prior audit
and legal fees, SEC filing fees, taxes and postatiee aggregate amount of $110,725 contemporahewith the closing of the Merger.

Series A-1 Preferred Stock Financing

On May 11, 2011, certain accredited invessio a series A-1 convertible preferred stockritiag entered into an irrevocable legally
binding commitment to purchase $64.3 million ofieeA-1 preferred stock in three closings. The fitesing occurred on May 17, 2011 and
resulted in gross proceeds of approximately $24ldbmthrough the sale of 2,631,845 shares offbemer Operating Company's series A-1
preferred stock. Those shares were exchanged Méhger for an aggregate of 263,177 shares of eesA-1 preferred stock. The second
closing occurred on November 18, 2011 and we redejross proceeds of approximately $21.4 milliondlgh the sale of 263,178 shares of
our series At preferred stock. The third closing occurred océdeber 14, 2011 and we received gross proceegspobdmately $21.4 milliol
through the sale of 263,180 shares of series Aefemed stock. Each share of our series A-1 preflestock is convertible into 10 shares of our
common stock.
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The following table sets forth the numbgsloares of our series A-1 preferred stock thatsseed at the three closings:

Shares of

series A-1
Name(1) preferred stock
Entities affiliated with MPM Capital(z 384,26
The Wellcome Trus 76,56¢
HealthCare Ventures V 58,95
Entities affiliated with Saints Capital(: 49,12°
BB Biotech Ventures | 84,53¢
Scottish Widows (Healthcare Private Equi 20,41¢
Raymond F. Schina: 1,48
David E. Thompson Revocable Tn 58¢
H.Watt Gregory, Il 397
The Richman Trus 19t
Breining Family Trus 12C
Brookside 122,82(
Biotech Growth N.V. 122,82(
Ipsen 17,32¢
Total 939,61.

(1) See "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Overeand Management and Related Stockholder Mattershére information about
shares held by these entities.

(2) Consists of 15,096 shares issued to MPM Bidwies IIl, L.P., 224,528 shares issued to MPM BioNees I11-QP, L.P., 18,975 shares
of our series A-1 preferred stock issued to MPM\Rantures 11l GmbH & Co. Beteiligungs K.G., 6,77%sés issued to MPM
BioVentures Il Parallel Fund, L.P., 4,346 shaeied to MPM Asset Management Investors 2003 BMIC and 114,537 shares
issued to MPM Bio IV NVS Strategic Fund, L.P.

3) Consists of 48,641 shares issued to OBP IV-difigk LLC and 486 mRNA ll—Holdings LLC.
Series A-5 Preferred Stock Issuance

Concurrently with the first closing of teeries A-1 preferred stock financing, the Formee@ping Company issued 64,430 shares of
series A-5 preferred stock to Nordic for gross peats of approximately $0.5 million. These sharegw&changed in the Merger for 6,443
shares of our series A-5 convertible preferredikstoc

Our Stockholders' Agreement

The stockholders' agreement among us andtockholders, which is filed as an exhibit testhéport, provides our stockholders with
certain resale, demand and piggback registratgirtsi The registration rights provisions of ourc&tmwlders' agreement also contains custo
cross-indemnification provisions, pursuant to whighare obligated to indemnify the selling stockless in the event of material
misstatements or omissions in a registration stat¢mttributable to us, and the selling stockhadee obligated to indemnify the us for
material misstatements or omissions attributabteém.
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Policies and Procedures for Related Party Transaains

Our board of directors has adopted a writetated person transaction policy to set forthghlicies and procedures for the review and
approval or ratification of related person trangand. This policy covers, with certain exceptiorsferth in ltem 404 of Regulation S-K under
the Securities Act, any transaction, arrangementlationship, or any series of similar transaciarrangements or relationships in which we
were or are to be a participant, where the amowatived exceeds $120,000 and a related personrail bave a direct or indirect material
interest, including, without limitation, purchasafsgoods or services by or from the related pemaentities in which the related person has a
material interest, indebtedness, guarantees obtedaess and employment by us of a related person.

As provided by our audit committee chareer, audit committee will be responsible for revilegvand approving in advance any related
party transaction.

Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined @fiadf our directors, other than Mr. Wyzga, aredpdndent directors, as defined by the
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC. Iningakuch determination, the board of directors mered the relationships that each such
non-employee director has with our company andtakér facts and circumstances that the board etttirs deemed relevant in determining
their independence, including the beneficial owhgref our capital stock by each non-employee dinec

There are no family relationships among a@ihgur directors or executive officers.

For additional information regarding oureditors and their committee memberships see Raltelin 10, "Directors, Executive Officers
and Corporate Governance."
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

Ernst & Young LLP provided audit servicestie Company consisting of the annual audit ofGbepany's 2012 financial statements
contained in the Company's Annual Report on ForaK Hhd reviews of the financial statements contdiimethe Company's Quarterly Reports
on Form 10-Q for fiscal year 2012. The followingplsummarizes the fees of Ernst & Young LLP biledhe Company for the last two fiscal
years.

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Fee Category 2012 % of Total 2011 % of Total
(dollars in thousands)
Audit Fees(1 $ 36€ 61.%$ 32C 60.6%
Audit-Related Fees(z 224 37.% 19¢ 34.2%
Tax Fees(3 10 1.7% 59 1.7%
Total Fees $ 60C 10(%$ 57¢ 100%

(1) Audit fees consist of fees for the audit of our @alrfinancial statements and review of the intefiimancial statements included in our
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q during fiscal ye@t2

(2)  Audit-related fees consist of fees for assuranckralated services that are reasonably relatdaetpérformance of the audit and the
review of our financial statements and which areraported under "Audit Fees". Auditated fees reported in fiscal year 2012 rela
the review of registration statements on Form Sd¥dimgs on Form 8-K.

(3) Taxfees consist of fees for tax compliance, tak@dand tax planning services. Tax complianceisesy which relate to the review of
our U.S. tax returns, accounted for $10,000 an@CEPof the total tax fees for fiscal year 2012 a0d1, respectively. Fiscal year 2011
tax fees also include approximately $50,000 of feesax advice and planning services.

The Audit Committee has adopted a formdicga@oncerning approval of audit and non-auditgrss to be provided to the Company by
its independent registered public accounting fimst & Young LLP. The policy requires that all\gees to be provided by Ernst &
Young LLP, including audit services and permittedi&related and non-audit services, must be ppreaged by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee pre-approved all audit and non-asaeivices provided by Ernst & Young LLP duringc$2012 and fiscal 2011.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES.
(a) Financial Statements

The following financial statements and dapgentary data are included in Part Il of Iteml8diof this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing 9C
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 91
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Logkdorears ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 201( 92
Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Redeln@danvertible Preferred Stock and
Stockholders' Deficit for the years ended Decen3ie2012, 2011 and 20: 93
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended DemeBih 2012, 2011 and 20 9t
Notes to Financial Statemet 9€

(b) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have baartted because they are not applicable or areauptired, or because the information requ
to be set forth therein is included in the consaihdi financial statements or notes thereto.

(c) Exhibits
The Exhibit Index follows the signature padnereof and is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this annual r¢
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetihn duly authorized.

RADIUS HEALTH, INC.

By: /s/ MICHAEL S. WYZGA

Michael S. Wyzga
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: March 15, 2013

SIGNATURES AND POWER OF ATTORNEY

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this annual report haslstgned by the following persons on behal
of the registrant in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ MICHAEL S. WYZGA President, Chief Executive Officer
and Director (Principal Executive March 15, 2013
Michael S. Wyzg: Officer)

s/ B. NICHOLAS HARVEY Chief Financial Officer (Principal

Accounting and Financial Officer)

March 15, 2013
B. Nicholas Harve

/sl ALAN H. AUERBACH

Director March 15, 2013
Alan H. Auerbact
/s/ JONATHAN J. FLEMING
Director March 15, 2013
Jonathan J. Flemir
/sl ANSBERT K. GADICKE
Director March 15, 2013
Ansbert K. Gadick
/sl KURT C. GRAVES
Director March 15, 2013
Kurt C. Graves
/sl MARTIN MUNCHBACH
Director March 15, 2013
Martin Miinchbact
/s/ ELIZABETH STONER
Director March 15, 2013

Elizabeth Stone
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Exhibit No.
2.1

3.1
3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.c

10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.€

10.1(

9)

(25)

()

(18)

(18)

(13)

(19)

(8)(9)

(13)*

(8)(22)

(6)

9)

(23)

(8)(23)

(25)

(27)**

(27)**

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated April 25, 2

Certificate of Incorporation, as amenc
By-Laws, as amende

Restated Certificate of Incorporation to be effextipon the listing of the
Company's common stock on the NASDAQ Global Ma

Amended and Restated Bylaws to be effective upetisting of the
Company's common stock on a national securitiehange

Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agreement, dateéiMay 17, 2011,
as amended, by and among the Company and the stdek$ party theretc

Second Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agreedetat] as of

February 13, 2012, as amended, by and among th@&uomas successor
Radius Health, Inc., and the stockholders partyetioe to be effective upon
the listing of the Company's common stock on aomati securities exchan

Clinical Trial Services Agreement and Work Statehi¢B-1, dated
March 29, 2011, by and between the Company, agssocto Radius
Health, Inc., and Nordic BioScience Clinical Deyaitent VII A/S

Clinical Trial Services Agreement Amendment NooWork Statement
NB-1, effective as of December 9, 2011, by and betvthe Company and
Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII A

Clinical Trial Services Agreement Amendment Noo2\ork Statement
NB-1, effective as of June 18, 2012, by and betwkerCompany and
Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII A

Amended and Restated Stock Issuance Agreement] kizte 16, 2011, by
and between the Company, as successor to RadilthHaa., and Nordic
BioScience Clinical Development VII A/

Side Letter, dated March 29, 2011, by and betwkerCompany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Nordic Biesm Clinical
Development VII A/S

Amendment, dated as of July 26, 2012, to Side L éttgeement, dated
March 29, 2011, by and between the Company andidl8idscience
Clinical Development VII A/S

Letter of Intent, dated as of July 26, 2012, by bativeen the Company a
Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII A

Letter of Intent, dated as of October 22, 2012ahg between the Company
and Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII A

Work Statement NB-2, dated February 21, 2013, loytsiween the
Company and Nordic Bioscience Clinical DevelopmémAsS.

Work Statement NB-3, dated February 21, 2013, loytsiween the
Company and Nordic Bioscience Clinical DevelopmémAsS.
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Exhibit No.
10.11

10.1%

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

10.21

10.22

10.2:

10.2¢

10.2¢

(27)

(8)(9)

8)9)

8)9)

9)

8)(9)

8)9)

(8)(14)*

(10)

(10)

9)

(8)(9)

8)9)

(8)(15)

(8)(9)

Description
Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 21, 2018ntended and Restat
Stock Issuance Agreement, dated as of May 16, 21and between
Radius Health, Inc. and Nordic Bioscience Clinibalvelopment VII A/S

License Agreement, dated September 27, 2005, bpeiwten the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and SCRAS, 8A behalf of itself
and its Affiliates

Pharmaceutical Development Agreement, dated Jaridj@&§06, by and
between the Company, as successor to Radius Healthand Beaufour
Ipsen Industrie SA!

Amendment No. 1 to Pharmaceutical Development Agesd, dated
January 1, 2007, by and between the Company, asssar to Radius
Health, Inc., and Beaufour Ipsen Industrie £

License Agreement Amendment No. 1, dated Septethez007, by and
between the Company, as successor to Radius Headthand SCRAS SA

Amendment No. 2 to Pharmaceutical Development Agesd, dated
January 1, 2009, by and between the Company, asssar to Radius
Health, Inc., and Beaufour Ipsen Industrie £

Amendment No. 3 to Pharmaceutical Development Agesd, dated
June 16, 2010, by and between the Company, asssorde Radius
Health, Inc., and Beaufour Ipsen Industrie £

Amendment No. 4 to Pharmaceutical Development Agesd, entered into
as of December 15, 2011, by and between the ComgrashyBeaufour Ipsen
Industrie S.A.S

License Agreement Amendment No. 2, dated May 1112By and betwee
the Company, as successor to Radius Health, Ind.lpsen Pharma SA

Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock Issuanceefigrent, dated May 11,
2011, by and between the Company, as successadiosHealth, Inc., ar
Ipsen Pharma SA

Development and Manufacturing Services AgreematediOctober 16,
2007, by and between the Company, as successadiosHealth, Inc., ar
LONZA Sales Ltd

Work Order No. 2, dated January 15, 2010, by amdden the Company,
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and LONZA Satds

Amendment No. 3 to Work Order No.2, dated Decembe2010, by and
between the Company, as successor to Radius Healthand LONZA
Sales Ltd

Work Order No. 4, dated December 23, 2011, by atdiden the Compan
as successor to Radius Health, Inc., and LONZAsSai.

Development and Clinical Supplies Agreement, datete 19, 2009, by and
among the Company, as successor to Radius Heaithand 3M Co. and
3M Innovative Properties C
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10.4-

@9
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(8)(9)

8)(9)

8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(8)(20)*

(8)(16)

(24)**

(24)**

(26)**

(8)(9)

Description
Amendment No. 1, dated December 31,9200 the 3M Development
Agreement, by and among the Company, as succesBadius
Health, Inc., and 3M Co. and 3M Innovative ProgeriCo.

Amendment No. 2, dated September 16, 2010, toh®8velopment
Agreement, by and among the Company, as succesBadius
Health, Inc., and 3M Co. and 3M Innovative PropesiCo.

Amendment No. 3, dated September 29, 2010, toth®8velopment
Agreement, by and among the Company, as succesBadius
Health, Inc., and 3M Co. and 3M Innovative PropesiCo.

Change Order FormAmendment No. 5, dated February 4, 2011, to the
Development Agreement, by and among the Comparsy@sessor to
Radius Health, Inc., and 3M Co. and 3M Innovativeperties Co

Amendment No. 4, dated March 2, 2011, to the 3Mdlmyment
Agreement, by and among the Company, as succesBadius
Health, Inc., and 3M Co. and 3M Innovative ProgeriCo.

Change Order Form #6, dated June 20, 2011, todhB&/elopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #7, dated August 2, 2011, t@ih&®evelopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #8, dated July 28, 2011, to kh@®8velopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Addendum to Change Order Form #8, dated Augus2d®], to the 3M
Development Agreement, by and between the Compiathy3 i

Change Order Form #9, dated August 12, 2011, t@8kh&evelopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #10, dated October 3, 2011 et@h Development
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #12, dated February 23, 201tRBet8M Development
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #13, dated May 1, 2012, to théd@velopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #14, dated August 15, 2012 @M Development
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Change Order Form #15, dated July 16, 2012, t@kh®evelopment
Agreement, by and between the Company anc

Amendment No. 5, dated December 14, 2012 and eféeas of

November 30, 2012, to the 3M Development Agreerbgrand between tt
Company and 3M and Change Order Form #19, entateadn October 12,
2012, to the 3M Development Agreem

Laboratory Services and Confidentiality Agreemelated March 31, 2004,
by and between the Company, as successor to Nummsand Charles
River Laboratories, Inc
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10.6(
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(8)(9)

(8)(9)

(28)*

(28)*

(28)*

(24)*

(28)*

(8)(9)
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17)

@
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(2G)

(2G)

(2)G)

)
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Description
First Amendment to Laboratory Services @uoafidentiality Agreement,
dated November 7, 2008, by and between the Comjargyccessor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Charles River Laboratories.

Letter of Payment Authorization, dated NovemberZi,0, by and betwet
the Company, as successor to Radius Health, Ind.Caarles River
Laboratories Preclinical Services Montréal |

Letter of Payment Authorization, dated Februar@ 1, by and between
the Company, as successor to Radius Health, Ind.Caarles River
Laboratories Preclinical Services Montréal |

Amended Letter of Payment Authorization, dated dayn@0, 2012, by and
between the Company and Charles River Laboratdries

Amended Letter of Payment Authorization, dated Mag2012, by and
between the Company and Charles River Laboratdries

Amended Letter of Payment Authorization, dated Seyier 14, 2012, by
and between the Company and Charles River Labdgatdnc.

Letter of Payment Authorization, dated Septembe2R42, by and betwe:
the Company and Charles River Laboratories,

Letter of Payment Authorization, dated November2(8,2, by and betwet
the Company and Charles River Laboratories,

License Agreement, dated June 29, 2006, by anddeetthe Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Eisai Cd.,

Series A-1 Purchase Agreement, dated April 25, 2b¢5and among the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc.,flethtestors listed
therein, as amendé

Amendment No. 1 to Series A-1 Convertible Prefe@eatk Purchase
Agreement, dated May 11, 20

Redemption Agreement, by and between MPM AcquisiGorp. and MPN
Asset Management LLC, dated April 25, 2(

Radius Health, Inc. (f/k/a Nuvios, Inc.) 2003 Lofigrm Incentive Plan,
assumed in the Merg

Radius Health, Inc. First Amendment to 2003 LongrT éncentive Plan
effective as of December 15, 2006, assumed in theg bt

Radius Health, Inc. Second Amendment to 2003 Loag¥Tincentive Plan
effective as of March 28, 2008, assumed in the gl

Radius Health, Inc. Third Amendment to 2003 LongrTéncentive Plan
effective as of November 14, 2008, assumed in teeght

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plamfof Stock Option
Agreemen

Radius Health, Inc. (f/k/a Nuvios, Inc.) 2003 Lohgrm Incentive Plan
Stock Option Agreement, dated October 28, 2004 ry/between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Richgitée for Option
No. 04103
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Description
Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Indeén Plan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweeg&tmpany, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Richard Lyttle for @ptiNo. 0-08

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between thmepaay, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Richard Lyttle for @ptiNo. 0¢-09

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betwee@ampany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Richard &yttt Option No. 0-14

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated February 15, 2006, by and bettree@ompany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'Be®ption No. 0-07

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweeg&tmpany, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'Dea for Optim 0707

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between thmepaay, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'Dea for Opfim 0€-05

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betwee@dampany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'De&®ption No. 0-10

Radius Health, Inc. (f/lk/a Nuvios, Inc.) 2003 Lohgrm Incentive Plan
Stock Option Agreement, dated December 16, 2003nidybetween the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Gartekséy for Option
No. 03-001

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated February 15, 2006, by and bettree@Gompany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hagterfsir Option No. 0-02

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betwee@tmpany, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hattersley fori@ptNo. 0°-06

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between thmepaay, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hattersley fori@ptNo. 0¢-08

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betwee@ampany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hagterfsir Option No. 0-13

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweeg&tmpany, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Nick Harvey for Optida. 07-09

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Placehtive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between thmepaay, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Nick Harvey for Optida. 0¢-06
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Description
Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Indeén Plan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betwee@ampany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Nick HareeyOption No. 0-11

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plérck Option
Agreement, dated October 12, 2010, by and betwee@bdmpany and Alan
Auerbach for Option No. -01

Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Pléck Option
Agreement, dated October 12, 2010, by and betwee@bdmpany and Alan
Auerbach for Option No. -02

Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive P

Form of Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity IncentitarPStock Option
Agreemen

Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive Plan 8tOption Agreement,
dated November 7, 2011, by and between the ComgrachKurt C. Graves
for Option No. 1-01

Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive Plan @taty Stock Option
Agreement, dated November 7, 2011, by and betwee@obmpany and
Kurt C. Graves for Option No. -02

Employment Letter Agreement, dated July 2, 2004ary between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and C. RidBdmund Lyttle

Transition Agreement, dated December 1, 2011, biybetween the
Company and C. Richard Edmund Lyt

First Amendment to Transition Agreement, dated &akyr 29, 2012, by and
between the Company and C. Richard Edmund L

Consulting Agreement, dated February 29, 2012 nolyletween the
Company and C. Richard Edmund Lyt

Employment Letter Agreement, November 14, 2003y between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Gartekséy

Employment Letter Agreement, dated January 30, 200@nd between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., anélO'Dez

Employment Letter Agreement, dated November 1562b9 and between
the Company, as successor to Radius Health, Ind.BaNicholas Harve

Letter Agreement, dated December 1, 2011, by athwides the Company
and Michael S. Wyzg

Employment Letter Agreement, dated November 9, 20¢5nd between
the Company and Louis Brenr

Employment Letter Agreement, dated March 27, 26y2and between the
Company and Michael Franki

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bgt between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., axsthext K. Gadick:

177




Table of Contents

Exhibit No.
10.9:

10.9¢

10.9¢

10.9¢

10.97

10.9¢

10.9¢

10.10¢

10.10:

10.10:

10.10¢

10.10¢

10.10¢

10.10¢

10.107

10.10¢

10.10¢

10.11(

)

)

)

)

)

)

(18)

)

)

)

)

()

()

)

(2)G)

(13)

(13)

()

Description

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17120by and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., aRidBard Edmund
Lyttle

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bgt between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., aartidVMinchbact

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bgt between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., @matidan Flemin;

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bgt between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., amd®raves

Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, bgt between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., dnabigth Stone

Indemnification Agreement, dated October 12, 2@i0and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., dax Auerbact

Indemnification Agreement, dated December 5, 20%1and between the
Company and Michael S. Wyzi

Indemnification Agreement, dated November 14, 2@93and between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and MicRasknblatt, M.D

Indemnification Agreement, dated November 14, 2@93and between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Chhstoplirabelli

Indemnification Agreement, dated November 14, 2@93and between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Augustawlor

Indemnification Agreement, dated November 14, 2@93and between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Edwarstchdli, M.D.

Consent to Sublease, dated January 14, 2011, bggraodg the Company,
as successor to Radius Health, Inc., Sonos, Ind.Baoadway/Hampshire
Associates Limited Partnerst

Sublease, dated January 14, 2011, by and betwee&baimpany, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Sonos

Amended and Restated Warrant to Purchase CommoR, Skated May 17,
2011, by and between the Company, as successadiosHealth, Inc., ar
SVB Financial Grouj

Warrant to Purchase Series A-1 Convertible PredeBteck, dated May 17,
2011, by and between the Company, as successadiosHealth, Inc., ar
Leerink Swann LLC

Warrant to Purchase Series A-1 Convertible Predefteck issued by the
Company to Leerink Swann LLC on November 18, 2

Warrant to Purchase Series A-1 Convertible PredeBteck issued by the
Company to Leerink Swann LLC on December 14, z

Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 23, 201th General Electric
Capital Corporation as agent and a lender, andr@¥mance LLC as a
lender
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Description
First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemengdi&ebruary 27, 201
by and among the Company, General Electric Ca@ibaporation and
Oxford Finance LLC

Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementeddtiay 29, 2012, t
and among the Company, General Electric Capitab@ation and Oxford
Finance LLC

Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issued byCimapany to General
Electric Capital Corporation in the principal ambohup to $12,500,00

Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issued byCirapany to Oxford
Finance LLC in the principal amount of $3,125,(

Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issued byCimpany to Oxford
Finance LLC in the principal amount of up to $9,30®

Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issued byCirapany to Oxford
Finance LLC in the principal amount of up to $6, 280

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Seriek @onvertible Preferred Stock, da
May 23, 2011, issued by the Company to GE Capitalittf Investment:

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Seriek @onvertible Preferred Stock, da
May 23, 2011, issued by the Company to Oxford Fiedrl C

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series @envertible Preferred Stock, da
November 21, 2011, issued by the Company to GEt&ldpguity
Investment:

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Seriek @onvertible Preferred Stock, da
November 21, 2011, issued by the Company to Oxfamnence LLC

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 Convenpitdferred stock, dated
May 29, 2012, issued by the Company to GE Capitalitlf Investment:

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 Convenpitdferred stock, dated
May 29, 2012, issued by the Company to Oxford Fiedrn C

Lease by and between Broadway Hampshire Assodiateted Partnership
and Radius Health, Inc. 201 Broadway Cambridge, dslasusetts, dated
July 15, 201!

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registé?ablic Accounting
Firm

Certification by CEO pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)%d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted putga&g®ection 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification by CFO pursuant to Rule 13a-14(albd-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted putgaa®ection 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification by CEO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti@b0, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification by CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti880, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z
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101.INS (28) XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCF (28) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL (28) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.LAB (28) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE (28) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent
101.DEF (28) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh
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1)
)
®3)
(4)
®)
(6)
()
(8)
9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17
(18)
(19)
(20)
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(23)

Confidential treatment has been granted witlpeesto redacted portions of this exhibit.

Confidential treatment has been requested withexdgp portions of this exhibit. Redacted portiohshis exhibit have
been filed separately with the SEC.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporft@rm 8-K filed on April 29, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporffarm 8-K filed on May 23, 2011.

Share numbers and per share prices are preseeté&kperse Split completed by Radius Health, Indviay 17, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Registratatement on Form S-1/A filed on November 7, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repor-orm 8-K filed on May 27, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Periodic Repo Form 10-Q/A filed on October 24, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repor-orm 8-K/A filed on September 30, 2011.
Confidential Treatment Granted. Redacted Borfiiiled Separately with the Commission.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoiffamm 8-K/A filed on October 24, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repofform 8-K/A filed on November 7, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repofomm 8-K filed on November 23, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repofformm 8-K filed on December 5, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repofomm 8-K filed on December 15, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repofform 8-K filed on December 21, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoffomm 8-K filed on December 30, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our Quarterlpéteon Form 10-Q filed on May 4, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to our RegistraBtatement on Form S-1 filed on June 23, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to our RegistraBtatement on Form S-1 filed on February 6, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on February 29, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoffarm 8-K filed on February 29, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoffemm 8-K filed on June 22, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Repofform 8-K filed on August 1, 2012.



(24) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &taetg on Form S-1/A filed on September 28, 2012.
(25) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &tate on Form S-1/A filed on November 7, 2012.
(26) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoiffamm 8-K filed on December 20, 2012.

(27) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporf@mm 8-K filed on February 26, 2013.

(28) Filed herewith
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-

B
Confidential Treatment Requestec -
Under 17 C.F.R. §§ 200.80(b)(4) and ch arles river
240.24b-2 acoelerating drog development. exactly.
CHANGE ORDER
AMENDED LETTER OF PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION
Amendment No. 01
January 20" , 2012
Gary Hattersley, Ph.D.
Vice President, Biology
RADIUS HEALTH, INC.
5th Floor
300 Technology Square
Cambridge, MA 02139
United States
ghattersley@radiuspharm.com
RE: STUDY PN 67036¢ Study Title: A 2-Year Subcutaneous Injection Carcinogenicity Study ©

(Radius N0:10RADO03: BA058 And PTH In The Fisher 344 Rat

AS PER FINAL PROTOCOL DATED: December 29, 201(
AS PER PROTOCOL AMENDMENT # 1, 2 and 5

STUDY START: Week of January 17, 2010
Dear Gary,

This communication is to serve as an Amended Left®ayment Authorization (ALOPA) for the abovearsnced study, which will be
performed at Charles River Laboratories PreclinBeivices as set forth below. Charles River Laiooikes Preclinical Services shall perform
these services in accordance with the existingi&=Agreement executed between Charles River Ladwiea Preclinical Services and
RADIUS HEALTH, INC. Once fully executed, this ALOPA shall be incorperhinto and made part of the existing Service Agied.

Summary of Changes:

48 animals added for TK population

* Blood smear evaluation added

« 1 time point of TK removed

» TK analysis removed

« Histopathology on TK animals removed
« 7 tissues added for histopathology

» ADA sampling added

* 5 occasions of dose analysis added

* 30 spare animals removed
 Acclimation extended by 1 week

» Pharmacy preparation modified

» Organ weight report removed

* PTH 1-34 analysis added for Group 5 sample

[*¥] Certain information in this document has been anitted and filed separately with the Securities andExchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with resgt to the omitted portions.
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The price of thifrotocol Amendmentis as follows:

Authorized Price $ [*]

(After discount) (as per signed LOPA dated: November 16, 2(
Additional Charge $ [

Additional with additional [*]% goodwill discount: $ [*]

Revised Price $ 2,489,035 US

The payment schedules of this study are as follows:

» $[*] First payment at study authorization

» 75% Equal monthly installments

 Additional Charge Due upon receipt of invoice

* 5% Upon receipt of draft report

* 5% Upon receipt of final report or forty five (48ays after issuance of draft report (whichever cofiret)

Please sign and return this document via facsiamikemail (contact information below). Should yavk any questions or require any
additional information, please do not hesitateatb me. We look forward to being of service.

Best regards,

/s/ Stéphane Besn

Stéphane Besner, B.Sc. M.B /s/ B. Nicholas Harve

Senior Client Manager, Sales & Marketing Authorized Sponsor Representat
Charles River Laboratoire

Preclinical Services Montreal Inc. B. Nicholas Harvey, Chief Financial Offic
22022 Transcanadienne Print (Name and Title

Senneville, Québec, Canada H9X &

Tel: (514) 630-2436 Fax: (514) 630-8230 January 20, 201
e-mail:stephane.besner@crl.com Date

Web site: www.criver.cor
If a PO is required, please submit PO with Letterayment Authorization or fax to 51-630-8230.
c.c. S. Pryce, D. Tremblay, S Y. Smith, B. AtteNéain File

CRT: 22633, 22708, 22709, 22748, 23477
V:ACLIENTS\Radius\2012\670364.L6.20Jan121-OPA1.doc

[*¥] Certain information in this document has been anitted and filed separately with the Securities andExchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with resgt to the omitted portions.
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Exhibit 10.47

Confidential Treatment Requestec U:F:‘:-
Under 17 C.F.R. §§ 200.80(b)(4) and ch a”eS river
24024b'2 acoelerating drog development. exactly.
CHANGE ORDER
AMENDED LETTER OF PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION
Amendment No. 02
May 1, 2012
Gary Hattersley, Ph.D.
Vice President, Biology
RADIUS HEALTH, INC.
5th Floor
300 Technology Square
Cambridge, MA 02139
United States
ghattersley@radiuspharm.com
RE: STUDY PN 670364 Study Title: A 2-Year Subcutaneous Injection Carcinogenicity Study ®BA058

(Radius No:10RADO03: And PTH In The Fisher 344 Rat

STUDY START: Week of January 17, 201(
Dear Gary,
This communication is to serve as an Amended LeftBayment Authorization (ALOPA) for the aboveawiced study, which will be
performed at Charles River Laboratories Preclin®eaivices as set forth below. Charles River Laooies Preclinical Services shall perform
these services in accordance with the existingiS&eAgreement executed between Charles River Latmaea Preclinical Services and
RADIUS HEALTH, INC. Once fully executed, this ALOPA shall be incorperhinto and made part of the existing Service Agied.
Summary of Changes:

 Additional charge for the purchase of 100mg of PTHrom Cedarlane

The price of thirotocol Amendmentis as follows:

Authorized Price $ "]

(After discount) (as per signed ALOPA dated: January 20, 2(
Additional Charge $ "]

Additional with additional [*]% goodwill

discount: $[1]

Revised Price $ 2,494,435 Ut

[*] Certain information in this document has been anitted and filed separately with the Securities andExchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with resgt to the omitted portions.

1




The payment schedules of this study are as follows:

» $[*] First payment at study authorization (Raid)

* $[*] Due upon receipt of invoice — (ALOPAL- (Paid)

 Additional Charge Due upon receipt of invoice — (AOPA2)

» 75% Equal monthly installments

* 5% Upon receipt of draft report

» 5% Upon receipt of final report or forty five (48ays after issuance of draft report (whichever cofiret)

Please sign and return this document via facsiamikemail (contact information below). Should yavk any questions or require any
additional information, please do not hesitateatb me. We look forward to being of service.

Best regards,

For:

Stéphane Besner, B.Sc. M.B.A /sl B. Nicholas Harve

Senior Client Manager, Sales & Marketing Authorized Sponsor Representat
Charles River Laboratoire

Preclinical Services Montreal Inc. B. Nicholas Harvey, Chief Financial Offic
22022 Transcanadienne Print (Name and Title

Senneville, Québec, Canada H9X &

Tel: (514) 630-2436 Fax: (514) 630-8230 May 1, 2012
e-mail:stephane.besner@crl.com Date

Web site: www.criver.cor
If a PO is required, please submit PO with Letterayment Authorization or fax to 51-630-8230.
c.c. S. Pryce, D. Tremblay, S Y. Smith, B. AtteNéain File

E:\\CLIENTS\Radius\2012\670364.L7.01May12ALOPA2.doc

[*] Certain information in this document has been anitted and filed separately with the Securities andExchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with resgt to the omitted portions.
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Exhibit 10.48

Confidential Treatment Requestec U:F:‘:-
Under 17 C.F.R. §§ 200.80(b)(4) and ch arles river
240.24b-2 acoelerating drog development. exactly.
CHANGE ORDER
AMENDED LETTER OF PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION
Amendment No. 01
September 10, 2012
Gary Hattersley, Ph.D.
Vice President, Biology
RADIUS HEALTH, INC.
6th Floor
201 Broadway
Cambridge, MA 02139
United States
ghattersley@radiuspharm.com
RE: STUDY PN 67064¢ Study Title: A 12-Month Osteoporosis Intervention Study BA058 by
(Radius No:10RADO02¢ Subcutaneous Injection in the Ovariectomized SprageiDawley Rats

As per Protocol Amendment # 1 dated: April 28, 201
As per Protocol Amendment # 2 dated: July 26, 2011
As per Protocol Amendment # 4 dated: October 20, 2@
As per Protocol Amendment # 6 dated: July 26, 2012

STUDY START: May 2011
Dear Gary,
This communication is to serve as an Amended Left®ayment Authorization (ALOPA) for the abovearsnced study, which will be
performed at Charles River Laboratories PreclinBeivices as set forth below. Charles River Laiooikes Preclinical Services shall perform
these services in accordance with the existingiS&eAgreement executed between Charles River Latmaea Preclinical Services and
RADIUS HEALTH, INC. Once fully executed, this ALOPA shall be incorpedhinto and made part of the existing Service Agied.

Summary of Changes:

« Slide preparation and evaluation
» Statistics added

The price of thifrotocol Amendmentis as follows:

Authorized Price $ "]

(after discount) (as per signed ALOPA dated: February 1, 20
Additional Charge $ "]

Additional Charge:

(with [¥]% + [*]% discounts) $[*]

Revised Price $ 1,081,896 U

[*] Certain information in this document has been anitted and filed separately with the Securities andExchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with resgt to the omitted portions.
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The payment schedules of this study are as follows:

* $[*] [15%] Due at animal arrival -Paid)

* $[*] [75%] Equal Monthly Installment -finvoiced and paid)

» $ [*] Additional Charge Due upon receipt of invoce — (ALOPAL)
* $[*] [75%] Equal Monthly Installment

* $[*] [5%] Due upon Submission of Draft Report

* $[*] [5%] Due upon Submission of Final Report

Please sign and return this document via facsiamikemail (contact information below). Should yavk any questions or require any
additional information, please do not hesitateath me. We look forward to being of service.

Best regards,

/sl Stéphane Besn /sl Gary Hattersle
Authorized Sponsor Representat

Stéphane Besner, B.Sc. M.B

Senior Client Manager, Sales & Marketing Gary Hattersley, SVP Preclinical Developm
Charles River Laboratoires Print (Name and Title

Preclinical Services Montreal In

22022 Transcanadienne September 14, 201

Senneville, Québec, Canada H9X 3R3 Date

Tel: (514) 63-2436 Fax: (514) 6:-8230
e-mail:stephane.besner@crl.cc
Web site: www.criver.cor

If a PO is required, please submit PO with Letterayment Authorization or fax to 51-630-8230.

c.c. S. Pryce, D. Tremblay, S Y. Smith, E. Lesage
CRT: 24056
E:\CLIENTS\Radius\2012\670646.L7(ALOPA1) 10Sepl2
06UJ9 -A0013JF

[*] Certain information in this document has been anitted and filed separately with the Securities andExchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with resgt to the omitted portions.
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Exhibit 10.50

Confidential Treatment Requestec ""‘:.)*"'

Under 17 C.F.R. §8 200.80(b)(4) and 240.24b-2 «..ﬂ:"‘
charles river

accelerating drug development. exactly.

CHANGE ORDER
LETTER OF PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION
14 Nov 2012

Gary Hattersley, Ph.D.
Vice President, Biology
RADIUS HEALTH, INC.
5th Floor

300 Technology Square
Cambridge, MA 02139
United States

RE: STUDY # 2003337: BLOOD SAMPLE COLLECTION FROM FEMALE NON -HUMAN PRIMATES FOLLOWING
A SINGLE SUBCUTANEOUS DOSE OR TRANSDERMAL PATCH DOSE OF BA0O58
FINAL PROTOCOL AND

PROTOCOL AMENDMENT
1
STUDY START: 09 OCT 2012 STUDY END: 25 0OCT 2012

Dear Dr. Hattersley,

This communication is to serve as a Letter of Paymathorization (LOPA) for the above referenceddst, which will be performed at Char
River Laboratories Preclinical Services as sehfbdlow. Charles River Laboratories PreclinicaMBes shall perform these services in
accordance with the existing Service Agreement eegtcbetween Charles River Laboratories Preclirbealzices and Radius Health, Inc.
Once fully executed, this LOPA shall be incorpodatgo and made part of the existing Service Agresim

The payment schedule and price of thiisal Protocol and Protocol Amendment Adjustmentis as follows:

o $[* Final Protocol Adjustment on Stus

o $[* Protocol Amendment 1 Adjustment on Stt

o 5[ Total Cosl

+ $11,856 Total Cost with [*]% discount — Due upon adjustment billing

Total study cost: $82,344

Final Protocol adjustment due to:
* Increased number of blood sample collections and pcessing

Protocol Amendment 1 adjustment due to:
* An additional dose day was added to the study desig
* Increased number of blood sample collections and pcessing
* Additional dose site observations added

In the event the study design is altered, or thdysis postponed or cancelled, payments will berated as follows:

The price impact (if any) of the protocol amendmgmange order will be submitted in writing. If dyuprices increase the difference will be
invoiced and payable upon acceptance by the Spoiifsstudy prices decrease, the Sponsor will leglited for the difference.

Charles River, 6995 Longley Lane, Reno, NV 89511




[*] Certain information in this document has been anitted and filed separately with the Securities andExchange Commission
Confidential treatment has been requested with resgt to the omitted portions.
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As acceptance of this agreement, please sign #iterLof Payment Authorization and return to mehatletterhead address or fax to me at 775
682-2100. Should you have any questions, pledbmeaat 775-682-2386.

/s| Gary Hattersle /s/ Danielle M. Florey
Authorized Sponsor Representat Danielle M. Florey

Client Manager, Client Servict
Gary Hattersley, SVP Preclinical Developm 14 Nov 2012

Print (Name and Title

November 15, 201
Date

[*¥] Certain information in this document has been anitted and filed separately with the Securities andExchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with resgt to the omitted portions.

Charles River, 6995 Longley Lane, Reno, NV 89511
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe Registration Statements (Form S-1 No. BA391 and related prospectus and Form ¢
8 No. 333-177880) of Radius Health, Inc. of ourortplated March 15, 2013, with respect to the foi@rstatements of Radius Health, Inc.
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for thear ended December 31, 2012.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Boston, Massachusetts
March 15, 2013
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification of Michael S. Wyzga
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
[, Michael S. Wyzga, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Radilesalth, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@eponsible for establishing and maintaining disgfe controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and proesdarbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in registrant&rnal control over financial reporting the ooea during the registrant's m
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thamhaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of registrant's board of directorsigersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2013 /s/ MICHAEL S. WYZGA

Michael S. Wyzga
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification of B. Nicholas Harvey
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
[, B. Nicholas Harvey, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Radilesalth, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@eponsible for establishing and maintaining disgfe controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and proesdarbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in registrant&rnal control over financial reporting the ooea during the registrant's m
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thamhaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of registrant's board of directorsigersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2013 /s/ B. NICHOLAS HARVEY

B. Nicholas Harvey
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, dasarer
and Secretar
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of RedHealth, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K fbeffiscal year ended December 31, 2012
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinthe date hereof (the "Report"), I, MichaeW\§:zga, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sasb@rkey Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of the
Company.

/sl MICHAEL S. WYZGA

Michael S. Wyzga
President and Chief Executive Offic
March 15, 201

A signed original of this written statemesadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiraany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of RedHealth, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K fbeffiscal year ended December 31, 2012
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the "Report"), I, B. Nichdtasvey, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sask@rkey Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ B. NICHOLAS HARVEY

B. Nicholas Harvey

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary

March 15, 201

A signed original of this written statemesadiuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.
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